LA
THE TEXAS % STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM™

Quarterly Board of Regents Meeting

November 17 - 18, 2016

Sam Houston State University




Texas State University System
Regular
Thursday, November 17, 2016 - 12:30 PM
Austin, Texas

AGENDA

1. Logistical Agenda
2. General Motions
3. Academic Affairs

3. A
3. B.
3.C.

3.D.
3. E.
3. F.
3. G.
3. H.

3. 1.

3.J.

3. K.
3. L.

LIT: Create a new certificate program in Emergency Medical Services
LIT: New Academic Certificate Program

LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Heating, Ventilation, and Air
Conditioning

LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Automotive Mechanics
TSUS: Certified Enrollment Reports - Certified Summer 2016
TSUS: INFORMATIONAL: Preliminary Enroliment Report Fall 2016
Academic Affairs Consent Agenda

SRSU:CONSENT: Program Closure Bachelor of Arts in Administrative
Systems and Technology

LIT: CONSENT: Program Modification for the Associate of Applied
Science in Crime Scene Technician

LSCO: CONSENT: Program Modification for AAS Physical Therapy
Assistant

TSUS: CONSENT: Curriculum Changes
TSUS: CONSENT: Out of Country Study Programs

4. Finance and Audit

4. A.
4. B.
4. C.

4.
4.

LU: Certificate Supervision Fee
LIT: Fee Decrease Diploma Fee— Fall 2017

TSUS: Mandatory Tuition & Fees, and Guaranteed Price Plans, Fall
2017 Semester

C. 1. LU: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

C. 2. SHSU: Mandatory Undergraduate Designated Tuition Increase-
Fall Semester 2017

. C. 3. SHSU: Mandatory Graduate Designated Tuition Increase- Fall

Semester 2017

. C. 4. SRSU - Alpine: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017

Semester

. C. 5. SRSU - RGC: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017

Semester

. C. 6. TXST: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

C. 7. LIT: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

. C. 8. LSCO: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increase — Fall 2017 Semester

14
15
16
18

20
22
33
44
45

46

47

49
66
90
92
94
96

99
101

103

105

110

112
116
119



4. D.
4. E.
4. F.
4. G.
4. H.

4. 1.
4.J.
4. K.

4. L.

4. M.
4. N.
4. 0.
4. P.
4.Q.
4. R.
4. S.

. C. 9. LSCPA: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases-Fall 2017 Semester

SHSU: Waiver of Certain Fees

SRSU-Alpine: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee
SRSU-RGC: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee
TSUS: Debt Management Policy

TSUS: Approval of Investment Policy and Adoption of Investment Policy
Resolution

Finance and Audit Consent Agenda
TXST: CONSENT: Create the Leadership Institute Quasi-Endowment

TSUS: CONSENT: Ratification: Tuition Rates for Non-credit Courses at
Lamar State College — Port Arthur, Lamar State College — Orange,
Lamar Institute of Technology

TSUS: CONSENT: Approval of 2018-2019 Legislative Appropriation
Requests

TSUS:CONSENT: Travel Reports

TSUS: CONSENT: Foundation Report

TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY16

TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY17

TSUS: CONSENT: Statement of Budgeted Fund Balances FY16

TSUS: CONSENT: Status of Implementation of Audit Recommendations
TSUS: CONSENT: Quarterly Investment Report November 2016

. Planning and Construction

5. A.

5. B.

5. C.

5. D.
5. E.
5. F.
5. G.
5. H.
5.1

LU: Design Development Documents for Science and Technology
Building

SHSU: Design Development Documents for Lowman Student Center
Addition

SHSU: Design Development Documents for Thomason Building
Repurpose

TXST: Change in Funding Sources for the Library Repository
TXST: Change in Funding Sources for the University Events Center
TSUS: Additions to 2017-2022 Capital Improvements Program
TSUS: Campus Condition Report

Planning and Construction Consent Agenda

TSUS: CONSENT: Executive Summary - Planning and Construction
Report Nov 2016

. Information Resources

6. A.

Information Resources Agenda

. Government Relations

. Contracts

8. A.
8. B.

LU: Annual Grounds Maintenance Contract
SHSU: Authorization to Purchase Real Estate

121
123
125
127
129
143

168
169
170

174

176
185
208
228
247
257
286
369
370

543

616

702
703
704
707
732
733

762
763
764
765
785



8. C. SHSU: Employment Contract for Dean of Osteopathic Medicine
8. D. Contracts Consent Agenda

8. E. LU: CONSENT: Purchase of Property — 1175 and 1185 Vermont St.,
City of Beaumont

8. F. SHSU: CONSENT: Amendments to Pearson Education, Inc. Contract
8. G. TXST: CONSENT: Easement Agreement with the City of San Marcos

8. H. LSCPA: CONSENT: Purchase of a City Lot at 520 Memphis Avenue,
Port Arthur, Texas 77640

8. 1. LSCPA: CONSENT: Purchase of a City Lot at 1610 6th Street, Port
Arthur, Texas 77640

9. Personnel
10. Miscellaneous

10. A. SRSU: SRSU Support Organization (Foundation); Approval of Amended
and Restate By-laws

10. B. TXST: Renaming of Ingram School of Engineering
10. C. LSCPA: Naming of the Industrial Technology Center
10. D. TSUS: Resolution Honoring Patrick Tibbetts, Lt. Col., USAF (Ret.)
10. E. TSUS: Conferring of Regents' Scholar Award to Bethany Bradshaw
10. F. TSUS: Conferring of Regents' Professors Award to James Bexley
10. G. TSUS: Conferring of Regents' Professor Award to Dennis Dunn
10. H. TSUS: Conferring of Regents' Professor Award to Dittmar Hahn
10. I. TSUS: CONSENT: Gifts

11. Presidents' Report

12. Litigation Report

908
920
921

932
956
962

964

966
1036
1037

1047
1048
1049
1051
1053
1055
1057
1059
1086
1127



THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
BOARD OF REGENTS MEETING
Sam Houston State University
November 17 — 18, 2016

President’s Office University Hotel
Administration Building, Room 303 1610 Bobby K. Marks Drive
Huntsville, TX 77340 Huntsville, TX 77340
Phone: (936) 294-1013 Phone: (936) 291-2151

Hospitality Room — University Hotel, Bluebonnet Room (off Hotel Lobby)

Wednesday: 5:00 p.m. — 6:00 p.m.
8:30 p.m. - 11:00 p.m.
Thursday: Early Riser Continental Breakfast: 6:00 a.m. — 8:00 a.m.
4:30 p.m. - 6:00 p.m.
8:30 p.m. —11:00 p.m.
Friday: Early Riser Continental Breakfast: 6:00 a.m. — 8:00 a.m.
*Please note the hotel provides a coupon for overnight guests to eat a continental breakfast
in the CJava Café located on the 2™ floor of the hotel.

Thursday — November 17

8:45 a.m.

9:00 a.m.

9:15 a.m.

9:30 a.m.

11:30 a.m.

12:30 p.m.

12:30 p.m.

12:30 p.m.

Golf Carts depart hotel lobby to location for
Chancellor/Presidents’ Meeting

Presidents’ Meeting (Presidents and Chancellor Only)
Humanities and Social Sciences Building
Concourse Level - P.A.C.E. Center conference room

Golf Carts depart hotel lobby to
Chief Finance Officers Meeting

Chief Finance Officers (Staff Only)
Lowman Student Center (LSC), Room 308

Lunch
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom B

BOARD OF REGENTS MEETING
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom A

Convene in Open Session/Recess into Executive Session
e Personnel, Legal and Real Estate Matters
¢ Reviews: Dr. Denise Trauth, TXST

Dr. Betty Reynard, LSCPA
Breakout Meetings
Academic Affairs (Staff Only)
LSC, Room 329

Finance (Staff Only)
LSC, Room 308

Student Services (Staff Only)
LSC, Room 306

Student Advisory Board
LSC, Room 321



5:45 p.m.

6:00 p.m.

Reconvene in Open Session
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom A

1. Welcome/Remarks by Chairman
2. Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes

3. Reports & Motions

Academic Affairs

Finance and Audit
Planning and Construction
Information Resources
Governmental Relations
Contracts

Miscellaneous

Personnel

Meet in hotel lobby to depart for reception/dinner

Reception/Dinner (business attire)

General’s Market (New Dining Facility)

Dessert

Fred Pirkle Engineering and Technology Center

Friday — November 18

(For Regents, Chancellor, and Presidents)

8:45 a.m.
9:00 a.m.

9:00 a.m.

10:00 a.m.

10:00 a.m.

Golf Carts depart hotel lobby
Student Advisory Board Breakfast
Lowman Student Center (LSC), Room 320

Breakfast for Remaining Attendees
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom B

BOARD OF REGENTS MEETING
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom A

Convene in Open Session/Recess into Executive Session

Reconvene in Open Session
Lowman Student Center (LSC) Ballroom A

1. Welcome/Remarks by Chairman

2. Student Advisory Board Report

3. Campus Update — SHSU-Dr. Dick Eglsaer, Interim Provost and VPAA
4. Regents Resolution Honoring Patrick Tibbetts

5. Regents’ Scholar Award
Bethany Bradshaw

6. Regents’ Professor Awards
James Bexley
Dennis Dunn
Dittmar Hahn
7. Foundation Update — Mike Wintemute

8. Reports & Motions



e General Motions/Consent Agenda
9. Public Comments

10. Adjourn



Texas State University System
General Motions

Action Items

1. TSUS: Approval of Minutes

2. TSUS: Approval of Consent Agenda
3. TSUS: Election of Board Chair

4. TSUS: Election of Vice Chair

Informational Iltem
5. TSUS: Calendar of Upcoming Board Meetings



TSUS: Approval of Minutes

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent

it was ordered that:

The minutes of the quarterly Board of Regents meeting held on August 18 - 19,
2016 be approved.



TSUS: Approval of Consent Agenda

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent

it was ordered that:
Except for items removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of at least one
Regent, all Consent Agenda items be approved.
Background
Because Consent Agenda items have been reviewed at the System and campus levels and are
otherwise considered routine in nature, the Board determines it to be in the public interest that

such items be approved under one vote unless any board member requests that an item(s) be
removed for separate discussion and vote. Consent Items are found at the end of each section.

10



TSUS: Election of Chairman of the Board

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent
it was ordered that:

Regent , be elected as Chairman of the Board to serve a one-
year term, to commence immediately upon passage of this motion.

Explanation

The Texas State University System chairman is elected by majority vote of the Board at the
November meeting each year to serve a one-year term of office, which commences immediately
upon election. He or she may succeed him or herself one time only. Rules and Regulations,
Chapter I, Sub-paragraph 5.1.

11



TSUS: Election of Vice Chairman of the Board

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent
it was ordered that:

Regent , be elected as Vice Chairman of the Board to serve a
one-year term, to commence immediately upon passage of this motion.

Explanation
The Texas State University System vice chairman is elected by majority vote of the Board at the

November meeting each year; he or she serves a single, one-year term only, which commences
immediately upon election. Rules and Regulations, Chapter |, Sub-paragraph 5.1.

12



TSUS: Calendar of Upcoming Board Meetings

February 16-17, 2017
May 18-19, 2017
August 17-18, 2017
November 16-17, 2017

Austin

Texas State University

Sul Ross State University
Sam Houston State University

13



Texas State University System
Academic Affairs

Jaime Garza, Chair
Rossanna Salazar
Veronica Edwards

Action ltems:

1.
2.
3.

LIT: Create a new certificate program in Emergency Medical Services
LIT: New Academic Certificate Program

LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Heating, Ventilation, and Air
Conditioning

LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Automotive Mechanics
TSUS: Certified Enrollment Reports - Certified Summer 2016
TSUS: INFORMATIONAL: Preliminary Enrollment Report Fall 2016

Consent ltems:

7.

10.
11.

SRSU:CONSENT: Program Closure Bachelor of Arts in Administrative
Systems and Technology

LIT: CONSENT: Program Modification for the Associate of Applied Science in Crime
Scene Technician

LSCO: CONSENT: Program Modification for AAS Physical Therapy Assistant
TSUS: CONSENT: Curriculum Changes
TSUS: CONSENT: Out of Country Study Programs

14



LIT: Create a new certificate program in Emergency Medical Services

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent ,
it was ordered that:

Lamar Institute of Technology be authorized to begin a Level One Certificate program in
Emergency Medical Service effective spring 2017.

Explanation

This level one certificate is designed to prepare students for employment as entry level
Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT). The 15 SCH certificate will be the first of three stackable
credentials in the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) program leading to the Associate of
Applied Science Degree.

The EMS Program at LIT adheres to the National EMS Scope of Practice Model (Scope of
Practice). The Scope of Practice defines the levels of EMS personnel and delineates the practices
and minimum competencies for each level of EMS personnel. The Scope of Practice describes
four levels of EMS personnel licensure: Emergency Medical Responder (EMR), Emergency
Medical Technician (EMT), Advanced Emergency Medical Technician (AEMT), and Paramedic.
The National EMS Education Standards define the competencies, clinical behaviors, and
judgments that must be met by entry-level EMS personnel to meet practice guidelines defined in
the National EMS Scope of Practice Model.

Providing students with this Level One certificate allows LIT to better meet the goals of the

60x30TX strategic plan of the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board for marketable skills
and stackable credentials.

Emergency Medical Services
Emergency Medical Technician
Certificate
Proposed Program of Study
(15 SCH)

Fall/Spring Semester

EMSP 1501 EMT Basic 5:3:8
EMSP 1160 EMT Clinical 1:0:6
BIOL 2301 Anatomy & Physiology | 3:3.0
BIOL 2101 Anatomy & Physiology Lab | 1.0:2
HITT 1305 Medical Terminology 3:2:2
HITT 1253 Legal & Ethical Aspects 2:2.0
15:10:18

15



LIT: New Academic Certificate Program

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent ,
it was ordered that:

Lamar Institute of Technology be authorized to submit the Academic Certificate in
Academic Studies for approval to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board.

Explanation

The certificate will be 42 SCH in length and will correspond to the requirements of the Core
Curriculum. Rule 4.36 of the Texas Administrative Code encourages Institutions of higher
education to “develop undergraduate academic certificate programs of less than degree length.
The rules are intended to provide a streamlined process for approval of these certificates.” One
of these suggested areas for a Certificate is “the Board-approved core curriculum of the
Institution.” An academic certificate in general studies is advantageous to student success in that
it can provide a foundation for students wishing to transfer to a four-year institution with a
completed state approved core curriculum short of completing an associate degree. Further, this
certificate will provide the College another cohort of approved “completers” which will assist us in
identifying those students who complete the core and transfer to another institution.

Core Curriculum
Communication (6 SCH)

ENGL 1301 Composition | 3:03:00

SPCH 1315 Public Speaking 3:03:00
Mathematics (3 SCH)

MATH 1314 College Algebra 3:03:00

MATH 1332 Contemporary Mathematics 3:03:00

MATH 1342 Elementary Statistical Methods 3:03:00
Life and Physical Sciences (6 SCH)

BIOL 1306 Biology for Science Majors | 3:03:00

BIOL 1307 Biology for Science Majors |l 3:03:00

BIOL 2301 Anatomy and Physiology | 3:03:00

BIOL 2302 Anatomy and Physiology Il 3:03:00

CHEM 1306 Introduction to Chemistry | 3:03:00

CHEM 1311 General Chemistry | 3:03:00

CHEM 1312 General Chemistry Il 3:03:00
Language, Philosophy, and Culture (3 SCH)

ENGL 2321 British Literature 3:03:00

ENGL 2326 American Literature 3:03:00

PHIL 1301 Introduction to Philosophy 3:03:00
Creative Arts (3 SCH)

ARTS 1301 Art Appreciation 3:03:00

HUMA 1315 Fine Arts Appreciation 3:03:00
History (6 SCH)

HIST 1301 United States History | 3:03:00

HIST 1302 United States History Il 3:03:00
Government (6 SCH)

GOVT 2305 Federal Government 3:03:00

GOVT 2306 Texas Government 3:03:00

16



Social and Behavioral Sciences (3 SCH)

ECON 2301
ECON 2302
PSYC 2301
PSYC 2314
SOCI 1301
SOCI 1306

Principles of Macroeconomics
Principles of Microeconomics
General Psychology

Lifespan Growth & Development
Introduction to Sociology

Social Problems

Component Area Option (6 SCH)

BIOL 1106

BIOL 1107

BIOL 2101

BIOL 2102

CHEM 1112
ENGL 1302

SPCH 1318
EDUC/PSYC 1100

Biology for Science Majors | Lab
Biology for Science Majors Il Lab
Anatomy and Physiology | Lab
Anatomy and Physiology Il Lab
General Chemistry Il Lab
Composition 1l

Interpersonal Communication
Learning Framework

17

3:03:00
3:03:00
3:03:00
3:03:00
3:03:00
3:03:00

1:00:02
1:00:02
1:00:02
1:00:02
1:00:02
3:03:00
3:03:00
1:01:00



LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent ,
it was ordered that:

Lamar State College-Port Arthur be approved to offer the Associate of Applied
Science degree in Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning and the associated
new courses.

Explanation

Lamar State College-Port Arthur currently offers the Associate of Applied Science (AAS) degree
in Heating, Ventilation, and Air Conditioning (HVAC) and two related certificates at the Stiles
Unit of TDCJ. Board approval is requested to offer the degree and certificate plans on campus.

The campus degree plan will differ from the Stiles Unit due to the accessibility of internship
opportunities in the community and options for support courses that are not available at Stiles.
Therefore, the Coordinating Board has recommended submitting the campus degree plan as a
new program. The AAS will contain 60 semester credit hours. Students will have the ability to
complete the two certificates while working toward the AAS.

The program will be housed in the new Industrial Technology Center. Funds for equipment and
furniture are available through a special item appropriation from the Texas Legislature.

The AAS degree in HVAC prepares the graduate for a career as a Heating, Air Conditioning,
and Refrigeration Mechanic & Installer. According to the U.S. Department of Labor
(wwwcareerinfonet.org), the national job growth outlook for Heating, AC, and Refrigeration
Mechanics and Installers is categorized as “much faster than average.” Job growth in Texas is
expected to outpace that of the nation as a whole (22% for Texas compared to 14% nationally).

Employment and wage data shown below for this occupation are provided by the Bureau of
Labor Statistics and the Texas Workforce Commission.

STATE AND NATIONAL TRENDS FOR HEATING, AC, AND REFRIGERATION MECHANICS & INSTALLERS

United States Employment Percent Projected

2014 2024 Change |Annual Job Openings *
Heating, AC, and Refrigeration 0
Mechanics and Installers 292,000 331,600 +14% 8,420
Texas Employment Percent Projected

2012 2022 Change [Annual Job Openings *
Heating, AC, and Refrigeration 23230 28,220 +220 1110
Mechanics and Installers

'Projected Annual Job Openings refers to the average annual job openings due to growth and
net replacement.

18



http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102

Note: The data for the State Employment Trends and the National Employment Trends are not
directly comparable. The projections period for state data is 2012-2022, while the projections

period for national data is 2014-2024.

WAGES FOR HEATING, AC, AND REFRIGERATION MECHANICS AND INSTALLERS IN
TEXAS AND THE UNITED STATES

Location | Pay Period | Low Median | High
u.S. Hourly $13.29 | $21.46 | $34.05
U.S. Yearly $27,630 | $44,630 | $70,820
Texas Hourly $12.85 | $19.20 | $28.90
Texas Yearly $26,720 | $39,930 | $60,120

19



LSCPA: Associate of Applied Science in Automotive Mechanics

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent :
it was ordered that:

Lamar State College-Port Arthur be approved to offer the Associate of Applied
Science degree in Automotive Mechanics and the associated new courses.

Explanation

Lamar State College-Port Arthur currently offers the Associate of Applied Science (AAS) degree
in Automotive Mechanics at the Stiles Unit of TDCJ and two certificates in Automotive
Mechanics on the campus. Board approval is requested to expand the campus offerings to
include the associate degree. Industry representatives have suggested that possessing an
associate degree will improve the opportunity for graduates to compete in the job market.

The campus degree plan will differ from the Stiles Unit due to the accessibility of internship
opportunities in the community and options for support courses that are not available at Stiles.
Therefore, the Coordinating Board has recommended submitting the campus degree plan as a
new program.

New costs are anticipated to be minimal for this request. A laboratory, equipment, and a full-
time instructor are already on hand.

The AAS will contain 60 semester credit hours. Students will still have the ability to complete
the two certificates while working toward the AAS.

The Associate of Applied Science Degree in Automotive Technology prepares the graduate for
a career as an Automotive Service Technician and Mechanic or a Bus and Truck Mechanic.

According to the U.S. Department of Labor (wwwcareerinfonet.org), the national 10-year job
growth outlook for Automotive Service Technicians and Mechanics (5%) is categorized as
“average.” The national 10-year job growth outlook for Bus and Truck Mechanics (12%) is
categorized as “faster than average.” Ten-year job growth in Texas is expected to outpace that
of the nation as a whole for Automotive Service Technicians (18% growth in Texas to 5%
nationally) and Bus and Truck Mechanics (21% growth in Texas compared to 12% nationally).

Employment and wage data shown below for these two occupations are provided by the Bureau
of Labor Statistics and the Texas Workforce Commission.

20



STATE AND NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT TRENDS—AUTO SERVICE TECHNICIANS & MECHANICS

Ut St Employment Percent Projected

2014 2024 Change | Annual Job Openings *
Automotive Service 739,900 | 779,000 | +5% 23,720
Technicians & Mechanics
Texas Employment Percent Projected

2012 2022 Change | Annual Job Openings *
Automotive Service 51,540 60,680 | +18% 2340
Technicians & Mechanics

!Projected Annual Job Openings refers to the average annual job openings due to growth and

net replacement.

Note: The data for the State Employment Trends and the National Employment Trends are not
directly comparable. The projections period for state data is 2012-2022, while the projections

period for national data is 2014-2024.

WAGES FOR AUTOMOTIVE SERVICE TECHNICIANS AND MECHANICS IN TEXAS AND THE US

Location | Pay Period | Low Median | High
U.S. Hourly $10.00 | $17.84 | $29.94
U.S. Yearly $20,800 | $37,120 | $62,280
Texas Hourly $9.53 $17.58 | $29.61
Texas Yearly $19,820 | $36,360 | $61,600

STATE AND NATIONAL TRENDS FOR BUS AND TRUCK MECHANICS

United States Employment Percent Projected

2014 2024 Change | Annual Job Openings !
Bus and Truck Mechanics 263,900 295,500 +12% 7,690
Texas Employment Percent Projected

2012 2022 Change | Annual Job Openings *
Bus and Truck Mechanics 22,180 26,890 +21% 960

!Projected Annual Job Openings refers to the average annual job openings due to growth and

net replacement.
Note: The data for the State Employment Trends and the National Employment Trends are not
directly comparable. The projections period for state data is 2012-2022, while the projections

period for national data is 2014-2024.

WAGES FOR BUS AND TRUCK MECHANICS IN TEXAS AND THE UNITED STATES

Location | Pay Period | Low Median | High
U.S. Hourly $13.52 | $20.98 | $31.42
U.S. Yearly $28,130 | $43,630 | $65,350
Texas Hourly $13.15 | $20.27 | $29.77
Texas Yearly $27,350 | $42,170 | $61,920

21



http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102
http://www.careerinfonet.org/faq_info.asp?question=107&id=1&nodeid=102

TSUS: Certified Enrollment Reports

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent ,
it was ordered that:

The Certified Enrollment Reports for Summer Semester, 2016 for the Texas
State University System components be approved.

BACKGROUND
In accordance with the Texas Education Code, Sections 51.403(b) and 51.404 and the System

Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill,Section1.(10)Curriculum Matters,Subsection1.(10)1 Twelfth
and fourth class day reports shall be submitted to the Board of Regents for approval.

22



Texas State University System Certified Enrollment Report Comparison

Certified Summer 2015 vs. Certified Summer 2016

Table 1. Unduplicated Headcount, SCH, Contact Hours, and FTSE

Institution Summer 2015 | Summer 2016 % Change
Headcount 8,419 8,375 -1%
Lamar SCH 76,081 76,394 0%
FTSE 7,814 7,863 1%
Headcount 7,942 8,100 2%
Sam Houston SCH 52,828 52,047 -1%
FTSE 4,748 4,648 -2%
Headcount 1,493 1,647 10%
Sul Ross-Total SCH 10,063 10,618 6%
FTSE 943 992 5%
Headcount 892 973 9%
Sul Ross-Alpine SCH 5,899 6,181 5%
FTSE 575 602 5%
Headcount 601 674 12%
Sul Ross-Rio Grande SCH 4,164 4,437 7%
FTSE 368 390 6%
Headcount 12,689 13,177 4%
Texas State SCH 77,749 80,640 4%
FTSE 6,851 7,095 4%
Headcount 763 815 7%
SCH 5,343 5,408 1%
Lamar-IT FTSE 445 451 1%
Contact 136,480 139,888 2%
Headcount 795 797 0%
SCH 5,762 5,870 2%
Lamar-O FTSE 480 489 2%
Contact 154,432 161,280 4%
Headcount 755 676 -10%
SCH 4,807 6,112 27%
Lamar-PA FTSE 401 509 27%
Contact 117,232 162,784 39%
Headcount 32,856 33,587 2%
SCH 232,633 237,089 2%
Total FTSE 21,682 22,047 2%
Contact 408,144 463,952 14%
Table 2. Continuing Education Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, and FTSE
Institution Summer 2015 | Summer 2016 % Change
Headcount 1,885 2,012 7%
Lamar-IT FTSE 253 341 35%
Contact 75,847 102,344 35%
Headcount 316 124 -61%
Lamar-O FTSE 29 9 -68%
Contact 8,831 2,789 -68%
Headcount 514 2,066 302%
Lamar-PA FTSE 481 492 2%
Contact 144,158 147,638 2%
Headcount 2,715 4,202 55%
Total FTSE 763 843 10%
Contact 228,836 252,771 10%

Note: Summer 2015 data have been verified against the THECB PREP System. Any descrepancies
in the original Summer 2015 Certified Enrollment Report have been corrected.

23




Table 1. Unduplicated Headcount, SCH, Contact Hours, and FTSE

Texas State University System Certified Enrollment Report

Summer 2016

Doctoral-| Doctoral | Post-Bach

Institution Undergrad | Master's | Research |Professiona Total
Headcount 3,620 3,594 314 18 829 8,375
Lamar SCH 28,764 44,297 3,123 210 - 76,394
FTSE 2,397 4,922 521 23 - 7,863
Headcount 6,294 1,486 243 - 77 8,100
Sam Houston SCH 42,773 8,320 954 - - 52,047
FTSE 3,564 924 159 - - 4,648
Headcount 1,014 574 - - 59 1,647
Sul Ross-Total SCH 6,751 3,867 - - - 10,618
FTSE 563 430 - - - 992
Headcount 472 470 - - 31 973
Sul Ross-Alpine SCH 3,043 3,138 - - - 6,181
FTSE 254 349 - - - 602
Headcount 542 104 - - 28 674
Sul Ross-Rio Grande SCH 3,708 729 - - - 4,437
FTSE 309 81 - - - 390
Headcount 10,907 1,736 139 123 272 13,177
Texas State SCH 68,342 10,399 597 1,302 - 80,640
FTSE 5,695 1,155 100 145 - 7,095
Headcount 815 - - - - 815
SCH 5,408 - - - - 5,408
Lamar-IT FTSE 451 ; . ; ; 451
Contact 139,888 - - - - 139,888
Headcount 797 - - - - 797
SCH 5,870 - - - - 5,870
Lamar-0 FTSE 489 ; , , . 489
Contact 161,280 - - - - 161,280
Headcount 676 - - - - 676
SCH 6,112 - - - - 6,112
Lamar-PA FTSE 509 ; ; ; ; 509
Contact 162,784 - - - - 162,784
Headcount 24,123 7,390 696 141 1,237 33,587
SCH 164,020 66,883 4,674 1,512 - 237,089
Total FTSE 13,668 7,431 779 168 - 22,047
Contact 463,952 - - 463,952

Table 2. Continuing Education Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, and FTSE

Institution Undergrad

Headcount 2,012

Lamar-IT FTSE 341
Contact 102,344

Headcount 124

Lamar-O FTSE 9
Contact 2,789

Headcount 2,066

Lamar-PA FTSE 492
Contact 147,638

Headcount 4,202

Total FTSE 843

Contact 252,771

24




TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: Universities

Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Lamar University
Summer 2016
Gregory Marsh

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Off- On- Both On-
Campus | Campus | and Off
Level Only Only Campus Total
Undergraduate 1,414 1,571 635 3,620
Post-Bach 766 49 14 829
Master's 2,903 448 243 3,594
Doctoral-Research 175 108 31 314
Doctoral-Professional - 6 12 18
Total 5,258 2,182 935 8,375

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Funded Total
Level SCH FTSE SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 27,186 2,266 28,764 2,397
Master's 44,285 4,921 44,297 4,922
Doctoral-Research 3,123 521 3,123 521
Doctoral-Professional 216 24 210 23

Total 74,810 7,731 76,394 7,863

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

25




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Sam Houston State University

Summer 2016

Office of Institutional Effectiveness

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: Universities

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Off- On- Both On-
Campus | Campus | and Off
Level Only Only Campus Total
Undergraduate - 6,294 - 6,294
Post-Bach - 77 - 77
Master's - 1,486 - 1,486
Doctoral-Research - 243 - 243
Doctoral-Professional - - - -
Total - 8,100 - 8,100

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Funded Total
Level SCH FTSE SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 41,798 3,483 42,773 3,564
Master's 8,320 924 8,320 924
Doctoral-Research 954 159 954 159
Doctoral-Professional - - - -

Total 51,072 4,567 52,047 4,648

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

26




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Sul Ross State University - Alpine

Summer 2016
Pamela Pipes

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: Universities

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Off- On- Both On-
Campus | Campus | and Off
Level Only Only Campus Total

Undergraduate 471 1 472
Post-Bach - 31 - 31
Master's 1 444 25 470
Doctoral-Research - - - -
Doctoral-Professional - - - -

Total 1 946 26 973

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Funded Total
Level SCH FTSE SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 2,873 239 3,043 254
Master's 3,121 347 3,138 349
Doctoral-Research - - - -
Doctoral-Professional - - - -

Total 5,994 586 6,181 602

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

27




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: Universities

Sul Ross State University - Rio Grande College

Summer 2016

Dr. Jeanne Qvarstram

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Off- On- Both On-
Campus | Campus | and Off
Level Only Only Campus Total

Undergraduate - 542 - 542
Post-Bach - 28 28
Master's - 104 104
Doctoral-Research - - - -
Doctoral-Professional - - - -

Total - 674 - 674

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Funded Total
Level SCH FTSE SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 3,417 285 3,708 309
Master's 729 81 729 81
Doctoral-Research - - - -
Doctoral-Professional - - - -

Total 4,146 366 4,437 390

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

28




TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: Universities

Institution: Texas State University
Term or Semester: Summer 2016
Submitted by: Tami Rice
Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Off- On- Both On-
Campus | Campus | and Off
Level Only Only Campus Total

Undergraduate 1,943 7,247 1,717 10,907
Post-Bach 71 186 15 272
Master's 540 925 271 1,736
Doctoral-Research 5 109 25 139
Doctoral-Professional - 123 - 123

Total 2,559 8,590 2,028 13,177

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Funded Total
Level SCH FTSE SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 63,923 5,327 68,342 5,695
Master's 10,399 1,155 10,399 1,155
Doctoral-Research 597 100 597 100
Doctoral-Professional 1,302 145 1,302 145

Total 76,221 6,727 80,640 7,095

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

29




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Table 1

Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Lamar Institute of Technology
Summer 2016
David Mosley

Level

Headcount

Contact Hours

Credit Hours

Funded

Unfunded

Total

Funded

Unfunded

Total

FTSE

Undergraduate

815

138,496

1,392

139,888

5,328

80

5,408

451

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

Table 2
Continuing Education Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, and Full-Time Student Equivalent,
Contact
Term Headcount| Hours FTSE
Previous Term 1,885 75,847 253
Current Term 2,012 102,344 341

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMOOA.

30




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Table 1

Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Lamar State College - Orange
Summer 2016
Hunter Keeney

Level

Headcount

Contact Hours

Credit Hours

Funded

Unfunded

Total

Funded

Unfunded

Total

FTSE

Undergraduate

797

160,016

1,264

161,280

5,798

72

5,870

489

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

Table 2
Continuing Education Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, and Full-Time Student Equivalent,
Contact
Term Headcount| Hours FTSE
Previous Term 204 3,239 11
Current Term 124 2,789 9

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMOOA.

31




Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Table 1

Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH

TSUS Certified Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Lamar State College-Port Arthur
Summer 2016

Petra Uzoruo

Level

Headcount

Contact Hours

Credit Hours

Funded

Unfunded

Total

Funded

Unfunded

Total

FTSE

Undergraduate

676

162,048

736

162,784

6,075

37

6,112

509

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

Table 2
Continuing Education Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, and Full-Time Student Equivalent,
Contact
Term Headcount| Hours FTSE
Previous Term 243 42,521 142
Current Term 2,066 | 147,638 492

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMOOA.

32




TSUS: INFORMATIONAL: Preliminary Enrollment Report Fall 2016

The Preliminary Enroliment Report Comparison table shows aggregate certified fall 2015
enrollment data vs preliminary fall 2016 for the Texas State University System
components, and the subsequent tables provide detailed preliminary fall 2016 enroliment
data. The certified enrollments for fall 2016 will be reviewed at the February meeting.

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the Texas Education Code, Sections 51.403(b) and 51.404 and the System
Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill, Section 1. (10) Curriculum Matters, Subsection 1. (10)1
Twelfth and fourth class day reports shall be submitted to the Board of Regents for approval.

33



Texas State University System Preliminary Enrollment Report Comparison
Certified Fall 2015 vs. Preliminary Fall 2016

Table 1. Unduplicated Headcount, SCH, Contact Hours, and FTSE

Institution Fall 2015 Fall 2016 | % Change

Headcount 14,494 14,395 -1%

Lamar SCH 128,916 125,621 -3%
FTSE 9,052 8,810 -3%

Headcount 20,031 20,488 2%

Sam Houston SCH 237,629 243,280 2%
FTSE 16,143 16,514 2%

Headcount 2,992 3,091 3%

Sul Ross-Total SCH 27,756 28,910 4%
FTSE 1,923 2,015 5%

Headcount 1,019 1,014 0%

Sul Ross-Rio Grande SCH 7,364 7,598 3%

FTSE 504 536 6%

Headcount 1,973 2,077 5%

Sul Ross Univ. SCH 20,392 21,312 5%

FTSE 1,418 1,479 4%

Headcount 37,979 38,849 2%

Texas State SCH 456,771 469,359 3%
FTSE 31,039 31,897 3%

Headcount 2,846 3,029 6%

SCH 28,728 30,779 7%

Lamar-IT FTSE 1,901 2,052 8%
Contact 639,344 686,704 7%

Headcount 2,318 2,338 1%

SCH 21,301 21,011 -1%

Lamar-0 FTSE 1,420 1,401 1%
Contact 427,120 437,024 2%

Headcount 1,802 2,051 14%

SCH 16,605 18,268 10%

Lamar-PA FTSE 1,107 1218 10%
Contact 341,184 385,360 13%

Headcount 82,462 84,241 2%

SCH 917,706 937,228 2%

Total FTSE 62,584 63,906 2%

Contact 1,407,648 1,509,088 7%

Note: Preliminary comparisons do not include continuing education data.

34




Table 1. Unduplicated Headcount, SCH, Contact Hours, and FTSE

Texas State University System Preliminary Enroliment Report

Fall 2016

Doctoral-| Doctoral | Post-Bach

Institution Undergrad | Master's | Research |Professiona Total
Headcount 9,235 3,972 313 28 847 14,395
Lamar SCH 102,319 21,326 1,697 279 - 125,621
FTSE 6,821 1,777 189 23 - 8,810
Headcount 17,908 2,215 259 - 106 20,488
Sam Houston SCH 227,703 14,306 1,271 - - 243,280
FTSE 15,180 1,192 141 - - 16,514
Headcount 2,272 702 - - 117 3,091
Sul Ross-Total SCH 23,659 5,251 - - - 28,910
FTSE 1,577 438 - - - 2,015
Headcount 814 144 - - 56 1,014
Sul Ross-Rio Grande SCH 5,854 1,744 - - - 7,598
FTSE 390 145 - - - 536
Headcount 1,458 558 - - 61 2,077
Sul Ross Univ. SCH 17,805 3,507 - - - 21,312
FTSE 1,187 292 - - - 1,479
Headcount 34,276 3,517 370 123 563 38,849
Texas State SCH 437,060 28,449 2,445 1,405 - 469,359
FTSE 29,137 2,371 272 117 - 31,897
Headcount 3,029 - - - - 3,029
SCH 30,779 - - - - 30,779
Lamar-IT FTSE 2,052 ; . ; ; 2,052
Contact 686,704 - - - - 686,704
Headcount 2,338 - - - - 2,338
SCH 21,011 - - - - 21,011
Lamar-O FTSE 1,401 - - - ; 1,401
Contact 437,024 - - - - 437,024
Headcount 2,051 - - - - 2,051
SCH 18,268 - - - - 18,268
Lamar-PA FTSE 1,218 ; ] ] ] 1,218
Contact 385,360 - - - - 385,360
Headcount 71,109 10,406 942 151 1,633 84,241
SCH 860,799 69,332 5,413 1,684 - 937,228
Total FTSE 57,387 5,778 601 140 - 63,906
Contact | 1,509,088 - -| 1,509,088

Note: Preliminary report does not include continuing education data.

35




TSUS Preliminary Enroliment Report: Universities

Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Lamar University

Fall 2016

Dr. Gregory Marsh

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Level Total

Undergraduate 9,235
Post-Bach 847
Master's 3,972
Doctoral-Research 313
Doctoral-Professional 28

Total 14,395

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Total
Level SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 102,319 6,821
Master's 21,326 1,777
Doctoral-Research 1,697 189
Doctoral-Professional 279 23

Total 125,621 8,810

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

36



TSUS Preliminary Enroliment Report: Universities

Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Sam Houston State University

Fall 2016

Office of Institutional Effectiveness

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Level Total

Undergraduate 17,908
Post-Bach 106
Master's 2,215
Doctoral-Research 259
Doctoral-Professional -

Total 20,488

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Total
Level SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 227,703 15,180
Master's 14,306 1,192
Doctoral-Research 1,271 141
Doctoral-Professional - -

Total 243,280 16,514

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

37



TSUS Preliminary Enroliment Report: Universities

Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Sul Ross State University - Rio Grande College

Fall 2016

Dr. Claudia Wright

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Level Total

Undergraduate 814
Post-Bach 56
Master's 144
Doctoral-Research -
Doctoral-Professional -

Total 1,014

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Total
Level SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 5,854 390
Master's 1,744 145
Doctoral-Research - -
Doctoral-Professional - -

Total 7,598 536

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

38



TSUS Preliminary Enroliment Report: Universities

Institution:
Term or Semester:
Submitted by:

Sul Ross State University - Alpine

Fall 2016
Pamela Pipes

Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Level Total

Undergraduate 1,458
Post-Bach 61
Master's 558
Doctoral-Research -
Doctoral-Professional -

Total 2,077

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Total
Level SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 17,805 1,187
Master's 3,507 292
Doctoral-Research - -
Doctoral-Professional - -

Total 21,312 1,479

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

39



TSUS Preliminary Enroliment Report: Universities

Institution: Texas State University
Term or Semester: Fall 2016
Submitted by: Tami Rice
Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount
Level Total

Undergraduate 34,276
Post-Bach 563
Master's 3,517
Doctoral-Research 370
Doctoral-Professional 123

Total 38,849

Note: Headcount and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBMO0O1.

Table 2
SCH and Full-Time Student Equivalents
Total
Level SCH FTSE

Undergraduate 437,060 29,137
Master's 28,449 2,371
Doctoral-Research 2,445 272
Doctoral-Professional 1,405 117

Total 469,359 31,897

Note: SCH and level should be defined using the same criteria as used for the THECB CBMO0O04.

40



TSUS Preliminary Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Institution: Lamar Institute of Technology
Term or Semester: Fall 2016
Submitted by: David Mosley
Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH
Contact
Level Headcount| Hours SCH FTSE
Undergraduate 3,029 | 686,704 30,779 2,052

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

41



TSUS Preliminary Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Institution: Lamar State College - Orange
Term or Semester: Fall 2016
Submitted by: Hunter Keeney
Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH
Contact
Level Headcount| Hours SCH FTSE
Undergraduate 2,338 | 437,024 21,011 1,401

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

42



TSUS Preliminary Enrollment Report: State/Technical Colleges

Institution: Lamar State College-Port Arthur
Term or Semester: Fall 2016
Submitted by: Petra Uzoruo
Table 1
Unduplicated Headcount, Contact Hours, Full-Time Student Equivalent, and SCH
Contact
Level Headcount| Hours SCH FTSE
Undergraduate 2,051 | 385,360 18,268 1,218

Note: Measures should be defined using the same criteria as used for THECB CBM001/CBMO004

43



Texas State University System
Academic Affairs

CONSENT ITEMS

Consent ltems:
7. SRSU:CONSENT: Program Closure Bachelor of Arts in Administrative
Systems and Technology

8. LIT: CONSENT: Program Modification for the Associate of Applied Science in Crime
Scene Technician

9. LSCO: CONSENT: Program Modification for AAS Physical Therapy Assistant
10. TSUS: CONSENT: Curriculum Changes
11. TSUS: CONSENT: Out of Country Study Programs

44



SRSU - Program Closure Bachelor of Arts in Administrative Systems and Technology

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was ordered
that:

Sul Ross State University be authorized to close the Bachelor of Arts in Administrative
Systems and Technology degree program (CIP Code: 52.0204.00) effective Fall 2019.

Explanation

The Bachelor of Arts in Administrative Systems and Technology is housed in the Department of
Industrial Technology within the College of Education and Professional Studies. There is
currently one faculty member in the program, and she is teaching part-time in the early
retirement program. The full retirement of the one faculty member in this program at the end
of the Spring 2017 semester and declining enrollments in the program have provided an
opportunity to assess the viability and potential of the degree program and, accordingly, to
reinvest the resources of the university in areas of greater potential and need. Rather than
continuing to invest in this low productivity program, the university requests authorization to
close the program. The University’s resources would then be invested in developing other
programs within the Department of Industrial Technology, programs with greater growth
potential and programs which would modernize the Industrial Technology curriculum. If
authorization to close the program is granted, the university would cease admitting students
into the program immediately, and the University would provide a teach-out plan that would
graduate remaining students by Fall, 2019. No faculty members would be terminated because
of the closure.

45



LIT: Program Modification for the Associate of Applied Science in Crime Scene
Technician

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was
ordered that:

Lamar Institute of Technology be authorized to change the Classification of Instructional
Programs (CIP) code from Public Administration (440400) to Criminal Justice (430107) for
the Associate of Applied Science Degree in Crime Scene Technician.

Explanation

While reducing hours in the Associate Degree programs to 60 SCH to remain in compliance with
Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB) Policies, the Advisory Board for the
Homeland Security Crime Scene Technician program and LIT faculty realized the crime scene
technician program would lead to more job opportunities if classified as a Criminal Justice
Program. During the reduction in hours many of the homeland security courses were replaced
with comparable criminal justice courses. These curriculum changes were approved by the Board
of Regents and the THECB in 2014/2015. The change in CIP code will bring the classification and
the curriculum into alignment.

46



Lamar State College-Orange: Program Modification for AAS Physical Therapy Assistant

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent

it was ordered that:

Lamar State College-Orange be authorized to modify the Associate of Applied
Science degree for Physical Therapy Assistant by decreasing the program hours
from 70 to 64.

Explanation

To align with the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s requirement to decrease to 64
program hours, LSC-O proposes adding PTHA 2250 Current Concepts in Physical Therapy,
adjusting various course numbers by one or more credit hour, and altering PTHA 2435
Rehabilitation Techniques’ credit/lecture/lab hours.

Add PTHA 2250 Current Concepts in Physical Therapy

Change

PTHA 1301 The Profession of Physical Therapy
TO

PTHA 1201 The Profession of Physical Therapy

PTHA 1405 Basic Patient Care Skills
TO
PTHA 1305 Basic Patient Care Skills

PTHA 1513 Functional Anatomy
TO
PTHA 1313 Functional Anatomy

PTHA 1531 Physical Agents
TO
PTHA 1431 Physical Agents

PTHA 2509 Therapeutic Exercise
TO
PTHA 2409 Therapeutic Exercise

PTHA 1260 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (I)
TO
PTHA 1360 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (1)

PTHA 2160 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (l1)
-FI;?HA 2460 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (I1)
PTHA 2261 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (l11)
-Fl;g')HA 2461 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (IIl)

PTHA 2435 Rehabilitation Techniques changing its credit-lecture-lab from 4-3-2

47



PTHA 2435 Rehabilitation Techniques to 4-2-4

*(Per THECB) This program was approved in 2008. This program is exempt from the 60 SCH
limit.*

48



TSUS: Curriculum Changes

Recommendation
The proposed Course Additions, Deletions and Changes for the following Texas State

University System components be approved.

COURSE COURSE COURSE
COMPONENT ADDITIONS DELETIONS CHANGES

Lamar University 13 17 1
Sam Houston State University
Sul Ross State University

Texas State University 81 87 0
Lamar Institute of Technology 15 4 5
Lamar State College — Orange 1 0 9
Lamar State College — Port Arthur

Sul Ross State University Rio Grande College 1 0 0

In accordance with the System Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill, Section 1.(10) Curriculum
Matters, Subsection 1.(10)3 Course additions, deletions, and changes shall be submitted to the
Board of Regents for approval.

49



CURRICULUM INVENTORY REPORT
Lamar University

November 2016
NET
COLLEGE COURSE COURSE COURSE TITLE ADDITIONS/
Academic Unit ADDITIONS DELETIONS CHANGES DELETIONS
COLLEGE OF ARTS AND SCIENCES
Computer Science 1 0 0 1
English and Modern Languages 1 0 0
History 1 0 0
COLLEGE OF BUSINESS
Accounting & Business Law 1 0 0 1
Economics and Finance 1 0 1 1
Management & Marketing 1 0 0 1
COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING
Civil and Environmental 0 4 0 -4
Electrical Engineering 3 2 0 1
Engineering 0 2 0 -2
Industrial Engineering 0 4 0 -4
Mechanical Engineering 0 4 0 -4
COLLEGE OF FINE ARTS AND
COMMUNICATION
Communication 1 0 0 1
Deaf Studies and Deaf Education 0 1 0 -1
Music 2 0 0 2
Speech and Hearing Sciences 1 0 0 1
TOTAL 13 17 1 -4
COLLEGE OF ARTS AND SCIENCES
Computer Science
ADDITION
CPSC 4317 Computer Networks
English and Modern Languages
ADDITION
ENGL 3311 Professional Writing
13

50



History

ADDITION
HIST 4393 Public History Essentials

COLLEGE OF BUSINESS

Accounting and Business Law

ADDITION
BULW 5333 Legal Framework of Ports & Trade

Economics and Finance

ADDITION

ECON 5333 Economics and Ports and Trade
CHANGES

ECON 5300 Foundation of Microeconomics
TO

ECON 5300 Foundation of Economics

Management and Marketing

ADDITION
MGMT 5333 Port Property & Asset Management

COLLEGE OF ENGINEERING

Civil and Environmental Engineering

DELETIONS

CVEN 5390 Masters Thesis

CVEN 5391 Masters Thesis

CVEN 6601 Engineering Practice Field Study
CVEN 6602 Engineering Practice Field Study

Electrical Engineering

ADDITION
ELEN 2320 Fund Instrumentation & Control
ELEN 4317 Programmable Logic Controllers
ELEN 5314 Introduction to Robotics
DELETIONS
ELEN 5390 Masters Thesis
ELEN 5391 Masters Thesis

Engineering
DELETIONS
ENGR 6601 Engineering Practice Field Study
ENGR 6602 Engineering Practice Field Study

51

2|3



Industrial Engineering

DELETIONS

INEN 5390 Masters Thesis

INEN 5391 Masters Thesis

INEN 6601 Engineering Practice Field Study
INEN 6602 Engineering Practice Field Study

Mechanical Engineering

DELETIONS

MEEN 5390 Masters Thesis

MEEN 5391 Masters Thesis

MEEN 6601 Engineering Practice Field Study
MEEN 6602 Engineering Practice Field Study

COLLEGE OF FINE ARTS AND COMMUNICATION

Communication

ADDITION
COMM 4376 Documentary Film Production

Deaf Studies and Deaf Education

DELETION

DSDE 6310 ASL/English Bilingual Education and Deaf Studies
Music

ADDITION

MULT 5365 Bach and Beethoven

MULT 5391 Popular Music of the 20" Century

Speech and Hearing Sciences

ADDITION
SPHS 4352 Counseling in Communication Disorders

52

33



Texas State University

CURRICULUM CHANGES - EFFECTIVE SPRING 2017

COLLEGE/ACADEMIC UNIT

COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS
Criminal Justice
Family and Consumer Sciences

MCCOY COLLEGE OF BUSINESS
ADMINISTRATION

Accounting

Computer Information Systems and Quantitative
Methods

Management

COLLEGE OF EDUCATION

Counseling, Leadership, Adult Education, and
School Psychology

Curriculum and Instruction

Health and Human Performance

COLLEGE OF FINE ARTS AND
COMMUNICATION

Communication Studies

Journalism and Mass Communication
Music

Theatre and Dance

COLLEGE OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

Health Information Management
St. David’s School of Nursing

COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS
Anthropology

Diversity and Gender Studies
English

Geography

International Studies

Modern Languages

Political Science

Psychology

Sociology

NET
ADDITIONS/

ADDITIONS DELETIONS CHANGES DELETIONS

53

DN O W ~N = o

w w

NOWORFR,PEFPOPRFRO®

= O 00

=
w

O Wk~ OONDO

O O oo

[oNe]

OO O0OO0OO0OO0OO0oOOoOOo



COLLEGE OF SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

Chemistry and Biochemistry 3 2
Engineering Technology 3 3
Mathematics 1 0
Physics 5 0
TOTAL 81 87

COLLEGE OF APPLIED ARTS

School of Criminal Justice

ADDITIONS:

CJ 4335 The Psychology of Antisocial Behavior

CJ 7309 Proseminar

CJ 7314 Policing

CJ 7315 Corrections

CJ 7323 Applied Statistics and Quantitative Data Analysis
DELETIONS:

CJ 4309E Criminal Justice in Southeast Asia

CJ 4309F The Psychology of Antisocial Behavior

CJ 7210 Proseminar

CJ 7350M Applied Statistics and Quantitative Data Analysis

School of Family and Consumer Sciences
ADDITIONS:

FCS 5301 Graduate Assistant Development

FM 3333 Merchandise Presentation and Planning

MCCQOY COLLEGE OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

Department of Accounting

ADDITION:

ACC 5680 Internship in Accounting

DELETION:

ACC 5381 Advanced Business and Regulation Concepts

Department of Computer Information Systems and Quantitative Methods
ADDITIONS:

QMST 3341 Big Data Analysis

QMST 4314 Optimization

QMST 4320 Data Analytics

Department of Management

ADDITION:
MGT 4385 Management Thought: Past, Present, and Future

54

O O oo

g~ Ok



COLLEGE OF EDUCATION

Department of Counseling, Leadership, Adult Education, and School Psychology
ADDITIONS:

COUN 5394 Counseling Women

EDCL 7389 Superintendent Practicum |

EDCL 7390 Superintendent Practicum Il

SAHE 5389 Internship Il — Student Affairs

SAHE 7345 Gender and Sexuality in College

DELETIONS:

COUN 5158 Group Counseling Pre-Practicum

ED 7350 Methods of Research in Education

ED 7355 Non-Parametric Research Design and Analysis

ED 7358 Theoretical and Conceptual Frameworks in Qualitative Research
ED 7365 Cross-cultural Leadership in Education

ED 7372 The Emotions of Leading, Teaching, and Learning

ED 7390 Survey Research and Scale Development

SAHE 7379A Gender in the Collegiate Environment

Department of Curriculum and Instruction
ADDITION:
EDTC 5341 Digital Fabrication and Simple Electronics

Department of Health and Human Performance
ADDITIONS:

AT 3111 Clinical Assessment | Laboratory

AT 3112 Clinical Assessment Il Laboratory

AT 3311 Clinical Assessment |

AT 3312 Clinical Assessment |l

AT 4113 Clinical Therapeutic Interventions Lab
AT 4313 Clinical Therapeutic Interventions
REC 4681 Internship in Therapeutic Recreation
DELETION:

H ED 3331 Health Education in the Secondary Setting

COLLEGE OF FINE ARTS AND COMMUNICATION

Department of Communication Studies

ADDITIONS:

COMM 3318U Public Advocacy and Civic Engagement
COMM 5303 Qualitative Research Methods in Communication
COMM 5304 Work/Life Intersections

School of Journalism and Mass Communication

DELETION:
MC 3368 Advertising Copywriting

55



School of Music

ADDITIONS:

MU 3317 History and Analysis of Music Ill
MU 5337 Technigues of Contemporary Music
DELETIONS:

MU 3313 Introduction to Fine Arts

MU 4151 Band Instrument Repair

MU 4255A Vocal Pedagogy

MU 4256A Vocal Literature

MU 4280 Senior Research Project

MU 4680 Internship in Sound Recording Technology
MU 5375L Techniques of Contemporary Music
MUSP 3320 Applied Voice

MUSP 3330 Applied Keyboard

MUSP 3340 Applied Woodwind

MUSP 3350 Applied Brass

MUSP 3360 Applied String

MUSP 3370 Applied Percussion

MUSP 3380 Applied Composition

MUSP 4320 Applied Voice

MUSP 4330 Applied Keyboard

MUSP 4340 Applied Woodwind

MUSP 4360 Applied String

MUSP 4370 Applied Percussion

MUSP 4380 Applied Composition

Department of Theatre and Dance
ADDITIONS:

TH 4304 Web Series Creation

TH 4305 Advanced Web Series Creation
TH 4333 Advanced Television Writing
TH 5304 Web Series Creation

TH 5305 Advanced Web Series Creation
TH 5333 Advanced Television Writing
DELETIONS:

DAN 3313 Introduction to Fine Arts

TH 1358 Stagecraft

TH 3313 Introduction to Fine Arts

TH 5368 American Theatre and Drama
TH 5370 Studies in Advanced Creative Dramatics for Children

COLLEGE OF HEALTH PROFESSIONS

Department of Health Information Management

ADDITIONS:

HIM 3364 Coding and Classification Systems

HIM 4320 Principles of Information Governance

HIM 4393 Project Management for Health Information Management
DELETIONS:

HIM 3368 Disease and Medical Science Il

HIM 3464 Coding and Classifications Systems |

HIM 4225 Health Information Management Research and Education

56



St. David’'s School of Nursing

ADDITIONS:

NURS 3360 Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing

NURS 4341 Leadership and Management of Nursing Care Practicum
NURS 4351 Leadership and Management of Nursing Care
DELETIONS:

NURS 3460 Psychiatric Mental Health Nursing

NURS 4241 Leadership and Management of Nursing Care Practicum
NURS 4441 Leadership and Management of Nursing Care

COLLEGE OF LIBERAL ARTS

Department of Anthropology

ADDITIONS:

ANTH 3330 Curation of Archaeological Materials
ANTH 4326 Field Methods in Forensic Anthropology
ANTH 4337 Theory in Linguistic Anthropology

ANTH 4339 Theoretical Concepts in Archaeology
ANTH 5330 Curation of Archaeological Materials
ANTH 5337 Theory in Linguistic Anthropology

ANTH 5339 Theoretical Concepts in Archaeology
ANTH 5376 Advanced Methods in Skeletal Biology, Part Il
DELETIONS:

ANTH 3326 Maya History and Society

ANTH 3354 Latin American Gender and Sexuality
ANTH 3355 Introduction to Yucatec/Lacandon Maya
ANTH 3376N Curation of Archaeological Materials
ANTH 3376Q Field Methods in Forensic Anthropology
ANTH 3376R Theoretical Concepts in Archaeology
ANTH 3376S Theory in Linguistic Anthropology
ANTH 3376W Anthropology of Disasters

ANTH 5354 Latin American Gender and Sexuality
ANTH 5373B Theory in Linguistic Anthropology
ANTH 5373C Theoretical Concepts in Archaeology
ANTH 5373F Advanced Methods in Skeletal Biology Il
ANTH 53757 Curation of Archaeological Materials

Center for Diversity and Gender Studies
ADDITION:
DVST 5388 Independent Study in Diversity Studies

Department of English
DELETIONS:

ENG 5318 Effective Communication
ENG 5319 Effective Communication

Department of Geography
ADDITION:
GEO 7341 Urban Environment

Center for International Studies

ADDITION:
IS 5398 General Research Methods

57



Department of Modern Languages

ADDITIONS:

JAPA 3306 Modern Japanese Literature and Culture
JAPA 4390 Studies in Japanese Language and Culture
SPAN 4300 Professional Internship in Spanish
SPAN 4341 Gabriel Garcia Marquez

SPAN 4342 Don Quijote

SPAN 4600 Professional Internship in Spanish
DELETIONS:

LING 5311 Applied Linguistics

LING 5313 Language Methods, Media, and Testing
LING 5315 Psycholinguistics

SPAN 4380D Gabriel Garcia Marquez

Department of Political Science

ADDITIONS:

POSI 4316 Party Systems: Theory and Practice

PS 5199B Thesis

PS 5299B Thesis

PS 5359 Comparative Democratization

PS 5362 Problems of Democracy in Latin America

PS 5363 Party Systems in Latin America

PS 5599B Thesis

PS 5999B Thesis

DELETIONS:

POSI 5199B Thesis

POSI 5299B Thesis

POSI 5345 Conceptual Foundations of Government Information Systems
POSI 5346 Technology of Government Information Systems
POSI 5351 Seminar in American Political Institutions

POSI 5599B Thesis

POSI 5999B Thesis

POSI 7310 Resolution of Disputes Involving Aquatic Resources

Department of Psychology
DELETIONS:

PSY 4390C Personal Relationships
PSY 4390M Psychology of Opera

PSY 5385 Industrial Social Psychology

Department of Sociology

ADDITIONS:

SOCI 3322 Sociology of Latinos and Immigration
SOCI 3367 Sustainable Cities

DELETIONS:

SOCI 3321 Suicide, Society, and Human Experience
SOCI 3366 Folkways and Folklore: An Introduction
SOCI 3370 Industrial Sociology

SOCI 4332 The Sociology of Education

SOCI 5310 Teaching Sociology

SOCI 7368 Advanced Environmental Sociology

58



COLLEGE OF SCIENCE AND ENGINEERING

Department of Chemistry and Biochemistry

ADDITIONS:

CHEM 3381 Biochemistry Techniques

CHEM 4382 Advanced Biochemistry Research Laboratory I
CHEM 5313 Principles and Applications of Mass Spectrometry
DELETIONS:

CHEM 3275 Biochemical Techniques

CHEM 4282 Advanced Biochemistry Research Laboratory

Department of Engineering Technology
ADDITIONS:

TECH 2340 Environmental Technology |

TECH 3340 Environmental Technology Il

TECH 4340 Design for Environment
DELETIONS:

TECH 4367 Polymer Properties and Processing
TECH 4394 Microelectronics Manufacturing I
TECH 5305 Fundamentals of Quality Assurance

Department of Mathematics
ADDITION:
MATH 3306 Introduction to Statistical Methods

Department of Physics

ADDITIONS:

PHYS 4150 Topics in Physics

PHYS 4150A Physics Cognition and Pedagogy Lab
PHYS 4150B Computational Modeling Lab: Mechanics
PHYS 4360 Physics Cognition and Pedagogy |l

PHYS 5200 Professional Development

59



Lamar Institute of Technology
November 2016

COURSE

CHANGES:

PREFIX, HRS, NET
COLLEGE/ COURSE COURSE NUMBER ADDITIONS/
Academic Unit ADDITIONS DELETIONS AND/ORTITLE DELETIONS
GENERAL

EDUCATION/DEVELOPMENTAL
STUDIES

Core Curriculum 1 1
Academic Certificate-General

Studies 42 SCH

PUBLIC SERVICE AND SAFETY

Emergency Services Technician

Certificate 6 6
Paramedic Certificate 3 2 3 1
Emergency Medical Services A.A.S. 5 2 2 3
CIPC Change HMSY-CSI to CJST-

Csl

TOTAL 15 4 5 11

GENERAL EDUCATION/DEVELOPMENTAL STUDIES

Core Curriculum. (Effective Fall 2016)

ADDITIONS

EDUC 1100 Learning Frameworks

1:1:0

Academic Certificate — General Studies Proposal 43 SCH (Effective Spring 2017)

Academic Certificate
PUBLIC SERVICE AND SAFETY

Emergency Medical Services

Emergency Medical Technician, Level | Certificate. (Effective Spring 2017)

ADDITIONS

Add: EMSP 1501 EMT Basic

Add: EMSP 1160 EMT Clinical

Add: BIOL 2301 Anatomy & Physiology |

Add: BIOL 2101 Anatomy & Physiology Lab |

Add: HITT 1305 Medical Terminology |
Add: HITT 1253 Legal & Ethical Aspects

5:3:8
1:0:6
3:3:.0
1:0:2
3:2:2
2:2:0

Emergency Medical Technician, Level | Certificate. (Effective Spring 2017)

60



ADDITIONS
EMSP 1171
EMSP 1172
EMSP 1173
DELETIONS

EMSP 1501
EMSP 1160

CHANGES

EMSP 2206

EMSP 2206

EMSP 2264

EMSP 2164

EMSP 2237

EMSP 2137

Emergency Medical Technician, Level | Certificate. (Effective Spring 2017)

ADDITIONS
HITT 1305
HITT 1253
EMSP 1171
EMSP 1172
EMSP 1173
DELETIONS

EMSP 1501
EMSP 1160

CHANGES

EMSP 2206

EMSP 2206

EMSP 2264

EMSP 2164

EMSP 2237

EMSP 2137

Homeland Security Crime Scene Technician CIP Code (440400) to the Criminal Justice CIP Code

EMS Agility and Fitness |
EMS Agility and Fitness |l
EMS Agility and Fitness 11l

EMT Basic
EMT Clinical

Pharmacology
To
Pharmacology

Practicum
To
Practicum

Emergency Procedures
To
Emergency Procedures

Medical Terminology |
Legal & Ethical Aspects
EMS Agility and Fitness |
EMS Agility and Fitness Il
EMS Agility and Fitness I

EMT Basic
EMT Clinical

Emergency Pharmacology
To
Emergency Pharmacology

Practicum
To
Practicum

Emergency Procedures
To
Emergency Procedures

(430107), (Effective Spring 2017)

61

1:0:2
1:0:2
1:0:2

5:3:8
1:0:6

2:1:3

2:1:2

2:0:16

1:0:12

2:1:3

1:0:2

3:2:2
2:2:.0
1:0:2
1:0:2
1:0:2

5:3:8
1:0:6

2:1:3

2:1:2

2:0:16

1:0:12

2:1:3

1:0:2



CURRICULUM CHANGES
Lamar State College-Orange

COURSE

CHANGES:

PREFIX, HRS, NET
COLLEGE/ COURSE COURSE NUMBER ADDITIONS/
Academic Unit ADDITIONS DELETIONS AND/ORTITLE DELETIONS
Arts, Humanities, & Social
Sciences Division 0 0 0 0
Education & Mathematics Division 0 0 0 0
Health Sciences & Workforce
Education Division 1 0 9 1
TOTAL 1 0 9 1

Arts, Humanities, & Social Sciences Division
ADDITIONS
DELETIONS

CHANGES

Education & Mathematics Division
ADDITIONS
DELETIONS

CHANGES

Health Sciences & Workforce Education Division

ADDITIONS
PTHA 2250 Current Concepts in Physical Therapy

DELETIONS

CHANGES

PTHA 1301 The Profession of Physical Therapy to become
PTHA 1201 The Profession of Physical Therapy

PTHA 1405 Basic Patient Care Skills to become
PTHA 1305 Basic Patient Care Skills

PTHA 1513 Functional Anatomy to become
PTHA 1313 Functional Anatomy

PTHA 1260 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (1) to become
PTHA 1360 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (I)

62



PTHA 1531 Physical Agents to become
PTHA 1431 Physical Agents

PTHA 2509 Therapeutic Exercise to become
PTHA 2409 Therapeutic Exercise

PTHA 2435 Rehabilitation Technigues changing its credit-lecture-lab from 4-3-2
PTHA 2435 Rehabilitation Techniques to 4-2-4

PTHA 2160 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (ll) to become
PTHA 2460 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (I1)

PTHA 2261 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (lll) to become
PTHA 2461 Clinical-Physical Therapist Assistant (ll1)

63



SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
SUMMARY TABLE

SHOWING MAGNITUDE OF REQUESTS FOR THE ADDITION, DELETION, AND
CHANGES IN COURSES

COURSE NET

COURSE COURSE CHANGES: ADDITIONS/
PROGRAM ADDITIONS DELETIONS PREFIX DELETIONS
NUMBER

AND/OR TITLE

****RI0 GRANDE COLLEGE****

****DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL AND BEHAVIORAL SCIENCES****

Program:

Nursing 1 1

Subtotal 1 1
TOTAL 1 0 0 1

64



RIO GRANDE COLLEGE
Department of Natural and Behavioral Sciences

ADDITIONS
NURS 4310 Special Topics in Nursing

65



TSUS: Out-of-State/Out-of-Country Course Offerings

Recommendation
The proposed Out-of-State/Out-of-Country Course Offerings for the following Texas State
University System components be approved.
Background
In accordance with the System Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill, Section 1.(10) Curriculum

Matters, Subsection 1.(10)6 Out-of-state course offerings shall be submitted to the Board of
Regents for approval.

66



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:
Special Note:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:
Special Note:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:

LAMAR UNIVERSITY

Out-of-Country Study Report AY 2016-2017

Paris, France

COMM-4396 Studies in Media: French Cinema

June 18 — June 30, 2017

Mr. Clinton Rawls, Adjunct Instructor & LUTV-7 Broadcast
Programming Manager, Department of Communication

3 Semester Credit Hours

Paris, France

FREN-4330 Paris and Modernism

June 18 — June 30, 2017

Ms. Caitlin Duerler, Instructor, Department of English & Modern
Languages

3 Semester Credit Hours

Antigua and Guatemala City, Guatemala

SPHS-4350 Community-based Rehabilitation in Speech and Hearing
Sciences

March 10 — 20, 2017 (Spring Break)

Dr. Vinay Manchaiah, Jo Mayo Endowed Professor & Associate
Professor, Speech and Hearing Sciences

3 Semester Credit Hours

Study abroad component is part of Spring semester course offered on
campus at Lamar University. Alternative arrangements will be made
for students enrolled for the course but unable to travel to Guatemala.

Cork and Dublin, Ireland; Belfast, Northern Ireland, UK
GEOL-4301 Geography of Tourism

March 9 — 18, 2017 (Spring Break)

Dr. Sarah Schwartz, Visiting Assistant Professor, Earth and Space
Sciences

3 Semester Credit Hours

Study abroad component is part of Spring semester course offered on
campus at Lamar University. Alternative arrangements will be made
for students enrolled for the course but unable to travel to Ireland.

Tarragona, Spain

ENGR-4301 Engineering Management

May 22 - June 2, 2017

Dr. Jerry Lin, Professor, Department of Civil & Environmental
Engineering

3 Semester Credit Hours

67



Study in America:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Credit for Course:
Study Abroad:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:

Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:

Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Sam Houston State University

Faculty-Led Study Abroad Programs 2017

United States: Alabama, Pennsylvania, South Carolina,
Tennessee, Virginia, Washington, D.C.

HIST 3380: The American Civil War

July 8 - June 29, 2017

Dr. Brian Matthew Jordan

3

United States: Alabama, Pennsylvania, South Carolina,
Tennessee, Virginia, Washington, D.C.

HIST 3386: The Military and War in America

July 8 - June 29, 2017

Dr. Jeremiah Ross Dancy

3

United States: Arizona, California, Colorado, Texas, Utah
AGRI 4369: Special Topics in Agriculture: Domestic
Agriculture Travel Course

June 1 - June 18, 2017

Dr. Marcy Beverly and Dr. Stanley Kelley

3

United States: Arizona, California, Colorado, Texas, Utah
AGRI 5369: Special Topics in Agriculture: Advanced
Domestic Agriculture Travel Course

June 1 - June 18, 2017

Dr. Marcy Beverly and Dr. Stanley Kelley

3

Australia: Parkes and Sydney; and United States:
Wyoming

PHYS 1403: Stars and Galaxies

July 22 - August 6, 2017 (Australia)

August 16 - August 22, 2017 (United States)

Dr. C. Renee James and Dr. Scott Miller

4

Australia: Parkes and Sydney; and United States:
Wyoming

PHYS 1404: Solar System Astronomy

July 22 - August 6, 2017 (Australia)

August 16 - August 22, 2017 (United States)

Dr. C. Renee James and Dr. Scott Miller

4

68



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

China: Beijing

ECON 4360: International Field Studies in Economics
May 15 - June 10, 2017

Dr. Fidel Gonzalez

3

China: Beijing
ECON 4085: Special Topic: Readings in Economics-China
May 15 - June 10, 2017
Dr. Fidel Gonzalez

3

Costa Rica: San Jose, Liberia, La Fortuna, and Puerto
Viejo

BIOL 4080: Field and Experiential Biology

May 16 - May 31, 2017

Dr. Chad W. Hargrave

3

Costa Rica: San Jose

NURS 4030: Community Nursing
May 14 - May 28, 2017

Dr. Anne Stiles

4

Costa Rica: Santa Ana

SPAN 2311: Intermediate Spanish |
May 31 - June 28, 2017

Dr. Frieda Koeninger

3

Costa Rica: Santa Ana

SPAN 2312: Intermediate Spanish Il
May 31 - June 28, 2017

Dr. Frieda Koeninger

3

Costa Rica: Santa Ana

SPAN 3369: Conversational Spanish Il
May 31 - June 28, 2017

Dr. Debra Andrist

3

Costa Rica: Santa Ana

SPAN 4370: Seminar: Selected Topics in Literature,
Language, & Culture (Literature & Society in Costa Rica)
May 31 - June 28, 2017

Dr. Debra Andrist

3

69



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Italy: Rome, Florence

ARTS 4311: Advanced Studio
May 17 - May 26, 2017

Dr. Michael Henderson

3

Italy: Rome, Florence

ARTS 4019: Special Topic (Art in Rome and Florence)
May 17 - May 26, 2017

Dr. Melissa Mednicov

3

Italy: Florence, Rome, Sorrento, Venice,

HONR 3332: Honors Seminar in the Humanities

May 15 - May 27, 2017

Drs. Patrick Lewis, Tracy Bilsing, and Jeffrey Wozniak
3

Germany: Aachen

ECON 4360: International Field Studies in Economics
July 6 - July 28, 2017

Dr. Christian Raschke

3

Germany: Aachen

ECON 4085: Special Topic: Economics in Germany
July 6 - July 28, 2017

Dr. Christian Raschke

3

Japan: Tokyo

ECON 4360: International Field Studies in Economics
June 3 - June 29, 2017

Dr. Mark W. Frank

3

Japan: Tokyo

ECON 4085: Special Topic: Readings in Economics-Japan

June 3 - June 29, 2017
Dr. Mark W. Frank
3

Mexico: Yucatan, Chiapas, Oaxaca, and Mexico City
HIST 3388: Public History

May 31 - June 23, 2017

Dr. Jeff Littlejohn

3

70



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:
Credit for Course:

Mexico: Yucatan, Chiapas, Oaxaca, and Mexico City
HIST 3399: Special Topics in History: History of
Mesoamerica

May 31 - June 23, 2017

Dr. Charles Heath

3

Spain: La Mancha, Toledo

SPAN 3380: Spanish Culture and Civilization
May 31 - July 2, 2017

Dr. Enrique Mallen

3

Spain: La Mancha, Toledo

SPAN 4365: Pablo Picasso & Spanish Art
May 31 - July 2, 2017

Dr. Enrique Mallen

3

Spain: La Mancha, Toledo

SPAN 4375: Individual Readings in Spanish
May 31 - July 2, 2017

Dr. Enrique Mallen

3

Thailand and Cambodia

GEOG 4360: Cultural Field Studies
May 14 - June 9, 2017

Dr. Marcus Gillespie

3

Thailand: Chiang Mai

CIEE 4385: Creating Environment for Learning in
Elementary

May 5 - June 27, 2017

Dr. Karla Eidson

3

Thailand: Chiang Mai

CIEE 3374/CISE 4374: Human Growth and Learning
May 5 - June 27, 2017

Dr. Karla Eidson

3

Thailand: Chiang Mai

CISE 4380: Responsibilities of the Professional Educator
May 5 - June 27, 2017

Dr. Rebeca Wentworth

3

71



Location: United Arab Emirates: Dubai

Course Number and Title: MKTG 4085: Special Topic: Business in the Middle East
Dates of Travel: December 8 - 19, 2017

Instructor: Dr. Ifran Ahmed

Credit for Course: 3

72



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

OUT-OF-COUNTRY FACULTY-LED STUDY ABROAD PROGRAMS
ANNUAL REPORT FOR SUMMER 2016 & WINTERBREAK 2015

Program Country Courses Hours_of Number of Instructors C_ost to Cost to

Offered Credit Students University | Student

Agriculture Chile, Argentina AGRI 4369.01 3 10 R. Lane 0 3813
Agriculture Chile, Argentina AGRI 4369.02 3 10 M. Beverly 43 3813
Agriculture Chile, Argentina AGRI 5369.01 3 4 GRAD R. Lane 0 3963
Agriculture Chile, Argentina AGRI 5369.02 3 4 GRAD M. Beverly 43 3963
Art Italy ARTS 4019.01 3 10 M. Henderson 316 3733
Art Italy ARTS 4019.02 3 6 M. Mednicov 2270 3733
Biology Costa Rica BIOL 4080.01 3 13 A. Gaillard 0 3605
Biology Costa Rica BIOL 4080.02 3 9 C. Hargrave 1450 2450
Economics China ECON 4360 3 11 H. Nath 835 1400
Economics China MGMT 4320 3 11 H. Nath 835 1400
Economics Japan ECON 4360 3 14 M. Frank 3178 1465
Economics Japan ECON 4385 3 14 M. Frank 3178 1465
History Mexico HIST 3399 3 12 C. Heath 0 2575
History Mexico HIST 3388 3 11 J. Littlejohn 0 2575
Honors College UK and France HONR 3332 3 14 T. Bilsing 795 5400
Marketing United Arab Emirates MKTG 4080 3 15 I. Ahmed 0 4434
Spanish Costa Rica SPAN 2311 3 19 F. Koeninger 0 2070
Spanish Costa Rica SPAN 2312 3 19 F. Koeninger 0 2070
Spanish Costa Rica SPAN 3369 3 10 D. Andrist 0 2070
Spanish Costa Rica SPAN 4370 3 10 D. Andrist 0 2070
Spanish Spain SPAN 3380 3 20 E. Mallen 0 2791
Spanish Spain SPAN 4365 3 20 E. Mallen 0 2791

73




SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OUT-OF-COUNTRY FACULTY-LED STUDY ABROAD PROGRAMS
ANNUAL REPORT FOR SUMMER 2016 & WINTERBREAK 2015

The following courses which were originally submitted, later cancelled, and thus not included in this report:

Belize: BESL 4088, BESL 6088

Costa Rica: NURS 4030, HLTH 4395
Germany: CRIJ 4377

Puerto Rico (US): BIOL 4096, BIOL 5394
Spain: CIEE 3374, CIEE 4385, SPAN 4375
Thailand: HLTH 4395

74



SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
OUT-OF-COUNTRY/OUT-OF-STATE STUDY PROGRAMS
ANNUAL REPORT FOR SPRING SEMESTER 2016 THROUGH SUMMER SESSION 2016

Course(s) Hours of Number of Cost to Cost to

Program Country Offered Credit Students Instructor(s) University Students

Nothing to report

75




Texas State University

Out-of-Country and Out-of-State Study Program Proposals

Location:
Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:
Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:
Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:
Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Spring and Summer 2017

Melbourne and Sydney, Australia

REC 3325 Recreational Administration

REC 3335 Advanced Recreation Program Development
REC 3340 Design and Maintenance of Recreational
Facilities

REC 3351 Evaluation of Leisure Service Programming
REC 5337 Independent Study in Recreational
Administration

REC 5380 Administering Leisure Delivery Systems
May 26, 2017 — June 17, 2017

Dr. Jo An Zimmermann

Melbourne and Sydney, Australia

REC 1370 Introduction to Therapeutic Recreation
REC 2370 Practices and Interventions in Therapeutic
Recreation

REC 4337 Independent Study in Recreational
Administration

May 26, 2017 — June 17, 2017

Krista Thomas

Vienna and Salzburg, Austria and Munich, Germany
GER 2310 Intermediate German |

GER 2320 Intermediate German Il

GER 4390 Studies in German Culture, Language, and
Literature

June 3, 2017 — July 6, 2017

Dr. Ewa Siwak

Phnom Penh and Siem Reap, Cambodia
HON 4391 Honors Independent Study
July 8, 2017 — August 11, 2017

Dr. Gail Dickinson

Phnom Penh and Siem Reap, Cambodia

Cl 3338 Social Studies in the Elementary and Middle
School

Cl1 5328 Elementary Social Studies: Curriculum Problems
July 8, 2017 — August 11, 2017
Dr. Jo Beth Oestreich

76



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Santiago, Chile, and Lima, Peru

MGT 5333 Problems in Business Administration
June 22, 2017 — July 2, 2017

Dr. Alexis Stokes

Santiago, Chile, and Lima, Peru

MGT 5318 Cross-Cultural Management
June 22, 2017 — July 2, 2017

Dr. Rob Konopaske

Beijing, China

CHI 1410 Beginning Chinese |

CHI 1420 Beginning Chinese I

CHI 2310 Intermediate Chinese |

CHI 2320 Intermediate Chinese Il

CHI 3301 Conversational Chinese

HON 3398H Chinese Politics and Society through
Literature and Film

June 2, 2017 - July 1, 2017

Dr. Patricia Schiaffini-Vedani

Prague, Czech Republic

ECO 2301 Principles of Economics
May 21, 2017 — June 20, 2017

Dr. John Mogab

Prague, Czech Republic

FIN 3325 Personal Finance Management
FIN 4395 Independent Study in Finance
May 21, 2017 — June 20, 2017

Dr. Janet Payne

Cabarete and Santo Domingo, Dominican Republic

Cl 3332 Foundations of Bilingual and ESL Education

Cl 4360 Methods and Materials for Teaching ESL in the
Content

Cl 5336 Methods and Materials for Teaching English as a
Second Language

Cl1 5378 Problems in Education

C1 5389 Action Research for Practitioners

HON 3391W Service Learning: A Study Abroad Course
HON 3394V Universal Human Rights: A Global
Perspective

RDG 5331 Literacy Methods for Linguistically and
Culturally Diverse Students

RDG 5370A New Literacies

RDG 6330 Language Acquisition and Development for
Literacy Instruction

June 10, 2017 — June 28, 2017

Dr. Minda Lopez

77



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Bedford, England

DAN 4360 Dance Independent Study
June 4, 2017 — June 19, 2017

Nicole Wesley

Canterbury, England

SOWK 5360 Directed Study in Social Work
July 8, 2017 — August 7, 2017

Stacie McGee

Chester, England

HIST 3368R History of Rock and Roll

HON 3390X Investigating European Film: From Cultural
Paolitics to Strategies of Desire

July 9, 2017 — August 10, 2017

Edward Schaefer

Chester, England

HIST 4388 Problems in History

HIST 5344 Public Memory & American History

HIST 5375P The Family and Child in History and Heritage
HIST 5390 Problems in Historical Research

July 9, 2017 — August 10, 2017

Dr. Nancy Berlage

London, England and Rome, Italy

MC 4310 International Communication

MC 43820 Travel Journalism

MC 5310 International Communication Issues
MC 5324 Media Writing

June 12, 2017 — June 23, 2017

Dr. Sandhya Rao

London, England and Rome, Italy

MC 431 Independent Study: Advertising, Broadcasting,
Print Journalism, and Public Relations

MC 4376F International Strategic Communication

MC 5311 Independent Study

MC 5322 International Advertising and Public Relations
Issues

June 12, 2017 — June 23, 2017

Dr. Judy Oskam

London, England and Edinburgh and Galashiels, Scotland
FM 4302B Specialty Fashion Markets

FM 4340 Fashion Merchandising in International Markets
MCS 5302A Merchandising in the Experience Economy
MCS 5302B Merchandising Strategies in Domestic and
International Markets

June 30, 2017 — July 22, 2017

Dr. Gwendolyn Hustvedt

78



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Athens and Zakynthos, Greece

HON 4391 Honors Independent Study
PSY 3331 Social Psychology

PSY 3325 Psychology of Persuasion
PSY 4395 Individual Study

PSY 5366 Individual Study

May 23, 2017 — June 20, 2017

Dr. Maria Czyzewska

Athens and Zakynthos, Greece

HON 4391 Honors Independent Study
PSY 3316 Personality Psychology
PSY 3361 Health Psychology

PSY 4395 Individual Study

PSY 5366 Individual Study

May 23, 2017 — June 20, 2017

Dr. Krista Howard

Bergen, Oslo, and Trondheim, Norway, and Reykjavik,
Iceland

GEO 4309 Cultural Ecology

GEO 4310 Regional Field Studies

GEO 5308 Regional Field Studies

June 6, 2017 — June 30, 2017

Dr. Donald Huebner

Mussoorie, New Delhi, and Varanasi, India
HIST 3374C History of Religion in India
July 8, 2017 — July 30, 2017

Dr. Leah Renold

Mussoorie, New Delhi, and Varanasi, India

ENG 3341 Studies in World Literature

HON 2390A History of Ideas IlI: Ideal Societies

HON 3395Q Vishnu, Bollywood, and Masala: South Asian
Literature in Context

HON 4391 Honors Independent Study

July 8, 2017 — July 30, 2017

Lindy Kosmitis

Doolin, Dublin, Germanagh, Killarney, and Tramore,
Ireland

BIO 4319 Biological Resources: Conservation and
Planning

BIO 4350T Field Biology of Ireland

BIO 5350T Field Biology of Ireland

BIO 7310 Global Aquatic Resources

July 9, 2017 — August 6, 2017

Dr. Kristy Daniel

79



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Dublin, Ireland

LS 5330 Legal Theories and Analysis

LS 5388 Directed Reading and Research
POSI 4302 Legal Theories and Research
POSI 4379 Independent Study

POSI 4397 Research in Public Administration
June 8, 2017 — June 30, 2017

Dr. Gregory Lynn Crossett

Tetouan, Morocco

ARAB 1410 Beginning Arabic |

ARAB 1420 Beginning Arabic Il

ARAB 2310 Intermediate Arabic |

ARAB 2320 Intermediate Arabic Il

ARAB 3302 Media Arabic

HON 2390K An Introduction to Arab Culture
HON 2390L An Introduction to Islam

June 3, 2017 — July 2, 2017

Noha Mohama-Akkari

Managua, Nicaragua

MC 4382L Feature Writing and Freelancing
January 2, 2017 — January 13, 2017

Holly Wise

Lima, Peru

POSI 3325 Economic Development in Latin America
PS 5330C Party Systems in Latin America

PS 5398 Directed Reading and Research

May 23, 2017 — June 22, 2017

Dr. Omar Sanchez-Sibony

Barcelona, Spain

MKT 3358 Professional Selling
MKT 4310 International Marketing
MKT 4392 Sales Internship

May 21, 2017 — June 21, 2017
Arthur Noll

Barcelona and Madrid, Spain

ENG 3343 The Interdisciplinary Approach to Literature
ENG 5332 Studies in American Prose

June 17,2017 — July 1, 2017

Dr. Edna Rehbein

Geneva, Switzerland

HA 3311 Independent Study in Healthcare
Administration

HA 5311 Trends in Health Administration
May 27, 2017 — June 3, 2017

Dr. Bryan Schneider

80



Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Location:

Course Number and Title:

Dates of Travel:
Instructor:

Louisiana, Texas, USA

SOWK 3339 Topics in Social Work
June 18, 2017 — June 24, 2017

Dr. Angela Ausbrooks

Louisiana, Texas, USA

SOWK 3339 Topics in Social Work
June 18, 2017 — June 24, 2017
Lea Velez

Maryland, USA

HIST 4399 Senior Seminar
June 11, 2017 — June 25, 2017
Dr. Elizabeth Bishop

New York, USA

DAN 4334B Choreographic Influences
July 31, 2017 — August 7, 2017
Michelle Nance

New York, USA

DAN 4360 Independent Study
July 31, 2017 — August 7, 2017
Ana Baer

Oregon, USA

TH 3367 Theory and Analysis
July 31, 2017 — August 7, 2017
Laura Lane

Oregon, USA

TH 3367 Theory and Analysis
July 31, 2017 — August 7, 2017
Shannon Richey

Texas, New Mexico, Colorado, and Arizona, USA
ENG 3345 Southwest Studies | Defining

ENG 3346 Southwest Studies Il Consequences
June 4, 2017 — July 2, 2017

William Jensen

Texas and New Mexico, USA
MC 4356F Feature Writing
May 30, 2017 — June 12, 2017
Dale Blasingame

Texas and New Mexico, USA
MC 4382Y Park Storytelling
May 30, 2017 — June 12, 2017
Kym Fox

81



Texas State University

Out-of-Country Study Programs Annual Report
Spring, Summer, and Fall 2016

SEMESTER PROGRAM COUNTRY COURSES HOURS OF NUMBER OF INSTRUCTOR COST TO COST PER
OFFERED CREDIT STUDENTS UNIVERSITY STUDENT

Spring Nursing/Mass Communication Nicaragua NURS 4280 2 8 Elizabeth Biggan $6,746.55 (Resident Credit) $3,142.42 (1)

Spring Nursing/Mass Communication Nicaragua MC 4356H 3 6 Holly Wise $8,250.00 (Resident Credit) $3,394.63 (2)

Spring Nursing/Mass Communication Nicaragua MC 4382L 3 6 Holly Wise $8,250.00 (Resident Credit) $3,394.63 (2)

Spring Modern Languages Spain SPAN 3340 3 2 Antonio Gragera $0 (Extension) $8,382.00 (3)

Spring Modern Languages Spain SPAN 3370 3 2 Antonio Gragera $0 (Extension) $8,382.00 (3)

Spring Modern Languages Spain SPAN 3371 3 2 Antonio Gragera $0 (Extension) $8,382.00 (3)

Spring Modern Languages Spain SPAN 4390 3 2 Antonio Gragera $0 (Extension) $8,382.00 (3)

Spring Political Science Spain POSI 4304 3 2 Thomas Longoria $0 (Extension) $5,284.00 (4)

Spring Political Science Spain POSI 4331 3 2 Thomas Longoria $0 (Extension) $5,284.00 (4)

Spring Political Science Spain POSI 4379 3 2 Thomas Longoria $0 (Extension) $5,284.00 (4)

Spring Political Science Spain POSI 4379 3 2 Thomas Longoria $0 (Extension) $5,284.00 (4)
Summer Modern Languages Austria GER 2310 3 7 Ewa Siwak $0 (Extension) $3,044.00 (5)
Summer Modern Languages Austria GER 2320 3 9 Ewa Siwak $0 (Extension) $3,044.00 (5)
Summer Modern Languages Austria GER 4390 3 11 Ewa Siwak $0 (Extension) $3,044.00 (5)
Summer Modern Languages Austria GER 4390 3 11 Ewa Siwak $0 (Extension) $3,044.00 (5)
Summer Anthropology Belize ANTH 4630 6 11 James Garber $0 (Extension) $2,803.00 (6)
Summer Education Honors Cambodia Cl 4355 3 13 Gail Dickinson $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education Honors Cambodia Cl1 5339 3 1 Gall Dickinson $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education Honors Cambodia Cl 5376 3 1 Gall Dickinson $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia HON 2380H 3 1 Heather Galloway $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia HON 2380l 3 4 Heather Galloway $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia HON 4391 3 4 Heather Galloway $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia GS 3310 3 10 Maureen Lemke $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia GS 3310 3 10 Maureen Lemke $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia GS 3320 3 9 Maureen Lemke $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Education/Honors Cambodia GS 3320 3 9 Maureen Lemke $0 (Extension) $2,409.00 (7)
Summer Business Chile BLAW 5368G 3 16 Alexis Stokes $0 (Extension) $2,011.00 (8)
Summer Business Chile ECO 5320 3 17 Diego Vacaflores Rivero $0 (Extension) $2,011.00 (8)
Summer Business Chile MGT 5333 3 2 Diego Vacaflores Rivero $0 (Extension) $2,011.00 (8)
Summer Biology Costa Rica BIO 4319 3 19 Noland Martin $0 (Extension) $3,332.00 (9)
Summer Biology Costa Rica BIO 43500 3 20 Noland Martin $0 (Extension) $3,332.00 (9)
Summer Geography Cuba GEO 4310 3 10 Sarah Blue $0 (Extension) $3,459.00 (10)
Summer Geography Cuba GEO 5308 3 1 Sarah Blue $0 (Extension) $3,459.00 (10)
Summer Business Czech Republic FIN 3318 3 10 Ken Moon $0 (Extension) $3,215.00 (11)
Summer Business Czech Republic FIN 4395 3 4 Ken Moon $0 (Extension) $3,215.00 (11)
Summer Business Czech Republic ACC 3365 3 12 Ludmila Krylova $0 (Extension) $3,215.00 (11)
Summer Biology Ecuador BIO 7214 2 3 David Rodriguez $0 (Extension) $3,991.00 (12)
Summer Biology Ecuador BIO 7402 4 4 David Rodriguez $0 (Extension) $4,495.00 (13)
Summer Biology Ecuador BIO 43500 3 10 Shawn McCracken $0 (Extension) $4,243.00 (14)
Summer Biology Ecuador BIO 4350P 3 10 Shawn McCracken $0 (Extension) $4,243.00 (14)
Summer Communication Disorders England CDIS 4301 3 9 Celeste Domsch $0 (Extension) $2,860.00 (15)
Summer Communication Disorders England CDIS 5390 3 9 Celeste Domsch $0 (Extension) $2,860.00 (15)
Summer Communication Disorders England CDIS 4301 3 9 Lori Stiritz $0 (Extension) $2,860.00 (15)



Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
sSummer
Summer
Summer

Communication Disorders
Health Education
Health Education
Health Education
Health Education
Health Education
Health Education
Health Education

History
History
History
History
History
History
History
History
History
History
History
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Liberal Arts/Social Work
Theatre
Theatre
Theatre
Theatre
Mass Communication
Mass Communication
Mass Communication
Mass Communication
Mass Communication
Mass Communication

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Modern Languages/Honors

Geography
Geography

England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England and France
England and France
England and France
England and France
England and France
England and France
France
France
France
France
France
France
France
Germany
Germany

CDIS 5350
H ED 3360
H ED 4347
H ED 4347
H ED 5345
H ED 5347
H ED 5374
H ED 5374
HIST 4317
HIST 4318T
HIST 4388
HIST 5319
HIST 5390
HIST 3368R
HIST 3378
HIST 5390
HIST 3368P
HIST 5351D
HIST 5390
ANTH 3305
ANTH 4320
ANTH 4360
ANTH 4360
ANTH 5320
ANTH 5390
SOWK 3339
SOWK 3339
SOWK 4360
SOWK 4360
POSI 3309
POSI 4379
TH 4323
TH 4324
TH 5323
TH 5324
MC 4376F
MC 5322
MC 4310
MC 43820
MC 5310
MC 5324
FR 1420
FR 2310
FR 2320
FR 4370
FR 4370
FR 4390
HON 3395L
GEO 4310
GEO 4390

Texas State University

W W W wwwwwdkhwwwwwwwowowowowowwwwwwwwwowowowowowowowowwwwwwwwwwwwowow

l':l—‘w-hNH-hwm

P R, NP DO WN O

e
A~

o OO L 0L Ol -k Fk b O

RN = TN = N NN
N NMNOPNONLOWR PO g OANREREON

Lori Stiritz
David Wiley
David Wiley
David Wiley
David Wiley
David Wiley
David Wiley
David Wiley
Bryan Mann
Bryan Mann
Bryan Mann
Bryan Mann
Bryan Mann

Jason Mellard
Jason Mellard
Jason Mellard
Mary Brennan
Mary Brennan
Mary Brennan
Reece McGee
Reece McGee
Reece McGee
Reece McGee
Reece McGee
Reece McGee
Stacie McGee
Stacie McGee
Stacie McGee
Stacie McGee

Theodore Hindson
Theodore Hindson

Charles Ney
Charles Ney
Charles Ney
Charles Ney
Bruce Smith
Bruce Smith
Sandhya Rao
Sandhya Rao
Sandhya Rao
Sandhya Rao
Carole Martin
Carole Martin
Carole Martin
Carole Martin
Carole Martin
Carole Martin
Carole Martin

James Petersen
James Petersen

$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)

$2,860.00 (15)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$4,508.00 (16)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (17)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$3,344.00 (18)
$4,366.00 (19)
$4,366.00 (19)
$4,366.00 (19)
$4,366.00 (19)
$2,843.00 (20)
$2,843.00 (20)
$2,843.00 (20)
$2,843.00 (20)
$2,843.00 (20)
$2,843.00 (20)
$3,166.00 (21)
$2,914.00 (22)
$2,914.00 (22)
$2,914.00 (22)
$2,914.00 (22)
$2,914.00 (22)
$4,025.00 (23)
$3,135.00 (24)
$3,135.00 (24)



Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
sSummer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer

Social Work
Social Work
Social Work
Social Work
Social Work
English
English
English
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Art & Design
Art & Design
Art & Design
Geography
Geography
Geography
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages/Honors
Modern Languages/Honors
Art & Design
Art & Design
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Political Science/Geography
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors

Ghana
Ghana
Ghana
Ghana
Ghana
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Ireland
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Italy
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Jordan
Jordan
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Mexico
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Netherlands
Panama
Panama

SOWK 3339
SOWK 4360
SOWK 5339
SOWK 5339
SOWK 5360
ENG 3311
ENG 3311
ENG 3341
POSI 4302
POSI 4379
POSI 4379
POSI 4397
POSI 5386
POSI 5398
ARTS 4308D
ARTH 4311
ARTS 4308I
GEO 4310
GEO 4310
GEO 4390
HON 3391W
HON 3397H
HON 4391
ITAL 1410
ITAL 1420
ITAL 2310
ITAL 2320
JAPA 2310
JAPA 2320
LING 4390
LING 4390
HON 2390K
HON 2390L
ARTH 4321W
ARTS 4308S
SPAN 2310
SPAN 2320
SPAN 4390
SPAN 4390
GEO 4310
GEO 4336
POSI 4322
POSI 4379
POSI 4397
POSI 5340
POSI 5340
POSI 5398
POSI 7320
HON 3394V
SOWK 3339

Texas State University

W W W W WwWwWwwwwwwwowwowowowwowwowwowwowbddbPowowowowwowwowwowwowwwwwwwwwwwow

O e e e

_ N e = RGN =
O O whPh PO NGO W

O OO B DNDNMNEP WDNOPEP O

R DN
o O

N P NDNPFP ODNPFP WERPREP WWDNDNOOLOOLWWOW

Rose Pulliam
Rose Pulliam
Rose Pulliam
Rose Pulliam
Rose Pulliam
Nancy Wilson
Nancy Wilson
Steve Wilson
Walter Wright
Walter Wright
Walter Wright
Walter Wright
Walter Wright
Walter Wright
Barry Stone
Kathryn Moore
Shannon Faseler
Colleen Hiner
Colleen Hiner
Colleen Hiner
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Moira DiMauro-Jackson
Mayumi Moriuchi
Mayumi Moriuchi
Mayumi Moriuchi
Mayumi Moriuchi
Noha Mohama-Akkari
Noha Mohama-Akkari
Mark Menjivar
Mark Menjivar
Sergio Martinez
Sergio Martinez
Sergio Martinez
Sergio Martinez
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Willard Fields
Christine Norton
Christine Norton

$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)

$4,334.00 (25)
$4,334.00 (25)
$4,334.00 (25)
$4,334.00 (25)
$4,334.00 (25)
$2,839.00 (26)
$2,839.00 (26)
$2,839.00 (26)
$3,246.00 (27)
$3,246.00 (27)
$3,246.00 (27)
$3,246.00 (27)
$3,246.00 (27)
$3,246.00 (27)
$5,628.00 (28)
$5,628.00 (28)
$5,628.00 (28)
$4,026.00 (29)
$4,026.00 (29)
$4,026.00 (29)
$4,339.00 (30)
$4,339.00 (30)
$4,339.00 (30)
$4,591.00 (31)
$4,591.00 (31)
$4,339.00 (32)
$4,339.00 (32)
$3,410.00 (33)
$3,410.00 (33)
$3,410.00 (33)
$3,410.00 (33)
$6,482.00 (34)
$6,482.00 (34)
$3,277.00 (35)
$3,277.00 (35)
$3,037.00 (36)
$3,037.00 (36)
$3,037.00 (36)
$3,037.00 (36)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,508.00 (37)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)



Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
sSummer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Summer
Fall
Fall
Fall
Fall
Fall

Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Education/Social Work/Honors
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Education
Education
Education
Education
Education
Education
Business
Business
Business
Business
Business
Business
Business
English/Mass Communication
English/Mass Communication
English/Mass Communication
English/Mass Communication
English/Mass Communication
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Political Science
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages
Modern Languages

Panama
Panama
Panama
Panama
Panama
Panama
Panama
Panama
Peru
Peru
Peru
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain
Spain

SOWK 4360

Cl 3332
Cl 4360

HON 3391W

HON 3397H
HON 4391
RDG 5331

RDG 5370A
POSI 3325
POSI 4338
POSI 4379

Cl1 4378

Cl 5375

Cl 7386
RDG 4380
RDG 4380
RDG 5380
MGT 3375
MGT 4335
MKT 3350
MKT 4310
B A 4300
CIS 3380
MGT 4330
ENG 3341
MC 4303
MC 4310
MC 5310
MC 5322

SPAN 2310
SPAN 2320
SPAN 4390
SPAN 4390
SPAN 2310
SPAN 2320
SPAN 4390
SPAN 4390
POSI 2320
POSI 4379
POSI 2310
POSI 4379
SPAN 3340
SPAN 3370
SPAN 3371
SPAN 4390
SPAN 4390

Texas State University

W W W W W WwWwWwWwWwWwWwWwwwwwowowowowowowowwowwowwowwowwowwowwowwowwwwwwwwwow

WhkROR WNRPROOUORRPRRERENDDN

=
\I

23

19

10
11

10
14
16
20
18
24
28
11

25

24

R P NDDNDND P

Christine Norton

Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez
Minda Lopez

Omar Sanchez-Sibony
Omar Sanchez-Sibony
Omar Sanchez-Sibony

Lori Assaf
Lori Assaf
Lori Assaf
Lori Assaf
Lori Assaf
Lori Assaf
Dennis Smart
Dennis Smart
Karen Smith
Karen Smith
Vivek Shah
Vivek Shah
Vivek Shah
Edna Rehbein

Michael McBride
Michael McBride
Michael McBride
Michael McBride
Agustin Cuadrado
Agustin Cuadrado
Agustin Cuadrado
Agustin Cuadrado
Yasmine Beale-Rosano-Rivaya
Yasmine Beale-Rosano-Rivaya
Yasmine Beale-Rosano-Rivaya
Yasmine Beale-Rosano-Rivaya

Hassan Tajalli
Hassan Tajalli

Maria de la Luz Valverde
Maria de la Luz Valverde
Antonio Gragera
Antonio Gragera
Antonio Gragera
Antonio Gragera
Antonio Gragera

$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)

$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$2,370.00 (38)
$3,486.00 (39)
$3,486.00 (39)
$3,486.00 (39)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,292.00 (40)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,269.00 (41)
$3,880.00 (42)
$3,880.00 (42)
$3,880.00 (42)
$3,880.00 (42)
$3,880.00 (42)
$2,831.00 (43)
$2,831.00 (43)
$2,831.00 (43)
$2,831.00 (43)
$2,831.00 (44)
$2,831.00 (44)
$2,831.00 (44)
$2,831.00 (44)
$2,494.00 (45)
$2,494.00 (45)
$2,494.00 (45)
$2,494.00 (45)
$8,381.00 (46)
$8,381.00 (46)
$8,381.00 (46)
$8,381.00 (46)
$8,381.00 (46)



Texas State University

(1) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,638.00 and other expenses of $504.42.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $3,142.42,

(2) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,638.00 and other expenses of $756.63.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,394.63.

(3) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $7,626.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 4 courses at a total cost of $10,650.00.

(4) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $4,528.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 4 courses at a total cost of $7,552.00.

(5) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,288.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,800.00.

(6) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,291.00 and other expenses of $1,512.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $2,803.00.

(7) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,653.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,165.00.

(8) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,255.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $2,767.00.

(9) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,576.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,088.00.

(10) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,703.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $4,215.00.

(11) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,459.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,971.00.

(12) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,487.00 and other expenses of $504.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,999.00.

(13) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,487.00 and other expenses of $1,008.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,999.00.

(14) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,487.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,999.00.

(15) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,104.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,616.00.

(16) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,752.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,264.00.



Texas State University

(17) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,588.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,100.00.

(18) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,588.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,100.00.

(19) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,610.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,122.00.

(20) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,087.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,599.00.

(21) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,158.00 and other expenses of $1,008.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,922.00.

(22) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,158.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,670.00.

(23) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,269.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 3 courses at a total cost of $5,537.00.

(24) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,379.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,891.00.

(25) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,578.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,090.00.

(26) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,083.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,595.00.

(27) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,490.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,002.00.

(28) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $4,872.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $6,384.00.

(29) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,270.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,782.00.

(30) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,583.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,095.00.

(31) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,583.00 and other expenses of $1,008.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,599.00.

(32) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,583.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $5,095.00.

(33) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,654.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,166.00.



Texas State University

(34) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $5,726.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $7,238.00.

(35) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,521.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,033.00.

(36) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,281.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,793.00.

(37) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,752.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,264.00.

(38) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,614.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,126.00.

(39) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,730.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,242.00.

(40) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,536.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,048.00.

(41) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,513.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,025.00.

(42) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $3,124.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $4,636.00.

(43) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,075.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,587.00.

(44) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $2,075.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,587.00

(45) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,738.00 and other expenses of $756.00.
Typical enrollment was in 2 courses at a total cost of $3,250.00.

(46) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $7,604.00 and other expenses of $777.00.
Typical enrollment was in 4 courses at a total cost of $10,712.00.



Texas State University

Out-of-State Study Programs Annual Report

Spring, Summer, and Fall 2016

SEMESTER PROGRAM STATE(S) COURSES HOURS OF
OFFERED CREDIT

Summer Anthropology as and New Mexico, |  ANTH 4630 6

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 3325 3

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 4306 3

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 4310 3

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 5308 3

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 7308 3

Summer Geography axico, Nevada, and U GEO 5316 3

Summer Geology axico, Nevada, and U GEOL 4320 3

Summer Theatre Oregon, USA TH 3367 3
(1) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $657.00 and other expenses of $1,508.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $2,165.00.
(2) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,244.00 and other expenses of $754.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $1,998.00.
(3) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,144.00 and other expenses of $754.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $1,898.00.
(4) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,144.00 and other expenses of $904.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $2,048.00.
(5) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,244.00 and other expenses of $904.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $2,148.00.
(6) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,144.00 and other expenses of $754.00.
Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $1,898.00.
(7) Assumes student enrolled in 1 course with travel expenses of $1,902.00 and other expenses of $754.00.

Typical enrollment was in 1 course at a total cost of $2,656.00.

NUMBER OF
STUDENTS

=
o

O NNFP ONDNOOW

INSTRUCTOR

Britt Bousman
Richard Earl
Richard Earl
Richard Earl
Richard Earl
Richard Earl

Kimberly Meitzen

Suzon Jammes

Laura Lane

COST TO
UNIVERSITY

$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)
$0 (Extension)

COST PER
STUDENT

$2,165.00 (1)
$1,998.00 (2)
$1,898.00 (3)
$1,898.00 (3)
$2,048.00 (4)
$2,048.00 (4)
$2,148.00 (5)
$1,898.00 (6)
$2,656.00 (7)



Texas State University System
Finance and Audit

Alan Tinsley, Chair

David Montagne

Bill Scott

Action ltems

1. LU:

Certificate Supervision Fee

2. LIT: Fee Decrease Diploma Fee— Fall 2017

3. TSUS: Mandatory Tuition & Fees, and Guaranteed Price Plans, Fall 2017
Semester

A.
B.

LU: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

SHSU: Mandatory Undergraduate Designated Tuition Increase- Fall
Semester 2017

SHSU: Mandatory Graduate Designated Tuition Increase- Fall
Semester 2017

SRSU - Alpine: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017
Semester

SRSU - RGC: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017
Semester

TXST: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

. LIT: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester
H.

LSCO: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increase — Fall 2017 Semester

LSCPA: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

4. SHSU: Waiver of Certain Fees
5. SRSU-Alpine: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee

6. SRSU-RGC: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee
7. TSUS: Debt Management Policy

8. TSUS: Approval of Investment Policy and Adoption of Investment Policy
Resolution

Consent Items

9. TXST: CONSENT: Create the Leadership Institute Quasi-Endowment

10. TSUS: CONSENT: Ratification: Tuition Rates for Non-credit Courses at Lamar State
College Port Arthur, Lamar State College — Orange, Lamar Institute of Technology

11. TSUS: CONSENT: Approval of 2018-2019 Legislative Appropriation
Requests

12. TSUS: CONSENT: Travel Reports
13. TSUS: CONSENT: Foundation Report

90



14. TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY16

15. TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY17

16. TSUS: CONSENT: Statement of Budgeted Fund Balances FY16

17. TSUS: CONSENT: Status of Implementation of Audit Recommendations
18. TSUS: CONSENT: Quarterly Investment Report November 2016

91



LU: Certificate Supervision Fee

Upon motion of Regent seconded by Regent it was
order that:

Lamar University be authorized to implement a program fee of $500 effective Spring 2017 for all
student who enrolled in the non-classroom teacher educator preparation programs. This
authority is contingent upon the State Board of Education adopting a rule requiring at least one
of the formal observations be conducted in a face-to-face setting.

Explanation

The State Board of Education (SBOE) will hear proposed revisions to 19 TAC Chapter 228,
Requirements for Educator Preparation Programs at its November 15-18 meeting.

If adopted, these revisions will require at least one of the formal observation of each certification
candidate in an Educator Preparation Program be conducted in a face-to-face setting. This new
requirement would be effective December 27, 2016. Candidates currently enrolled in these
programs will not be subject to this new requirement.

Lamar University (LU) estimates the impact of this revision is $275,000 for the remainder of
Fiscal Year 2017 to support the appointment of additional staff and required travel for face-to-
face observation.

In order to cover the additional costs, LU proposes a $500 fee to be charged one time to all
students entering the programs in future semesters.

This fee would be assessed on students enrolled in the following programs:

Degree programs:

M.Ed. — School Administration/certification

M.Ed. — Educational Technology Leadership/certification
M.Ed. — School Counseling/certification

Certification programs:
Principal Certification only
Superintendent Certification only

Authority to charge this fee would be contingent upon the SBOE adopting a revision to 19 TAC

Chapter 228 that requires education preparation programs, other than ones for classroom
teacher, include at least one formal observation of the candidate in a face-to-face setting.

92



1

2

3

10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Increase

Institution | Lamar University | Effective Date

Spring 2017

Type of Revenue | Certificate Supervision Fee

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification

The State Board of Educator Certification and the Texas Education Agency
have proposed to the State Board of Education revisions to the Educator
Preparation Program rules that will require at least one of the formal
observations of a candidate be conducted in a face-to-face setting. Given the
size of the program and the geographic distribution of the enrolled students,
this rule revision will required increased staffing and travel expenses.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

rease?

quality of the operations.

Lamar University has expressed its concerns to SBEC about the financial
impact of this new requirement. LU continues to look for cost efficiencies
were possible but given this new requirement, existing resources are not
sufficient to cover the cost of operations without negatively impacting the

Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 16 [ - Student 0 S -
Spring 17 0 S 500 Student 450 S 225,000
Summer 17 0 S 500 Student 100 S 50,000
Total for Fiscal Year 17 S 275,000
Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages S 137,500
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel S 137,500
Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year S 275,000
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2016
Education and General Fund (3,607.24)
Designated Fund 43,617,902.88
Auxiliary Fund 4,699,826.24
Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing N/A
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) _ Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy
Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

N/A

(Name)

R

Meal Plan
# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

93

(For / Against)



LIT — Fee Decrease — Fall 2017 Semester

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was ordered
that:
Lamar Institute of Technology requests authorization to eliminate the Diploma Fee of
$24.45.
From To Per Effective Date
Diploma Fee $24.45 $0 Student Fall 2017
Explanation

Lamar Institute of Technology is working to reduce the cost of student fees and seeks to
eliminate the Diploma Fee. The goal also is to encourage greater graduation participation.

94



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution | Lamar Institute of Technology |

Effective Date

Fall 2017

Type of Revenue |

Diploma Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification
diploma fee for graduation.

LIT is working to reduce the cost of student fees and requests to eliminate the

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

Details (A) (B) (Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate % Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 24.45 0 -100.00% Student 300 (7,335)
Spring 24.45 0 -100.00% Student 300 (7,335)
Summer 24.45 0 -100.00% Student - -
Total for Fiscal Year (14,670)
Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies (14,670)
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year (14,670)
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2015
Education and General Fund 61,536
Designated Fund 3,461,867
Auxiliary Fund 3,373,339
Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing N/A
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) N/A Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy
Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

Meal Plan
# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

(For / Against)

N/A
N/A

PlanA
N/A
N/A

95



TSUS: Mandatory Tuition & Fees, and Guaranteed Price Plans, Fall 2017 Semester

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , itwas
ordered that:

1. The accompanying schedule labeled “Mandatory Tuition and Fees — 15
Semester Credit Hours” be adopted for component institutions of the Texas State
University System, effective for the Fall 2017 semester.

2. Sam Houston State University be authorized, effective with the Fall 2017
semester, to increase the designated tuition rate for graduate students from
$185.50 per semester credit hour to $199.50 per semester credit hour.

Explanation

The accompanying schedule summarizes each TSUS component institution’s proposed
undergraduate mandatory tuition and fees schedule based on 15 semester credit hours
and the Guaranteed Price Plan, effective the Fall 2017 semester. Following the
schedule are descriptions and worksheets supporting each component institution’s
mandatory tuition and fee changes.

The Guaranteed Price Plan for Fall 2017 maintains the existing methodology, a 12%
premium on designated tuition which is based on an estimated 3.95% annual inflation
factor. For the Fall 2016, 239 students were enrolled in this plan.

Additionally, the description and worksheet supporting Sam Houston State University’s
proposed change in the designate tuition rate for graduate students is provided.

96



Statutory Tuition
Designated Tuition
Advising Fee
Transportation (Bus) Fee
Computer/Technology
Environmental Service
ID / One-Card
Intercollegiate Athletics
International Education
Library
Medical Center
Publication
Records
Recreational Sports
Registration
Scholarship Endowment
Student Center
Student Service

Totals

Change

Guaranteed Price Plan
Fall 2014 Cohort
Fall 2015 Cohort
Fall 2016 Cohort
Fall 2017 Cohort

39584844 xlIsx

Texas State University System

Mandatory Tuition and Fees - 15 Semester Credit Hours

Fall 2016 and Fall 2017

Sam Houston

Sul Ross State

Sul Ross State
University Rio

Texas State

Lamar University State University University Grande College University
Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017
$ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00 $ 750.00
2,790.00  2,895.00 2,481.00  2,670.00 2,100.00  2,205.00 1,282.50  1,372.50 3,124.95  3,293.70
55.00 55.00 66.00 66.00 - - - - 90.00 90.00
- - - - - - - - 95.00 95.00
450.00 450.00 510.00 510.00 367.50 367.50 376.80 376.80 240.00 240.00
- - - - - - - - 1.00 1.00
15.00 15.00 19.00 19.00 - - - - 5.00 5.00
158.70 158.70 296.25 296.25 157.80 172.80 - - 300.00 300.00
2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 3.00 3.00
240.00 240.00 105.00 105.00 120.00 120.00 30.00 30.00 191.10 191.10
38.00 38.00 75.00 75.00 31.00 34.00 - - 53.00 53.00
- - - - - - - - 8.00 8.00
15.00 15.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 - -
77.00 77.00 100.00 100.00 81.50 85.00 - - 94.00 94.00
100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 50.00 50.00 - - 64.00 82.00
250.00 250.00 240.00 240.00 238.00 238.00 140.00 140.00 90.00 105.00
$ 4,940.70 $ 5,045.70 $ 4,756.25 $ 4,945.25 $3,908.80 $ 4,035.30 2,592.30  2,682.30 5,109.05  5,310.80
2.13% 3.97% 3.24% 3.47% 3.95%
$ 4,970.70 $ 4,736.00 $ 3,660.00 $ 2,508.00 $ 5,093.00
$ 5,174.70 $ 4,964.72 $ 3,830.30 $ 2,620.20 $ 5,334.43
$ 5,275.50 $ 5,053.97 $ 4,160.80 $ 2,746.20 $ 5,484.04
$ 5,393.10 $ 5,265.65 $ 4,299.90 $ 2,847.00 $ 5,706.04
Page 10of 2

97



Texas State University System
Mandatory Tuition and Fees - 15 Semester Credit Hours

Fall 2016 and Fall 2017

Lamar State

Lamar Institute of Lamar State College - Port
Technology College - Orange Arthur
Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017 Fall 2016  Fall 2017
Statutory Tuition S 750.00 $ 750.00 S 750.00 S 750.00 S 750.00 $ 750.00
Designated Tuition 1,230.00  1,312.05 1,200.00  1,305.00 1,236.60  1,349.40
Advising Fee - - - - - -
Transportation (Bus) Fee - - - - - -
Computer/Technology 285.00 300.00 300.00 300.00 308.55 308.55
Environmental Service - - - - - -
ID / One-Card - - 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Intercollegiate Athletics - - - - 170.55 170.55
International Education - - - - - -
Library 60.00 60.00 40.00 40.00 60.00 60.00
Medical Center 38.00 38.00 - - - -
Publication - - - - - -
Records - - 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00
Recreational Sports 77.00 77.00 - - 26.40 26.40
Registration - - - - - -
Scholarship Endowment - - - - 15.00 15.00
Student Center 30.00 30.00 30.00 30.00 27.00 27.00
Student Service 250.00 250.00 180.00 180.00 250.00 250.00
Totals $ 2,720.00 $ 2,817.05 $ 2,510.00 S 2,615.00 S 2,854.10 2,966.90
Change 3.57% 4.18% 3.95%
Guaranteed Price Plan Not Applicable
Page 2 of 2

39584844 xlIsx 08



LU: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $186.00 $193.00 SCH  Fall 2017
Explanation

Designated Tuition

The increase will provide funding to enhance student support, develop academic initiatives, and
offset increased operational expenses that reflect inflation. Lamar University will allocate funds
to provide competitive compensation for recruitment and retention of faculty and staff, assess
and augment staffing and operations in areas critical to student retention and graduation, and
improve the quality of the academic infrastructure. We also anticipate increasing foregone
tuition and fees associated with the Hazlewood program. These increases will allow LU to be
on pace to meet and exceed the goals of 2020.

99



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution |

Lamar University | Effective Date

Type of Revenue

(Designated Tuiti

[ Designated Tuition |

on, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Fall 2017

Justification

The proposed increase would generate additional funds needed to help
maintain the current level of services and to offset increased unfunded
waivers.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

rease?

The university has increased its student to faculty ratio. Additional program
and enrollment growth would require unsustainable increases in this ratio.

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance

Student Election & Hearing

(A) (B) () (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Units from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
186 196 5.38% Per SCH 115,000 1,150,000
186 196 5.38% Per SCH 103,600 1,036,000
186 196 5.38% Per SCH 51,800 518,000
2,704,000
institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages 1,622,400
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) 100,200
Professional Fees and Services
Travel 270,400
Materials and Supplies 135,200
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense 35,000
Scholarships 540,800
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year 2,704,000
2016
Education and General Fund ($3,607)
Designated Fund $43,617,903
Auxiliary Fund $4,699,826
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required)| | Outcome

(For / Against)

Residence Hall Occupancy
Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

Meal Plan

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester

Declining Dollar Option

N/A

Name
N/A

100



SHSU: Mandatory Undergraduate Designated Tuition Increase- Fall Semester 2017

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $165.50 $178.00 SCH Fall 2017
Explanation

This increase will allow SHSU to continue to recruit and retain exceptional faculty, expand
programs and services, and cover fixed cost increases and other operating cost increases that
are driven by enrollment growth. Incremental investment in new programs, such as Nursing RN
to BSN, continue to challenge institutional capacity to sustain instructional activities in other
areas. These funds will enable institutional agility in responding to changes in student demand
for higher education driven by enroliment growth and programmatic expansion.

101



Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution [ sam Houston State University | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition - Undergraduate |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification This increase will allow SHSU to continue to recruit and retain exceptional
faculty, expand programs and services, cover fixed cost increases and other
operating cost increases that are driven by enrollment growth.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?
The university has increased its student to faculty ratio. Additional program
and enrollment growth would require unsustainable increases in this ratio.

Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Units from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 165.50 178.00 7.55% SCH 227,306 S 2,841,325.00
Spring 165.50 178.00 7.55% SCH 206,428 $ 2,580,350.00
Summer 165.50 178.00 7.55% SCH 43,065 S 538,312.50
Total for Fiscal Year S 5,959,987.50

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages 3,500,000.00
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) 840,000.00
Professional Fees and Services

Travel

Materials and Supplies 725,989.50

Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense

Scholarships 893,998.00
Other

Other

Total for Fiscal Year S 5,959,987.50
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2016

Education and General Fund 828,711.00
Designated Fund 29,747,245.00
Auxiliary Fund 8,025,854.00

Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 11/2/2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required)| | Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

(For / Against)

Meal Plan

102



SHSU: Mandatory Graduate Designated Tuition Increase- Fall Semester 2017

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $185.50 $199.50 SCH Fall 2017
Explanation

This increase will allow SHSU to continue to recruit and retain exceptional faculty, expand
programs and services, and cover fixed cost increases and other operating cost increases that
are driven by enrollment growth. Incremental investment in new programs, such as PHD in
Forensic Science, continue to challenge institutional capacity to sustain instructional activities in
other areas. These funds will enable institutional agility in responding to changes in student
demand for higher education driven by enroliment growth and programmatic expansion.

103



Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution [ sam Houston State University | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition - Graduate |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification This increase will allow SHSU to continue to recruit and retain exceptional
faculty, expand programs and services, cover fixed cost increases and other
operating cost increases that are driven by enrollment growth.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?
The university has increased its student to faculty ratio. Additional program
and enrollment growth would require unsustainable increases in this ratio.

Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Units from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 185.50 199.50 7.55% SCH 16,954 S 237,356.00
Spring 185.50 199.50 7.55% SCH 15,633 S 218,862.00
Summer 185.50 199.50 7.55% SCH 11,460 S 160,440.00
Total for Fiscal Year S 616,658.00

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages 400,000.00
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) 96,000.00
Professional Fees and Services

Travel

Materials and Supplies

Communications and Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance 28,159.00
Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense

Scholarships 92,499.00
Other

Other

Total for Fiscal Year 616,658.00

aad

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2016
Education and General Fund 828,711.00
Designated Fund 29,747,245.00
Auxiliary Fund 8,025,854.00

Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 11/2/2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

(For / Against)

Meal Plan

104



SRSU - Alpine: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $140.00 $147.00 SCH  Fall 2017
Athletic Fee $10.52 $11.52 SCH  Fall 2017
Medical Services Fee $31.00 $34.00 SEM Fall S017
Recreational Sports Fee $81.50 $85.00 SEM  Fall 2017
Explanation

Designated Tuition

Revenue from this fee is used to cover the costs of services, use and/or availability of all or any
of the University’s property, activities, operations or other facilities. This fee is used to provide
general support for the different budget areas of the University. The University maintains a long
term allocation plan for the use of proceeds from this fee. Additional revenue from this increase
will be used to provide a pay raise for faculty and staff. 15% of this revenue will be set aside for
financial aid and related programs. Student Forums were held on October 21 and 25, 2016 to
discuss the proposed increase in this fee and to solicit student input.

Athletic Fee

Revenue from this fee is used to supplement the intercollegiate athletic programs. Proceeds
from this increase will be used to provide funding to support needs of the athletic program
including equipment replacement, travel, facility maintenance, and other. The summer athletic
fee would increase by $.75 to $9.25 per SCH.

Medical Services Fee

Revenue from this fee is used to cover the costs of operations for the University Health Center
and student medical services. Routine campus medical service is provided via the health center
department staffed by a registered nurse. In addition, the university contracts with Presidio
County Health Services Inc. for other professional student medical services. The contract
allows students to receive specific medical care at no added cost. Proceeds from this increase
will be used to address the cost of providing these services.

Recreational Sports

Revenue from this fee is used to fund the operations of the Recreational Sports Center and
related activities. Proceeds from this increase will be used to provide funding for the acquisition
of new and replacement equipment, supplies, and facility maintenance. The summer
recreational sports fee would also increase by $1.75 to $42.50 per summer session.

105



1

2

3

10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution [

SRSU - Alpine ] Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue

(Designated Tuiti

| Designated Tuition |

on, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification

A $7increase in the Designated Tuition rate is being requested for SRSU-
Alpine. This increase is approximately 5% over the amount of the Fall 2016
rate. Overall cost increase to students taking 15 SCH will be 3.24%. These
funds are needed to support general university operations including
personnel, technology, utilities, and maintenance and operations across all
fund groups. New revenue from this fee is needed to provide a modest pay
raise to faculty and staff. In addition, 15% of this revenue is set aside for
financial aid and related programs.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?
SRSU-Alpine continues to contain costs through efforts such as energy
conservation and modest travel and operating budgets. Faculty and staff
salaries have remained low when compared to the other state higher
education institutions. M&O budgets have been maintained at constant
levels but must be addressed in order to continue to provide quality service.
Details (A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall $ 140.00 $ 147.00 5% SCH 20,400 S 142,800.00
Spring $ 140.00 $ 147.00 5% SCH 19,200 S 134,400.00
Summer | $ 140.00 $ 147.00 5% SCH 3,100 $ 21,700.00
Summer Il $ 140.00 $ 147.00 5% SCH 2,800 S 19,600.00
Total for Fiscal Year $  318,500.00
Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages $  215,000.00
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) S 41,275.00
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other Statutory waivers S 17,000.00
Other - Financial Aid Set Aside S 45,225.00
Total for Fiscal Year $  318,500.00
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund S 2,316,345
Designated Fund S 5,855,674
Auxiliary Fund S 1,848,585

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) _ Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

106

(For / Against)



1

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution [

SRSU - Alpine | Effective Date Fall 2017

2 Type of Revenue

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

3

4 What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inci

10

| Athletic Fee |

Justification

A Slincrease in the Athletic Fee is being requested for SRSU-Alpine. This
increase is approximately 9.5% over the amount of the Fall 2016 rate. Overall
cost increase to students taking 15 SCH will be 3.24%. These funds are needed
to support the intercollegiate athletic sports and related programs. New
revenue from this fee increase will be used to replace athletic equipment,
fund added costs of travel, facility maintenance, and other. The summer
athletic fee would also increase by $1to $9.50 per SCH.

rease?

The football stadium field received new turf in FY2016 funded primarily
through debt service to be repaid with private gifts. In addition, a new
outdoor recreational sports facility was constructed in FY2016. These
enhancements provided the athletics program with a modern practice facility
available on a year round basis with little maintenance required. The new
field turf elevated the football program as well as eliminated much of the
ongoing maintenance costs associated with the old grass facilities.

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer ||

(A) (8) @ (D) (E)

(F)

Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Pr OPOSEd % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change

Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E

$ 1052 $ 11.52 9.5% SCH 20,400 S 20,400.00
$ 1052 $ 11.52 9.5% SCH 19,200 $ 19,200.00
S 850 S 9.50 11.8% SCH 3,100 $ 3,100.00
S 850 S 9.50 11.8% SCH 2,800 S 2,800.00
S 45,500.00

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages

Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)

Professional Fees and Services

Travel

Materials and Supplies S 24,000.00
Communications and Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance

Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense S 20,000.00
Scholarships
Other Statutory waivers S 1,500.00

Other - Financial Aid Set Aside

Total for Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund S 2,316,345
Designated Fund S 5,855,674
Auxiliary Fund S 1,848,585

Student Election

& Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

107

S 45,500.00

(For / Against)



1

2

3

10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution | SRSU - Alpine | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Medical Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification A $3increase per semester in the Medical Fee is being requested for SRSU-
Alpine. This increase is approximately 9.7% over the amount of the Fall 2016
rate. Overall cost increase to students taking 15 SCH will be 3.24%. These
funds are needed to cover the costs of operations for the University Health
Center. New revenue from this fee increase is needed to support additional
medical needs of the Center and student body including possibly the funding
of a student accident insurance policy.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?
The university contracts with Presidio County Health Services Inc. for other
professional student medical services. The contract allows students to
receive specific medical care at no added cost. Thus providing medical
services to students on a very cost effective basis.

Details (A) (B) (9] (D) (E) (F)
Number of
o Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change

Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall $ 31.00 S 34.00 9.7% Semester 2,000 $ 6,000.00
Spring S 3100 $ 34.00 9.7% Semester 1,800 $ 5,400.00
Summer | $ 1550 $ 17.00 9.7% Semester 700 S 1,050.00
Summer I $ 1550 $ 17.00 9.7% Semester 650 S 975.00
Total for Fiscal Year S 13,425.00
Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages

Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)

Professional Fees and Services S 12,625.00
Travel

Materials and Supplies

Communications and Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance

Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense

Scholarships

Other Statutory waivers S 800.00
Other - Financial Aid Set Aside

Total for Fiscal Year S 13,425.00
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund S 2,316,345
Designated Fund S 5,855,674
Auxiliary Fund S 1,848,585

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing

Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Qutcome
Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available)

Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
Meal Plan (Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

(For / Against)

108



1

2

3

4 What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution |

SRSU - Alpine | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue

| Recreational Sports Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification

A $3.50increase in the Recreational Sports Fee is being requested for SRSU-
Alpine. This fee is assessed on a per semester basis. This increase is
approximately 4.3% over the amount of the Fall 2016 rate. Overall cost
increase to students taking 15 SCH will be 3.24%. These funds are needed to
support operations of the Graves Pierce Recreational Sports Center and
related activities. New revenue from this increase is needed to replace worn
out equipment.

rease?

A new outdoor recreational sports facility was constructed in summer 2016.
The facility provides the recreational sports program with a modern facility
available for student use on a 24/7/365 basis. This new concept eliminates
much of the maintenance required for the old facility. Multiple intramural
activities are conducted in the new facility. These programs and those in the
Rec Sports Center require periodic upgrades of equipment. The programs
should be continued as they contribute to student retention.

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer Il

(A) (8) © (D) (E)

(F)

Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Pi ’oPased % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
$ 8150 $ 85.00 4.3% Semester 2,000 $ 7,000.00
$ 8150 $ 85.00 4.3% Semester 1,800 $ 6,300.00
S 4075 S 4250 4.3% Semester 700 S 1,225.00
S 40.75 S 42.50 4.3% Semester 650 S 1,137.50

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your

institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages

Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)

Professional Fees and Services

Travel

Materials and Supplies S 14,712.50
Communications and Utilities

Repairs and Maintenance

Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense

Scholarships

Other Statutory waivers S 950.00
Other - Financial Aid Set Aside

Total for Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund S 2,316,345
Designated Fund S 5,855,674
Auxiliary Fund S 1,848,585

Student Election

& Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

109

S 15,662.50

S 15,662.50

(For / Against)



SRSU - RGC: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $85.50 $91.50 SCH  Fall 2017
Explanation

Designated Tuition
Revenue from this fee is used to cover the costs of services, use and/or availability of all or any

of the University’s property, activities, operations or other facilities. This fee is used to provide
general support for the different budget areas of the University. The University maintains a long
term allocation plan for the use of proceeds from this fee. Additional revenue from this increase
will be used primarily to provide a pay raise for faculty and staff. 15% of this revenue will be set
aside for financial aid and related programs. Public hearings were held on October 21, 2016 to
discuss the proposed increase in this fee and to solicit student input.

110



1

Institution

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

SRSU - Rio Grande College | Effective Date Fall 2017

2 Type of Revenue

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

3 Justification

10

What Cost-Redu

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer Il

Total for Fiscal Year

[ Designated Tuition ]

A $6increase in the Designated Tuition rate is being requested for SRSU-RGC.
This increase is approximately 7% over the amount of the Fall 2016 rate.
Overall cost increase to students taking 15 SCH will be 3.47%. These funds are
needed to support general university operations including personnel,
technology, utilities, and maintenance and operations across all fund groups.
New revenue from this fee increase is needed to provide a modest pay raise
to faculty and staff. In addition, 15% of this revenue is set aside for financial
aid and related programs.

Faculty and staff salaries have remained low when compared to the other
state higher education institutions. SRSU-RGC has made enhancements to its
distance learning capabilities with the intent of providing more instruction via
distance learning. M&O budgets have been maintained at constant levels but
must be addressed in order to continue to provide quality service.

Expenditure Plan

(A) (8) @ (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student,  (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
$ 8550 $ 9150 7% SCH 7300 S 43,800.00
$ 8550 S 9150 7% SCH 7200 S 43,200.00
$ 8550 $ 9150 7% SCH 2400 S 14,400.00
$ 8550 $ 9150 7% SCH 1700 S 10,200.00
S 111,600.00
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages S 70,000.00
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) $ 14,000.00
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies S 7,066.00
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other Statutory waivers S 4,464.00
Other - Financial Aid Set Aside S 16,070.00
Total for Fiscal Year S 111,600.00

ction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund 625,284
Designated Fund 2,501,127
Auxiliary Fund 864,588

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 10/21/2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) _ Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

111

(For / Against)



TXST: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $208.33 $219.58 SCH Fall 2017
Student Center Fee $64.00 $82.00 Student Fall 2017
Student Success Fee $90.00 $105.00 Student  Fall 2017
Explanation

Designated Tuition

The increase will allow Texas State University to absorb the annual increase in the cost of the
Hazlewood program, cover anticipated increases in health care benefits for employees and
retirees, and fund new academic programs approved by the Texas Higher Education
Coordinating Board.

The Hazlewood and associated Legacy program resulted in over $17.5 million in waived tuition
in FY 2016 which was an eight percent increase from FY 2015, which had increased 19 percent
from FY 2014. Early estimates for FY 2017 suggest that the waiver will increase significantly
again this year.

Our health care expense consistently increases between seven percent and ten percent per
year, and we have consistently added about four percent to the number of retirees receiving
health care benefits in recent years. Current estimates place the FY 2017 annual increase to
these costs at roughly $3 million. Approximately half of that amount, or $1.5 million, is the
responsibility of the university.

New academic programs that have either already been approved or are in the approval process
by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board include a Master of Science in Engineering,
several new nursing graduate programs, Ph.D. programs in applied anthropology and computer
science, a master’s program in sustainability, and a new Bachelor of Science in Civil and
Environmental Engineering. Start up costs and annual operation budgets for these programs
will exceed $10 million.

Student Center Fee

The Student Center was completed in 1998 when Texas State had 21,477 students. The
University has 80 percent more students today, 38,849, than it did in 1998. A student
referendum on February 25, 2016, approved an $18 increase in the Student Center Fee in fiscal
year 2018 and another $18 increase in 2019. These increases will allow the LBJ Student
Center to fund an expansion in order to provide more meeting rooms and spaces needed for
student organizations and activities. The fee increases will be used to pay debt service for the
expansion. The Student Center Fee was last increased in fiscal year 2010.

Student Success Fee

This increase will allow Texas State University to maintain a ratio of one academic counselor for
every 350 students. This was a key element of our most recent accreditation process and the
central theme of our Quality Enhancement Program that has had a direct positive impact on our
students’ success. The University has been spending down reserves in this fund since 2012
when the fee was last increased. The reserves will be depleted this year.

112



[

N

w

10

Institution

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

| Texas State University | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall $208.33 $219.58 5.40 SCH 433,071 $4,872,052
Spring $208.33 $219.58 5.40 SCH 398,902 $4,487,647
Summer | $208.33 $219.58 5.40 SCH 73,787 $830,101
Summer Il
Total for Fiscal Year $10,189,800
Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages $3,977,171
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) $3,664,277
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies $24,900
Communications and Utilities $772,039
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships $1,528,470
Other-Hardware/Software $222,943
Other
Total for Fiscal Year $10,189,800

These changes are being proposed only after careful and thoughtful
deliberation. The need for this increase is brought about due to a number of
factors outside of the control of the university. Just a handful of those
outside forces, including increases to the cost of retiree health insurance and
the impact of the Hazlewood Act on our tuition revenue, combine to place a
drain in excess of $5 million on University resources next year that did not
exist when planning for this year.

Texas State remains committed to minimizing any increase to our students'
cost of attendance. We considered delaying the employment of faculty this
year, but to do so would make it nearly impossible to meet the needs of our
growing student body in order to keep them on track to graduate on time. We
also considered cutting academic and administrative departments' operating
budgets, but with a 2.3% increase in enrollment this year and no budget
increases for those departments for many years, those budgets already
experience a significant reduction in per student spending power every year.
Further reductions would risk jeopardizing the mission of the university.

rease?

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund $2,234,586.77
Designated Fund $90,517,643.32
Auxiliary Fund $68,044,329.85

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 10/28/2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) _ Outcome

(For / Against)

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

113



1

Institution

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Texas State University | Effective Date Fall 2017

2 Type of Revenue

3 Justification

10

[ Student Center Fee

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inci

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer Il

The Student Center was completed in 1998 when Texas State had 21,477
students. The University has 80 percent more students today, 38,849, than it
did in 1998. A student referendum on February 25, 2016, approved an $18
increase in the Student Center Fee in fiscal year 2018 and another $18
increase in 2019. These increases will allow the LBJ Student Center to fund an
expansion in order to provide more meeting rooms and spaces needed for
student organizations and activities. The fee increases will be used to pay
debt service for the expansion.

rease?

Texas State University has grown by many thousands of students since the
Student Center was constructed. The demand for space in the current center
long ago surpassed availability, but this proposed expansion has been
delayed and put off as long as possible. The Student Center Fee was last
increased in fiscal year 2010.

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
$64.00 $82.00 28.1 Student 34,159 $614,868
$64.00 $82.00 28.1 Student 31,628 $569,303
$64.00 $82.00 28.1 Student 9,922 $178,591
$1,362,762
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense $1,362,762
Scholarships
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year $1,362,762

Meal Plan

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund $2,234,586.77
Designated Fund $90,517,643.32
Auxiliary Fund $68,044,329.85

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 10/28/2016

Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) 02/25/16 Outcome 614/418

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available) NA

Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

(Name)
#of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

114

(For / Against)



10

Institution

Justification

What Cost-Redu

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer ||

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

[ Texas State University | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Student Success Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

This increase will allow Texas State University to maintain a ratio of one
academic counselor for every 350 students. This was a key element of our
most recent accreditation process and the central theme of our Quality
Enhancement Program that has had a direct positive impact on our students’
success.

ction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

rease?

The University has been spending down reserves in this fund since 2012 when
the fee was last increased. The reserves will be depleted this year.

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

Fiscal Year-End F

Student Election

(A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
$90.00 $105.00 16.7 Student 31,791 476,863
$90.00 $105.00 16.7 Student 29,486 442,293
$90.00 $105.00 16.7 Student 10,092 151,379
1,070,535
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages $917,340
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) $153,195
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year $1,070,535
und Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund $2,234,586.77
Designated Fund $90,517,643.32
Auxiliary Fund $68,044,329.85
& Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (ifrequired)| | Outcome
(For / Against)
ccupancy

Residence Hall O

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

(Name)
#of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

115



LIT — Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases — Fall 2017 Semester

Fee From To Per Effective Date

Designated Tuition $82 $87.47 SCH Fall 2017

Technology Service Fee $19 $20 SCH Fall 2017
Explanation

Lamar Institute of Technology requests authorization to increase Designated Tuition to $87.47
and increase the Technology Service Fee to $20 effective the fall 2017 semester. This will be a
3.57% overall increase in cost to undergraduate students registered for 15 semester credit
hours.

Designated Tuition Fee: Lamar Institute of Technology proposes to increase its Designated
Tuition Fee to generate additional funds to maintain the support for academic instructional
programs, support services, and Hazlewood exemptions. The financial aid set aside of 15% is
required in this increase. A public hearing was held October 21, 2016 to discuss the increased
tuition proposal with students.

Technology Service Fee: Lamar Institute of Technology proposes to increase its Technology
Service Fee to generate additional funds to support the ongoing upgrades on campus and the
annual hardware and software increased costs.

116



Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution | Lamar Institute of Technology | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification Increase requested to cover additional needs in operational and instructional
budgets and to off set the increasing impact of Hazlewood. LIT had a 79%
increase from 2015 to 2016 in Hazlewood exemptions. To cover increased
costs for instructional equipment, utilities, maintenance, and faculty and
staff salaries.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

Cost reduction initiatives include eliminating and repurposing positions not
needed, absorbing job duties of contracted services with current staff, and
purchasing program equipment out of grant funds.

Details (A) (8) (© (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change

Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 82 87.47 6.67% SCH 28,513 155,966
Spring 82 87.47 6.67% SCH 25,586 139,955
Summer 82 87.47 6.67% SCH 5,408 29,582
Total for Fiscal Year 325,503

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages 127,000
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) 40,903
Professional Fees and Services

Travel

Materials and Supplies

Communications and Utilities 17,725
Repairs and Maintenance 58,500

Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense

Scholarships 5% 16,275
Other _Required set aside 15% 48,825
Other Exemptions 16,275
Total for Fiscal Year 325,503
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2015
Education and General Fund 61,536
Designated Fund 3,461,867
Auxiliary Fund 3,373,339

Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 10/21/2016
N/A

Fees: Date of Last Election (if required)

Outcome

(For / Against)

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available) N/A

Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
Meal Plan Plan A

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester

Declining Dollar Option

117



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution | Lamar Institute of Technology | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Technology Service Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification Requested increase for ongoing upgrades and support for Technology. LIT has
an aging IT infrastructure. We replaced critical networking equipment in FY16,
but we still are operating critical services on out of warranty/end of life
servers with limited options for recovery in the event of a disaster.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

Cost reduction initiatives include all software and hardware with annual
licensing or maintenance fees have been reviewed for value and cost
effectiveness; those not deemed cost-effective or that did not provide
enough value to the departments were cancelled. Maintenance contracts on
equipment no longer in our possession or nearing end of life were cancelled.
Printing costs were cut across campus by removing inkjet printers, replacing
color printers with black and white and increasing access to low-cost contract
color printing.

Details (A) (B) () (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from

Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E

Fall 19 20 5.26% SCH 28,513 28,513
Spring 19 20 5.26% SCH 25,586 25,586
Summer 19 20 5.26% SCH 5,408 5,408
Total for Fiscal Year 59,507

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages

Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel

Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities 59,507
Repairs and Maintenance

Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships

Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year 59,507
Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2015
Education and General Fund 61,536
Designated Fund 3,461,867
Auxiliary Fund 3,373,339

Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) QOutcome

(For / Against)

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

Meal Plan Plan A
# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester N/A

Declining Dollar Option

118



LSC-O: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increase — Fall 2017 Semester

Fee From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition $80.00 $87.00 SCH Fall 2017
Explanation

Lamar State College — Orange requests authorization to increase the designated tuition listed
above effective fall 2017. The overall tuition and mandatory Fee cost increase to full time students
as a result of this change is 4.18%.

Designated Tuition: Designated Tuition provides general support for the operations of the
college supplementing the E & G activities. A financial set aside of 15% is required. The proposed
increase generates additional funds to improve support for the academic instructional programs,
support services, utilities, funding for faculty development, and faculty and staff salary increases.
A public hearing was held October 20, 2016 to discuss the proposed tuition and fee increases
and solicit student input.

119



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution [ Lamar State College - Orange | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification Designated tuition increase is requested to fund increased costs for flood
insurance, utilities, faculty development, and faculty/staff salaries.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

Delays in filling critical positions and reducing budgeted travel are some cost
reduction initiatives that have been implemented.

Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Units from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 80 87 9% SCH 21,301 149,107
Spring 80 87 9% SCH 19,179 134,253
Summer | 80 87 9% SCH 5,870 41,090
Summer Il
Total for Fiscal Year 324,450
Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages 100,000
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits) 34,000
Professional Fees and Services
Travel 23,000
Materials and Supplies 12,000
Communications and Utilities 106,782.50
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other ___ SetAside_____ 48,667.50
Other
Total for Fiscal Year 324,450

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund -
Designated Fund 11,555,430.65
Auxiliary Fund 3,504,809.22

Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing 10/20/2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

Meal Plan (Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

120

(For / Against)



LSCPA: Mandatory Tuition and Fee Increases-Fall 2017 Semester

From To Per Effective
Designated Tuition 82.44 89.96 SCH Fall 2017
Explanation

Lamar State College-Port Arthur proposes to increase its Designated Tuition. The overall
Tuition and Fee cost increase to students as a result of these changes is 3.95% beginning with
the Fall 2017 semester, generating $265,915 in new revenue.

Designated Tuition: Lamar State College Port Arthur proposes to increase its Designated
Tuition rate to fund the costs of the college’s services and operations which include
supplementing E&G activities and provide general support for various areas campus wide. The
college is anticipating a decline in funding from the 85" Legislative Session due to the loss of
Hold Harmless funding. This increase will help mitigate this reduced funding along with other
cost cutting initiatives. The financial aid set aside of 15% is required with this fee. A public
hearing on the proposed designated tuition increase was October 12, 2016.

121



1

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

2 Type of Revenue | Designated Tuition |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Institution | Lamar State College Port Arthur | Effective Date Fall 2017

3 Justification Lamar State College Port Arthur is seeking approval for a $7.52 increase in

Designated Tuition per SCH beginning with the Fall 2017 semester. In the
upcoming year, our focus will be to evaluate salaries for faculty. Beginning
salaries are below market and it has become very difficult to recruit and
retain quality faculty. The establishment of a salary pool for the anticipated
increase in faculty salaries is necessary. The increase will be also be used to
fund the cost of the college's services and operations for various areas
campus wide.

4 What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?
Lamar State College Port Arthur has eliminated and frozen numerous faculty
and staff positions. Across the board operating budgets cuts were
implemented in FY2015 and carried over into FY2016. We reduced salaried
position $918,500 and operating expenses $177,000 when compared to FY2015
expenditures. Further effeciencies are being pursued through automation
and outsourcing.
5 Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall 82.44 89.96 9.12% SCH 15912 119,658
Spring 82.44 89.96 9.12% SCH 14144 106,363
Summer | 82.44 89.96 9.12% SCH 3183 23,936
Summer Il 82.44 89.96 9.12% SCH 2122 15,957
Total for Fiscal Year 265,915
6 Expenditure Plan
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages 226,028
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel
Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other _Set Aside, 39,887
Other
Total for Fiscal Year 265,915

7 Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance 2016
Education and General Fund 3,416,829
Designated Fund 1,828,816
Auxiliary Fund 418,663

8 Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing October 12,2016
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

122

(For / Against)



SHSU: Waiver of Certain Fees

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was ordered that:

Sam Houston State University waive the Recreational Sports Fee, Student Center Fee,
and Medical Fee for students who are enrolled exclusively in online distance learning
courses and who reside greater than 60 miles from the campus effective for the Spring
2017 semester

Explanation

In November of 2015, Sam Houston State University, was authorized to eliminate a waiver of
the Student Center Fee and the Recreational Sports Fee for all student who were solely
enrolled in electronically delivered distance learning classes. This requests authority to re-
instate this waiver for students enrolled exclusively in online distance learning courses and who
reside greater than 60 miles from the campus effective for the Spring 2017 semester.

123



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution Sam Houston State University | Effective Date Spring 2017
Distance Ed Waivers-Total Waivers $275
Type of Revenue (Rec Sports $100; Std Center Fee $100; Med Fee $75)
(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification These waivers only affect students enrolled exclusively in distance learning
courses who reside greater than 60 miles from the campus. This will enable
SHSU to continue to recruit, motivate, retain qualified students in distance
education programs.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the increase?

N/A
Details (A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change

Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
Fall
Spring $ 275.00 S - Student 1484 S (408,100.00)
Summer $ 275.00 S - Student 2112 S (580,800.00)

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)

Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages

Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services
Travel

Materials and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases

Printing and Reproduction

Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships

Other

Other

Total for Fiscal Year

Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance
Education and General Fund
Designated Fund
Auxiliary Fund

Student Election & Hearing
Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing

Fees: Date of Last Election (if required)

Residence Hall Occupancy
Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)

Meal Plan
# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

S (607,000.00)

S (381,900.00)

2016

828,711.00

29,747,245.00

8,025,854.00

Plan A

$  (988,900.00)

$  (988,900.00)

124

(For / Against)



SRSU-Alpine: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was
ordered that:

Sul Ross State University — Alpine be authorized to eliminate the waiver of the Computer
Access Fee for students who are enrolled exclusively in distance learning courses.

Explanation

Section 54.218 of the Education Code provides that “The Governing board of an institution of
higher education may waive a fee it is authorized to charge if the board determines that:
(1) A student is enrolled only in distance learning courses or other off-campus courses of
the institution;
(2) The student cannot reasonably be expected to use the activities, services, or facilities on
which the fee is based; and
(3) The waiver of the fee will not materially impair the ability of the institution either to
service any debt on which the fee is based or to offer or operate the particular activity,
service, or facility supported by the fee.”

SRSU-Alpine received board authorization to waive the Computer Access fee for students
enrolled in these courses. The use of these fees to support programs have evolved so that all
students now have access to the technology and services provided through this fee. Revenue
resulting from this elimination will be used to further support and enhance this technology and
services. This elimination of the waiver of the computer access fee will only impact those
students enrolled exclusively in distance learning courses.

125



1 Institution

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

[ SRSU - Alpine | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue | Elimination of Distance Learning Fee Waiver for Computer Access Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

3 Justification

4 What Cost-Redu

5 Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer Il

In accordance with Section 54.218 of the Education Code, SRSU-Alpine
received authorization to waive the Computer Access fee for students
enrolled in these courses. The use of these fees to support programs have
evolved so that all students now have access to the technology and services
provided through this fee.

ction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inc

rease?

Revenue resulting from this waiver elimination will be used to further
support and enhance this technology and services. This elimination of the
waiver of the computer access fee will only impact those students enrolled
exclusively in distance learning courses and will offset any short term need to
increase the related fee. Distance learning technology has become very
effective but must continue to be upgraded and maintained.

Total for Fiscal Year

6 Expenditure Plan

(A) (B) (Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
S 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 2600 S 18,200.00
S 7.00 S 7.00 0% SCH 2500 S 17,500.00
$ 700 $ 7.00 0% SCH 1200 S 8,400.00
S 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 1200 S 8,400.00
S 52,500.00
(Indicate how your institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services S 20,000.00
Travel
Materials and Supplies S 32,500.00
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other Statutory waivers
Other - Financial Aid Set Aside
Total for Fiscal Year S 52,500.00

7 Fiscal Year-End Fund Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund S 2,316,345
Designated Fund S 5,855,674
Auxiliary Fund S 1,848,585

8 Student Election & Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

9 Residence Hall Occupancy

10 Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

126

(For / Against)



SRSU-RGC: Elimination of Waiver of Computer Access Fee

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it was
ordered that:

Sul Ross State University — Rio Grande College be authorized to eliminate the waiver of
the Computer Access Fee for students who are enrolled exclusively in distance learning
courses.

Explanation

Section 54.218 of the Education Code provides that “The Governing board of an institution of
higher education may waive a fee it is authorized to charge if the board determines that:
(1) A student is enrolled only in distance learning courses or other off-campus courses of
the institution;
(2) The student cannot reasonably be expected to use the activities, services, or facilities on
which the fee is based; and
(3) The waiver of the fee will not materially impair the ability of the institution either to
service any debt on which the fee is based or to offer or operate the particular activity,
service, or facility supported by the fee.”

SRSU-RGC received board authorization to waive the Computer Access fee for students
enrolled in these courses. The use of these fees to support programs have evolved so that all
students now have access to the technology and services provided through this fee. Revenue
resulting from this elimination will be used to further support and enhance this technology and
services. This elimination of the waiver of the computer access fee will only impact those
students enrolled exclusively in distance learning courses.

127



10

Texas State University System
Request for Tuition or Fee Change

Institution |

SRSU - Rio Grande College | Effective Date Fall 2017

Type of Revenue

| Elimination of Distance Learning Fee Waiver for Computer Access Fee |

(Designated Tuition, Student Service Fee, Athletic Fee, Residence Hall Rent, Meal Plan, Laboratory Fee, etc.)

Justification

In accordance with Section 54.218 of the Education Code, SRSU-RGC received
authorization to waive the Computer Access fee for students enrolled in
these courses. The use of these fees to support programs have evolved so
that all students now have access to the technology and services provided
through this fee.

What Cost-Reduction Initiatives did your Institution consider before deciding to request the inci

Revenue resulting from this waiver elimination will be used to further
support and enhance this technology and services. This elimination of the
waiver of the computer access fee will only impact those students enrolled
exclusively in distance learning courses and will offset any short term need to
increase the related fee. Distance learning technology has become very
effective but must continue to be upgraded and maintained

Details

Fall
Spring
Summer |
Summer Il

Total for Fiscal Year

Expenditure Plan

(Indicate how your

Fiscal Year-End F

Student Election

rease?

(A) (B) Q) (D) (E) (F)
Number of
Type of Revenue Revenue Units Revenue from
Current Proposed % Unit (SCH, Student, (SCH, Students, Proposed Change
Rate Rate Change etc.) etc.) Cols ((B)-(A)) x Col E
S 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 1300 S 9,100.00
$ 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 1200 S 8,400.00
S 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 1000 S 7,000.00
S 700 S 7.00 0% SCH 800 S 5,600.00
S 30,100.00
institution plans to apply the revenue change to your annual budget)
Cost of Goods Sold
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Related Costs (e.g., Benefits)
Professional Fees and Services S 10,000.00
Travel
Materials and Supplies S 20,100.00
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Debt Service or Interest Expense
Scholarships
Other
Other
Total for Fiscal Year S 30,100.00
und Balance FY 2015
Education and General Fund 625,284
Designated Fund 2,501,127
Auxiliary Fund 864,588
& Hearing

Designated Tuition: Date of Hearing
Fees: Date of Last Election (if required) Outcome

Residence Hall Occupancy

Meal Plan

Capacity (# of Beds Available)
Occupancy (Avg % for FY 2016)
(Name)

# of Meals per Plan for Fall Semester
Declining Dollar Option

128

(For / Against)



TSUS: Debt Management Policy

Upon motion of Regent seconded by Regent

it was ordered that:

The Debt Management Policy dated November 2016 be adopted.

BACKGROUND

The Debt Management Policy establishes guidelines for the prudent use of debt to finance
capital projects within the Texas State University System. Included in the policy is detail on the
Financing Programs available to the components and debt guidelines outlining applicable laws
and best practices.

129



THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

LA
a

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY

November 2016
DRAFT

1|Page

130



2|Page

131



Purpose: This policy is to govern the use of debt to finance capital projects within the Texas
State University System (TSUS). The prudent use of debt can help TSUS achieve its strategic
objectives while maintaining a credit rating that appropriately balances financial flexibility with
cost of capital.

Financing Programs: TSUS is authorized to issue debt through two primary programs: the
Revenue Financing System (RFS) and the Higher Education Fund (HEF).

Revenue Financing System: The Texas State University System Revenue Financing
System (RFS) was created by the Board of Regents thought the adoption of a Master
Resolution on August 13, 1998. The Board established the RFS for the purpose of
assembling TSUS’s component institutions revenue-supported debt capacity into a
single financing program in order to provide a cost-effective debt program to the
components of TSUS and to maximize the financing options available to the Board. In
addition, on February 20, 2015, the BOR adopted a Supplemental Resolution which
authorized a commercial paper program which is parity RFS debt.

TSUS has the authority to issue tax-exempt and/or taxable debt (bonds and ECP). The
project tax status will be determined by the System staff office and bond counsel as
defined under state and federal law.

Tuition Revenue Bonds (TRBs) are issued under the RFS program and are secured by the
same RFS pledge of all legally available revenues of the System. RFS debt service related
to TRB projects is eligible for reimbursement by the state authorized biennial
appropriations. TRB authority is specially authorized by the Legislature under Chapter
55 of the Texas Education Code.

RFS CP Program is an Extendable Commercial Paper Program: The ECP is a short-term
debt program, authorized not to exceed $240 million, used to purchase equipment,
fund certain capital projects and to provide interim financing for capital projects during
construction. The ECP program will be administered in accordance with the TSUS’s
Extendable Commercial Paper Policy and Procedures. Authority expires December 31,
2045.

Higher Education Fund (HEF): Article VII, Section 17 of the Texas Constitution authorizes
the Board of Regents to issue bonds and notes secured by pledged revenues consisting
of up to 50% of the money allocated annually to the Board for the component
institutions. Bonds issued under this authority are typically referred to as HEF bonds or
constitutional appropriation bonds. The proceeds from the sale of HEF bonds or notes
may only be used to finance eligible projects as described Article VII, Section 17 of the
Texas Constitution. The Texas Constitution prohibits the issuance of HEF debt for
auxiliary projects, except to the extent of a project’s use for educational and general
activities.

3|Page

132



Authority: All debt incurred by TSUS will be issued or incurred pursuant to resolutions
approved by the Board of Regents and in accordance with the general laws of the State of
Texas, including particularly Article VII, Section 17 of the Texas Constitution, Chapters 55 and 95
of the Texas Education Code, and Chapters 1207 and 1371 of Texas Government Code. Before
any debt can be issued, TSUS must obtain an opinion from bond counsel that the issue complies
with applicable Texas and federal laws. TSUS must also receive the necessary approvals from
the Texas Attorney General.

Debt Guidelines: Any debt must be issued in strict compliance with applicable laws. The
following debt guidelines will apply:

Project Funding: TSUS will borrow money, through the issuance of debt, to finance only
those projects that have been approved for financing by the Board of Regents. Capital
projects are generally evaluated and prioritized through TSUS'’s Capital Improvement
Program (CIP). For construction projects that require debt financing, ECP or bond
proceeds will be provided only after design development approval and appropriation of
funds by the Board.

TSUS will require component institution to complete the Request for RFS or HEF bond
financing (Appendix B).

Amortization: The amortization of tax-exempt debt will be based on the types of assets
financed, the expected available cash flows to meet debt service requirements, and tax
regulations. Generally, the amortization of tax-exempt debt should not exceed the
useful life of the financed asset and may never exceed the Internal Revenue Service limit
of 120% of the useful life of the financed asset. The targeted maturity of RFS debt, both
taxable and tax-exempt, is no longer 20 years. The maximum maturity of RFS debt is
limited to 50 year by Chapter 55 of the Texas Education Code. The maximum maturity
of HEF debt is limited to 10 years by Article VII, Section 17 of the Texas Constitution.

Financial Ratios: In assessing its current debt levels, TSUS will take into account each
component’s request for RFS or HEF bond financing and review the effects to the
System’s debt affordability and debt capacity. TSUS will use selected actual and pro
forma financial ratios to measure the affordability and impact to debt capacity.
Although other ratios may also be evaluated, the primary financial ratios to be analyzed
include the debt service coverage ratio, the debt burden ratio, and the leverage ratio.

Economies of Scale: Debt financing will be coordinated to the extent practical so that
multiple project needs can be accommodated in a single borrowing, thereby increasing
the efficiency of the debt issuance. Since many issuance costs do not vary with the size
of a borrowing, a large bond issue increases the efficiency of financing by spreading
fixed costs over a greater number of projects.

Refunding Opportunities: The System Administration’s Office of Finance will actively
consider refinancing of outstanding debt issues when net savings for that refinancing

4| Page

133



measured on a net present value basis are positive. Since there are limitations on the
number of allowable re-financings, it is important to use re-financing opportunities
wisely. In evaluating refunding opportunities, the Office of Finance will consider the
value of the call option to be exercised, including the amount of time to the call date
and the amount of time from the call date to maturity. Based on these and other
factors, the Office of Finance will determine the minimum savings threshold for any
particular transaction, however, TSUS will generally use 3% net present value (NPV)
savings as a minimum threshold for determining the viability of an advance refunding
and 2% NPV savings for a current refunding. Refundings that provide lesser savings may
be considered under certain circumstances, such as eliminating restrictive bond
covenants, in combination with other viable refunding candidates so long as the above
NPV savings is achieved or in other situations that produce a greater benefit to TSUS.

Disclosure: The System Administration’s Office of Finance will provide updated financial
information and operating data and timely notice of specified material events to each
nationally recognized municipal securities information repository and any State
disclosure undertakings with respect to Rule 15¢c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Tax Compliance: The System Administration’s Office of Finance will monitor TSUS’s
ongoing responsibilities for tax compliance including but not limited to monitoring funds
for yield restriction and arbitrage rebate calculations.

Hedge Instruments: The System Administration’s Office of Finance may consider the use
of interest rate swaps and other interest rate risk management tools after carefully
evaluating the risks and benefits of any proposed transaction. By using swaps in a
prudent manner, TSUS can take advantage of market opportunities to minimize
expected costs and manage interest rate risk. Any use of swaps must be tied directly to
TSUS debt instruments. TSUS shall not enter into swap transactions for speculative
purposes.

Project Financing: The System Administration’s Office of Finance will consider the use
of project financing in those limited circumstances where the benefits of such a
transaction exceed the increased costs. Project financing can be a useful financing
technique in certain circumstances; however, these transactions are typically less
efficient and more costly than traditional financing due to lower credit ratings, fewer
economies of scale, the funding of a reserve fund, and the cost of bond insurance.
Project financing does not preserve or increase debt capacity relative to traditional
financing. The credit rating agencies and TSUS include project debt when assessing debt
capacity of components of TSUS.

Reporting Requirements: The Consolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR), presented
to the Board provides detailed information on TSUS’s outstanding bonds and notes
including, by series, the amount outstanding, interest rates, maturity dates, a summary

5|Page

134



of the changes in outstanding indebtedness, and the associated debt service
requirements.

Supplemental Resolution: Annually, at the February Board meeting, the System
Administration’s Office of Finance will present to the Board for consideration a motion
regarding the issuance, sale, and delivery of System Revenue Bonds for the potential
projects.

This motion provides a Not-to-Exceed amount of RFS debt for all the components for a
one year period, including potential debt refinancing.

Capital Expenditures and Reimbursement: Institutions are authorized to expend up to
4% of the estimated project cost to develop a formal program document, hire a project
Architect and Engineer, complete the Design Development phase of the project and
produce a detailed cost estimate. Funds needed for the costs can be provided by the
component initially and may be reimbursed when outside funding, including bond
proceeds, are received.

If bond proceeds are not available before the project continues to construction, an
institution may continue using institutional funds and/or ECP, which may be reimbursed
once bond proceeds are available, pending appropriate documentation.

US Treasury regulations allow a bond issuer to use tax-exempt bond proceeds to
reimburse expenditures made prior to the date of the financing if the expenditures
meet certain requirements.

Information regarding Reimbursement Guidelines can be found in Appendix A.

6|Page

135



Appendix A: Reimbursement Guidelines

Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 allows a bond issuer to use tax-exempt bond proceeds to
reimburse expenditures made prior to the date of the financing if the issue meets three
requirements:

(1) Official intent. Not later than 60 days after payment of the original
expenditure, the issuer adopts an official intent for the original expenditure.
(2) Reimbursement period
(i) In general. The reimbursement allocation is made not later than 18
months after the later of—
(A) The date the original expenditure is paid; or
(B) The date the project is placed in service or abandoned, but in
no event more than 3 years after the original expenditure is paid.
(i1) Special rule for small issuers. In applying paragraph (d)(2)(i) of this
section to an issue that satisfies section 148(f)(4)(D)(i) (1) through (1V),
the “18 month” limitation is changed to “3 years” and the “3-year”
maximum reimbursement period is disregarded.
(iii) Special rule for long-term construction projects. In applying
paragraph (d)(2)(i) to a construction project for which both the issuer and
a licensed architect or engineer certify that at least 5 years is necessary to
complete construction of the project, the maximum reimbursement period
is changed from “3 years” to “5 years.”
(3) Nature of expenditure. The original expenditure is a capital expenditure, a
cost of issuance for a bond, an expenditure described in 8 1.148-6(d)(3)(ii)(B)
(relating to certain extraordinary working capital items), a grant (as defined in 8
1.148-6(d)(4)), a qualified student loan, a qualified mortgage loan, or a qualified
veterans' mortgage loan.

A declaration of official intent must indicate that the recipient of the bond proceeds reasonably
expects to reimburse the planned expenditures with the proceeds of a debt to be incurred. The
declaration of official intent must generally describe the project for which the expenditure to be
reimbursed is paid and state the maximum principal amount of debt expected to be issued for
such purposes.

No declaration of official intent is required for preliminary expenditures, such as architectural,
soil testing, engineering, surveying, bond issuance and similar costs incurred prior to acquisition
or construction, that do not exceed 20% of the aggregate issue price of the issue or issues for that
project. Costs of land acquisition, site preparation and similar costs are not treated as preliminary
expenditures. No declaration of intent is required for costs of issuance of a bond or for other
amounts not in excess of the lesser of $100,000 or 5% of the proceeds of the issue.

Declarations of official intent to reimburse expenditures must be "reasonable”. Bond users
cannot make blanket or routine declarations without a real intent to finance the specific
expenditures, but for the purpose of building up reimbursable expenditures to which the proceeds
of Bonds for later projects would be artificially allocated.

7|Page

136


https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/26/1.148-6#d_3_ii_B
https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/26/1.148-6#d_4

Deviations between a project described in an official intent and the actual project financed with
reimbursement bonds do not invalidate the official intent to the extent that the actual project is
reasonably related in function to the described project.

Failure to comply with the regulations results in the bond proceeds being treated as not expended

and as remaining subject to arbitrage, rebate and other restrictions. Such a failure and
noncompliance with such restrictions may result in the loss of tax exemption of the bonds.

Reimbursement Procedures
The System Administration has provided the following reimbursement certificate form and will
serve to provide Official Intent. This form must be submitted to and authorized by the Vice

Chancellor for Finance for any capital expenditures incurred prior to the debt issuance to be
reimbursed.

8|Page

137



Application for Reimbursement of Capital Expenditures from Bond Issue Proceeds
(Design, Planning, Acquisition and/or Construction Costs
Paid Prior to the Issuance of Tax-Exempt Debt)

The Instructions and Application relate to Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 which allows a
bond issuer to use tax-exempted bond proceeds to reimburse certain prior expenditures.

A. The following steps are required in order for an institution to qualify prior expenditures
as reimbursable under these provisions:
a. Declare intent to spend money on a project and to repay itself from bond
proceeds;
b. Spend institutional resources on the project;
Issue reimbursement debt;
d. Allocate bond proceeds to repay the expenditure on its books in the time period
permitted; and
e. Treat bond proceeds as “spent,” freeing them from any arbitrage restriction.

o

B. Declare intent by completing the ESTIMATED REIMBURSEMENT columns of the
Application. Print, sign and date the form and mail it to:

Texas State University System
Vice Chancellor for Finance
208 E. 10 Street, Suite 600

Austin, TX 78701

C. The Vice Chancellor for Finance will sign, date and retain the original of the Application.
A signed copy will be returned to the Chief Financial Officer of the respective
Component.

D. After bonds are issued and expenditures are finalized, the Chief Financial Officer will
update the ACTUAL REIMBURSEMENT COLUMNS of the Application Form and
mail it to the Vice Chancellor for Finance.

E. The Vice Chancellor for Finance will sign, date and return a copy of the updated
Application to the Chief Financial Officer.

F. The Vice Chancellor for Finance will retain the signed original Application and the
signed updated Applications.

9|Page

138



INSTRUCTIONS

Preliminary Application

wWCoNOTkwWN P

Enter COMPONENT NAME

Enter PROJECT NAME

Enter BOND ISSUE Series if known, otherwise leave blank

Provide a complete description of the project (attach separate page or pages)
Complete ESTIMATED REIMBURSEMENT cost entries

Enter total for ESTIMATED REIMBURSEMENT cost entries

Enter Component name

Print/type Chief Financial Officer (CFO) name

CFO signature

. DATE preliminary application completed

. Print/type Vice Chancellor for Finance (VCF) name

. Mail original to the VCF, The Texas State University System
. Retain a copy for files

Reimbursement Application (Make these entries on the copy you retained in 11, above)

oSN~ LN E

10.
11.
12.

Verify or enter BOND ISSUE Series

Complete the ACTUAL REIMBURSEMENT cost entries

Enter Total for ACTUAL REIMBURSEMENT cost entries

Enter the Component name

Print/type CFO name

CFO Signature

Enter date Reimbursement Application Completed

Print/type VCF name

Mail original to the Vice Chancellor for Finance (VCF), The Texas State University
System

Retain a copy for files

VCF will sign and retain original Application

VCF will return a copy of signed Application to Component CFO

10| Page

139



THE TEXAS STATEUNIVERSITY SYSTEM
Component: (1)

Application for Reimbursement of Capital Expenditures from Bond Issue Proceeds
(Design, Planning, Acquisition and/or Construction Costs

Paid Prior to the Issuance of Tax-Exempt Debt)

PROJECT NAME: (2) Bond Issue Series: (3)or (1)

Provide a complete description of the project — attach separate page or pages. (4)

ESTIMATED ACTUAL

FUNCTIONAL CATEGORY REIMBURSEMENT REIMBURSEMENT

Pre-Construction I'(5) '(2)
Architect/Engineer
Commissioning, Testing, and Balance

Hazardous Materials Abatement

Relocation/Moving

FF&E Interior Design Consultant

State Historical Commission/State Antiquities
Committee/State Archeology Survey Clearance

Survey

Geotechnical Services
Other - General
Other - Miscellaneous Services

Administrative Fee

TOTAL "® I®)

COMPONENT CERTIFICATION: COMPONENT CERTIFICATION:

r r

(U © ©) ®)
® (Signature) ® (Signature)
Chief Financial Officer l'(10) Chief Financial Officer '(7)

(Date) (Date)

THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM APPROVAL

(&

Vice Chancellor for Finance (Signature)
The Texas State University System

(Date)

THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM APPROVAL

®

Vice Chancellor for Finance (Signature)
The Texas State University System

(Date)

11| Page

140



Appendix B:

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
REQUEST FOR REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM FUNDING

SECTION I: Financing Requirements - (To Be Completed By System Component)

Component:

Fiscal Year:

Date Funds
Description of Funding Needs Required

Amount to be
Financed

No. of Years
Financed

Annual Revenue
Stream Available for
Debt Service

Source
(Acct. No.)

Equipment
1

Equipment identified in budget? Yes No

Equipment identified in Capital Plan? Yes No

If not, explain:

Construction
1.

Project identified in Capital Plan? Yes No

If not, explain:

Project approved by BOR? Yes No

Date

Source of Funds for P&I repayment:

Total pledged revenues of component:

Total Pledge Revenues: Bond Series
1. Pledged Revenues
2. HEAF
3. TRB
4. Fund Balance

As of

Outstanding
Bond Balance

Pledged
Revenues

For Use by the System Administration's Office of Finance

Amount of Debt Issuance (including Issuance Costs)

Type of Debt to be Issued

I:I Bonds CP Interest Rate:
|:| Notes Bond Interest Rate:

I:l Commercial Paper Payment Schedule

Additional Comments

|:| Other |:| Equal Principal Payments

|:| Equal Total Annual Payments

# of Years CP:

# of Years Bonds:

Prepared by

Date Received

Date Required

141

12| Page



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
REQUEST FOR REVENUE FINANCING SYSTEM FUNDING

SECTION II: Debt
Service Schedule

Component:

Fiscal Year:

Project:

The debt service schedules prepared in response to your request. If you wish that this debt issuance
to proceed on your behalf, please complete

Section I11 and return the original Request Form to the System Administration's

Office of Finance.

Signed

Date

142

13| Page



TSUS: Approval of Investment Policy and Adoption of Investment Policy Resolution

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , itwas
ordered that:

a. The Investment Policy for Operating Funds and Endowment Funds dated
November 2016 be approved:

b. and the accompanying Resolution to Acknowledge Review of Investment
Policies be adopted.

Explanation
The Texas Public Funds Investment Act requires annual Board of Regents' adoption of the

investment policy of the Texas State University System and requires the Board to adopt a

written instrument by rule, order, ordinance or resolution indicating it has reviewed the
investment policy.

143



BOARD OF REGENTS
of

THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Austin, Texas

RESOLUTION TO ACKNOWLEDGE
REVIEW OF INVESTMENT POLICIES AND STRATEGY

WHEREAS, The Texas Public Funds Investment Act requires that the investment policies and
strategies of each University System and its components be annually reviewed by its governing
board; and

WHEREAS, the law also requires the governing body to adopt a written instrument stating that
is has reviewed the investment policies and strategies;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Texas State University System Board of
Regents, by issuance of this Resolution, hereby approves the Investment Policy for Operating
Funds and Endowment Funds of the Texas State University System and its components as
presented November 17, 2016;

and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be incorporated within the minutes
of the November 17-18, 2016 meeting of the Board.

Attest:

Dr. Jamie R. Garza, Chairman Brian McCall, Ph.D, Secretary

144



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Investment Policy for Operating Funds and
Endowment Funds
DRAFT
November 20165

145



Table of Contents

l. PREFACE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et e e e et e e e e e e s e s e e e s e a st a b et bbbt st b e b e ee e e e e e e aeaeeeaeaeaeaeaaaaaaaseeaeasesesansesnsnnnnns 3
[I. POLICY AND OBJECTIVES . ...ttt et et et et et e eeeeseaeaeaaaaaaaaaaasasaseesesesesasnnns 3
AL OPERATING FUNDS ...ttt ettt sttt ettt et ettt h et sbeea e et e s besbeeat et e ebeeatene e bt eaeeabenbesbeeutenbesbesbeentenbesbeas 3
B. ENDOWMENT FUNDS ...ttt sttt st ettt b e sh et b e eat e e e s bt sbe et e sbesbeeat et e sbesbeemt e bt sbe e st ebesbeeneenseneesaas 4
. DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY ..eeettieiiiiitteeeeeeeeiieete e e ettt te e e e e et e e e e s s smnneeee e e s e 5
IV. STANDARD OF CARE ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e et e e e e e s et bttt e e e e e aanbeeeeeeeeeaanbneeeeessaannneneeeesanan 8887
V. INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENT PROCEDURES ......uuiiiiiiiiiiiiitititrtrtrerereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaaeaaaaaeasssassssesssesanans 8
VI. INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND OBJECTIVES ...ttt ee e e e s e s e se s e e e e e eseeaaaseaaeeeens 9998
A, OPERATING FUNDS ...ttt ettt ettt sttt ettt h et sh e sat et e s beshe e st et e s bt sheeneebesaeeaseneesbeeaeenbesbesaeeneans 9998
B.  ENDOWMENT FUNDS ...ttt sttt ettt sttt sttt e st bt s at e e s b sae et e sbesbeeat et e sbeshe et enbesbeentenbesbesueenseseenaes 9
VII. INVESTMENT GUIDELINES. ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e sttt e e e e e st et e e e e e smrsneeeeeesanannne 10161069
A. OPERATING SHORT-INTERMEDIATE TERM FUNDS. ... .ottt ettt e e et e e e s 10161069
B. OPERATING LONG-TERM FUNDS ...ttt e e e e e e e s e seeeeeeeeaeaaeaaasanens 10161069
C. ENDOWMENT FUNDS ...ttt ettt ettt e e sttt e e s e et e e e e e e s s bbbt e e e e e sanamnbeeeeessennnneeeeeeeenanns 10
VI REBALANCING ..ottt ettt sttt et s he et b e eat et e s bt e he et e s bt s bt ea b et e ebeeat e b e sbeeat et e sbesbeeat e besbeeneenbenbeens 10
IX. SAFEKEEPING ..ttt e e e et et ettt e e e e s e s e e e e eeaeaeaaaaaeaaaaaeaeeeenaeeeaesesanaans 10
X. SECURITIES LENDING ...ttt ettt ettt e e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e s e sttt e e e e e s nnbebteeeeesaansbeeeeeesesannreaeaeas 1110
XI. FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS ..ottt sttt sttt sttt et st st see e b nne 113333110
XIl. INVESTMENT REPORTING AND MONITORING ....uuiiiiiiiiirieiiievererereee e eeeeeeeeeeseeeseeeeeeeeaeaeeens 12421211
A, OPERATING FUNDS «..oeveeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeeteeeeeeesesseeeesessesessessesssessssesessessessesassaesssssessesessesseesssasseneseeeas 12321211
B, ENDOWMENT .ottt eeeeeeeee e e s eseeeeseseesestesseseeeesseesesessessesaeseesseeesesessassessessssesseeseeaesesssenseens 13131312
XIll. BENCHMARKS ..ttt e e e e et et et et e ettt e e e s eeeeeeaeaeaaaaaaaaaeaeeeenns 1413
XIV.  AUDITS oottt ettt eeee e eeeeeeeeeeseesteeseseeeeesaeeeseseeseesaeesseeeeeaeeeseseeeeeeeeeeesesseseeesseeeeeeeeaeenenerens 14141413
) O oY= =Y = o U o T -SSR 14141413
XV. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND CERTIFICATION ...uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiereeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeesesaasasaesssasnnnnns 14
APPENDIX Tttt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e sa bt b et e e e e s e ne b et e e e e e e e aun b e e eeeeee s e n bbb eeeeeesa e naneeeeeeeeaannreeeeeeeeaann 15
APPENDIX 2.ttt e e e —— ettt ettt et et et et et e e e e aeaaaaaaaeaaaaaeaeaeaeaeaaaaans 17
APPENDIX 3.ttt ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e s e aab b ee e e e e s e aa b et e e e e e e e a b et teeeee e e bbb aeeeeeea e hnbeteeeeeeeanraeaeeeeeaaans 19
EXHIBIT Lttt sttt ettt ettt ettt b bt e e b s bt ebe et e bt s bt eatem b e bt e bt e st et e eb e ea b e b e sbeeat e b e nbesbeemte bt sbeebeenbenbesheentensesnens 22
EXHIBIT 2 .ttt sttt ettt ettt b bttt s bt eb et e bt s bt e at et e bt e bt e st et e e bt ea b e s e bt ea e e b e nb e s b e emt e besbeeheenbe bt sheennenteanens 23
2

146



Texas State University System
Investment Policy

PREFACE

This Policy is the approved Investment Policy for Operating Funds and Endowment Funds of the
Texas State University System. Texas State University System (“TSUS”) refers to System
Administration, Lamar University, Sam Houston State University, Sul Ross State University,
Texas State University, Lamar Institute of Technology, Lamar State College-Orange, Lamar
State College- Port Arthur, and Sul Ross_State University - Rio Grande College.

POLICY AND OBJECTIVES
A. OPERATING FUNDS

It is the policy of TSUS to invest operating funds in compliance with the “Prudent Person
Standard” as defined by Texas Education Code §51.0031(d). The Investment Policy for
Operating Funds and Endowment Funds (“Policy”) of TSUS is designed to fulfill the following
objectives with respect to Operating Funds:

- Provide security of invested principal;

- Provide liquidity for operating requirements which may be reasonably anticipated,;
- Manage interest-rate and market risk;

- Maximize total return within established risk constraints; and

- Provide for diversification of investment assets.

To meet these objectives, TSUS will base investment decisions on short-term, intermediate-term,
and long-term needs dictated by cash flow analyses of present and anticipated future financial
requirements.

This Policy applies to the following operating funds held by TSUS:

- Current Funds (Unrestricted and Restricted);
- Loan Funds;

- Bond Funds;

- Plant Funds;

- Board-Designated Reserves; and

- Agency Funds

These funds may be held in investments authorized by this Policy (based on liquidity needs or
bond covenants) or in authorized depositories as required for day-to-day operations within any
fund group. A component is not required to liguidate investments that were authorized
investments at the time of purchase . Funds held in banking
institutions are covered by the TSUS Depository Funds Palicy.

Pursuant to Texas Government Code §2256.005, this Policy shall be reviewed and updated
annually and presented to the Board for adoption by resolution. Copies of the Policy will be
forwarded on an annual basis by each component investment officer to any entity (except

3

147



TexPool) with which the component conducts investment transactions. Such entities will be
required to acknowledge in writing receipt of the Policy and to attest that they have implemented
reasonable procedures and internal controls to comply with provisions contained within the
Policy. The Vice Chancellor for Finance will distribute the Policy to and obtain the
acknowledgement from TexPool on behalf of the Texas State University System and its
components and will do likewise for any entity, including investment advisors, conducting
investment transactions on behalf of the System Office.

Operating funds covered under this Policy are classified as:

Short-Intermediate Term Funds

Funds needed to meet operating requirements (within the budget year) as well as funds not
designated as Long-Term. These Funds may be used within the operating year and are
typically invested in investments with high quality and ready access to liquidity.

Long-Term Funds

Funds that comprise a core holding that are not intended to be spent during any budget

period. These funds are typically invested in a similar manner to Endowment Funds, with
similar risk and reward metrics. Long-Term Funds may not exceed 35% of all Operating
Funds exclusive of Bond Proceeds Funds; as determined annually based on the Ending

Market Values as of August 31 of each year (fiscal year end).

Bond Proceed Funds

Funds obtained by the issuance of debt for a stated purpose. Bond proceeds may be
invested in a manner consistent with the requirements and restrictions stated in the
applicable Bond Covenants, but typically not longer than three years. Bond Proceed Funds
are to be invested following the same guidelines as Short-Intermediate Term Funds.

B. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Endowment funds may include, but are not limited to, gifts of property, stock, and real assets,
donated to TSUS to provide funding for scholarships, fellowships, professorships, academic
chairs, and other uses as specified by the donors. Itis the policy of TSUS to invest endowment
funds in compliance with the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA),
Texas Property Code Chapter 163.

Funds functioning as endowments (commonly referred to as quasi-endowments) are resources
that the governing board, rather than the donor, has determined are to be retained and managed
like an endowment. Principal and income of these funds may be utilized at the discretion of the
governing board. Resources that the governing board sets aside to function as an endowment
may be unrestricted or restricted by an agent outside the institution.

Funds which by their nature are long term and have or potentially may have endowment
qualities, for example Charitable Gift Annuities, may be invested with the endowment to the
extent permitted by law and the individual charitable documents.

The endowment funds may be invested as authorized by this Policy and, for short periods, be
placed in authorized TSUS depositories for the processing of receivables and disbursements.

148



This Policy is designed to fulfill the following objectives with respect to Endowment Funds:
- provide security of invested principal;
- provide for appreciation of principal,
- provide a continuing and dependable cash payout within market constraints;
- provide for planned liquidity for anticipated cash flow purposes;
- manage market risks;
- maximize overall total return within the established risk constraints; and
- provide for diversification of investment assets.

The long term objective of an endowment is to preserve the intergenerational equity of the
endowment while providing an appropriate current spending policy. All endowment funds will be
managed by the “Prudent Person Standard”.

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITY

Board of Regents

The TSUS Board of Regents (the “Board”) retains ultimate responsibility for investments as
fiduciaries of TSUS assets regardless of who is investing those assets. The Board is statutorily
required to:

Designate Investment Officers, at least annually, review and adopt this Policy, at least
annually, review and adopt a list of qualified broker/dealers authorized to engage in
investment transactions with TSUS,

At least quarterly, receive and review investment reports prepared in accordance with this
Policy, and

Attend at least one training session as regards to Board responsibilities under the Act
within six (6) months of assuming office as provided by the Higher Education
Coordinating Board.

Investment Officers

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) for System Administration and the CFO for each component
are designated as Investment Officers for their respective entities by the Board. Additional
Investment Officers may be designated by the Chancellor or the President of the component.

Investment Officers are responsible for investment management decisions and activities and all
transactions undertaken, including the hiring/firing of Investment Manager(s) recommended by
the Investment Consultants, and banking relationships. No officer or designee may engage in an
investment transaction except as provided under terms of this Policy. No Investment Officer or
employee of TSUS may accept anything of value from counter-parties or others in connection
with investment transactions.

Each Investment Officer must attend five or more hours of investment training within six months
of assuming the position and not less than once each state fiscal biennium. The Board
acknowledges investment act training alternatives as provided through eligible sponsors
recognized by the Texas State Board of Public Accountancy or CPE credits accepted by the CFA
Institute will meet the training requirements.

The Investment Officer of each component shall prepare a report on compliance with the training
requirements and deliver the report to the Vice Chancellor for Finance by November 15th of

5

149



every odd-numbered year. The Vice Chancellor for Finance will provide to the Board a summary
report on compliance with the training requirements as well as a report of any legislative changes
affecting TSUS investment activities not later than the 180th day after the last day of each
regular session of the legislature.

Investment Officer Disclosures

The following reporting requirements apply:

1. An Investment Officer related within the second degree by affinity or consanguinity to an
individual seeking to sell an investment to TSUS shall file a statement disclosing that
relationship;

2. An Investment Officer having a business relationship of any nature with an individual
seeking to sell an investment to TSUS shall file a statement disclosing that relationship;

3. The disclosure shall be filed with the Board and the component President or with the
Chancellor if the applicable Investment Officer is the CFO for System Administration.

Investment Consultant

System Administration and the components may contract with an Investment Consultant
registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80b-1 et seq.) to
provide for investment oversight of the Operating and/or Endowment Funds. System
Administration is responsible for the management of any investment consultant contract,
including the solicitation and selection of the investment consultant. The initial contract may not
be for a term exceeding six years and renewals or extensions of the contract must be made by
order or resolution of the Board. The Investment Consultant must acknowledge in writing that
they are a fiduciary to the Fund(s).

The Investment Consultant must certify to the receipt and review of this Policy and that it will act
in accordance with the Policy; and it will provide the most recent copy of its Form ADV and ADV
brochure as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission to the CFO(s) for the
component(s) that it advises.

The Investment Consultant’s responsibilities are to the System Administration and the
components it advises. Additionally, the Investment Consultant will:

Assist in the development and implementation of investment policies, objectives, and
guidelines to submit to the Board for approval at least annually.

Review investment strategies and vehicles, including search, selection, and
recommendation of investments to the Investment Officer.

Prepare and present performance evaluation reports in accordance to established
investment standards.

Review contracts and fees for both current and proposed Investment Managers.
Communicate investment policies and objectives to Investment Managers, monitor those
strategies, and notify the Investment Officers of any significant changes in portfolio
managers, litigation, or violation of securities regulations.

Investment Manager(s)

System Administration and the components may contract with ar-one or more Investment
6

150



Manager{s) registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. Section 80b-1 et
seq. A contract made under authority of this subsection for Operating Funds must contain a
termination clause with a maximum 30 days’ notice provision_and may not be for a term longer
than two years. A renewal or extension of the contract must be approved by the Board.

The Investment Manager(s) must certify to the receipt and review of this Policy; it will act in
accordance with the Policy; and it will provide a copy of its most current Form ADV and ADV
brochure as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission to the CFO(s) for the
component(s) that it advises (see Exhibit 1).

All Investment Managers have a fiduciary responsibility to make a good faith determination that
commissions paid to a broker are reasonable and competitive. All Investment Managers shall
treat the accounts they manage as discretionary accounts and have authority to act for
Investment Officers. The Investment Managers have the authority to make investment
decisions for the purpose of placing orders to effect any purchase, sale, exchange, liquidation
or other investment of the assets in the accounts, within their asset class, and according to this
Policy, without obtaining prior approval.

TSUS requests that all orders for transactions of account assets be placed in such markets and
through such brokers as shall offer the most favorable price, execution and commission cost of
each order (best execution). All such orders must also be in compliance with this investment

policy.

TSUS acknowledges that Investment Managers may in accordance with applicable law pay
commissions to brokers that are higher than those that might be obtainable elsewhere in order
to obtain research and other services provided by such brokers in the expectation to enhance
the long-term value of the account. The Investment Officers shall try to negotiate the contract
without the use of these soft dollar arrangements. In the event that the soft dollar arrangements
remain as part of the contract, the Investment Manager(s) will report to the Investment
Consultant and the Investment Officers at least annually, the Investment Managers’ soft dollar
practices and any soft dollar purchases. In addition, Investment Managers must demonstrate
how the soft dollars were used solely for the benefit of the account which generated the soft
dollars.

The use of soft dollars by an Investment Manager in the portfolio must be disclosed under the
investment disclosure requirements section on the component’s webpage.

Investment Custodians

The Investment Custodians are responsible for the safekeeping of the Operating and
Endowment Funds’ assets. Their responsibilities are to:
Provide timely (defined as within 6 business days of month end) and accurate reports
detailing investment holdings, including, on a Trade Date accrual basis:
- Statement of all securities and other assets held,
- Statement of all receipts, sales, redemptions, and principal payments,
- Statement of all distributions, expenses paid, purchases, and
- Statement of all income, and
7

151



- Establishing and maintaining separate accounts for each Investment Manager.

Provide all normal custodian functions, including but not limited to:
- Security safekeeping,
- Collection of income,
- Settlement of trades,
- Collection of proceeds of maturing securities, and
- Daily investment of available cash.

IV. STANDARD OF CARE

Pursuant to Texas Education Code §51.0031(d), the “Prudent Person Standard” shall be the
standard used in all investment functions and shall be applied in the context of individual
transactions as well as management of the overall portfolio. Accordingly, all investments shall
be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, emphasizing the probable safety of their capital as well as the
expected income to be derived.

All investments shall be consistent with this Policy. The Investment Officer shall not be held
personally liable for a specific security's credit risk or market value change as long as
actions were in accordance with this Policy, unexpected deviations were reported to the
component President and the CFO for System Administration in a timely manner, and all
appropriate actions were taken to control adverse developments.

V. INSTITUTIONAL INVESTMENT PROCEDURES

The Investment Officer(s) of each component shall establish written procedures supporting this
Policy and promoting internal control. The procedures shall be directed towards preventing loss
of funds due to fraud, employee error, misrepresentation, or imprudent actions.

The Investment Officers of the components shall establish and maintain (a) written
administrative procedures and guidelines in support of this Policy for their respective
component, (b) distribution formulae/procedures for the funds, and (c) internal controls in
support of this Policy.

All components shall ensure the following specific controls, as further defined by this Policy, are
incorporated into their operating procedures or the operating procedures of the Investment
Managers.

All securities will be settled delivery versus payment (DVP) into the component’s
depository or custodian bank,
No securities will be safe-kept with a broker/dealer,
Operating funds cash flow will be reviewed at a high level at least annually to determine
investment strategy impact and projections,
Every transaction will be documented for accounting information and security description,
All transaction documentation will be completed within five business days of receipt,
An investment ledger will be maintained for reconciliation with the general ledger, bank
reports, and trade confirmations on a monthly basis, at a minimum,
A monthly reconciliation of transactions and income will be made,
A review of the portfolio will be made by all Investment Officers at least quarterly,
Designated levels of signatory approval will be set,

8

152



VI.

Investment reporting will be completed quarterly, and
All transactions will have dual control and/or oversight and separation of responsibilities.

System Administration and each component shall- may pursue an active portfolio management
strategy for Endowment Funds . All
Endowment Fund investment securities must be held under a custodial agreement and all
Investment Managers must provide monthly statements to the Investment Officer. The
Investment Officer and/or Investment Consultant will regularly monitor the contents of the
portfolio, the available markets, and the relative value of competing instruments to adjust the
portfolio in response to market conditions. Quarterly reviews of performance shall be made by
the Investment Officers.

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND OBJECTIVES
A. OPERATING FUNDS

Operating funds may be commingled at each component for investment purposes but will
address the unique characteristics and needs of each fund group and classification of funds
represented in the portfolio. Operating funds are constricted by expenditure plans and can
serve a fiscal year or multiple year purposes.

The investment strategy for operating funds has as its primary objective assurance that
anticipated liabilities are matched and adequate investment liquidity provided. The
secondary objective is to create a portfolio structure which will experience minimal volatility
while generating income.

The intention is to match investments with projected cash flow and liquidity needs. TSUS may
pursue an active versus a passive portfolio management strategy. That is, securities may be
sold before they mature if market conditions present an opportunity for a net positive horizon
fiscal benefit from the trade, or to manage a market downturn.

The Investment Officer and/or Investment Consultant will continuously monitor the contents of
the portfolio, the available markets, and the relative value of all authorized, competing
instruments to adjust the portfolio in response to market conditions.

B. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

The Endowment performance objective is to grow the market value of assets net of inflation,
spending, and expenses, over a full market cycle (generally defined as a three to five year
period) without undue exposure to risk. The Endowment is particularly risk-adverse to the
probability of not meeting the total return goal. Liquidity must be considered and sufficient to
meet the spending needs and expenses.

The total return goal can be achieved while assuming acceptable risk levels commensurate with
“market volatility.” To achieve the total return goal, the endowment’s assets will be invested to
generate appreciation and/or dividend and interest income.

The Endowment is expected to endure into perpetuity. Inflation is a key component in the

performance objective. The long-term risk of not investing in growth securities outweighs the

short-term volatility risk. As a result, the majority of assets should be invested in equity or equity-

like securities. Fixed income securities lower the short-term volatility of the portfolio and provide
9

153



VIL.

VIILI.

IX.

income stability, especially during periods of weak or negative equity markets. Other asset
classes are included to provide diversification and incremental total return.

The cash payout requirement for Endowment Funds is significant and continuous. The portfolio
shall be diversified to diminish risks associated with particular securities, market sectors, or
industries with an excessive impact on the funds.

INVESTMENT GUIDELINES

A. OPERATING SHORT-INTERMEDIATE TERM FUNDS

Refer to APPENDIX 1 for Investment Guidelines for Operating Short-Term portfolios. This
includes Diversification parameters, approved allocation ranges, and Prohibited Investments.

B. OPERATING LONG-TERM FUNDS

Refer to APPENDIX 2 for Investment Guidelines for Operating Long-Term portfolios. This
includes Diversification parameters, approved allocation ranges, and Prohibited Investments.

C. ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Refer to APPENDIX 3 for Investment Guidelines for Endowment portfolios. This includes
Diversification parameters, approved allocation ranges, and Prohibited Investments.
REBALANCING

Since asset allocation is a critical component of Investment Portfolio returns, it is desirable to
review the investment portfolio as follows:

Operating Funds: At least quarterly, more frequently as necessary
Endowment: At least annually, more frequently if necessary.

In the event any individual asset class falls outside the allocation range specified in the
appropriate Appendix, rebalancing should be performed in a prudent manner.

The appropriateness of Asset Allocation ranges will be reviewed annually.

SAFEKEEPING

All securities, including collateral bought under a repurchase agreement, but excluding
investment pool funds, certificates of deposit, and mutual funds, shall be settled on a delivery
versus payment (DVP) basis. All securities shall be held by System Administration’s or the
component’s depository bank, as applicable, or an independent third party custodian approved
by the System Office. All securities will be held in the name of System Administration or the
component, as applicable. No broker/dealer shall be used for safekeeping purposes.

The third party custodian of TSUS-owned assets shall be required to issue an original
safekeeping trust statement to the System Administration or the component, as applicable, on

10

154



a timely basis describing the specific instrument, coupon, maturity, par, CUSIP, and other
pertinent information. The safekeeping receipt shall clearly identify ownership by System
Administration or the component, as applicable.

X. SECURITIES LENDING

Participation in securities lending programs are prohibited under this Policy.

Xl.  FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

A.

If a business organization (including investment pools and investment management firms
under contract) is not utilized, then the transaction requires the use of one or more
broker/dealers.

All Investment Officers who invest directly will maintain a list of the broker/dealers that
they use, and keep on file all certifications collected under sections XI. C and XI. D
below.

Investment Officers are responsible for confirming that all the broker/dealers they utilize
conform with compliance requirements and procedures established by the CFO for
System Administration to include the following:

- Brokers/dealers must complete a questionnaire (see Exhibit 2) supplying basic firm
and broker contact and delivery information,

- Brokers/dealers may be affiliated with a Texas bank, designated by the New York
Federal Reserve Bank as "primary dealers" or qualify as regional dealers under the
Securities and Exchange Commission's "Uniform Net Capital Rule",

- Brokers/dealers must be FINRA (Financial Institutions Regulatory Authority),

- Brokers/dealers must be registered with the Texas Securities Commission, and;

- Brokers/dealers must provide the written certification detailed below.

- Broker/dealer agreements cannot exceed two years in duration, expiring end of day

November 30, consistent with Board of Regent consideration of the Investment Palicy.

Certification: Upon request, an Investment Officer shall present to any firm or person

seeking to engage in an Operating Fund investment transaction with TSUS a written

copy of this Policy This includes business organizations, brokers/dealers, and banks.
d xchange Traded Fund

All Investment Officers must collect from the Qualified Representative of the business
organization or the broker offering to engage in an investment transaction a signed
certification (see Exhibit 1) to the effect that the business organization, registered
principal, or broker has:

1. Received and reviewed this Policy and
2. Acknowledged that the business organization has implemented reasonable
procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions
conducted between TSUS and the organization that are not authorized by this
Policy except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis of
11

155



the makeup of the entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
portfolio standards.

3. Agreed to provide to the component, the System Office, and the Investment

Consultant retained by the System Office (if any) all monthly data and schedules
necessary to accurately prepare the required reporting for the System Office
with 6 business days of month end.

Investment Officers may not acquire or otherwise obtain any investment from a person,
bank or firm that has not provided this certification.

Nothing in this section relieves the investing entity of the responsibility for monitoring the
investments made by the investing entity to determine that they are in compliance with this

Policy.

XII. INVESTMENT REPORTING AND MONITORING

A. OPERATING FUNDS

Investment Officers shall cause to be prepared and review a written report of investment
transactions for all investments not less than quarterly. The report is to be submitted to
the CFO for System Administration or designee and any respective component President
by the end of the next month following the end of each quarter.

Component investment reports and a consolidated report (compiled by the CFO for
System Administration or designee) shall be submitted to the Board through the Finance
and Audit Committee in the format prescribed by Sec. 2256.023 of the Public Funds
Investment Act, the General Appropriations Act, and requirements promulgated by other
oversight agencies.

The reports must:

1.

Describe in detail the investment position of the component on the date of the
report;

2. Be prepared jointly by all Investment Officer(s) of the component;
3.
4. Contain a summary statement of each pooled fund group or managed account

Be signed by each Investment Officer(s) of the component;

using trade date accounting with accruals for each outside managed account,
fund, or portfolio that contains:
(a) Beginning Market Value (defined as trade date with accruals) for the
reporting period;
(b) Ending Market Value (defined as trade date with accruals) for the
reporting period;
(¢ ) Net Total Return for the reporting period, calculated net of all
investment management fees where applied;
(d) Fully accrued Interest Income for the reporting period;

For each investment not held in a managed account, in additionto 4 a, b, cand d
above, state the Book Value and Market Value of each such investment
separately by the Operating account which holds it for the reporting period
categorized by the type of asset and fund type invested;
State the maturity date of each separately invested asset that has a maturity date
(liguid positions will carry next day end dates);

12

156



7. State the compliance of the investment portfolio of the component as it relates to
the investment strategy expressed in this Policy; and relevant provisions of the
Act.

8. State the performance investment return in comparison to the established
benchmarks as established by this Policy. Investment returns are to be calculated
net of fees, using the performance reporting methodology found in the Global
Investment Performance Standards Handbook published under the guidance of the
CFA Institute
http://www.cfainstitute.org/ethics/codes/gipsstandards/Pages/index.aspx

The Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS Standards) is a set of
standardized, industry-wide ethical principles that provides guidance on how to calculate
and report investment results.

Market prices are to be obtained from an independent, published source such as the Wall
Street Journal, a custodian bank, a recognized financial website (such as Bloomberg),
and/or through a contractual arrangement with a pricing service. Asset prices are not to
be obtained from the broker/dealer having sold TSUS the asset being priced.

ENDOWMENT

Investment Officers shall cause to be prepared and review a written report of investment
transactions for all endowment funds not less than quarterly. The report is to be submitted to
the CFO for System Administration or designee and any respective component President by
the end of the next month following the end of each quarter.

This report will be consolidated into a system-wide summary report to be submitted to the
Board through the Finance and Audit Committee in the format prescribed by CFO for System
Administration.

The reports must:

1. Be signed by the Investment Officer,

2. State the compliance of the portfolio to the investment strategy expressed in this
Policy,

3. Provide Ending Market Values of the portfolio, including, at a minimum, Ending Market
Value of each asset class all on a trade date full accrual accounting basis,

4. Actual Total Portfolio return calculated net of investment management fees where
applicable of the reporting quarter and the fiscal year to date which includes actual
Net Market return for each asset class. Investment returns are to be calculated net of
fees, using the performance reporting methodology found in the Global Investment
Performance Standards Handbook published under the guidance of the CFA Institute:
http://www.cfainstitute.org/ethics/codes/gipsstandards/Pages/index.aspx.

The Global Investment Performance Standards (GIPS Standards) is a set of
standardized, industry-wide ethical principles that provides guidance on how to
calculate and report investment results.

5. State a rate of return comparison to the established benchmarks of each asset class
(indicate each benchmark that is used), and a weighted benchmark based on the
asset allocation for the entire portfolio. The total portfolio benchmark should include
the weights used to reflect that benchmark.

Market prices are to be obtained from an independent, published source such as the
13

157


http://www.cfainstitute.org/ethics/codes/gipsstandards/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.gipsstandards.org/
http://www.cfainstitute.org/ethics/codes/gipsstandards/Pages/index.aspx
http://www.gipsstandards.org/

Wall Street Journal, a custodian bank, a recognized financial website (such as
Bloomberg), and/or through a contractual arrangement with a pricing service. Asset
prices are not to be obtained from the broker/dealer having sold TSUS the Asset being
priced.

Xlll. BENCHMARKS

The performance of each TSUS component will be measured against a customized
blended index. The index will be developed and reviewed each November by a
committee of three TSUS Investment Officers or their appointed representatives in
consultation with the Investment Consultant. All performance returns shall be stated net
of investment management fees. Other applicable indexes matching the specific
allocation of the funds (for example international mutual funds or equities) shall be
detailed in the component’s procedures and included on all monthly and quarterly
reporting as a benchmark for these investments.

XIV.AUDITS
A. Operating Funds

i. TSUS shall have a compliance audit of management controls on investments per the
Public Funds Investment Act and adherence to this Policy at least once every two
years. The audit shall be performed by the Office of Audits & Analysis or by a private
auditor and the results of the audit shall be reported to the Board and the State Auditor
not later than January 1 of each even-numbered year.

ii. If acomponentinvests in other than money market mutual funds, investment pools
or accounts offered by its depository bank in the form of certificates of deposit or
money market accounts, the reports prepared by the investment(s) officers shall be

reviewed at least annually by an independent auditor, and the results reported to
the Board.

XV. INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION AND CERTIFICATION

This Policy shall be reviewed and adopted annually by the Board. The Policy adopted by the
Board shall record any changes made to either the investment policy or investment strategies.

14

158



APPENDIX 1
INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR OPERATING SHORT-INTERMEDIATE TERM FUNDS

. LIQUIDITY

The intention of the Operating Short-Intermediate Term Funds portfolio is to provide
necessary Liquidity to operations. A minimum of 5% of the Operating Short-Intermediate
Term Funds portfolio must have Daily Liquidity; additionally a minimum of 20% of the
Operating Short-Intermediate Term Funds portfolio must be accessible within Trade Date
plus 3 days. Components must meet these minimum requirements and are free to exceed
them as they see prudent.

. CREDIT QUALITY
Unless specified elsewhere, Credit Ratings recognized by this policy may only be issued by
the agencies of Standard and Poor’s, Fitch, and/or Moody’s. For definition purposes, Non

Rated securities will be considered as Below Investment Grade.

The Average Credit Quality of the entire Short-Intermediate Term Funds Portfolio is to be
greater than or equal to A-, as defined by S&P (A- by Fitch, A3 by Moody’s).

The Minimum Credit Quality of any investment must be Investment Grade at the Time of
Purchase._

. WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY

The Weighted Average Maturity of the entire Short-Intermediate Term Funds Portfolio is to
be less than or equal to 36 Months as calculated by the Custodian and/or the Investment
Consultant. There is no maximum Maturity of any single security.

. DIVERSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

i. For Mutual Funds and Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs): Maximum of 10%
ownership of the units outstanding of a single Fund or ETF.

ii. No more than 40% of the Portfolio may be invested in a single Mutual Fund or
Manager EXCEPT for cash management and Fixed Income funds sponsored by
organizations exempt from Federal Income taxation under Section 501( f) Internal
Revenue Code of 1986 (25 U.S.C. Section 501( f )-- currently Commonfund and
TIAA-CREF. These funds must meet the requirements outlined in this Appendix
Sections B and C.

. SOFT DOLLAR REPORTING

If Soft Dollars are used in the account, a Quarterly report of Soft Dollar usage is required to be
delivered to the Component Investment Officer.

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS AND ACTIVITIES

Investments and activities that are not expressly prohibited in this Appendix are considered
allowable by this Policy.

15

159



The following are prohibited transactions and securities for TSUS components. Any
change in this list shall require amendment of this Policy and adoption by the Board.

i. TSUS may not purchase or sell financial futures, options, interest rate swaps, or
forward rate agreements.

il. TSUS may not engage in adjusted trading or short sales.

iii. TSUS may not purchase residual interests in CMOs/REMICs or mortgages
servicing rights. Specific securities that may not be purchased are:

1. Inverse CMO floaters
2. Principal only CMOs
3. Interest only CMOs

iv. TSUS may not purchase 144-A or other private placement securities not registered
with the SEC.

V. Non-US Dollar denominated securities are prohibited in Operating Short-
Intermediate Fund portfolios. Foreign securities issued and priced in US. Dollars
are allowed.

Vi. The use of Margin or leverage in Operating Short-Intermediate Term Funds

Portfolios is prohibited.

Vii. The purchase of Equities in Operating Short-Intermediate Term Funds Portfolios is
prohibited.

16

160



APPENDIX 2
INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR OPERATING LONG-TERM FUNDS

A TSUS component may invest up to 35% of the Market Value of its Total Operating Funds
portfolio exclusive of Bond Proceeds in investments in this Appendix. Long-Term Funds are
defined as 35% of All Operating Funds exclusive of Bond Proceeds Funds; the amount allocated
to Long-Term Funds is re-calculated annually based on the Ending Market Values as of August
31 of each year (fiscal year end). Components are not required to participate in these Long-
Term Funds Investment options and may elect to have no Operating Long-Term Funds.

Operating Long-Term funds are intended to be invested in a similar manner to Endowment funds,
with additional restrictions in place. Consequently, this Appendix will refer to the Investment
Guidelines for Endowment Funds, Appendix 3.

A. DIVERSIFICATION

This Policy recognizes two main Categories which Investments may be allocated: the
Appreciation/Dividend Category and the Income Category.

The Appreciation/Dividend Category is defined as those Investments that are made primarily
for Growth and Appreciation of the asset, with secondary allowances for Dividends earned on
Equity and Equity-like securities.

The Income Category is defined as those Investments that are primarily for Cash Flow and
Income generation from Bond and Bond-like securities.

NOTE: Components must retain an Investment Consultant as defined in this policy to
invest in the Appreciation/Dividend category. Agency Funds and Bond Funds may not
be invested in Appreciation/Dividend category investments.

Below is the Category Allocation Range.

Category Minimum % Maximum©%

Appreciation/Dividend

Domestic 0 - 50
International 0 - 20
Total Appreciation/Dividend 0 - 50
Income
Domestic 50 - 100
International 0 - 20
Total Income 50 - 100
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 100%
B. INVESTMENTS ACTIVITIES

Investments and activities that are not expressly prohibited in this Appendix are considered
allowable by this Policy.

17

161



All specified in
Appendix 3 y in this Appendix, with the following additional
limitations and prohibitions:

Prohibitions:
1. Non-US Dollar denominated bonds are prohibited
2. The direct or indirect use of derivatives, short sales, futures, options, private

placements, limited partnerships, and otherwise illiquid investments is prohibited.

Additional Limitations:
1. No more than 20% of the Income Portfolio may be rated below Investment
Grade.

2. No more than 10% of the Total Portfolio may be invested in Emerging/Frontier
Markets, a sub-set of International.

18

162



APPENDIX 3
INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR ENDOWMENT FUNDS

Policy asset allocation is the most single important decision for the Endowment Funds portfolio.
A significant proportion of a portfolio investment behavior can be attributed to the asset
classes/styles and the weighting of each asset class/style.

TSUS recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer defaults, market price changes, or
various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity. This risk is controlled through
portfolio diversification. Investment Officer(s) shall diversify the portfolio(s) by market sector and
maturity to minimize market risks.

A. DIVERSIFICATION

Diversification shall be considered within major market sectors so that various
industries, maturities, markets, domestic and international factors are considered within the
portfolio.

Asset Allocation is to be determined by each component as a result of their Required Rate of
Return for the portfolio as defined by:

Required Rate of Return = Spending Rate + Inflation + Endowment Expense rate.

This Policy recognizes two main Categories which Investments may be allocated: the
Appreciation/Dividend Category and the Income Category.

The Appreciation/Dividend Category is defined as those Investments that are made primarily
for Growth and Appreciation of the asset, with secondary allowances for Dividends earned on
Equity and Equity-like securities.

The Income Category is defined as those Investments that are primarily for Cash Flow and
Income generation from Bond and Bond-like securities.

Below is the Category Allocation Range.

Category Minimum Maximum

Appreciation/Dividend

Domestic 40 - 75
International 0 - 30
Total Appreciation/Dividend 45 - 85
Income

Domestic 10 - 55
International 0 - 30

Total Income 15 - 55

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 100%
19

163



B. The following requirements are applied at the Manager/Mutual Fund/Asset Class level:

A Minimum of 20 securities are to be held in a Portfolio or Fund.

If Soft Dollars are used in the account, a Quarterly report of Soft Dollar usage is
required to be delivered to the Component Investment Officer.

EQUITY MANAGERS

1. A Maximum of 40% in any one sector UNLESS waived by the Ceomponent
Investment Committee-Officer in writing.

2. A Maximum of 10% ownership of shares outstanding of a single Stock.
FIXED INCOME MANAGERS

1. For International/Global Fixed Income managers, a Maximum of 40% in any
One Non-US Country.

C. The following requirements are applied at the Total Portfolio level:

A Maximum of 20% of the Total Portfolio may be held in Emerging/Frontier Market
securities (Regardless of asset type)

Excluding Pooled funds, Mutual Funds, or Managed Accounts which are Multi-
Strategy and Multi-Manager products, no more than 40% of the Portfolio may be
invested in a single Mutual Fund or Manager

FIXED INCOME

1. A Maximum of 25% of the Fixed Income Portfolio may be invested below
Investment Grade. For definition purposes, Non Rated securities will be
considered as Below Investment Grade.

PROHIBITED INVESTMENTS AND ACTIVITIES

Investments and activities that are not expressly prohibited in this Appendix are considered
allowable by this Policy.

The following are prohibited transactions and securities. Any change in this list shall require
amendment of this Policy and adoption by the Board.

I. TSUS may not directly purchase or sell financial futures, options, interest rate
swaps, or forward rate agreements.

ii. TSUS may not engage in adjusted trading or short sales.

20

164



TSUS may not purchase residual interests in CMOS/REMICs or mortgages servicing
rights. Specific securities that may not be purchased are:

1. Inverse CMO floaters
2. Principal only CMOs
3. Interest only CMOs

TSUS may not purchase 144-A or other private placement securities not registered
with the SEC _unless such securities have CUSIPs, are daily priced, and are publicly

traded over the counter or on a US exchange.

EXCEPTIONS:

Under the advisement of an Investment Consultant as defined by this policy, a
component may invest with managers who utilize derivatives, short sales, futures,
options, private placements, limited partnerships ,and otherwise prohibited
investments and instruments as long as the Endowment is a qualified investor for
the product, the investment (as structured) does not expose the Endowment to risk
of loss outside the actual invested amount, and the investments are supervised by
an investment manager (no direct purchases).

Where possible, fund of funds and pools are vehicles of choice for alternative
investments as they can provide for more diversification and additional layers of
oversight. These investments, in total cannot comprise more than 20 % of the
Endowment Portfolio.

Private Placements are allowed as long as the Endowment meets regulatory
gualifications and no single issuer can represent more than 10% of the portfolio,
with no single issue representing more than 5% of the portfolio.

21

165



EXHIBIT 1
Texas State University System
Investment Manager and Broker/Dealer Certification

This certification is executed on behalf of (the Investor)
and (the Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer) as
required by the Texas State University System Investment Policy (Investment Policy) in connection
with investment transactions conducted between the Investor and the Investment Manager or
Broker/Dealer.

The undersigned Qualified Representative of the Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer hereby
certifies that:

1. The Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer Qualified Representative is duly authorized to execute
this Certification on behalf of the Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer, and

2. The Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer Qualified Representative has received and reviewed the
Investment Policy furnished by the Investor, and

3. The Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer will act in accordance with the Investment Policy , and
has implemented reasonable procedures and controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions
conducted between the Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer and the Investor that are not authorized
by the entity's investment policy, except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an
analysis of the makeup of the entity's entire portfolio or requires an interpretation of subjective
investment standards.

4. For Investment Managers only—a copy of the most recent ADV and ADV brochure has been
provided to the Investor.

Investment Manager or Broker/Dealer Qualified Representative

Signature

Name (Printed)

Title

Date

22

166



EXHIBIT 2

Texas State University System
Broker/Dealer Questionnaire

Name of Texas State University System Component

Firm:

[Date Established: |

Main Office:

IRepresentative: I I

|Primary Dealer: | I

Qualified Historically Underutilized
Business?

[Seat on the NYSE? | |

|Pub|icly Traded? Which Exchange? | I

[Member NASD? | |
[SIPC Insured? | |
|Equity Position: | I

|Annua| Revenues: | I

Agency Selling Group
Memberships:

Pertinent Rankings:

Representative Public Sector Clients:

|Date of Investment Policy: | l

|Date Certification Received by Component: I I

23

167



CONSENT: Texas State University System
Finance and Audit

CONSENT ITEMS

Consent Items
9. TXST: CONSENT: Create the Leadership Institute Quasi-Endowment

10. TSUS: CONSENT: Ratification: Tuition Rates for Non-credit Courses at Lamar State
College Port Arthur, Lamar State College — Orange, Lamar Institute of Technology

11. TSUS: CONSENT: Approval of 2018-2019 Legislative Appropriation
Requests

12. TSUS: CONSENT: Travel Reports

13. TSUS: CONSENT: Foundation Report

14. TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY16

15. TSUS: CONSENT: Operating Budget Adjustments FY17

16. TSUS: CONSENT: Statement of Budgeted Fund Balances FY16

17. TSUS: CONSENT: Status of Implementation of Audit Recommendations
18. TSUS: CONSENT: Quarterly Investment Report November 2016

168



TXST: Create the Leadership Institute Quasi-Endowment

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent
it was ordered that:

Texas State University be authorized to create a quasi-endowment account, the
Leadership Institute Quasi-Endowment, to support student leadership
development at the University with an initial amount of $52,732 from various
donors and to allow future gifts to be added to this quasi-endowment for the
same purpose.

Explanation

The purpose of the quasi-endowment is to support student leadership development
opportunities and to further the mission of the Leadership Institute at Texas State. The
Leadership Institute is committed to serve as a clearinghouse for information regarding student
leadership opportunities at Texas State. The institute provides a variety of leadership
development opportunities within a tiered structure for new and returning students and provides
a capstone program for highly experienced juniors and seniors. The institute also collaborates
with colleges, departments, and the Division of Student Affairs to deliver experiential learning
opportunities.

The Leadership Institute currently has a $23,000 annual budget funded by the Student Service
Fee, though they have received additional one-time funding of $85,000 in recent years in order
to participate in and offer the LeaderShape program. This quasi-endowment will be used to
augment the existing funding. The funds for the creation of this quasi-endowment have come
from a variety of gifts from both corporate entities and individuals over the years that were given
for the purpose of improving student leadership opportunities. Additional gifts have already
been identified that will continue to add to this quasi-endowment.

169



TSUS: Ratification: Tuition Rates for Non-credit Courses at Lamar State College — Port
Arthur, Lamar State College — Orange, Lamar Institute of Technology

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent ,
it was ordered that:

The tuition rates for non-credit workforce education courses for the 2015-2016 academic
year in the accompanying schedule titled “Non-Credit Workforce Education Courses 2015-2016"
be ratified.

Explanation

Pursuant to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board’s Guidelines for Instructional
Programs in Workforce Education (GIPWE), the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board
permits public two-year colleges to receive contact hour formula funding for students enrolled in
approved non-credit workforce education courses that award Continuing Education Units (CEUS).
Tuition for workforce continuing education courses offered for CEUs must be established by the
institution's governing board.

The institution's board may delegate interim authority for establishment of tuition. However, the
institution's board must at least annually ratify or approve any changes in tuition.

Delegation authority was authorized by the Board of Regents at the May 2016 Board of Regents
Meeting.

170



Non-Credit Workforce Education Courses 2015-2016

Institution |Course Title Tuition per Course
LIT 10 Hour OSHA S 110
LIT 30 Hour OSHA S 320
LIT 3D AutoCAD S 450
LT Aerial Lift Training S 200
LIT American Sign Language | S 185
LIT American Sign Language Il S 185
LIT AutoCAD Basic S 440
LT AutoCAD Intermediate S 400
LT Child Development Associate S 700
LIT Class ACDL S 2,750
LIT Class B CDL S 1,200
LIT Clinical Medical Assistant S 1,700
LIT First Aide Training S 40
LIT Forklift Re-Certification S 100
LIT Forklift Training - Warehouse S 200
LIT Forklift Training -Construction S 200
LIT Healthcare Provider CPR Training S 40
LIT Heartsaver CPR AED Training S 40
LT Intro to Digital Photography S 85
LIT Introduction to Welding Fundamentals S 500
LIT Learn Spanish the Fast & Fun Way S 185
LIT Medication Aide Program S 700
LIT Medication Aide Update S 60
LIT Microsoft Excel 2013 - Basic/Intermediate/Advanced S 175
LIT Microsoft Word 2013 - Basic/Intermediate/Advanced S 175
LIT Pharmacy Technician S 800
LIT Phlebotomy Technician S 700
LIT Shielded Metal ARC Welding S 500
LIT Truck Driving Advanced Refresher Course S 1,000
LIT Truck Driving Refresher Course S 500
LIT Basic County Jailer S -
LIT Basic Certification for Correctional Officers (1st of 2 courses) S -
LIT Basic Certification for Correctional Officers (2nd of 2 courses, if needed) S -
LIT TDCJ In-Service S -
LIT Behavior Analysis Interview Techniques S -
LIT Police Speed Measuring Device Certification S -
LIT Basic Peace Officer | S -
LT Basic Firearms S -
LT Basic Peace Officer IlI S -
LIT Intoxilyzer Operator Certification Course S -
LT Basic Peace Officer IlI S -
LT Cultural Diversity S -
LIT Basic Telecommunicator S -
LT Basic Peace Officer IV S -
LT Basic Peace Officer V S -
LIT Special Investigative Topics S -
LT Sexual Assault Investigation S -
LIT Intermediate Crime Scene Investigation S -
LIT Intermediate Arrest, Search, and Seizure S -
LIT Texas Peace Officer Review S -
LIT First Line Supervision S -
LIT Intermediate Use of Force S -

171




Non-Credit Workforce Education Courses 2015-2016

Institution |Course Title Tuition per Course
LIT Intermediate Spanish for Law Enforcement -
LIT Special Topics in Law Enforcement -

$
$
LIT Professional Development Criminal Justice/Police Science $ -
LT Intermediate Firearms S -
LIT Intermediate Child Abuse Prevention and Investigation S -
LT Traffic Law Enforcement $ -
LT Intermediate Criminal Investigation S -
LT Patrol Tactical Procedures S -
LIT Firearms Instructor Course S -
LT Basic Instructor S -
LT Field Training Officer S -
LIT Professional Development: Criminal Justice/Safety Studies S -
LIT Diesel Engine | S -
LT Diesel Engine Il S -
LT CPR S N
LIT First Aid Training S -
LT Basic Electricity for HVAC S -
LT AC Controls S -
LIT Refrigeration Principles S -
LT Gas & Electric Heat S -
LIT Commercial Air Conditioning S -
LIT Basic Computer Course S -
LT OSHA 30 Hour S -
LSCO CPR course 2-hour S 35
LSCO Excel S 95
LSCO First Aid/AED/CPR 8 hour course S 50
LSCO First Line Leadership 10 modules course S 1,895
LSCO Intravenous Therapy 30 hour course S 163
LSCO Intravenous Therapy 8 hour course S 50
LSCO NCCCO Mobile Crane S 2,712
LSCO Pharmacy Technology S 699
LSCO Phlebotomy S 500
LSCO Emergency Medical Responder (EMR) S 1,400
LSCO Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) S 1,100
LSCPA QuickBooks Basics S 75
LSCPA Certified Nurse’s Aide S 475
LSCPA Certified Medication Aide S 435
LSCPA Texas State Surgery Conference S 90
LSCPA QuickBooks Basics S 75
LSCPA CDLClass A& B S 2,800
LSCPA QuickBooks Basics S 75
LSCPA Live Sound Workshop 1 S 150
LSCPA Intermediate Welding Certificate S 5,000
LSCPA Live Sound Workshop Il S 150
LSCPA Microsoft Excel 2014 Core Essentials S 150
LSCPA Microsoft Excel 2014 Core Essentials S 150
LSCPA Live Sound Workshop Il S 150
LSCPA CDLClass A& B S 2,800
LSCPA QuickBooks Basics S 75
LSCPA Professional Writing S 150
LSCPA Mechanical Lift Training S 600

172




Non-Credit Workforce Education Courses 2015-2016

Institution |Course Title Tuition per Course
LSCPA Medication Aide S 435
LSCPA PAISD Leadership Training S 25,000
LSCPA Intermediate Welding Certificate S 5,000
LSCPA Rigger Signal Person S 450
LSCPA CDLA& B S 2,800
LSCPA Omega Seminars Dental Hygiene S 130
LSCPA Dental Hygiene - North Houston S 130
LSCPA Dental Hygiene - Midland S 130
LSCPA Dental Hygiene - Austin S 130
LSCPA Dental Hygiene - College Station S 130
LSCPA Dental Hygiene - Bay Area S 130
LSCPA Petroleum Safety & Environmental Hazards S 75
LSCPA WLDG 1000 S 300
LSCPA WLDG 2013 S 300
LSCPA WLDG 2051 S 300
LSCPA WLDG 2043 S 300
LSCPA WLDG 1091-Special Topics in Welding S -

LSCPA WLDG 2051-Advanced Gas Tungsten Arc Welding S -

173




TSUS: Approval of 2018-2019 Legislative Appropriation Requests

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent , it
is ordered that:

The Legislative Appropriation Requests for the 2018-2019 biennium be approved.

Explanation

Per TSUS Rules and Regulations, Chapter lll, Section 6.72, the Biennial Legislative
Appropriations Request (LAR) submitted to the Legislative Budget Board and the Office of the
Governor, Budget Division must be approved by the Board prior to the convening of the
Legislative Session.

All state agencies, including Institutions of Higher Education are required to submit a LAR for
the 2018-2019 biennium. The LAR is the basis for the development of the General
Appropriations Act, which directs the amount and purpose of state funds for the next two years.

Institutions of Higher Education are limited to requesting only non-formula based items. The
accompany schedule provides the Exceptional Items requested by each component institution.

LARs were due to the Legislative Budget Board and the Office of the Governor by August 15,
2016.

174



Summary of TSUS & Component Exceptional Iltem Requests FY 18-19

| Institution Biennial Request Exceptional Item Description
|System Office S 114,000 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Lamar University S 421,782 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Lamar University S 5,000,000 Center for Leadership & Advancement of Digital Learning
Lamar University S 5,000,000 SETC Center for Cyberphysical Security and Resilient Infrastructure Research
Sam Houston State University S 1,028,439 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Sam Houston State University S 1,166,000 Forensic Science Commission

Sam Houston State University S 6,000,000 SSI - Advancing 60x30TX

Sul Ross State University S 331,542 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Sul Ross State University S 8,010,000 H.Joaquin Jackson First Responder Institute

Sul Ross State University S 170,000 CBBS - Proposed Border Archival and Archeological Project
Texas State University S 359,076 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Texas State University S 4,000,000 ALERRT

Texas State University S 5,790,000 Materials Application Research Center

Texas State University S 230,000 Identify South Texas Human Remains

Lamar Institute of Technology S 167,808 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Lamar Institute of Technology S 1,000,000 Institutional Enhancement

Lamar State College - Orange S 212,860 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Lamar State College - Orange S 850,000 Scholarship Funding for High School Students Enrolled in College Classes
Lamar State College - Port Arthur  $ 156,729 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Lamar State College - Port Arthur S 535,000 Early College High School

Sul Ross Rio Grande College S 192,690 Restoration of 4% Reduction

Sul Ross Rio Grande College S 885,000 Expansion of BSN completion program and MSN

175



Out-of-State/Out-of-Country Annual Travel Reports

Recommendation

That the Out-of-State/Out-of-Country Annual Travel Reports for The Texas State University
System components be approved.

Background

The following documentation contains the Out-of-State/Out-of-Country Annual Travel Report for
the System components.

176



Texas State University System

System Office
Travel Report
Fiscal Years 2012-2016

CATEGORY

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General

22,925.12

24,380.30

$

28,742.25

$

22,750.44

$

31,620.61

Designated

Auxiliary

Restricted

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

22,925.12

$

24,380.30

$

28,742.25

$

22,750.44

$

31,620.61

OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General

3,087.65

Designated

Auxiliary

Restricted

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

Total

3,087.65

177




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

LAMAR UNIVERSITY

Travel Report

Fiscal Years 2012-2016

FUNDS FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2016
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General 5,388.50 1,633.05 3,073.31 1,694.99 12,553.32
Designated 264,286.22 329,309.83 375,046.88 376,306.31 522,782.68
Auxiliary 614,936.02 600,684.74 903,425.40 666,760.34 625,616.96
Restricted 80,618.32 90,963.07 115,956.76 109,243.01 128,456.54
Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL 965,229.06 1,022,590.69 1,397,502.35 1,154,004.65 1,289,409.50
OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General - - - - -
Designated 34,370.66 57,808.17 40,361.00 413,594.14 573,109.72
Auxiliary 10,807.16 9,071.48 16,305.50 19,098.02 18,733.09
Restricted 45,444 .00 58,787.84 80,309.14 67,681.34 58,835.33
Plant
Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL 90,621.82 125,667.49 136,975.64 500,373.50 650,678.14

178




Sam Houston State University
Travel Report
Fiscal Year 2012 - Fiscal Year 2016

FUNDS
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General $ 1503280 ($ 19,999.14 |$ 30,050.35|$% 24,46065|$% 22,503.16
Designated 992,031.61 1,054,379.61 1,153,284 .56 1,271,024.79 1,287,546.76
Auxiliary 96,184.49 213,661.99 229,067.25 292,747.89 278,790.33
Restricted 214,097.79 145,381.15 211,066.65 158,516.97 144,779.51
Plant
Agency 2,500.12 2,198.13 2,017.25 5,033.10 3,291.40
Other (Describe)

TOTAL $ 1,319,846.81 | $ 1,435,620.02 | $ 1,625,486.06 |$ 1,751,783.40 [ $ 1,736,911.16
OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General $ 579471 |$ 3,393.58 $ 1,414.07

Designated 221,760.62 286,865.02 444724 .99 390,505.68 414,698.70
Auxiliary 26,350.89 45,698.02 75,527.00 2,172.40 10,400.10
Restricted 21,155.84 48,851.67 26,395.30 24,809.68 22,992.97
Plant
Agency 612.93
Other (Describe)

TOTAL $ 275,062.06 |$ 384,808.29 |$ 546,647.29 |$ 418,901.83 |[$ 448,704.70

Note: For comparison purposes all student and student study abroad travel have been removed from FY12,
FY13, FY14, FY15, FY16 travel totals. The increase in out of state travel occurred through general increase
through almost all areas of the university. The increase in foreign travel was related to increased travel in SHSU

academic areas.

179




Sul Ross State University

Travel Report

Fiscal year 2012 - 2016

FUNDS

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
OUT OF STATE TRAVEL
Education and General $20,199.99 $15,986.75 $30,660.04 $29,929.60 $24,544.70
Designated $23,029.73 $16,078.54 $18,932.18 $26,932.29 $22,464.51
Auxiliary $74,843.18 $47,833.43 $38,800.30 $25,977.03 $55,488.09
Restricted $159,430.39 $129,640.05 $98,111.79 $98,151.00 $90,158.47
Plant
Agency $0.00 $0.00 $1,519.68 $1,544.00 $0.00
Other (Describe) Service Dept $1,385.00
TOTAL $277,503.29 $209,538.77 $188,023.99| $183,918.92|$ 192,655.77
OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL
Education and General $1,253.50 $754.75 $767.00 $ 1,689.27
Designated $5,328.00 -
Auxiliary $677.00 -
Restricted $383.04 $11,193.84 $12,709.35 $7,077.21|$ 2,221.76
Plant
Agency
Other (Describe)
TOTAL $1,636.54 $17,953.59 $13,476.35 $7,077.21|$ 3,911.03

180




Texas State University

Travel Report

Fiscal Years 2012-2016

FUNDS

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
OUT OF STATE TRAVEL
Education and General $ 16,572.10 $ 23,936.42 $ 18,643.07 $ 13,228.68 $ 22,317.38

Designated $1,412,885.51 $ 1,483,512.06 $ 1,599,969.93 $ 1,867,037.07 $2,013,571.16
Auxiliary $ 904,247.04 $1,694,927.11 $ 2,057,333.79 $2,617,618.26 $2,530,118.51
Restricted $ 594,381.91 $ 588,447.79 $ 471,380.06 $ 706,119.56 $  840,285.92

TOTAL OUT OF STATE
TRAVEL

$ 2,928,086.56

$ 3,790,823.38

$ 4,147,326.85

$ 5,204,003.57

$ 5,406,292.97

FOREIGN TRAVEL

Education and General

$ 23,783.79

$ 3,692.83

$ 5,788.77

$ 18,765.75

$ 8,365.89

Designated $ 1,030,940.54 $ 1,026,994.87 $ 1,563,935.50 $ 1,944,974.59 $ 2,433,375.34
Auxiliary $ 121,192.49 $ 24,305.61 $ 54,612.83 $ 146,333.16 $ 145,049.94
Restricted $ 303,003.87 $ 357,332.89 $ 208,172.36 $ 220,554.52 $ 256,745.66

TOTAL FOREIGN TRAVEL

$ 1,478,920.69

$1,412,326.20

$ 1,832,509.46

$ 2,330,628.02

$ 2,843,536.83

181




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

Travel Report

Fiscal Years 2012 through 2016

FUNDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31,

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

34,272.43

29,309.60

23,162.21

34,512.56

32,993.63

Auxiliary

16,631.49

21,103.85

23,229.12

18,912.51

35,790.83

Restricted

1,063.60

495.00

5,625.80

1,680.00

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

51,967.52

50,908.45

$

52,017.13

55,105.07

68,784.46

OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

Auxiliary

Restricted

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

182




Lamar State College - Orange
Travel Report

Fiscal Year 2012 - Fiscal Year 2016

FUNDS

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

$29,913.62

$25,585.48

$29,428.31

$9,771.82

$18,308.10

Auxiliary

$9,794.17

$11,074.47

$4,507.24

$4,481.10

$3,783.63

Restricted

$1,324.38

$7,956.01

$3,293.73

$3,902.43

$1,535.18

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

$41,032.17

$44,615.96

$37,229.28

$18,155.35

$23,626.91

OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

Auxiliary

5,445.32

Restricted

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

5,445.32

183




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
LAMAR STATE COLLEGE-PORT ARTHUR

TRAVEL REPORT

Fiscal Years 2012 - 2016

CATEGORY

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

35,826.39

46,775.58

54,627.44

27,532.20

18,871.18

Auxillary

36,089.05

33,243.98

47,453.83

41,711.33

16,757.48

Restricted

8,949.94

10,395.57

6,110.83

5,419.06

11,487.69

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

$ 80,865.38

$ 90,415.13

$ 108,192.10

$ 74,662.59

$

47,116.35

OUT OF COUNTRY TRAVEL

Education and General

Designated

1,615.82

Auxillary

2,020.98

2,407.02

2,403.63

2,162.09

Restricted

Plant

Agency

Other (Describe)

TOTAL

$ 1,615.82

$ 2,020.98

$ 2,407.02

$ 2,403.63

$

2,162.09

184




TSUS: Annual Foundation Reports

Recommendation
That the Annual Foundation Reports for The Texas State University System components be
approved.
Background

The Texas State University’s Rules and Regulations requires an annual report from “private
support organizations.” The reports from those organizations follow.

185



Lamar University Foundation, Inc.
Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose:

The Lamar University Foundation is a non-profit corporation formed for exclusively charitable,
educational, and scientific purposes. The Foundation is organized and operated to receive, hold,
invest, reinvest and administer assets solely for the benefit of Lamar University. Under the control
and direction of the Board of Trustees, the Foundation oversees the management and
expenditure of funds for the purposes of assisting the University in obtaining and maintaining the
best faculty, staff and students, and for the establishment and maintenance of facilities and
laboratories to be used by the University; and for the advancement of research and other literary
and scientific undertakings. The Foundation accepts donations, gifts and grants of money and
property. The Lamar University Foundation manages the investments and serves as trustee of
the endowment funds and other private assets contributed for the benefit of Lamar University.

Officers:

Sina K. Nejad, President

Anita L. Riddle, Vice President
Terry L. Garth, Treasurer

Sandra F. Clark, Secretary
Joseph F. Domino, Past President

Board of Trustees:

Mike Aldredge Marsha Hoffer William Scott
Elizabeth Alexander Elaine Henry Don Shaver
Jimmy Booker Mike Jenkins Bart Simmons
Mike Burrow Robert Jones J. Mark Smith
Nicholas Carter Clayton Lau Michele Smith
Tamerla Chavis Larry Lawson Henry Strait
Grady Crawford Don Lyle Roy Steinhagen
James Crump Charles “Chuck” Mason Mike Turner
Barry Davis Nell McCallum Morris Joe Vernon
Vernon Durden Richard Price Joe Williams

Grace England
Ann Die Hasselmo

Honorary Trustees:

Michael Grimes
William Mitchell
Charles Turco

Advisory Committee Member:

Dick Scott

Ellen Rienstra
Carl Roth

Financial Information as of August 31, 2016:

Assets

$74,075,861

Income/Contributions $ 6,969,761

Expenditures

$ 2,251,028

186

Paige Windham



Summary of Activities:
The Foundation’s bi-annual Board meetings are scheduled to be held October 27, 2016 and April

25, 2017.

The current slate of officers are in the second year of two year terms, which expire August 31,
2018. The Foundation manages approximately $74 million in assets and provided $2 million
during FY16 in support of Lamar University in the form of scholarships, faculty and department
support, and research activities.

187



ANNUAL
FINANCIAL
REPORT

for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2016

SAM HOUSTON UNIVERSITY
FOUNDATION
Huntsville, Texas

188



UNAUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
Organizational DAL ...........ccueveiieiieii e e et e e esreenne s 3
Unaudited Financial Statements
StateMENt OF NET ASSELS ....cveiieiie et 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Assets................... 5

Schedule of ENdOWMENTS. .. ..o i i eee e ©
Schedule of Investment Holdings............coovviiiiiiiiiii e 1

189



UNAUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
SAM HOUSTON UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION

August 31, 2016

OFFICERS
Richard A. Hartley President
Leo T. Metcalf Vice President
Ferne S. Frosch Treasurer
Erin M. Steele Secretary
TRUSTEES
Charles E. Amato Jack C. Parker
Robert L. Bruner Don A. Sanders
Robert E. Hutson William P. Thomas
Preston Johnson Gary L. Whitlock

TRUSTEE EMERITUS

Letcher N. Sikes

190



Sam Houston University Foundation
Statement of Financial Position
As of August 31, 2016

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash - 1st Rate Account FNB
Money Market - Invesco

Investments - Fixed Income
Frisco SD Bonds
Walker County CO (Jail)
Hutto ISD Bonds
White Settlement ISD Bonds
Sherman ISD Bonds
N.W. ISD Bonds
Wylie ISD Bonds (Hoyt Endowment)
Alamo Heights TX ISD
Allen TX ISD
TD Ameritrade

Investments - Partnerships
Enterprise Prods Partners L Com

Kinder Morgan Energy Partnerut LTD Partner

SHSU Agency Accounts
President's Discretionary Fund
President's Circle
Baseball Video Board
Crazy Ant & Fire Ant Research
Unrestricted Gifts
Athletics Support

Receivables
Short-Term - Video Scoreboard
Long-Term - Video Scoreboard

Mineral Rights
Foster Property - Walker County

Adams/Lundy Property - Houston County
Gibbs Ranch - Walker County

Real Estate
Lot 10, Block 7, Unit 1, Waterwood

Total Assets

Liabilities
Short- Term Payable - Video Scoreboard
Long-Term Payable - Video Scoreboard

Total Liabilities

Net Assets
Restricted (Endowments)
Unrestricted

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Unaudited Report

FY 2016 FY2015
$262,363.70 $988,809.33
$247,557.58 $759,270.08
$114,023.00 $109,271.00
$107,679.00 $103,269.00
$155,401.50 $146,287.50

$62,113.80 $58,438.80
$51,538.50 $48,254.00
$52,084.00 $49,329.00
$51,330.50 $47,542.00
$25,770.25 $24,407.25
$179,386.35 $172,862.25
$2,326,647.80 $3,556,031.94
$63,360.00 $67,464.00
$43,590.75 $64,657.95
$75,331.07 $12,519.59
$2,813.11 $43,313.11
$40,000.00 $20,000.00
$16,769.19 $16,769.19
$200.00 $200.00
$10,666.30 $0.00
$150,000.00 $100,000.00
$697,003.30 $797,003.30
$1.00 $1.00

$1.00 $1.00

$1.00 $1.00

$0.00 $18,100.00
$4,735,632.70 $7,203,802.29
$150,000.00 $100,000.00
$697,003.30 $797,003.30
$847,003.30 $897,003.30
3,350,973.22 $4,369,671.59
$537,656.18 $1,937,127.40
$4,735,632.70 $7,203,802.29

191



Revenue
Interest Income
Dividends
Miscellaneous Income

Oil & Gas Royalties - Warrior (Adams/Lundy)

SHSU Support Revenue
Endowment Gifts

Other Gifts

Unrealized Gain (Loss)
Realized Gain (Loss)

SHSU Agency Interest Income
SHSU Agency Unrestricted Gifts

Total Revenue

Expenditures
Operations

Association Dues

Taxes

FNB Trust Fee

Gift of Waterwood Property
SHSU Scholarship Support
SHSU Program Support

SHSU Athletic Support

SHSU - Crazy Ant and Fire Ant
SHSU Discretionary

Total Expenditures
Net Income (Deficit)

Net Assets September 1, 2015
Restatements
Net Assets September 1, 2015, Restated

Net Assets August 31, 2016

Sam Houston University Foundation
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended August 31, 2016

Unaudited Report

FY 2016 FY2015
$25,307.94 $32,000.96
$94,828.76 $148,588.92
$3,768.00 $8,455.47
$3,216.49 $3,680.75
$0.00 $75,000.00
$196,200.00 $5,299,019.14
$347,866.58 $2,062,004.60
($1,090,512.63) ($886,740.01)
$716.48 $0.00
$811.48 $149.17
__ $371,500.00 ___ $60,500.00

($46,296.90) $6,802,659.00
$0.00 $180,000.00
$0.00 $395.00
$3,947.10 $534.24
$4,489.03 $4,408.38
$18,100.00 $0.00
$364,285.71 $451,713.30
$35,817.50 $0.00
$1,995,233.35 $0.00
$0.00 $16,906.06
$0.00 $25,219.11

$2,421,872.69 $679,176.09

($2,468,169.59) $6,123,482.91

$7,203,802.29 $1,080,319.38

$0.00 $0.00

$7,203,802.29 $1,080,319.38

$4,735,632.70 $7,203,802.29

192




Sam Houston University Foundation
Schedule of Endowments
As of August 31, 2016

September 1, 2015 Reinvested  Unrealized August 31, 2016

Endowment Name Beginning Balance  FY 2016 Gifts ~ Withdrawals Income Gain (Loss) Ending Balance
Smith- Hutson Scholarship Quasi Endowment 3,556,031.94 - (217,000.00) 92,614.26  (1,104,998.40) 2,326,647.80
Nancy Lundgren Hoyt Memorial Scholarship Endowment 70,602.07 25,000.00 - - 1,371.38 96,973.45
N. Reed Clark Memorial Scholarship Endowment 138,502.44 - - - 1,986.77 140,489.21
John Gayle Winkelmann Scholarship Endowment 9,413.61 10,000.00 - - 278.48 19,692.09
B.F. Slayton Scholarship Endowment 23,534.02 - - - 337.59 23,871.61
Robert L. and Ruverna F. Dunning Scholarship Endowment 23,534.02 100.00 - - 339.02 23,973.04
Sharon A. Lynch Graduate Fellowship Endowment 14,120.41 2,575.00 - - 239.49 16,934.90
Dr. Tracy L. Steele History Scholarship Endowment 32,947.63 - - - 472.62 33,420.25
Ethel Nicholson Scholarship in Memory of James D. Bozeman, Jr. Endowment 157,022.34 - - - 2,252.42 159,274.76
Sue Walker Rogers Nursing Scholarship Endowment 94,136.10 - - - 1,350.35 95,486.45
Jeff Rohde Memorial Scholarship Endowment 70,602.07 - - - 1,012.76 71,614.83
Nancy L. and Michael J. Czerwinski Dream With Me Scholarship Endowment 8,029.81 18,570.00 - - 381.56 26,981.37
Emmett Solomon Internship Scholarship Endowment 15,870.54 9,905.00 - - 369.74 26,145.28
Gordon Brown Scholarship Endowment 4,706.80 5,050.00 - - 139.96 9,896.76
Kenneth Wren Memorial Scholarship Endowment 70,602.07 5,000.00 - - 1,084.48 76,686.55
Dr. Herb and Laura Schumann Ag Education Scholarship Endowment 56,481.66 20,000.00 - - 1,097.10 77,578.76
Pending Agreements
Robert & Erin Steele (W&N Enterprises) - 100,000.00 1,434.46 101,434.46
David W. Crews Criminal Justice Scholarship Endowment 23,534.02 - - - 337.59 23,871.61

813,639.65 196,200.00 (217,000.00) 92,614.26  (1,090,512.63) 3,350,973.22

193




Sam Houston University Foundation
Schedule of Fixed Income Holdings
As of August 31, 2016

Current Yield

Investment Market Value Cost Basis Coupon (At Market Price) Maturity Date
Walker CO TX CTF S 107,679.00 $ 102,637.00 3.000% 2.790% August 1, 2022
Alamo Heights TX ISD S 25,770.25 $ 22,091.50 2.625% 2.550% February 1, 2027
Allen TX ISD S 179,386.35 $ 164,557.80 3.375% 3.100% February 15, 2027
Frisco TX ISD S 114,023.00 $ 105,719.00 4.250% 3.730% August 15, 2018
Hutto TX ISD S 155,401.50 $ 150,000.00 3.000% 2.900% August 1, 2030
White Settlement TX ISD S 62,113.80 $ 60,000.00 3.125% 3.020% August 15, 2030
Northwest TX ISD S 52,084.00 $ 45,187.50 3.000% 2.880% February 15, 2031
Sherman TX ISD S 51,538.50 $ 46,726.50 3.000% 2.910% February 15, 2031
Wylie TX ISD S 51,330.50 $ 48,070.50 3.125% 3.040% August 15, 2032
TOTAL S 799,326.90 $ 744,989.80

194




Sul Ross State University Support Organization
Annual Foundation Report to the Board of Regents
As of August 31, 2016

Purpose of the Organization:

The Sul Ross State University Support Organization is a hon-profit corporation created in
September 2003 exclusively for charitable, educational and scientific purposes in support of Sul
Ross State University’s programs and activities. These purposes include but are not limited to:
a) raising funds to support the mission and programs of Sul Ross State University; b) promoting
Sul Ross State University as it fosters and enhances higher education opportunities in its
service region; c) providing funds in support of the operations, projects and programs of Sul
Ross State University; d) assisting Sul Ross State University in any other endeavors as the
Board may deem appropriate.

Board of Directors:

Pete Peterson, President**
Robert Potts, Vice President**
Paula Denton, Treasurer

Chip Love

Laura Wood

Bethany Brookover

Jed Becker

Marty Davis

Vacant

** Elected at Board meeting 9/22/16

Financial Information as of August 31, 2016:

Assets: $2,176,031
Income FY16: $ 438,532
Expenditures FY16: $ 47,091

Summary of Activities:

The Sul Ross State University Support Organization Foundation was incorporated in September
2003. The TSUS Board of Regents approved the Board of Directors at its August 2004 meeting
and the Directors held their organizational meeting on November 1, 2004. Subsequent
meetings were held on November 21, 2005 and September 2, 2008. During FY2014, the Board
met four times. The organization’s activities have been directed primarily at fundraising to
support the mission and programs of the University. We continue to evaluate the Support
Organization Foundation so that it can be a great asset in attracting funds in support of all the
University’s programs and activities. The Foundation in February 2012 received a donation of
$1 million in support of the Borderlands Research Institute and in February 2014 signed a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Dixon Water Foundation establishing the Clint Josey
Endowed Chair for Sustainable Ranch Management. The Dixon Water Foundation commitment
is for $1,200,000 to be paid over six years. The Board selected South Texas Money
Management as its investment advisor and since November 2013 invests in equities, mutual
funds, and fixed income investments. The Foundation assets continue to grow. The board went
through a reorganization and the President and Vice President were recently elected at a board

195



meeting on September 22, 2016. These new members are expected to be an active group and
an asset as we develop our new campaign.

196



Sul Ross State University
Friends of the Center for Big Bend Studies
Annual Foundation Report to the Board of Regents
As of August 31, 2016

Purpose of the Organization:

The Sul Ross State University Friends of the Center for Big Bend Studies Foundation is a hon-
profit corporation created in September 2003 exclusively for charitable, educational, and
scientific purposes in support of Sul Ross State University’s Center for Big Bend Studies. These
purposes include but are not limited to: a) raising funds to support the mission and programs of
the Center including research, fieldwork and reporting on archeological studies of the Big Bend
Region of Texas; b) promoting the Center for Big Bend Studies as it fosters interdisciplinary
scholarship of the diverse prehistoric, historic and modern cultures of the borderlands region of
the United States and Mexico; c) providing funds in support of the operations of the Center as
well as special projects of the Center; d) assisting the Center in other endeavors as the Board
may deem appropriate.

Board of Directors:

J. Travis Roberts, Jr., President

G.E. (Pete) Peterson, Vice President
Linda Duncan, Secretary

Homer Mills, Treasurer

David Cockrum

Iris Korus

Manuel Ramos Medina

Roxana McAllister Richardson

Ike Roberts

Financial Information as of August 31, 2016:

Assets: $330,794
Income FY16: $555,584
Expenditures FY16: $386,999

Summary of Activities:

The Sul Ross State University Friends of the Center for Big Bend Studies Foundation was
incorporated in September 2003. The TSUS Board of Regents approved the Board of Directors
at its August 2004 meeting and the Directors held their organizational meeting on September 8,
2004. Semiannual meetings have been regularly held each year in September, November, or
March. The latest meeting was held on September 23, 2016. Since its inception, the
organization’s activities have been primarily fundraising to support the mission and programs of
the SRSU Center for Big Bend Studies. All of the expenditures noted above were made to
provide funds in support of the Trans Pecos Archeological Program of the Center for Big Bend
Studies. In addition, a small administrative fee is paid to Sul Ross State University annually for
managing all related transactions. This organization has been very instrumental and active in
helping the Center raise funds to replace reduced appropriations and to support new initiatives.
The Foundation’s assets have remained stable.

197



Texas State University Alumni Association
Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose

The Texas State Alumni Association’s vision is to connect Bobcats to serve, strengthen, support, and
celebrate Texas State University by creating a community of alumni, students, and friends with a
commitment to invest in the future of Texas State. The Association conducts programs and activities to
create student engagement, heighten alumni affinity and connections, develop alumni leaders, and
increase overall philanthropic support for Texas State.

Membership

Membership in the Texas State Alumni Association is open to, and consists of, graduates of the
University, former students, friends, parents, and current students. In FY 2016, total membership
decreased two percent, from the prior year, exceeding 6,850 total members at year-end. Decrease is
primarily attributed to discontinuation of Property Deposit memberships. The Alumni Association is
governed by a volunteer Board of Directors and operates as a non-profit corporation organized under the
Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act with a memorandum of understanding with Texas State University
whereby the University recognizes the Association as the principal organization charged with
responsibility for alumni relations.

Board of Directors Executive Committee:

President — Andrae Turner, Houston First Vice President — Ernie Dominguez, Austin

Second Vice President — Norma Essary, Bedford Chief Finance Office — Wes Agnew, Tyler

Immediate Past President — Dionicio Flores, El Paso Executive Director — Kim R. Gannon, New
Braunfels

Financial Report
The efforts and funds of the Texas State Alumni Association are dedicated to Texas State University and
are used to provide student scholarships, campus support, and alumni engagement activities.

The Alumni Association’s fiscal year runs January 1 through December 31. During FY 2016, the
Assaociation budgeted $100,000 in scholarship dollars to be awarded. As of August 31, 2016, the
Association reported payments totaling $18,250 in student scholarships with the remainder to be awarded
in Fall 2016. At August 31, 2016, Texas State University held $593,587 in deposits on behalf of the
Association, including $451,483 in Agency funds. Agency funds are assets not owned by the University,
but held in custodianship, to be used or withdrawn by depositors at will. Agency fund resources, including
those of the Association, are reflected in the University’s financial records as cash and cash equivalents
with a corresponding liability to the depositing organizations.

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - Off Campus $ 64,380
Cash and cash equivalents - Held by University $ 593,587
Petty Cash $ 100
Total Current Assets $ 658,067
Investments
Certificate of Deposit $ 100,000
Vanguard Short Term Bond $ 299,688
Marketable Equities $ 1,048,092
Marketable Debt Securities $ 885,658
Total Investments $ 2,333,438
Total Liabilities and net assets $ 2,991,505

*The investment policy established by the Alumni Association Board of Directors dictates that 50 percent of the
endowment is to be invested in fixed income and 50 percent is to be invested in conservative equities. Investment
decisions and purchases are handled by Frost Bank Trust Department, San Antonio, Texas.

198



Texas State University Development Foundation
Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose

The Texas State University Development Foundation is formed exclusively for educational and
research purposes to manage endowment funds designated for the sole purpose of Texas State
University.

Membership

The Board of Trustees for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, were:
Kenneth Huewitt, Chair James Taylor, Vice Chair Patrick Rose, Treasurer
Elizabeth Tuttle, Secretary  Jesse Ancira, Jr. Jamie Barshop
Gloria Campos Brown Robert Derrick, Jr. Dan Diepenhorst
Matt Edgar Dionicio (Don) Flores Dottie St. Clair Hill
Will Holder Carol Huntsberger Rodney Keller, Jr.
Hope Koch Paige Lueking Jeff Novak
Lyndon Nugent Brandey Orsag Dan Pearson

Ann Roberts Cindy Sightes Mark Smith

Fred Weber, Jr. Mitchell Ward Susan Wittliff

Financial Report

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the Texas State University Development
Foundation remitted to the University $1,462,976.57 for student scholarships and $6,270,394.62
for other support. Contributions to the Foundation are permanently restricted gifts of
$4,385,936.77 and temporarily restricted gifts of $451,497.51. The Foundation’s ending net
assets as of June 30, 2016, are $72,538,683.54.

Atchley & Associates, LLP Certified Public Accountants, audited the statement of financial
position as of June 30, 2015. It was determined that the results of the Foundation’s operations
and changes in net assets, and its cash flow for the year ending June 30, 2015, conformed with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Summary of Activities

The Foundation manages 485 endowments, 23 quasi-endowments, 29 non-endowment
accounts, and 13 annuities. Within the Foundation’s endowments, 32 have fair market values
less than $10,000; 105 of the endowments have fair market values in excess of $10,000 but
less than $25,000; 224 of the endowments have fair market values in excess of $25,000 but
less than $100,000; and there are 124 endowments with fair market values in excess of
$100,000.

199



Texas State University McCoy College of Business Administration Development Foundation
Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose

The Emmett and Miriam McCoy College of Business Administration Development Foundation
(Foundation) is approved by the IRS as an independent 501c.3. nonprofit corporation that serves
exclusively for the benefit of the McCoy College of Business Administration (College). By Regental
agreement, the Foundation is the primary recipient and fiscal manager of new major gifts to the College —
with the university development staff leading the acquisition of new gifts that the Foundation Board of
Directors manages for the College.

Membership

The Foundation Directors for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2016, were:

Mr. Brian F. McCoy, President, San Marcos, TX Mr. Jesse C. Luxton, Vice President, Leakey, TX
Dr. William T. Chittenden, Secretary, Seguin, TX Dr. Ann L. Watkins, Treasurer, New Braunfels, TX

Mr. T. Paul Bulmahn, Director, Ocala, FL Mrs. Miriam M. McCoy, Director, San Marcos, TX

Mr. C. Patrick Oles, Jr., Director, Austin, TX Mr. R. Tom Roddy, Director, San Antonio, TX

Dr. Denise T. Smart, McCoy College Dean and Dr. Denise M. Trauth, University President and
Director, San Marcos, TX Ex Officio Director, San Marcos, TX

Dr. E. E. “Gene” Payne, Executive Director, Austin, TX

Financial Report

Since its founding in 2004 through August 31, 2016, - the Foundation:

Has, since 2004, received total contributions: $ 29,313,458

Has, since 2004, approved distributions to the College for enhancement: $ 8,043,031

Has, currently, estimated total Assets of: $ 34,660,578
$663,565 of total Assets are managed by the McCoy Student Managed Investment Fund.

Has, currently, estimated accrued Liabilities of: $ 19,286

Has, with the lead of the Development staff, helped donors establish six new endowments in the last year

for a total of 75 endowments, including:

Two Chairs fully-funded with gifts of $2 million and $2.1 million.

Four Chairs half-funded with a gift of $1 million for each Chair. *

Six Professorships fully-funded with gifts ranging from $600,000 to $690,500 for each.

Four Professorships half-funded with a gift of $300,000 for each Professorship. **

Two Graduate Fellowship-Scholarship programs with gifts of $1,550,028.

Forty scholarship programs with gifts of $5,456,305.

Four faculty development programs with gifts of $3,208,962.

Five student development programs with gifts of $2,772,869.

Two research endowment programs with gifts of $300,000.

e A College General and Program endowment with numerous gifts totaling $3,073,893.
*Two half-funded Chairs, until fully-funded, can be combined to provide support for one Chair position.
*Two half-funded Professorships, until-fully-funded, can be combined to provide support for one
Professorship position.

Summary of Activities

Of the more than 13,000 colleges of business world-wide, the most universally recognized as exceptional
are the fewer than 800 institutions in 48 countries that are accredited by the AACSB (Association to
Advance Collegiate Schools of Business). McCoy College is one of the 800 accredited institutions. Since
the creation of the McCoy College of Business Foundation in 2004, the McCoy College of Business at
Texas State University has moved from the bottom quarter - to the top quarter of the elite AACSB
institutions in size of endowment.

Data in this report are based upon unaudited financial reports. An independent, external audit is
conducted annually and provided to the university administration. Every year the Foundation has
received a “clean opinion” — with no irregularities and with all operations in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The Foundation pays for its operating expenses (including staff salaries,
accounting, supplies, and auditing) which totaled less than $120,000 in FY2016, or less than three tenths
of one percent of the assets of the Foundation. Fees for investment management were approximately
one percent of the assets.

200



Texas State University Research Foundation

Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose

The Texas State University Research Foundation is organized and operated exclusively for
charitable, scientific, and educational purposes under Internal Revenue Code 8501(c)(3). The
Foundation will facilitate acquiring sponsored research funds from public and private sources
and manage such funds if requested to do so by the university, solicit donations to support
activities of the Foundation, pursue appropriate legal protection for proprietary technologies
developed through university research, hold and manage real and intellectual property assets
on behalf of the university, and promote commercialization of research products and transfer of
university technologies to appropriate partners for further development and commercialization.

Membership

Board of Directors

Dr. Denise M. Trauth, Chair

Dr. Eugene Bourgeois, President

Dr. Billy Covington, Executive Director

Financial Report

An Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended February 29, 2016, was reviewed and
approved by the Foundation’s Board members on June 29, 2016. Total revenues and
expenditures were $57,482.38 for the year.

Summary of Activities
The following proposals were submitted through the Texas State Research Foundation and
categorized by their funding status.

Funded Activities

e Dr. Katherine Selber, School of Social Work, was awarded an additional $31,807 by the
Kolbe Family Trust for a previously funded proposal entitled “Texas State University
Project Closing the GAPS for Student Veterans” in January 2016.

¢ Michelle Sotolongo, Honors College, was awarded $675 by the Texas Commission on
the Arts for a proposal entitled “Grupo Pakai 2015” in September 2015.

e Dr. Karen Meaney, Department of Health and Human Performance, was awarded
$6,000 by The United Way of Hays County for a proposal entitled “Fun & Fit 4 Life
Summer Camp” in January 2016.

e Anthony Deringer, Department of Health and Human Performance, was awarded $5,000
by the City of San Marcos for a proposal entitled “Goal Post After-School Program” in
May 2016.

e Dr. Ting Liu, Department of Health and Human Performance, was awarded $8,000 by
The United Way of Hays County for a proposal entitled “Texas State University Autism
Summer Camp” in January 2016.

e Dr. Karen Meaney, Department of Health and Human Performance, was awarded
$5,000 by the City of San Marcos for a proposal entitled “Fun & Fit 4 Life Summer
Camp” in May 2016.

201



Dr. Ting Liu, Department of Health and Human Performance, was awarded $5,000 by
the City of San Marcos for a proposal entitled “Texas State University Autism Summer
Camp” in May 2016.

Non-funded Activities

Hank Hehmsoth, School of Music, submitted a proposal to the Aaron Copland Fund for
Music for $15,289 entitled “Eddie Durham Celebration” that was not funded.

Shane Townsend, The Meadows Center for Water and the Environment, submitted a
proposal to The North Face for $15,323 entitled “Explore Spring Lake After-School
Program” that was not funded.

Dr. Jon McGee, Department of Anthropology, submitted a proposal to the

Gladys Krieble Delmas Foundation for $13,050 entitied “East Wear Bay Archaeological
Project” that was not funded.

Dr. Maria Resendiz, Department of Communication Disorders, submitted a proposal to
The Genevieve and Ward Orsinger Foundation for $5,000 entitled “Multicultural
Intensive Speech-Language Therapy Intervention Clinic (MISTIC)” that was not funded.
Tahila Mintz, School of Art and Design, submitted a proposal to the

Rogovy Foundation for $25,000 entitled “Woman of the Water” that was not funded.

Pending Activities

Dr. Celeste Domsch, Department of Communication Disorders, submitted a proposal to
Impact Austin for $100,000 entitled “Bobcat CLAWS (Complex Language and Academic
Work for Students)” that is still pending.

Aaron Swink, Edwards Aquifer Research and Data Center, submitted a proposal to the
City of San Marcos for $5,000 entitled “Aquatic Science Adventure Camps” that is still
pending.

Dr. Kent Griffin, Department of Health and Human Performance, submitted a proposal to
the United Way of Hays County for $5,400 entitled “Cycling 4 Fitness and 4 Life” that is
still pending.

Vlasta Silhavy, Department of Theatre and Dance, submitted a proposal to the

Best Buy Foundation for $8,139 entitled “LEAP: Leadership, Empowerment, and Arts
Program” that is still pending.

Vlasta Silhavy, Department of Theatre and Dance, submitted a proposal to the

City of San Marcos for $5,000 entitled “BFA Theatre Certification Program at Texas
State University” that is still pending.

Dr. Ting Liu, Department of Health and Human Performance, submitted a proposal to
the City of San Marcos for $5,000 entitled “Caminitos Collaborative/Center for P-16
Initiatives” that is still pending.

Dr. Kent Griffin, Department of Health and Human Performance, submitted a proposal to
the RGK Foundation for $20,000 entitled “Cycling 4 Fitness and 4 Life” that is still
pending.

Dr. Lola Adepoju, School of Health Administration, submitted a proposal to the

Austin Community Foundation for $25,000 entitled “Improving Health Insurance Literacy
Among Central Texans” that is still pending.

202



Texas State University Support Foundation

Final Annual Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose

The Texas State University Support Foundation was a non-profit corporation formed for
exclusively charitable, educational, and scientific purposes and to assist in the development of
Texas State University under the operation, control, and management of the Board of Trustees,
including the expenditure of funds for the purpose of assisting the University in obtaining and
maintaining the best faculty and staff available, and for the establishment and maintenance of
facilities and laboratories to be used by the University; for the advancement of research and
other literary and scientific undertakings; and to accept donations, gifts, and grants of money
and property, to administer the same, and to expend funds upon a charitable, educational, or
nonprofit basis.

On October 5, 2015, upon motion by Trustee Serur, and seconded by Trustee Wilson, it was
resolved that the Support Foundation be restructured into a committee, the assets of $200,000
be donated to Texas State University to be added to the Texas State University Support
Foundation Endowment for scholarships, the Fire Station Recording Studio Parking Lot be
donated to Texas State, and that the remaining funds of the Support Foundation be used for the
fees to dissolve the Foundation and for the President’s discretionary account.

The dissolution was presented at the November 2015 Board of Regents meeting as an
informational item. All assets have all been transferred out of the Texas State University
Support Foundation and the former Board of Trustees is now acting as a committee.

Membership

Board of Trustees — now a committee

Stanley J. Naumann, Chairman Eric Algoe, Assistant Chairman
Valarie R. Van Vlack, Treasurer McBride Wilson, Secretary
Wallace D. Dockall, Member Valerie Morrison, Member
Jean Barber, Member Terry Serur, Vice Chairman

Dr. Sylvester Walleck, Member Ed Boney, Member

Jimmie Scott, Member

Financial Report
Information as of August 31, 2016

Assets $ 0.00
Contributions to Texas State and to

dissolve the Support Foundation — per note $332,144.00
above

203



LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY FOUNDATION
Annual Foundation Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose:

The Lamar Institute of Technology Foundation was established as a nonprofit corporation under
the laws of the State of Texas and is organized exclusively for charitable educational purposes
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its Regulations. The
purposes of the Foundation are: (i) to provide support to Lamar Institute of Technology by
soliciting, receiving, and accepting gifts of money and other property—tangible or intangible, real,
and personal from the general public, including individuals, corporations, and other entities and
sources; (i) administer, manage, invest, and reinvest such money and property; (iii) apply and
expend the income and proceeds thereof for such purposes, all to or for the benefit of the Lamar
Institute of Technology; (iv) employ or retain any bank, trust company, or financial institution to
guide the Foundation in the investment and management of its real and personal property.

Board of Directors:

Dr. Shawn Oubre, President | Alice Cater David Parmer
Rod Carroll, Vice President Bessie Chisum J. Hoke Peacock Il
Tim Sudela, Treasurer Lee Dula Vernon Pierce

Pat Avery, Secretary

Greg Gentry

Micki Carpenter Platt

Dean Robinson, Past
President

Daryl Gilbert, Sr.

Raymond Polk

Eddie Arnold Guy Goodson Jim Rich
Danny Babineaux Kyle Hayes C.A. (Pete) Shelton
A. B. Bernard Brandon Hebert Rickey Simmons

Robert Bilnoski

Gisela Houseman

Dr. Joel Smith

Dale Boothman

Kathleen Jackson

Herschel Stagner, Jr.

Arthur “Ted” Boumans

Dr. Mattie Londow

David Thornhill

John Bussell

Jean McFaddin

Jerry Vandervoort

John Carlson

Bill Miller

Financial Information as of August 31, 2016:

Net Assets: $3,839,636.33
Income/Contributions: $633,908.63
for

Summary of Activities:

The Foundation manages fifty-four endowments. Six of the endowments have fair market values
less than $10,000; twenty-four of the endowments have fair market values in excess of $10,000;
twenty-four of the endowments have fair market values in excess of $25,000.

Cash contributions for FY 2010 were $257,589.97; cash contributions for FY 2011 were
$315,976.10; cash contributions for FY 2012 were $333,823.26; cash contributions for FY 2013
were $483,386.60; cash contributions for FY 2014 were $591,907.38; cash contributions for FY
2015 were $481,165.24; cash contributions for FY 2016 were $372,473.02.

204



The target asset allocation of the Foundation portfolio recommended by the Board of Directors is
that ten to fifteen percent is to be invested in cash and equivalents, thirty to fifty percent is to be
invested in fixed incomes and sixty to seventy-five percent is to be invested in equities. 9.6
percent was invested in cash and equivalents, 34.1 percent was invested in fixed incomes and
56.2 percent was invested in equities.

205



LAMAR STATE COLLEGE — ORANGE FOUNDATION, INC.

Lamar State College-Orange Foundation
Annual Foundation Report to the Board of Regents

Purpose:

Lamar State College-Orange Foundation, Inc. is a non-profit organization, which was
established in December 1983, to support the development and promotion of Lamar
State College-Orange, its students, faculty, staff, and physical facilities, and to accept
donations, gifts, and grants of money and property, to administer the same, and to
expend funds upon an educational basis.

Board of Directors:

Carlton Harmon, Chairman Kathy Gunn, Director
John Cash Smith, Vice-Chairman Shawn Oubre, Director
Dan Mohon, Secretary/Treasurer Stephen Lee, Director
Courtney Arkeen, Director Ron Borel, Director
Ross Smith, Director Lana Fillyaw, Director
Gisela Houseman, Director Shane Johns, Director

David Jones, Director
Patty Cloeren, Director

Net Assets as of December 31, 2015: $5,117,467

Summary of Activities:

Scholarship Support: $75,000
Brown Estate Lawn Care: $39,956.64

206



LAMAR STATE COLLEGE-PORT ARTHUR
Port Arthur Higher Education Foundation, Inc.

Purpose of the Organization

The Port Arthur Higher Education Foundation is organized to support the development and
promotion of the arts and sciences and programs of Lamar State College-Port Arthur, its students,
faculty, staff and the people of this area and the State of Texas.

Board of Trustees

A. Morris Albright, Chairman
Floyd Marceaux, Vice Chairman
Edward Boone, Secretary-Treasurer
Sam Monroe, President

John Comeaux

William R. Coons

Leonard Gabriel, Jr.

Jeff Hayes

Joel Levingston

Brian McDougal

James W. Moore

Carl A. Parker

George Taylor

Bill Worsham

Financial Information as of December 31, 2015
Assets: $5,190,926

Income: $ 561,121

Expenditures: $ 567,848

Summary of Activities

The Port Arthur Higher Education Foundation, Inc. raises and administers funds for the benefit of
Lamar State College-Port Arthur. Current activities include the administration of endowed
scholarships and prompt acquisition of property within the Campus Master Planning area to
facilitate the development of the campus facilities. Two parcels were purchased in 2016 by the
Foundation and then sold to Lamar-Port Arthur for the construction of the new Industrial
Technology Center.

The organization also administers scholarship funds for the Port Arthur Industrial Group awarded
to students attending colleges and universities across the nation. Scholarships and special
support for the athletic program and cultural events sponsored by the college were provided by
the Foundation. The organization also sponsors community projects on behalf of Lamar State
College-Port Arthur.

207



TSUS: Adjustment of Operating Budgets
Recommendation
The proposed Budget Adjustments for the Texas State University System

administration and components be approved.

FISCAL YEAR 2016 OPERATING BUDGET

9/1/2015 8/31/2016

Original Revised
System Administration S 10,719,983 S 10,719,983
Lamar University 186,544,463 188,548,041
Sam Houston State University 291,361,211 304,373,921
Sul Ross State University 27,625,879 27,678,600
Sul Ross Rio Grande College 8,061,220 8,061,220
Texas State University 505,861,245 588,786,226
Lamar Institute of Technology 23,288,315 23,697,731
Lamar State College-Orange 18,496,629 20,635,111
Lamar State College-Port Arthur 19,592,537 21,508,297
System Total S 1,089,756,194 S 1,192,213,842

Explanation

In accordance with the System Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill, Section 1.3 Financial
Matters, budget adjustments shall be submitted to the Board of Regents for approval.

208



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

2015-2016 OPERATING BUDGET & RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending 08/31/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval

Previously Requested  Adjustments Adjusted

Original Approved Budget Approved by Revenue

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL REVENUE BUDGET Budget by Board Adjustments Chancellor Budget
State General Revenue $1,425,000 $1,425,000
Employee Benefits - Retirement 93,036 $93,036
Employee Benefits - Group Insurance 123,457 $123,457
Employee Benefits - Social Security 189,819 $189,819
Investment Income 4,000 $4,000
Texas State University System Foundation 51,400 $51,400
Central Service Charge 8,633,271 $8,633,271
Fund Balance 0 $0
Deferred Compensation Transfer In 200,000 $200,000
Totals $10,719,983 $0 $0 $0 $10,719,983

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET (ORIGINAL)

Salaries and Wages
Employee Fringe Benefits
Professional Fees
Travel
Material and Supplies
Communications and Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance
Rentals and Leases
Printing and Reproduction
Other
Furniture and Equipment
Deferred Compensation Transfer Out
Plant Funds

Totals

Total Adjustments Submitted for Board Approval this Period

$10,719,983

Adjustments Previously Approved:

Board Chancellor
$0 $0

Adjusted
Original Adjustments Expenditure

Budget Prior Periods This Period Budget
$4,668,783 $4,668,783
1,227,349 1,227,349
1,448,901 1,448,901
230,886 (3,500) 1,000 228,386
131,442 39,200 170,642
50,330 50,330
3,900 1,000 1,500 6,400
124,257 2,500 800 127,557
29,960 200 30,160
1,008,887 (39,400) (3,300) 966,187
0 0
280,000 280,000
1,515,288 1,515,288
$10,719,983 $0 $0 $10,719,983

$0

Total Adjustments Approved by Chancellor This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by Board:
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by Chancellor:

EDUCATIONAL AND GENERAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET ADJUSTED

FY 2016 Budget Adjustment System Office

209

$0

$ 10,719,983



LAMAR UNIVERSITY
2015-2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For Period Ending 08/31/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 115,281,916 $ (3,856,720) $ -$ - 111,425,196
Designated 84,388,911 5,143,290 - 630,000 90,162,201
Auxiliary Enterprises 43,555,387 87,008 - - 43,642,395
Total $ 243,226,214 $ 1,373,578 $ -3 630,000 245,229,792
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 115,281,916
Previously Approved by Board: (3,856,720)
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Reclassify Designated Salaries and Benefits
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget: 111,425,196
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 84,388,911
Previously Approved by Board: 5,143,290

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Reclassify Salary& Benefits Adjustment-E&G
Advancement Operational Expense

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: 630,000
Approved This Period:

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 630,000

Adjusted Budget: 90,162,201

210



AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: 43,555,387

Previously Approved by Board: 87,008

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 0

Adjusted Budget: 43,642,395

211



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 8/31/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval

Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget(2016) by Board Adjustments  President(YTD)Over 150k Budget
Education & General $ 119,728,974 $ 171,977 $ 11,050 $ $ 119,912,001
Designated $ 133,641,839 § 1,966,718 $ 716,076 $ $ 139,167,845
Auxiliary Enterprises  $ 62,540,911 $ 1,798,290 $ 443,146 $ 70,413,913
Trust - - -
Restricted - - -
Total $ 315,911,724 $ 3,936,985 $ 1,170,272 $ 329,493,759
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 119,728,974
Previously Approved by Board: 171,977.00
Requested Budget Adjustments:
School of Music - E&G 6,640
Department of Dance - E&G 4,410
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 11,050
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget as of 8/31/2016 119,912,001

212




DESIGNATED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Designated Tuition

Recreation Fee

Construction Maintenance Fee
IT - Special Projects

Advisement Fee

Advisement Fee

Recreation Fee

Exectutive MBA Program

Arts on the Edge Summer Camp
Biology Study Abroad Costa Rica
Designated Tuition

Application Fee Undergrad
Professional Development Camp
Designated Tuition

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Library Fee

Records Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Professional Development Camp
Arts on the Edge Summer Camp
Construction Maintenance Fee
International Program Fees
Construction Maintenance Fee
Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Distance Learning Fee - Academic Affairs
Records Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Designated Tuition

The Woodlands Campus

DLF Distance Learning Fee - Academic Affairs
Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Designated Tuition

Recreation Fee

Postage

Designated Tuition

Distabce Learning Fee - Health Sciences
Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

Recreation Fee

International Program Fees
International Program Fees
Designated Tuition

Technology Fee

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 8/31/2016

213

133,641,839

1,966,718

$5,000
$7,000
$21,525
$10,000
$29,546
$23,800
$1,500
$22,000
$13,600
$7,502
$445
$25,000
$1,650
$30,000
$12,000
$1,000
$90,000
$40,000
$500
$15,000
$1,650
$175
$5,000
$5,000
$10,000
$1,800
$9,000
$39,000
$10,000
$1,000
$600
$322
$1,960
$150
$7,800
$5,710
$13,900
$1,960
$45,000
$4,000
$1,325
$7
$90,220
$500
$2,500
$9,000
$1,800
$78,178
$9,470
$45
$1,935



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 8/31/2016

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $716,076
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: $ 2,208,077
Distance Learning - DELTA $171,000
Technology Fee $230,818
Technology Fee $233,317

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 635,135

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ 2,843,212
Adjusted Budget as of 8/31/2016 $ 139,167,845

214



AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:

Library Science Conferencees
Dining

Animation Creation Camp
Student Service Fee

Bearkat OneCard

Animation Creation Camp
Raven Nest Golf Course
Student Service Fee

Surplus and Scrap Metal Sales
Continuing Education

Student Service Fee

Office of Alumni Relations
Bearkat Camp

Student Service Fee

Dining

SHSU Freshman Orientation
Student Service Fee

Bearkat OneCard

Center for Professional Development
CMIT National Jail Leadership
CMIT National Jail Leadership
Public Safety Services

SHSU Freshman Orientation
Bearkats in Business

SHSU Freshman Orientation
Boy Scout Conference

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 8/31/2016

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported:

Athletic Fee

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget as of 8/31/2016

215

$ 62,540,911

$ 1,798,290

$5,000
$310
$4,000
$20,400
$16,500
$2,000
$55,200
$20,000
$9,400
$13,850
$4,520
$25,000
$25,000
$500
$577
$24,780
$3,000
$7,000
$30,000
$10,000
$7,628
$1,300
$19,606
$126,139
$4,000
$7,436

$443,146

$ 5,331,566.00

$300,000

$ 300,000

5,631,566

$ 70,413,913




SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
2015-2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS

For the Period Ending August 31, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 27,894,717 $ -3 - $ - 27,894,717
Designated 4,744,760 - 1,460 4,746,220
Auxiliary Enterprises 5,703,702 - 52,721 5,756,423
Trust - -
Restricted 5,654,258 5,654,258
Total $ 43997437 § -9 - % 54,181 44,051,618
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 27,894,717
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget: 27,894,717
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 4,744,760
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: 1,460
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 1,460
Adjusted Budget: 4,746,220
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: 5,703,702

Previously Approved by Board:

216




SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

TRUST
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

RESTRICTED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

217

52,721

5,756,423

5,654,258

5,654,258




Texas State University

FISCAL YEAR 2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending August 31, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General 242,303,129 6,997,827 0 370,509 249,671,465
Designated 236,622,000 49,540,900 9,948,365 3,946,477 300,057,742
Auxiliary Enterprises 137,043,000 16,276,224 2,225,000 577,664 156,121,887
Total 615,968,129 72,814,950 12,173,365 4,894,649 705,851,094
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 242,303,129
Previously Approved by Board: 6,997,827
Requested Budget Adjustments: 0
Total requested budget adjustments this period: 0
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President
Previously Reported: 332,692
Approved This Period:
Increase budget for Child Development Center 22,199
Carry forward for prior year encumbrances canceled 11,962
Increase budget for Biology Lab Fees 3,656
Total adjustments approved by President this period: 37,817
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 370,509
Adjusted Budget: 249,671,465
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 236,622,000
Previously Approved by Board: 49,540,900
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Use of reserves for Interim Financing on Capital Projects 7,028,402
Increase budget for Loop 82 project 887,679
Increase budget for Orientation 439,340
Increase budget for Study Abroad 434,427
Increase budget for Undergraduate Application Fee 197,710
Increase budget for Extension 187,184
Use of Student Success Fee reserves for PACE programming 166,000
Increase budget for MathWorks 134,358

218



Texas State University

Carry forward for prior year encumbrances canceled 140,850
Increase budget for Band Camp 125,422
Increase budget for Miscellaneous Events (9 events) 103,616
Increase budget for Sponsored Programs 103,378
Total requested budget adjustments this period: 9,948,365
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President
Previously Reported: 2,990,381
Approved This Period:
Increase budget for RIB Programs (30 programs) 99,324
Increase budget for Continuing Education Programs 97,910
Use of Library Fee reserves for the Alkek Learning Commons project 89,940
Increase budget for Choir 75,796
Increase budget for Orchestra 54,127
Increase budget for Testing Support 50,000
Use of Meadows Center reserves for boat restoration 47 117
Increase budget for Prior Learning Assessment Fee 41,457
Increase budget for Parent & Family Relations 40,738
Increase budget for Educational Testing Service Testing 38,000
Increase budget for Materials Management Services 36,000
Increase budget for Archeological Studies Project 30,909
Increase budget for TX Justice Court Training Center 28,910
Increase budget for Theatre Camp 22,610
Increase budget for International Piano Festival 20,500
Increase budget for STAR Park 20,000
Increase budget for Family and Consumer Sciences 19,500
Increase budget for HHP Total Wellness 18,729
Increase budget for Opera 18,021
Increase budget for USDOE Student Information Services 15,000
Increase budget for Cat Camp 13,860
Increase budget for Certified Public Managers Program 11,305
Increase budget for Athletic Training Camps & Workshops 10,488
Increase budget for Research Service Center-Cleanroom Operations 10,062
Increase budget for Transcripts 8,000
Increase budget for Anthropology 7,340
Increase budget for Campus Construction 6,994
Increase budget for Library Services 3,749
Increase budget for FACTS Community Services 3,400
Increase budget for Insurance-D&O 3,017
Increase budget for Kid's Kollege 2,475
Increase budget for HHP Autism Camp 2,270
Increase budget for the Graduate College 1,950
Increase budget for Teacher Fellows 1,800
Increase budget for Student Publication Fee 1,791
Increase budget for the Fashion Merchandise Forum 1,506
Increase budget for Bootcamp 1,500
Total adjustments approved by President this period: 956,096

219



Texas State University

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:
Increase budget for Housing for Debt Service and Renewal & Replacement
Use of Athletics Reserves for End Zone Renovation
Increase budget for University Dining Services
Increase budget for University Bookstore

Total requested budget adjustments this period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:
Increase budget for University Dining Services
Increase budget for Student Bus Service
Increase budget for Parking Services
Increase budget for Postal Retail Unit
Increase budget for Athletics RIB Programs (7 programs)
Increase budget for Dramatics
Increase budget for KTSW Radio & Lease
Carry forward for prior year encumbrances canceled
Increase budget for Round Rock Center Auxiliaries
Increase budget for Recreational Sports
Increase budget for Fine Arts Box Office
Increase budget for Auxiliary Facilities Rental
Increase budget for Allied Arts

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

220

3,946,477

300,057,742

137,043,000

16,276,224

1,000,000
675,000
300,000
250,000

2,225,000

357,799

75,000
64,000
15,000
14,341
12,195
10,000
13,500
4,901
4,606
2,400
2,098
1,150
674

219,865

577,664

156,121,887




For the Period Ending 8/31/16

Lamar Institute of Technology
Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 15,141,591 $ -3 - $ 311,133 15,452,724
Designated 5,638,724 71,669 5,610,393
Auxiliary Enterprises 2,608,000 26,614 2,634,614
Trust - - -
Restricted - - -
Total $ 23,288,315 § -9 -3 409,416 23,697,731
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 15,141,591
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: 311,133
Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrance
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 311,133
Adjusted Budget: 15,452,724
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 5,538,724
Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: 71,669
Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrance
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 71,669
Adjusted Budget: 5,610,393

221




For the Period Ending 8/31/16

Lamar Institute of Technology

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:

Prior Year Encumbrance
Remove Public information budget wrong program

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

TRUST
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

222

2,608,000

26,614

26,614

2,634,614




For the Period Ending 8/31/16

Lamar Institute of Technology

RESTRICTED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrances

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

223




For the Period Ending 08/31/2016

Lamar State College - Orange

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 15,307,033 $ 1,125,000 $§ 1,490,559 $ - 17,922,592
Designated 5,620,464 325,155 562,609 103,859 6,612,087
Auxiliary Enterprises 817,054 - - 21,859 838,913
Total $ 21744551 $§ 1,450,155 $ 2,053,168 $ 125,718 25,373,592
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 15,307,033
Previously Approved by Board: 1,125,000
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Central Plant Chiller 115,559
Multipurpose Education Building 1,375,000
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 1,490,559
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget: 17,922,592
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 5,620,464
Previously Approved by Board: 325,155
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Information Technology Services 135,414
Skills Development Fund Training 427,195
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 562,609
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: 61,329
Approved This Period:
Information Technology Services 14,908
Kids2College 227
Brown Estate 27,395
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 42,530
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 103,859
Adjusted Budget: 6,612,087

224



For the Period Ending 08/31/2016

Lamar State College - Orange
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Refrigeration Repairs
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

225

817,054

21,859

21,859

838,913



Lamar State College Port Arthur

FISCAL YEAR 2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending August 31, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 13,858,739 $ 1,240,890 $ - % 54434 $ 15,154,063
Designated 3,990,196 181,500 199,516 151,023 4,522,235
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,743,602 - 81,797 6,600 1,831,999
Total $ 19,592,537 $§ 1,422,390 § 281,313 $ 212,057 $ 21,508,297
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: $ 13,858,739
Previously Approved by Board: 1,240,890

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: 44,434
Approved This Period:
HEAF Land Purchase 10,000
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 10,000
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 54,434
Adjusted Budget: $ 15,154,063
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: $ 3,990,196
Previously Approved by Board: 181,500
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Advertisement 36,000
Custodial Service Outsourcing 54,000
Designated Transfer to Athletics 81,797
Designated Transfer to Indirect Cost 27,719
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 199,516

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: 91,980
Approved This Period:
General Expenses for Instituitional Support 38,007
Academic Instruction 5,000
Workforce Development 4,900
Designated Transfer to Recreational Sports 11,136
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 59,043

226



Lamar State College Port Arthur

FISCAL YEAR 2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending August 31, 2016

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 151,023
Adjusted Budget: $ 4,522,235
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: $ 1,743,602

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

81,797

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 81,797
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: 300

Approved This Period:

Basketball Program 5,200

Student Parking 1,100

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 6,300

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 6,600

Adjusted Budget: $ 1,831,999

227



TSUS: Adjustment of Operating Budgets
Recommendation
The proposed Budget Adjustments for the Texas State University System

administration and components be approved.

FISCAL YEAR 2017 OPERATING BUDGET

9/1/2016 9/30/2016

Original Revised
System Administration S 10,796,664 S 10,796,664
Lamar University 200,361,416 200,361,416
Sam Houston State University 298,339,029 299,716,168
Sul Ross State University 33,290,288 33,290,288
Sul Ross Rio Grande College 8,902,315 8,902,315
Texas State University 528,043,629 528,043,629
Lamar Institute of Technology 22,837,725 23,007,701
Lamar State College-Orange 18,989,111 22,418,361
Lamar State College-Port Arthur 20,060,676 20,125,326
System Total S 1,141,620,853 S 1,146,661,868

Explanation

In accordance with the System Rules and Regulations, Chapter Ill, Section 1.3 Financial
Matters, budget adjustments shall be submitted to the Board of Regents for approval.

228



For the Period Ending 09/30/2015

Texas State University System
For the Period Ending 09/30/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 10,796,664 $ -8 -3 - $ 10,796,664
Designated - - - - -
Aucxiliary Enterprises - - - - -
Total $ 10,796,664 $ -3 - % - $ 10,796,664
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: $ 10,796,664
Previously Approved by Board: $ -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $ -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: $ -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ -
Adjusted Budget: $ 10,796,664
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: $ -
Previously Approved by Board: $ -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $ -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: $ -
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ -
Adjusted Budget: $ -

229



For the Period Ending 09/30/2015

Texas State University System
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

230



LAMAR UNIVERSITY
2016-2017 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For Period Ending 09/30/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 127,225,199 $ -$ -$ - 127,225,199
Designated 90,263,511 - - - 90,263,511
Auxiliary Enterprises 45,108,611 - - - 45,108,611
Total $ 262,597,321 $ -3 -$ - 262,597,321
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 127,225,199

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:
Reclassify Designated Salaries and Benefits

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -

Adjusted Budget: 127,225,199
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 90,263,511

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Reclassify Salary & Benefits Adjustment-E&G
Advancement Operational Expense

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -

Adjusted Budget: 90,263,511

231



AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: 45,108,611

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 0

Adjusted Budget: 45,108,611

232



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 9/30/2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval

Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted

Fund Budget(2017) by Board Adjustments  President(YTD)Over 150k Budget

Education & General $ 118,154,732 $ - % 18,937 $ - $ 118,173,669

Designated $ 124,710,412 $ -3 438,461 $ 150,000 $ 125,298,873

Auxiliary Enterprises $ 55,473,885 $ -9 139,445 $630,296 $ 56,243,626

Trust - - - -

Restricted - - - -

Total $ 298,339,029 $ -3 596,844 $ 780,296 $ 299,716,169

EDUCATION & GENERAL

Original Budget: $ 118,154,732
Previously Approved by Board: $ -
Requested Budget Adjustments:

Educational and General 18,937
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 18,937
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported: $ -

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: $ -

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ -
Adjusted Budget as of 9/30/2016 $ 118,173,669

Page é§§3




SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 9/30/2016

DESIGNATED
Original Budget: $ 124,710,412

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Advisement Fee $23,500
DLF Education $50,000
Application Fee Undergrad $69,043
Advisement Fee $43,798
Installment Payment Fee $85,776
Designated Tuition $2,438
Advisement Fee $75,000
DLF Student Seccesss Initiatives $4,000
Designated Tuition $17,000
Construction Maintenance Fee $50,000
AAPS Arts on the Edge Conference $17,906
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $438,461
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: $ -
IT - Special Projects $150,000
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 150,000
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ 150,000
Adjusted Budget as of 9/30/2016 $ 125,298,873

Page %ngS



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
For the Period Ending 9/30/2016

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

Original Budget:
Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Dining

Student Service Fee

Center for Professional Development

Interest on Time Deposit

Residence Life - IT Services
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported:

Interest on Time Deposit

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget as of 9/30/2016

Page §§f53

55,473,885

$509
$1,937
$30,000
$27,000
$80,000

$139,445

630,296

630,296

630,296

56,243,626




SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
2015-2016 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 31,095,993 § -3 - $ - $ 31,095,993
Designated 5,199,963 - - 5,199,963
Auxiliary Enterprises 6,105,647 - 6,105,647
Trust - -
Restricted 5,443,161 5,443,161
Total $ 478447764 § -9 - % - $ 47844,764
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: $ 31,095,993
Previously Approved by Board: $ -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $ -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: $ -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ -
Adjusted Budget: $ 31,095,993
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: $ 5,199,963
Previously Approved by Board: $ -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: $ -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: $ -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: $ -
Adjusted Budget: $ 5,199,963
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: $ 6,105,647
Previously Approved by Board: $ -

236




SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Across the board faculty and staff raises
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

TRUST
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

RESTRICTED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

237

6,105,647

5,443,161

5,443,161




Texas State University

FISCAL YEAR 2017 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General 272,396,909 0 0 0 272,396,909
Designated 252,828,000 0 0 0 252,828,000
Auxiliary Enterprises 142,671,000 0 0 0 142,671,000
Total 667,895,909 0 0 0 667,895,909
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 272,396,909
Previously Approved by Board: 0
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Total requested budget adjustments this period: 0
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Total adjustments approved by President this period: 0
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 0
Adjusted Budget: 272,396,909
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 252,828,000
Previously Approved by Board: 0
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Total requested budget adjustments this period: 0
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Total adjustments approved by President this period: 0
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 0

238




Texas State University

Adjusted Budget: 252,828,000

AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES

Original Budget: 142,671,000
Previously Approved by Board: 0

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Total requested budget adjustments this period: 0

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:

Total adjustments approved by President this period: 0
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 0
Adjusted Budget: 142,671,000

239



For the Period Ending 9/30/16

Lamar Institute of Technology

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 14,161,299 $ -3 - $ 123,970 14,285,269
Designated 6,228,166 30,103 6,258,269
Auxiliary Enterprises 2,448,260 15,903 2,464,163
Trust - - -
Restricted - - -
Total $ 22837725 $ - $ -3 169,976 23,007,701
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 14,161,299
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrance 123,970
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 123,970
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 123,970
Adjusted Budget: 14,285,269
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 6,228,166
Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None -
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrance 30,103
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 30,103
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 30,103
Adjusted Budget: 6,258,269

240




For the Period Ending 9/30/16

Lamar Institute of Technology
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:

None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrance

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

TRUST
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

241

$ 2,448,260

$ -
$ -
15,903
15,903
$ 15,903

$ 2,464,163




For the Period Ending 9/30/16

Lamar Institute of Technology

RESTRICTED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:
Prior Year Encumbrances

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

242




For the Period Ending 09/30/2016

Lamar State College - Orange

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 16,645,301 $ - $ 3,098,269 $ 19,743,570
Designated 6,018,415 - 330,981 6,349,396
Auxiliary Enterprises 820,538 - - 820,538
Total $ 23,484,254 $ - $§ 3429250 § 26,913,504
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: 16,645,301
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Multipurpose Education Building 1,717,074
Workforce Education Building 1,381,195
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 3,098,269
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget: 19,743,570
DESIGNATED
Original Budget: 6,018,415
Previously Approved by Board: -
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Workforce Education 330,981
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: 330,981
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported: -
Approved This Period:
None -
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -
Adjusted Budget: 6,349,396

243



For the Period Ending 09/30/2016

Lamar State College - Orange
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
None
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
None
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

Adjusted Budget:

244

820,538

820,538



Lamar State College Port Arthur

FISCAL YEAR 2017 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

Adjustments Requiring Board Approval Cumulative
Previously Requested Adjustments
Original Approved Budget Approved by Adjusted
Fund Budget by Board Adjustments President Budget
Education & General $ 13,857,018 $ -$ - $ 18,000 $ 13,875,018
Designated 4,223,688 - 26,650 20,000 4,270,338
Auxiliary Enterprises 1,979,970 - - - 1,979,970
Total $ 20,060,676 $ -3 26,650 $ 38,000 $§ 20,125,326
EDUCATION & GENERAL
Original Budget: $ 13,857,018
Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -
Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:
HEF Utility Setup for Technology Building 13,000
HEF land Purchase 5,000
Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: 18,000
Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: 18,000

Adjusted Budget:

DESIGNATED
Original Budget:

Previously Approved by Board:
Requested Budget Adjustments:
Increase Worforce Budget due to Revenue Collections

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period:

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:
Approved This Period:

Increase Welding Budget due to Revenue Collections

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period:

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:

$ 13,875,018

$ 4,223,688

26,650

26,650

20,000

20,000

20,000




Lamar State College Port Arthur

FISCAL YEAR 2017 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED ADJUSTMENTS
For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

Adjusted Budget: $ 4,270,338
AUXILIARY ENTERPRISES
Original Budget: $ 1,979,970

Previously Approved by Board:

Requested Budget Adjustments:

Total Requested Budget Adjustments This Period: -

Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President:
Previously Reported:

Approved This Period:

Total Adjustments Approved by President This Period: -

Total Cumulative Adjustments Approved by President: -

Adjusted Budget: $ 1,979,970

246



TSUS: Statement of Budgeted Fund Balances

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

STATEMENT OF BUDGETED FUND BALANCES
EXPLANATION OF INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE STATEMENT

@}

OLUMN

=

Description of fund balances by fund group and source of funds.

@]

OLUMN

N

Fund balances as reported in the Annual Financial Report.

@]

OLUMN

w

Fund balances included as a source of support for the 2016 fiscal year operating budget
approved by the Board of Regents.

@]

OLUMN

IN

Additional Board of Regents approved usage of available beginning fund balances.

@]

OLUMN

[6)]

Net available fund balances. {Column 2 minus Columns 3 and 4}

UNRESTRICTED CURRENT FUND BALANCES

Funds representing the net accumulation, over the years, of the excess of current
funds revenues over current funds expenditures and transfers. It is available for
future operating purposes or any other use determined by the Board to the extent that
the total fund balance exceeds the amount reported as Reserved.

@]

OLUMN

D

Reservations for third party claims that have not materialized as liabilities against
resources and the existence of assets that, because of their non-monetary nature or
lack of liquidity, represent financial resources not available for current appropriation or
expenditure.

247



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF BUDGETED FUND BALANCES
EXPLANATION OF INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE STATEMENT
(concluded)

Examples of reserved fund balances:

Reserve for Encumbrances
Reserve for Accounts Receivable
Reserve for Inventories

And Etc.

COLUMN 7

The allocation of the Unreserved Fund Balances represents managements’ decision
to assign tentative resources for definite plans and/or usages. It is within
management’s prerogative to change allocations and/or to designate these resources
as unallocated.

COLUMN 8

The Unallocated balance of the Unreserved Fund Balances is the balance after
considering the Reserved and Allocated designations.

NON-CURRENT FUNDS

Fund groups not available for current operating needs are classified as Non-current
Funds. It should be noted that these funds are not included in the annual operating
budgets that are approved by the Board.

COLUMN 9

Quasi-Endowments are funds functioning as endowments and are created by the
Board of Regents. The funds, generally derived from current funds, are retained and
invested for use to satisfy specific purposes. As a general rule these funds can be
unendowed by the Board and returned to their status as a current fund.

Plant Funds are used to account for financial activities related to the institutions fixed assets.
Fund balances within the Plant Funds are comprised primarily of Net Investment in Plant, funds
held for the Retirement of Indebtedness, and funds needed to complete current construction
contracts. Institutions may hold funds for anticipated or scheduled (projected) building projects.
The institutions may revert these funds to current operating funds for utilization for operating
purposes.

248



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUT 31,2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED

DESCRIPTION 9/1/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED ALLOCATED  UNALLOCATED  RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL
TOTAL E&G 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
DESIGNATED

Other Income 5,241,478.03 3,487,574.42 3,487,574.42
TOTAL DESIGNATED 5,241,478.03 0.00 0.00 3,487,574.42 0.00 3,487,574.42 0.00 0.00
AUXILIARY

0.00 0.00
TOTAL AUXILIARY 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
7,467,444.98 7,406,433.79 7,406,433.79
TOTAL ENDOWMENT AND 7,467,444.98 0.00 0.00 7,406,433.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,406,433.79
SIMILAR FUNDS

PLANT FUNDS

Invested in Capital Assets, (905,778,052.91) (850,358,913.49) (850,358,913.49)

Capital Projects (9,426,651.07) (16,372,553.33) (16,372,553.33)
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS (915,204,703.98) 0.00 0.00 (866,731,466.82) 0.00 0.00 0.00 (866,731,466.82)
TOTAL ALL FUNDS (902,495,780.97) 0.00 0.00 (855,837,458.61) 0.00 3,487,574.42 0.00 (859,325,033.03)

249



LAMAR UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED
DESCRIPTION 9/1/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED ALLOCATED UNALLOCATED RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL
Dedicated GR Funds 651,242.24 651,242.24 (651,242.24)
Other (588,050.67) (588,050.67) 588,050.67
HEAF 1,277,134.26 1,277,134.26 1,277,134.26
TOTAL E&G 1,340,325.83 0.00 0.00 1,340,325.83 0.00 (63,191.57) 1,277,134.26 0.00
DESIGNATED
Designated Tuition 12,246,737.91 12,246,737.91 1,837,011.00 10,409,726.91
Information Technology 4,266,094.86 4,266,094.86 2,550,000.00 1,716,094.86
Library Fees (224,428.23) (224,428.23) (224,428.23)
All Other Fees 930,195.63 930,195.63 930,195.63
Distance Education 1,066,071.19 1,066,071.19 2,986,754.45
Sales and Services 972,054.61 972,054.61 972,054.61
Institutional Scholarships 2,744,089.28 2,744,089.28 2,744,089.28
Other Income 5218,016.78 5218,016.78 5218,016.78
TOTAL DESIGNATED 27,218,832.03 0.00 0.00 27,218,832.03 4,387,011.00 6,805,838.79 15,112,576.22 2,744,089.28
AUXILIARY
Student Service Fees (1,236,640.73) (1,236,640.73)
Medical Service Fees 628,048.88 628,048.88 628,048.88
Student Center Fees 2,199,078.84 2,199,078.84 2,199,078.84
Bookstore 1,460,144.14 1,460,144.14 1,460,144.14
Parking 1,038,972.80 1,038,972.80 1,038,972.80
Food Service 3,236,820.25 3,236,820.25 3,236,820.25
Student Housing 5,937,871.76 5,937,871.76 5,937,871.76
Montagne Center (3,392,097.20) (3,392,097.20)
Athletic Fee (5,553,639.35) (5,553,639.35)
Auxiliary Donation 2,335,078.80 2,335,078.80 2,335,078.80
Other 440,398.67 440,398.67 440,398.67
TOTAL AUXILIARY 7,094,036.86 0.00 0.00 7,094,036.86 8,272,950.56 4,306,499.19 4,696,964.39 0.00
RESTRICTED CURRENT
FUNDS
8,865,548.16 8,865,548.16 8,865,548.16
LOAN FUNDS
1,530,373.14 1,530,373.14 1,530,373.14
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
20,410,200.59 20,410,200.59 20,410,200.59
PLANT FUNDS
Administration Building 5,005,795.61 5,005,795.61 5,005,795.61
General Construction 612,806.47 612,806.47 612,806.47
Series 2013 Energy Bond 2,090431.10 2,090431.10 2,090,431.10
HEAF - Construction 5,288,239.21 5,288,239.21 5,288,239.21
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS 12,997,272.39 0.00 0.00 12,997,272.39 0.00 12,997,272.39 0.00 0.00
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 79,456,589.00 0.00 0.00 79,456,589.00 12,659,961.56 24,136,418.80 21,086,674.87 33,550,211.17

250



SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BUDGETED FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 - August 31,2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE CURRENT FUNDS NON-CURRENT
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED FUNDS
DESCRIPTION 9/1/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED ALLOCATED  UNALLOCATED  RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL
Fund 259 $ 935,129 $ -8 130,791 $ 804,338 $ 38 $ 803,949 $ - S -
LEMIT 1,992,382 - 22,718 1,969,664 -3 1,969,664 - -
CMIT 279,437 - 2,039 277,399 2 - - -
HEAF 5,184,052 - - 5,184,052 67 5,183,985 - -
TOTAL E&G $ 8,391,000 $ - S 155,548 $ 8,235452 § 458 § 7,957,598 $ - S -
DESIGNATED
Designated Tuition $ 3,280,842 § - S 190,672 $ 3,090,170 $ 11,856 $ 3,078,314 § - S -
Course Fees 9,050 - - 9,050 - 9,050 - -
Computer Use Fees 1,209,942 - - 1,209,942 - 1,209,942 - -
Advisement Fees 472,829 - 413,642 59,187 - 59,187 - -
Library Fees 429,093 - 90,000 339,093 - 339,093 - -
Recreation Fees 490,640 - - 490,640 1,255 489,385 - -
All Other Fees 5,035,684 - 1,169,653 3,866,032 216 3,865,816 - -
Indirect Cost Recovery 2,062,831 - - 2,062,831 471 2,062,361 - -
Continuing Education - - - - - - - -
Sales and Services 4,678,800 - 855,807 3,822,993 95 3,822,898 - -
Investment Income - - - - - - - -
Other Income 3,430,900 - 302,516 3,128,384 - 3,128,384 - -
TOTAL DESIGNATED $ 21,100,611 $ - 8 3,022,289 $ 18,078,322 § 13,892 § 18,064,430 $ - 8 -
AUXILIARY
Student Service Fees $ 716,997 $ - S 67,792 $ 649,205 $ -3 649,205 § -8 -
Medical Service Fees 507,513 - 216,485 291,028 746 290,283 - -
Student Center Fees 302,321 - - 302,321 - 302,321 - -
Athletics Student Service Fees 1,615,486 - 1,046,600 568,886 15314 553,571 - -
Recreational Sports Fees - - - - - - - -
Other Student Fees - - - - - - -
Food Service 2,048,123 - - 2,048,123 - 2,048,123 - -
Housing 6,906,941 - 3,520,616 3,386,325 12 3,386,312 - -
Other Sales and Services 7,437,272 - 1,476,917 5,960,356 13,063 5,947,293 - -
Investment Income 632,862 - 15,640 617,222 26 617,196 - -
TOTAL AUXILIARY $ 20,167,517 $ - 8 6,344,050 $ 13,823,466 $ 29,161 $ 13,794,305 $ - 8 -
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
Quasi-Endowments $ 17,212,846 $ - S -3 17,212,846 $ -3 - 8 - S 17,212,846
PLANT FUNDS
HEAF $ -8 - S -8 - S - 8 -8 - S -
Tuition Revenue Bonds - - - - - - - -
Current Building Projects 107,635,032 - - 107,635,032 - - - 107,635,032
Projected Building Projects - - - - - - - -
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS $ 107,635,032 $ - 8 -3 107,635,032 $ -3 - 8 - S 107,635,032
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 174,507,005 $ - 8 9,521,887 $ 164,985,118 $ 43,511 $ 39,816,334 $ - 8 124,847,878

251



SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY-COMBINED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED

DESCRIPTION 9/1/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED RESTRICTED  ALLOCATED UNALLOCATED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL

Fund 262 1,101,598.87 - 1,101,598.87 1,101,598.87

HEAF 3,521,502.09 3,521,502.09 3,521,502.09
TOTAL E&G 4,623,100.96 - - 4,623,100.96  4,623,100.96 - - -
DESIGNATED

Designated Tuition 1,241,041.52 365,312.00 - 875,729.52 875,729.52

Course Fees 4,374.42 - 4,374.42 4,374.42

Computer Use Fees 238,895.49 - 238,895.49 238,895.49

Advisement Fees - - -

Library Fees 127,092.14 127,092.14 - 127,092.14

Recreation Fees - - -

All other Fees 1,768,402.80 - 1,768,402.80 1,768,402.80

Indirect cost recovery 573,444.16 573,444.16 573,444.16
Continuing Education 32,712.71 32,712.71 32,712.71
Sales and Services - -

Investment Income - -
Other Income 4,370,837.87 4,370,837.87 4,370,837.87
TOTAL DESIGNATED 8,356,801.11 365,312.00 - 7,991,489.11 - 7,991,489.11 - -
AUXILIARY

Student Service Fees 717,226.58 166,878.00 - 550,348.58 550,348.58

Medical Service Fees 119,770.70 - 119,770.70 119,770.70

Student Center Fees (94,388.63) - (94,388.63) - (94,388.63)

Recreational Sports Fee 124,564.31 21,762.00 - 102,802.31 102,802.31

Athletic Fee 20,975.19 20,975.19 20,975.19

Other Student Fees 106,019.84 - 106,019.84 106,019.84

Food Service - -

Housing 1,719,005.34  1,719,005.34 - - -

Other Sales and Services - - -

Investment Income - -
TOTAL AUXILIARY 2,713,173.33  1,907,645.34 - 805,527.99 - 805,527.99 - -
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
Quasi-Endowments - -
PLANT FUNDS

HEAF (29,010.89) (29,010.89) - (29,010.89)

Current Building Projects - - - -

Reserve for Debt Service 20,530.23 (1,719,005.34) - 1,739,535.57 1,739,535.57

Projected Building Projects 1,089,934.22 1,089,934.22 1,089,934.22
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS 1,081,453.56  (1,719,005.34) - 2,800,458.90 - - - 2,800,458.90
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 16,774,528.96 553,952.00 - 16,220,576.96  4,623,100.96 8,797,017.10 - 2,800,458.90

252



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE CURRENT FUNDS NON-CURRENT
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED FUNDS

DESCRIPTION 8/31/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED ALLOCATED  UNALLOCATED  RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL

Fund 260 2,234,587 1,674,624 559,963 460,496 99,466
TOTAL E&G 2,234,587 - 1,674,624 559,963 460,496 - 99,466 -
DESIGNATED

Designated Tuition 43,686,811 37,363,350 6,322,961 5,491,042 831,919

Computer Use Fees 4,865,070 2,555,936 2,309,134 415910 1,893,223

Advisement Fees 2,394,111 1,222,120 1,171,992 18,883 1,153,109

Library Fees 4,373,758 89,940 4,283,818 43,300 4,240,018

All Other Fees 5,625,530 2,155,752 3,469,778 81,725 3,388,054

Indirect Cost Recovery 5,096,619 4,327,595 769,024 246,763 522,261

Sales and Services 18,719,753 2,396,741 16,323,012 1,741,287 14,581,724
Service Departments 4,904,696 - 4,904,696 1,925,333 2,979,363
TOTAL DESIGNATED 89,666,348 - 50,111,934 39,554,414 9,964,743 29,589,671 - -
AUXILIARY

Student Service Fees 4,700,158 2,139,148 2,561,011 73,685 2,487,326

Medical Service Fees 2,090,306 - 2,090,306 72,819 2,017,487

Student Center Fees 5,316,409 703,982 4,612,427 277,581 4,334,846

Recreational Sports Fees 2,831,593 315,800 2,515,793 200,160 2,315,633

Other Student Fees 2,907,670 - 2,907,670 120,071 2,787,599

Food Service 2,933,679 1,330,603 1,603,076 59,075 1,544,001

Housing 27,169,903 9,540,000 17,629,903 551,624 17,078,279

Other Sales and Services 20,092,042 1,273,695 18,818,347 4,150,339 14,668,008
TOTAL AUXILIARY 68,041,760 - 15,303,227 52,738,533 5,505,354 47,233,180 - -
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR

FUNDS -

Quasi-Endowments 16,428,342 500,000 15,928,342 15,928,342
PLANT FUNDS

HEAF 23,579,669 23,579,669 - -

Tuition Revenue Bonds 6,789,882 6,789,882 - -

System Revenue Bonds 61,108,630 61,108,630 - -

Projected Building Projects 19,898,055 19,898,055 - -
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS 111,376,237 23,579,669 87,796,568 - - - - -
TOTAL ALL FUNDS 287,747,274 23,579,669 155,386,353 108,781,252 15,930,593 76,822,850 99,466 15,928,342

253



LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED

DESCRIPTION 09/01/15 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 08/31/16 RESERVED ALLOCATED UNALLOCATED RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL

Fund 287 $61,536 $61,536 $0 $61,536

HEAF 10,256,215 0 0 10,256,215 7,827,201 2,429,014
TOTAL E&G 10,317,751 0 0 10,317,751 7,827,201 2,490,550 0 0
DESIGNATED

Designated Tuition 3,048,195 0 0 3,048,195 0 3,048,195

Course Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Computer Use Fees 404,926 0 0 404,926 0 404,926

Advisement Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Library Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Recreation Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

All Other Fees 8,736 0 0 8,736 0 8,736

Indirect Cost Recovery 0 0 0 0 0 0

Continuing Education 0 0 0 0 0 0

Sales and Services 0 0 0 0 0 0

Investment Income 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL DESIGNATED 3,461,856 0 0 3,461,856 0 3,461,856 0 0
AUXILIARY

Student Service Fees 2,927,235 0 0 2,927,235 0 2,927,235

Medical Service Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Student Center Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Recreational Sports Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Student Fees 446,104 0 0 446,104 0 446,104

Food Service 0 0 0 0 0 0

Housing 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other Sales and Services 0 0 0 0 0 0

Investment Income 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL AUXILIARY 3,373,339 0 0 3,373,339 0 3,373,339 0 0
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
Quasi-Endowments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PLANT FUNDS

HEAF 0 0 0 0 0 0

TRB 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PLANT FUNDS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $17,152,947 $0 $0 $17,152,947 $7,827,201 $9,325,745 $0 $0

254



Lamar State College-Orange
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED

DESCRIPTION 9/1/2015 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 8/31/2016 RESERVED ALLOCATED UNALLOCATED RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL

Fund 285 $ 8,005 $ 8,005 $ 8,005 $ -

HEAF 3,580,357 $ 650,000 2,930,357 2,930,357

HB2 Section 18 Funds 1,077,557 - 1,077,557 1,077,557
TOTAL E&G 4,665,919 - 650,000 4,015,919 4,015,919 - - -
DESIGNATED

Designated Tuition 6,216,176 6,216,176 6,216,176

Computer Use Fees 2,279,015 100,000 222,079 1,956,936 1,956,936

Library Fees 291,510 40,000 251,510 251,510

All Other Fees 299,082 299,082 299,082

Indirect Cost Recovery 1,721,321 1,721,321 1,721,321

Workforce Ed/Leisure Learn 369,726 28,090 11,021 330,615 330,615

Other Income 378,601 378,601 378,601
TOTAL DESIGNATED 11,555,431 168,090 233,100 11,154,241 - 11,154,241 - -
AUXILIARY

Student Service Fees 2,477,400 12,286 2,465,114 2,465,114

Student Center Fees 405,751 405,751 405,751

Other Student Fees 291,868 291,868 291,868

Food Service 706 360 346 346

Other Sales and Services 329,084 26,000 303,084 303,084
TOTAL AUXILIARY 3,504,809 - 38,646 3,466,163 - 3,466,163 - -
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
Quasi-Endowments -
PLANT FUNDS

HEAF -

Current Building Projects -

Projected Building Projects -
TOTAL PLANT FUNDS - - - - - - - -
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $ 19,726,159 $ 168,090 $ 921,746 $ 18,636,323 $ 4,015919 § 14,620,404 $ -3

255



LAMAR STATE COLLEGE PORT ARTHUR
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2016

AVAILABLE AVAILABLE
BALANCE BUDGETED BALANCE UNRESERVED

DESCRIPTION 09/01/15 ORIGINAL SUPPLEMENTAL 08/31/16 RESERVED ALLOCATED UNALLOCATED  RESTRICTED
EDUCATIONAL & GENERAL

Fund 286 $215,252 $215,252 $215,252

HEAF 4,500,196 1,140,855 291,671 3,067,670 3,067,670
TOTAL E&G 4,715,448 1,140,855 3,282,922 3,282,922 0 0
DESIGNATED

Designated Tuition 723,958 117,306 606,652 606,652

Insititutional Scholarships 507,451 507,451 507,451

Computer Use Fees 253,493 253,493 253,493

IT Contingency 140,560 140,560 140,560

Student Library Fee 101,339

All Other Fees 1,910 1,910 1,910

Other Income 0 0
TOTAL DESIGNATED 1,728,711 0 117,306 1,510,066 0 1,510,066 0
AUXILIARY

Student Service Fees 85,356 85,356 85,356

Parking Fee 191,316 191,316 191,316

Bookstore 24,320 24,320 24,320

Other Sales and Services 64,615 64,615 64,615
TOTAL AUXILIARY 365,607 0 0 365,607 0 365,607 0
ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR
FUNDS
Quasi-Endowments 1,169,330 1,169,330 0 1,169,330
PLANT FUNDS

HEAF 0

TRB 0

Other 0

TOTAL PLANT FUNDS 0
TOTAL ALL FUNDS $7,979,096 $1,140,855 $117,306 $6,327,925 $3,282,922 $1,875,673 $1,169,330

256



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
LAMAR INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
Inter-Component |Use of HEAF funds: Re-bills from LU should not be paid for | LIT is no longer paying LU for Library re-bills with HEAF In Progress

Re-bills
LIT Results,
October 2013

with HEAF funds. Prior payments of the LU library re-bills
which used HEAF funds should be refunded retroactively
from other sources.

funds. LIT developed a plan to repay the HEAF funds from
other sources to cover those costs. The repayment plan
will cover 10 years with one repayment per year. LIT will
begin budgeting for the repayments within the FY 2017
budget with the first repayment planned for May 2017.

Person Responsible: Bonnie Albright, Vice President for
Finance and Operations

Timetable for Completion: First repayment completed: May
31, 2017

the ability to easily reach into the cashier’s area.

front counter to reduce the ability to easily reach into
the cashier’s area.

Person Responsible: Donna Quebedeaux, Director of

Technology Issues, recommendations, and management action plans for this audit are actively being addressed. The details are not presented here due to
Services exemptions allowed for information that relates to computer network security or to the design, operation, or defense of a computer network (Texas
Department, Government Code 552.139).
July 2015
There were six (6) audit recommendations resulting from this audit. The status for these items are as follows:
» Two (2) recommendations: Implemented
» Four (4) recommendations: In Progress
Missing Cash Cashier’s Office Physical Security over Cash Receipts: 1. LITis in the process of restyling the Cashier’s Office In Progress
Investigation, 1. Install cash drawers with individually keyed working front counter which will include individually keyed
December 2015 locks. locks on the cash drawers. In the interim, the cashiers
are locking their cash drawers in the safe when they
2. Evaluate and consider implementing surveillance are not at their assigned stations.
cameras both inside and outside the Cashier's Office, | 2. LIT is currently considering installing campus wide In Progress
including the safe area. surveillance cameras and the Cashier’s Office will be
included in this project.
3. Designate exact areas where the silent alarms areto | 3. LIT is in the process of restyling the Cashier’s Office In Progress
be kept. Test and replace batteries on a scheduled front counter which will include alarm buttons for each
basis and document the dates tested and when cashier station. There are currently three working
batteries are replaced. panic alarm buttons on the front counter within easy
reach from any of the four windows. Batteries are
tested and replaced, if necessary, on a quarterly basis
and a log is kept.
4. Modify the design of the cashier’'s windows to reduce | 4. LIT is in the process of restyling the Cashier’s Office In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

257




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

Finance

Timetable for Completion:
1. December 31, 2016
2. December 31, 2016
3. December 31, 2016
4, December 31, 2016

Workforce Development and Continuing Education
Courses:

¢ Management should implement an automated process
to address the following:

0 Assign individual LIT student ID numbers for
individuals taking non-credit courses,

0 Add non-credit courses to Banner or another
application with the ability to interface with
Banner, and

o Provide for online registering and payment for
non-credit courses.

Management will work with the Director of Technology
Services to investigate options to include students enrolled
in noncredit courses on the Banner system. The following
actions have been or will be taken:

0 Completed review of online registration, class
records, and payment services for students enrolled
in noncredit courses on June 15, 2016 and XenDirect
was chosen as the desired program.

0 Submitted purchase requisition for President’s
signature for XenDirect program services on June
27, 2016.

0 Received XenDirect program access from
Xenegrade Corporation by August 1, 2016.

0 Contacted Xenegrade Corporation representative to
provide XenDirect program training for Workforce
Development Department staff by August 31, 2016.

o Install and configure XenDirect program on the LIT
network with initial student course enrollment input
by October 17, 2016.

Person Responsible: Patrick Calhoun, Vice President of

Workforce Development

Timetable for Completion:

e Completed review of online services to provide Banner
access to students enrolled in noncredit courses on
June 15, 2016.

e Establish Banner access to students enrolled in
noncredit courses by October 17, 2016.

In Progress

Benefits
Proportionality
Audit,

August 2016

No recommendations made.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

258




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

LAMAR STATE

COLLEGE-ORANGE

Benefits
Proportionality,
August 2016

On a go-forward basis, LSCO should develop a
methodology to determine the appropriate allocation of
salaries and benefits between general revenue funds and
auxiliary enterprises for employees working at the Brown
Estate. LSCO should work with its ACO to determine and
reimburse amounts owed to general revenue for salaries
and benefits paid with general revenues that should have
been borne by auxiliary enterprises.

Management concurs with the recommendation to develop a
methodology to determine the appropriate allocation of
salaries and benefits between general revenue funds and
auxiliary funds for employees working at the Brown Estate.

In addition, management agrees to work with the
Appropriation Control Officer to determine and reimburse
amounts owed to general revenue for benefits paid with
general revenue that should have been borne by the auxiliary
enterprise fund.

Person Responsible: Dana N. Rogers, Vice-President for
Finance and Operations

Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016

In Progress

LAMAR STATE

COLLEGE-PORT ARTHUR

Benefits
Proportionality,
August 2016

LSCPA should improve internal controls over the APS 011
preparation by ensuring local and state records reconcile.

Management concurs. Lamar State College Port Arthur has
implemented a process to reconcile actual amounts paid to
the Teacher’s Retirement System (TRS) with amounts
recorded in the Uniform Statewide Accounting System
(USAS). In addition, the person transferring funds to TRS will
also be making the entry in USAS for our re-imbursement.

Person Responsible: Mary Wickland, Vice President for
Finance and Operations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Implemented

EXTERNAL AUDIT
REPORT:

Texas Higher
Education
Coordinating
Board,
Appropriation Year
2015 A-133
Evaluation and
Desk Review

Lamar State College Port Arthur failed to provide adequate
time and effort reporting documentation as required by the
2014-15 Perkins RFA, Section 9.29 and as stated in 2 CFR
Part 220, Section J.10.c(2)(a). Time and Effort Reports for
employee LM did not reflect the distribution of activity
expended by employee. It is recommended that Lamar
State College Port Arthur revise and strengthen its Time
and Effort Policies and Procedures to require verification of
the percentage distribution of activity of employees as part
of the review and approval of time and effort reports.

Management concurs with the desk review findings. LM’s
salary is prorated between two funding sources at 50% each.
LSCPA will revise the Time and Effort Reports to reflect the
total of both funding sources equaling 100%. The 50%
funding that was left off the time and effort reports is the state
funding which from now on will be included in the
“State/Local” box of the report.

Person Responsible: Mary Wickland, Vice President for
Finance and Operations

Implemented

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

259




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

Management
Letter,
July 2016

Timetable for Completion: July 25, 2016

LAMAR UNIVERSITY

IT Physical
Environment,
October 2012

Government Code 552.139).

»  Six (6) recommendations: Implemented

N

» Two (2) recommendations: In Progress

There were eight (8) audit recommendations resulting from this audit. The status for these items are as follows:

Issues, recommendations, and management action plans for this audit are actively being addressed. The details are not presented here due to
exemptions allowed for information that relates to computer network security or to the design, operation, or defense of a computer network (Texas

Cash Collection
Functions,
December 2012

There were several issues adversely impacting the security
of sports box offices:

Continuing functioning of equipment should be properly
monitored and maintained.

The replacement of the E-Watch video camera system is still
underway. Genetec is the selected vendor and a partnership
of IT and the Police Department is working with an integrator
for the project.

Approval was granted for funding Phase | implementation:

President’s Residence (Completed)
Data Centers (Completed)

New Administration building (Completed)
CICE building (Pending)

Dorm locations (Completed)

Dorm Exterior & Parking (Pending)

Dual systems will be managed until all E-Watch cameras are
migrated to the Genetec system. This project will also allow
the inclusion of access control in combination with the Video
surveillance system.

Video surveillance system upgrades for the main Sports Box-
Office include:

e Montagne Center (Completed)

Person Responsible: Chief Hector Flores

In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

260




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

Timetable for Completion: December 31, 2016

Inter-Component Accounts Receivable Sub-ledger: Implement a suitable Lamar University has reviewed AR system requirements, In Progress
Re-bills, system to support invoicing and accounts receivable for evaluated currently licensed products for applicability, and is

LU Results, use in most of the cases identified in the audit. working with the other Lamar components to establish an

October 2013 inter-component receivable process. Discussions are still

ongoing due to many factors including additional services
added or services to be discontinued.

Person Responsible: Twila Baker, AVP Finance
Timetable for Completion: December 31, 2016
Improve year-end procedures to record the balance of
outstanding receivable, especially for non-centralized Work on year-end procedures to record balances of In Progress
systems (e.g., medical billing systems) outstanding receivables is in process. A new software
program was purchased to assist in the year end
reconciliation as well as the addition of additional personnel.

Person Responsible: Twila Baker, AVP Finance
Timetable for Completion: December 31, 2016

Center for Records Retention Management within the Mary and John Gray Library has
Executive assumed responsibility for records retention, effective
Leadership Audit, | The University should: October 31, 2014, and the Director of Library Services
April 2014 assumed the role of Records Management Officer. Effective

November 2014, the University Archivist assumed the role of
Records Retention Coordinator.

2. Develop a records retention schedule specific to the 2. Assumption of these responsibilities will require a long In Progress
needs of the University and submit it to TSLAC, as planning period during which timelines will be established for
required by Government Code Title 4, Subtitle D, policy, procedure, and retention schedule development. The
Chapter 441.185. Records Retention Coordinator submitted a 101 page draft of

a campus records retention schedule to the Texas State
Library and Archives Commission (TSLAC) on September
28, 2015. Suggested changes and additions were received
from TSLAC. Draft revisions were made to the document
(now 134 pages) and returned to TSLAC for review. (TSLAC
is currently experiencing a significant backlog).

Person Responsible: David Carroll, Director of Library
Services.
Timetable for Completion: January 1, 2017

3. Assumption of these responsibilities will require a long
planning period during which timelines will be established for | In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

261



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
3. Develop a records management policy defining the policy, procedure, and retention schedule development. The
types of data to be retained, retention responsibilities, Records Retention Coordinator created a Records
timeframes for retaining those records, and required Disposition Log for the Lamar campus in late July 2015,
steps for destruction. which lists records series titles, retention periods, dates of

records, disposition, dates of disposition, and signatures
authorizing disposition. To date, the Records Retention
Coordinator has authorized destruction of records from
Purchasing, Procurement, and Finance.

A draft records retention policy has been created which has
been modeled after other universities. This draft records
retention policy will go through the proper reviews and will
ultimately be presented to University Executive Leadership
for approval. In addition, a meeting has been scheduled with
the Center for Executive Leadership personnel to discuss
their unique records and appropriate lengths of time for
retention of their records. The draft records retention policy is
still in the review stage. The University Archivist met with
office staff at the Center for Executive Leadership over a two
day period in July 2017.

Person Responsible: David Carroll, Director of Library
Services.
Timetable for Completion: January 1, 2017

4. The Center will purge all documents not in compliance with
the University Records Retention Schedule but is waiting for | In Progress
4. Ensure that the Center for Executive Leadership purge | the adoption of the University’s Document Management

all documents not in compliance with the certified RRS | Policy which will contain the Records Retention Schedule.

recommended above.
Person Responsible: Dr. Bill Holmes, Interim Chair
Timetable for Completion: Begin immediately, finalize within
90 days of receiving the final draft of the University's
Document Management Policy.

ACH & Wire Management should ensure that all policies and LU has developed and revised procedures, as part of cash In Progress
Transfers, procedures for ACH and wire transfer administration and handling, for processing wire transfers or ACH batches to
May 2014 activities are formalized and current. include such information as description of ACH and wire

activity, policy/process owners, and internal control
descriptions. Finalization and approval of the drafts of these
procedures are pending due incorporating these into the
Manual of Administrative Policies and Procedures (MAPP).

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress
ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

262



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

Person Responsible: Twila Baker, AVP Finance
Timetable for Completion: March 31, 2016

Recreational
Sports,
August 2015

Statutory Accounting Requirements:

LU should account for Recreational Sports student fees in

a manner that demonstrates these funds are spent in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements.

Management will revise or establish recreational sports fee
revenue operating policies and procedures to ensure proper
financial management in accordance with applicable laws
and policies including: separate fund management (no
commingling of recreational fee revenue with other sources
of revenue) and regular review of expenditures and fund
balances.

The following are examples of the corrective action:

1. The Dance Team Scholarships will be provided through
Dance Team accounts not allocated by Student Service
fees.

2. Request that Dance Team Coordinator compensation be
reallocated to a different account not allocated by
Student Service Fees.

Person Responsible: Twila Baker, AVP Finance
Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016

Verification of
Implementation in Progress

Receipting and Depositing:

Recreational Sports should formalize receipting and
depositing procedures and monitor for compliance with
these procedures. Among other things, procedures
should mandate:

e All collections will be receipted.

Management will formalize receipting and depositing
procedures to ensure proper cash management in
accordance with applicable laws and policies as outlined in
Lamar University Cash Handling Procedures including:

e All locations will be receipted.
Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational

Sports
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Change Funds:

e Temporary increases in change funds should be
requested in advance of when needed and
immediately returned when the need ends.

e  Petty cash will be returned in allocated time frame and
will not be held in the departmental safe to be deposited
at a later date.

Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Refunds:

Recreational Sports Management implemented the following
changes:

Implemented |
Implemented |
Implemented |

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress
ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

263



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

Recreational Sports should implement the following
changes and monitor for future occurrences of similar
situations:

e  When refunding a complete invoice, refunds should
be made against the individual invoice line items.

e Recreational Sports management developed procedures
to ensure that refunds will be made against the individual
invoice line items when refunding a complete invoice.

Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Discounts:

Discounts should be periodically reviewed to determine
their genesis and to assure they comply with
Departmental expectations.

Management will periodically review discounts and reconcile
them to assure compliance. Discounts are no longer given for
Outdoor Pursuits or learn to swim lessons. Only two
individuals are allowed to input discounts into the system.

Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Hourly Payroll:

Management will revise or develop procedures to ensure
proper and timely payrolls, which may include:

deduction should be kept current.

Membership employees on a monthly basis and the
Human Resource office will notify Recreational Sports
staff of those membership employees who cancel their
payroll deduction memberships.
o0 When reports are received by Recreational
Sports, Recreational Sports reviews the
membership listing in CSI Spectrum and

e  Supervisors should enter explanations for all e Infinitime has a procedure in place to document any _
adjustments made to Infinitime time records. changes or adjustments prior to implementing the
change. The changes to times or dates cannot go into
effect unless a reason for the changes are given in the
pop up box.
e Post period adjustments should be made within e Due to offsite employee worksite events and not having Implemented
Infinitime by the individual most familiar with each a time clock at the facility worksite, intramural student
employee’s actual time worked. workers are input into Infinitime manually by a
supervisor. Student’s sign-in on an IPad and hours are
transferred to Infinitime.
Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
Memberships:
e  Membership records of employees on payroll e Payroll provides Recreational Sports with current active Implemented

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

264




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

reconciles membership to keep the database
current. The procedures are being refined as
management continues to enhance process
controls and training with staff on the new
procedures is ongoing. Final formalized
procedures are drafted and are being
revised. Final written procedures should be
adopted within two months.

e Documentation of guest passes authorized by the Implemented
Director are logged and retained. The procedures are
being refined as management continues to enhance
process controls and training with staff on the new
procedures is ongoing. Final formalized procedures are
drafted and are being revised. Final written procedures
should be adopted within two months.

e The protected information contained in membership e  CSI Spectrum services has been contacted to assist with | In Progress
records should be removed. identifying and removing the protected information from

our records.

e Documentation of guest passes authorized should be
retained.

Person Responsible: Twila Baker, AVP Finance and Art
Simpson, Director of Recreational Sports
Timetable for Completion: December 31, 2016

Employee Access: The following corrective action will be as follows: In Progress

e  Group/generic IDs should not be maintained. e  Generic ID shall be kept for workstation purpose. As
required by LU IT Policy 10.02.02, Security Passphrase
Policy, the Director will consult with the ISO and receive
the approval and documentation as required.

Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports and Dr. Vicki McNeil, VP of Student Engagement
Timetable for Completion: December 31, 2016

and offers services for the students. It operated as a
convenience to the members who utilized the facilities.
Recreational Sports does not have a student working
full-time in the Pro Shop. Patrons go to front desk to
request to make a purchase from Pro Shop. The student
supervisor enters the store to make a transaction.

Recreational Sports should resolve the ongoing Pro Shop
operating losses; fully liquidate slow moving inventory,
and collect/deposit sales tax.

Pro Shop: e  The Pro Shop provides employment for students to work Implemented

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

265



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
e Sales at the Pro Shop are sent to University Finance on | [mplemented
a monthly basis. University Finance accesses the taxes
to be paid and remits the payment to the State.
e Sales tax has been implemented and assessed to sales | [iipiefiented
items by University Finance. Gross sales have been
analyzed and three years of taxes were determine for
taxable sales and payment was made to the State.
Person Responsible: Art Simpson, Director of Recreational
Sports and Twila Baker, AVP Finance
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
Texas Higher Need to Complete Project Applications: 1. Management is taking corrective action. Facilities In Progress
Education management consulted with THECB for additional
Coordinating 1. Currently needed applications should be completed information and assistance. The University
Board Facilities as soon as possible. Administration and Honors Building (with a project
Audit, April 2016 budget of $25,028,340) has submitted a project
application: Project ID # 003581-16-002. The Regional
Innovation and Commercialization Center has not been
submitted for project approval as it is exempted because
it is below $10 million reporting threshold of Educational
and General dollars. Funding for this project is through a
federal grant administered by the General Land Office.
Total projected construction costs are approximately
$8.2 million. The building is a portion of the total amount
of the total grant. The Board Certification document is
pending.
2. The University should implement procedures and 2. The University is developing procedures and controls to | In Progress
controls to ensure each project application is ensure each project application is completed per THECB
completed per THECB requirements. requirements.
Person Responsible: Katherine Miller, AVP for Facilities
Planning and Design
Timetable for Completion: Project submission is completed.
Completion of remaining items should be completed by April
30, 2016.
Accuracy of Submitted Project Data: Management is taking corrective steps to implement the In Progress
The University should implement controls to maintain the | recommendation. The University will enhance existing
accuracy of the data submitted to the THECB for capital controls and develop new procedures as needed to maintain
development projects listed in the THECB Capital the accuracy of the data submitted to the THECB for capital
Expenditures Report. development projects listed in the THECB Capital
Expenditures Report.

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

266




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
Person Responsible: Katherine Miller, AVP for Facilities
Planning and Design
Timetable for Completion: Anticipated completion date is
April 30, 2016.
Annual Project Status and Tracking Report: Management has begun corrective actions. The University In Progress
The University should implement procedures and controls | has contacted the THECB for guidance and assistance with
to ensure the Project Status and Tracking Report is this process as well as their suggested best practices. The
completed per the requirements in the THECB rules. University is in the process of implementing procedures and
controls to ensure the Project Status and Tracking Report is
completed per the requirements in the THECB rules.
Person Responsible: Katherine Miller, AVP for Facilities
Planning and Design
Timetable for Completion: Anticipated completion date is
April 30, 2016.
Facilities Address Time Clock Record Anomalies: Management has developed a draft policy (Facilities In Progress
Maintenance e Facilities should formalize departmental procedures Maintenance Time Clock Policy) to address the time clock
Shop - Time that address employee and supervisor responsibilities | record anomalies. Time and attendance staff will reconcile
Reporting for time recording/clocking. leave with time clock and leave requests as described in
Investigation, e Supervisors should consistently review and document | policy.
August 2016 explanations for their employees’ time clock
anomalies. Person Responsible: Renee Hunter, Manager of
e All FLSA nonexempt employees should be required | Administrative Services
to follow the Department’s time recording/clocking Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016
procedures.
Reconcile Departmental Time Reporting Inconsistencies: | Management has developed a draft policy (Facilities In Progress
e Facilities should formalize a procedure for reconciling | Maintenance Time Clock Policy) to address the time
the four internal sources of time reporting. reporting inconsistencies. Time and attendance staff will work
e Supervisors should reconcile the four sources to with the supervisors to ensure accuracy of time reported.
confirm each employee’s correct time is reflected
therein to ensure accurate payments to the Person Responsible: Renee Hunter, Manager of
employee. Administrative Services
e Employees should be required to do their own data Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016
entry into School Dude.
Preapprove and Minimize Overtime: Facilities Maintenance Overtime Compensation Policy has In Progress

e  Overtime approval should be documented prior to the
actual work time being undertaken.

e Staff should be trained to request and obtain overtime
approval prior to undertaking overtime.

been written and is under review. The policy ensures
employees understand the rules governing overtime
compensation, to include the proper procedures in managing
compensatory time. It also outlines overtime request

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

267




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

e As permitted by policy, supervisors should consider procedures and encourages implementing flexible schedules
implementing flexible weekly scheduling to provide for | to reduce overtime when possible.
anticipated additional work requirements to reduce
the buildup of compensatory time. Person Responsible: David Martin, Director of Facilities

Maintenance & Operations
Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016

Review and Approve Overtime in a Timely Manner: Facilities Maintenance Overtime Compensation Policy has In Progress

e Facilities should formalize a procedure that each been written and is under review. Part of the policy outlines
supervisor timely sign all comp time reports. overtime request procedures to ensure comp time reports are

e  Supervisors should sign Comp Time Reports within approved in a timely manner.
one week of any overtime occurrence.

Person Responsible: David Martin, Director of Facilities
Maintenance & Operations
Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016

Reduce Inconsistencies When Making Overtime Facilities Maintenance Overtime Compensation Policy has In Progress

Payments: been written and is under review. The policy covers

e Facilities should adhere to the University guideline of | compensatory time reporting procedures to reduce overtime
paying out for comp time hours which exceed the payment inconsistencies.
specified maximum accruals.

e Compensation methodology for overtime worked Person Responsible: David Martin, Director of Facilities
during graduations, athletic games, and other campus | Maintenance & Operations and Renee Hunter, Manager of
events should be consistent for all employees Administrative Services
working each event. Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016

e As a best practice, payments made for comp time
hours accumulated in one fiscal year should be
processed so as to be charged to that fiscal year.

e Departmental monitoring should be strengthened to
ensure that employees are compensated for each
overtime instance and only compensated via a single
methodology, i.e., either by “onetime pay” or accruing
comp time.

Consistently Provide an Overtime Meal Period: Facilities Maintenance Overtime Compensation Policy and In Progress

e Facilities should work with Human Resources to On-Call policies have been written and are under review.
develop a policy addressing meal periods during Both policies include departmental policy on meal and rest
overtime work. breaks for personnel working overtime.

e Facilities should:

o ensure that all employees understand Person Responsible: David Martin, Director of Facilities
guidance for when an employee is on call, Maintenance & Operations

o consistently apply the same overtime meal Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016
period standards to all employees, and

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

268

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
0 account for the employee’s actual meal
period consistent with the policy, to be
developed, addressing meal periods during
overtime work.
Enforce Narrow Clock In/Out Time Frames: e The University is exploring an enterprise wide solution to | In Progress
e The University should consider enhancing existing time recording to avoid having multiple non-related and
University policies or consider providing guidance that non-interfacing time recording systems throughout the
includes expectations related to time clock use and University. Finance will establish an estimated timeline
require departments utilizing time clocks to develop for the enterprise wide solution. Until a solution is
and implement procedures to clarify specific adopted and implemented, Finance will provide
expectations of time clock use by their staff. guidance as needed and requested to departments
¢ Facilities should enforce narrow time frames for utilizing time clocks. The expectation is that employees
employees to clock in/out unless overtime has been are not to clock in early and are not to remain at work
preauthorized. after clocking out. In order to address immediate
concerns, Finance will hold a meeting with appropriate
management in areas utilizing time clocks to review
requirements and to inform them of expected procedures
for time clock use.
e Facilities Maintenance personnel have all been briefed In Progress
on clocking procedures. However, as part of the
departmental policy being developed for item #1,
clocking procedures will be addressed.
Person Responsible:
e  First Action Plan: Twila Baker, Associate Vice President
for Finance
e Second Action Plan: Renee Hunter, Manager of
Administrative Services
Timetable for Completion:
e  First Action Plan: December 31, 2016
e Second Action Plan: December 1, 2016
Correct Errors in Overtime Reporting: Management has developed a draft policy (Facilities In Progress
Prior to signing the F3.6 report, each supervisor should Maintenance Overtime Compensation Policy) policy to
agree the report to the employee’s Comp Time and address the overtime reporting. Time and attendance staff
Absence Reports for that month. will work with supervisors to ensure the accuracy of the F3.6
report prior to submission to Human Resources.
Person Responsible: Renee Hunter, Manager of
Administrative Services
Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

269




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
Establish Consistency for Department Minimums When Facilities Maintenance On-Call Policy has been written and is | In Progress
Calling In Employees to Work Overtime: under review. It includes call-back minimums and recall
e Call back minimums should be formalized in procedures for standby and after hours work.
Departmental procedures and communicated to all
employees. Person Responsible: David Martin, Director of Facilities
e Actual hours worked subject to a minimum should be | Maintenance & Operations
credited whenever an employee is called back to Timetable for Completion: December 1, 2016
work.
Benefits Lamar University did not have documented procedures or | Lamar University has drafted procedures and will incorporate | In Progress
Proportionality, a desk handbook for the process to be followed when these procedures into a desk handbook for the process to be
August 2016 preparing the Benefits Proportionality APS 011 followed when preparing the Benefits Proportionality APS
calculation. As a consequence, should the employee who | 011 calculation. These formalized procedures will enhance
currently prepares the calculation (i.e., the Director of the process by providing guidance and sources of needed
Finance) be unavailable, the employee actually preparing | information and the procedures to be followed. These
the APS 011 report would have no guidance on sources of | procedures will strengthen controls for APS 011 by
needed information or procedures to be followed. In such | minimizing the risk that a reporting error could occur. On
a situation, reporting error could more likely occur. September 1, the individual hired as the Senior Director of
Finance and Accounting began. This position will provide
additional oversight and monitoring for APS 011 as well as
other areas.
Person Responsible: Twila Baker, Associate Vice President
for Finance
Timetable for Completion: October 31, 2016
Scholarship Documented procedures detailing the scholarship While awaiting the finalization of a Scholarship Policy and In Progress
Management, management process should be developed and utilized Procedure manual, the Office of Financial Aid and

September 2016

for all scholarships awards. The following specific factors
should be considered:

e  Establish minimum requirements for selecting award
recipients when endowment agreements or other
guidelines (such as NCAA requirements) are not
available.

e Where appropriate, consider establishing a rubric to
weight the qualifications of all eligible students and/or
consider additional criteria that may impact college
readiness for scholarship awards (e.g., employment,
leadership positions, clubs and organizations,
community involvement, attendance, high school
GPA)

Scholarships has taken the following actions:

e A Senior Specialist was hired in May 2016 to oversee
the myScholarships system process and train the
Colleges and Departments on its use. The
myScholarships system has allowed the office to
streamline the scholarship awarding process across the
University. During Summer 2016, multiple trainings were
held with Account Managers across campus. New
scholarship timelines and consistent procedures for
awarding were established for both incoming and current
student awards.

e As of Fall 2016, every endowed scholarship, as well as
most annually funded scholarships, were set up in

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress
ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

270




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

e Designate committees to select recipients for all myScholarships with the corresponding agreement
scholarship awards (i.e., a single individual should not requirements. As new endowments are approved and
have the authority to make autonomous award signed, the Office of Scholarships and Financial Aid will
decisions). The selection committees should work directly with the Office of Advancement to include
document the committee meetings and specifics of the new awards in the myScholarships system with
the evaluation/awarding processes (e.g., why one corresponding agreement requirements.
student was selected for a scholarship over another).

¢ Remove identifying data (e.g., name, school, city, e Beginning with award year 2017-2018, myScholarships
etc.) prior to submitting applications to the scholarship will use imported student information from Banner to
committee(s). automatically review all current and future students for

e Notify all students of the open application period in a all awards and auto-match them based on the specified
consistent manner (e.g., email). criteria. A supplemental application is setup in the

e  Utilize myScholarships or a similar scholarship myScholarships system to prompt students to complete
management program for all endowed scholarships. for more specific ‘apply to’ awards.

The Office of Financial Aid and Scholarships drafted a
Scholarship Policy and Procedure Manual that will be
applicable to all account managers and college committees.
Requirements included in the policy follow:

e When an endowment agreement does not include
specified requirements and/or preferences, the Office of
Scholarships and Financial Aid will use the criteria for
the University Excellence awards, which is a minimum
1150/23 on the SAT/ACT and top 25% of the graduating
class. These standards have shown to aid in retention
and 4-year graduation rates. For current students, the
minimum criteria will be at least sophomore status and a
cumulative GPA of 3.0.

e College and departmental scholarship committees will
be set by the central scholarship coordinator for each of
the five colleges. The committees will consist of account
managers and/or other selected staff as chosen by the
College. The committees will meet after each
scholarship awarding cycle to review and approve the
selections within their respective college. The committee
meetings will be documented with specifics about the
awarding process. Also, the University Scholarship
Committee that approves all University awards will be
documented as well.

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

271



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

e When presenting the final awards to each scholarship
committee for approval, student names will be removed.
Removal of the student name will allow for a fair and
transparent selection of each award recipient. High
School and/or city will not be removed because certain
endowment agreements require students to graduate or
live in a certain geographic location. This information will
be required to make sure the endowment requirements
are met.

e All current students will be alerted via email when the
new myScholarships cycle opens. This email will be
sent at the beginning of every Fall semester, but no later
than October 1%t. The alert will drive students to apply
through the online myScholarships portal and prompt
them to fill out the supplemental scholarship application.

e myScholarships will be used for all endowed awards.
The scholarship criteria specified in the endowment
agreement or by the University as stated above will be
used.

Account managers and college/university committees award
scholarship based on the documented merit of each student.
The myScholarships system matches the student
qualifications with those of the endowed agreements. Using
myScholarships as a tool for sorting qualified applicants
allows for a transparent and fair process across the
University. The myScholarships system allows for a holistic
review of all students based on their merit qualifications.

Person Responsible: Katrina Brent, Executive Director of
Scholarships and Financial Aid.
Timetable for Completion:; February 1, 2017

Requirements and preferences stipulated by donors
should always be considered in awarding scholarships to
avoid breaching the endowment agreements, losing donor
goodwill, and incurring the risk of criticism that the award
process may be arbitrary. Scholarship selection
committee minutes should duly note:

Endowment agreements include merit criteria and sometimes
preferences as specified by the donor. These preferences
may include: financial need, employment, and/or community
involvement. The myScholarships system matches this
information to the student application. Students are asked to
upload supplemental documentation as it pertains to
specified endowed criteria or preferences. The uploaded
documentation is referenced when preferences are to be

In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

272




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

e any instances where no applicants meet the preferred
criteria, and the rationale for selecting award
recipients,

e the reasoning behind the award selection when more
than one applicant fulfills the requirements and/or
preferences (i.e., documenting why one applicant was
selected over another), and

e the justification for award selections to an applicant
who does not meet required and/or preferred
attributes.

considered by account managers and college/University
scholarship committees.

When choosing the most qualified applicant(s), Account
Managers and college/University scholarship committees will
adhere to the specified requirements and preferences within
the endowment agreement. This requirement will be
documented in the Lamar University Scholarship Policy and
Procedure. College scholarship committees will be convened
by the central scholarship coordinator within each of the five
colleges. It will be the committee’s responsibility to meet and
note any instance where a student is chosen solely based on
the required criteria and if the preferred criteria is not met. If
there are no comparable applicants with the preference, the
award will be given to the student who meets the required
criteria and noted. If there are comparable applicants, the
applicant who meets the required and preference criteria will
receive the award. Any instance where there are multiple
qualified applicants, the committee will document why one
applicant was chosen over another. The committee will
always provide documentation when an applicant who does
not meet the required or preferred criteria is chosen.

Person Responsible: Katrina Brent, Executive Director of
Scholarships and Financial Aid.

Timetable for Completion: February 1, 2017

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

Review of State
Auditor’s Office
Special
Investigations
Unit Hotline
Complaint of
Financial Aid
Improper
Awarding,
September 2014

The access granted to financial aid staff in INB should be
researched and reviewed for possible control breaches as
well as the necessity to segregate functional duties.
Segregation of duties can serve as a valuable tool for the
prevention of errors and wrong doing.

The following reports have been created and continue to
be enhanced as part of the monitoring procedure to detect
whether individuals with segregation of duties conflicts are
awarding students additional funding in accordance with
the policies and procedures. Due to two resources moving
to different departments, a new team in IT had to recreate
the report based on original reporting requirements.
Financial Aid has been following up on current progress
working with IT for the reports below:

In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

273




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

1) Manual award changes — listed via the table
RPRAWRD. The COGNOS report Grant Award Rule
Review has been created by IT and the Financial Aid
and Scholarship Office has been testing the
functionality in the test environment. Final changes
are being applied to the report.

2) All fund management changes including budgeted
dollar figures. These changes will be reflected in the
third report below.

3) All SQL changes, including Algorithmic Rules and
RORRULEsSs (Financial Aid Selection Rules). The
job/process RYPRSQL is currently in development
with IT after testing indicated the job/process ran
unsuccessfully. Once testing is completed by IT, the
job/process and related output will be ready for
functional testing by the Financial Aid and
Scholarship Office.

Person Responsible: Lydia T Hall, Director of Financial Aid
Timetable for Completion: November 15, 2016

Information
Technology (IT)
and Software
Asset
Management,
June 2016

Management should establish, document, and
communicate a strategic plan for IT asset management,
software asset management, and configuration
management to include a mission statement, goals, and
objectives. The plans should be communicated and
updated on a periodic basis. Management should decide
on the methodology or process model to which the
aforementioned IT processes are based.

A copy of the Strategic Plan was delivered to the Senior IT
Auditor in the SHSU Office of Audits & Analysis on July 29,
2016. Several changes in personnel have occurred in the
Asset Management area. Terry Blaylock, Associate VP of
Client Services joined the University on July 18, 2016, and
a new Asset Management Coordinator joined the
University on August 15, 2016. Both are working to make
improvements to the Asset Management area, as well as
continuing to refine the contents of the Strategic Plan to
better fit the overall vision of the Asset Management Team.

The Associate VP of Client Services and the Senior IT
Auditor met via conference call, Friday, October 7, 2016 to
discuss the auditor’s feedback from the initial version of the
Strategic Plan submitted July 29, 2016. Additional
changes to the Strategic Plan are in process based on the
feedback from the auditor, and as the Associate VP of
Client Services and the Asset Management Coordinator
garner additional experience and work to continue to
improve asset management operations.

In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

274




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

govern, manage, and execute the IT asset management
processes. Management should also ensure that policies
and procedures are created, updated, and communicated
to ensure the mission, goals, and objectives are addressed
for IT asset management, configuration management, and
software asset management. The policies and procedures
should also incorporate references to the incident, problem,
and change management policies and procedures, as
these IT processes are dependent on IT asset
management.

accountabilities for the creation, maintenance, and
communication of IT asset management (hardware and
software) and configuration management policies and
procedures. The policies and procedures will also identify
the responsibilities necessary to govern, manage, and
execute the IT asset management processes. These
changes will further accelerate the much improved
collaboration between the Property Office and IT.

The original FY16 IT and Software Asset Management
Audit management response to this finding indicated that a
project was created and approved to address the
optimization of these processes. This project is currently on
hold and does not have a set date to resume.

Current Status

IT Asset Management

Procedures are outlined for use of the CMDB. The IT
Asset Management Policies and Procedure Manual is
being updated to include additional details. Basic details of
hardware are placed within the CMDB, including purchase
date, warranty dates, costs, location, and serial numbers.
There are no “required” fields as of now.

Configuration Management

The linkages between each configuration item (CI) must be
made and maintained manually. This data was not
available when we moved from the legacy PRTS system to
Cherwell as the PRTS system did not have this capability.
It was strictly asset management. This is a labor intensive
and time consumptive endeavor.

Software Asset Management
SCCM and Absolute Manage are still the system of record
for software details as related to desktops. This includes

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
Person Responsible: Terry Blaylock, Associate Vice
President, Client Services
Timetable for Completion: November 15, 2016
Management should define the roles and responsibilities to | Client Services management will define the roles and In Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

275

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

the software installed on each as well as the operating
system and patch level of each device.

Next Steps
Determine what fields should be required to create a Cl of

each type. Manual linkages between Cls are being created
as we move through the Disaster Recovery project and as
new projects are completed that result in new Systems.
Investigation into enhancement products to help better
manage and maintain data about our Cls and their
relationships. Consider creating direct database
connections to the various systems for reporting efforts.
These connections can be live connections or set up to
import data periodically.

Person Responsible: Terry Blaylock, Associate Vice
President, Client Services
Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016

Management should ensure that the Technology Asset
Management procedures are updated to include all areas
of the IT asset management processes and reflect the
goals, objectives, and policies established by IT@Sam.

Client Services agrees an up-to-date TAM manual is
needed to ensure Technology Asset Management
procedures are properly followed. The final result of the
FY16 Property Audit for IT@Sam assets listed missing
assets totaling $228,677 as of July 26, 2016. This
represents a significant reduction from the original list of
missing assets totaling $723,579 reported as of 3/30/2016,
representing $494,902 of found property.

Recent changes to the Strategic Plan will require updates
and changes to the policies and processes, which will drive
changes to the TAM manual. A modest extension of time
has been requested to complete changes to the TAM
manual.

Person Responsible: Terry Blaylock, Associate Vice
President, Client Services
Timetable for Completion: December 21, 2016

In Progress

Management should:

e Develop reconciliation procedures to verify the
accuracy and completeness of assets between
Banner Fixed Assets and CMDB.

Property agrees that reconciliation procedures need to be
implemented to verify the accuracy between the two
systems, Banner and CMDB. We will expand the tag
sheets for IT assets. They should include all fields that are
used in both CMDB and Banner Fixed Assets. Confirming
all fields match will ensure the same documentation and

In Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

276

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
¢ Perform a reconciliation between the data entered | descriptions in both systems. In addition, development of a
into Banner Fixed Assets and the source report to identify assets in both CMDB and Banner Fixed
documents from which the data resides. Assets providing an exception report of unmatched fields is
e  Consider the development of or improvement to currently underway assigned to IT via Cherwell service
automated processes to ensure asset information | request #160950. Finally, Property will work with new IT
between CMDB and Banner Fixed Assets are staff to ensure they are properly trained on how to record
consistent. fixed assets.
e  Conduct more frequent physical IT asset
inventories and consider utilizing auto-discovery Person Responsible: Tessy Rappe, Assistant Vice
tools to obtain IT asset information to update the | President for Finance and Operations
CMDB. Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016
Management should configure Banner Fixed Assets and Property agrees that the lack of required fields in both In Progress
the CMDB to have the ability to prevent users from CMDB and Banner Fixed Assets can lead to staff not
recording new assets until certain required fields are entering critical fields. This was a known limitation of both
populated. The required fields should be based on the systems when they were chosen, purchased and
strategic plan, policies, and procedures, which determine implemented. Property met with the Banner Finance
the attributes of each IT asset type management intends to | consultant from Strata Information Group in July 2016 who
track. mentioned that Banner Fixed Assets is unable to
accommodate the required fields. The consultant
recommended the creation of an exception report. Finance
and Operations met with IT to discuss the development of
the exception report mentioned in the response to the
recommendation above. The exception report will serve to
resolve this issue. Property will work with IT@Sam staff to
update Cherwell CMDB to contain required fields where
needed to correctly synchronize data between the CMDB
and Banner Fixed Assets.
Person Responsible: Tessy Rappé, Assistant Vice
President for Finance and Operations
Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016
Management should work with IT@Sam to create a Property agrees that the manual review process identifying | In Progress
Cognos report which is automatically generated daily by miscoded controlled or capital items is not ideal but it is
validating / reconciling all line items on approved purchase | currently the best tool available. Although a new report will
orders in Banner Finance against a master table of all help, it most likely will not be able to replace this manual
criteria which classifies an asset as either capitalized or process because there is not a set list of codes or dollar
controlled (i.e., account codes, descriptions, unit cost, IT- thresholds that would capture every scenario for those
related, etc.). The resulting report should display the items that are miscoded. The existing report will need to
purchase order number, item number(s), description, allow the user to sort and filter. Additionally, the Controller’s
quantity, unit price, fund, organization, account, program, Office currently performs a monthly reconciliation to identify
total amount and capitalized/controlled asset designation any exceptions. Property originally submitted Cherwell
for all assets that need to be tagged. This will help ensure | service request #160954 to IT requesting that the current

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

277

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
that all purchased items which qualify as either capitalized Banner (report FYRPURC) data be pulled into a Cognos
or controlled assets are automatically identified in a report report to allow data to be sorted and filtered by account
to be tagged, recorded, and tracked in Banner Fixed codes and/or dollar amounts. It was then determined that
Assets and the CMDB in a timely manner and thereby Financial Analysis and Planning department resources
minimizing risks associated with the existing manual would be best equipped to handle and resolve. No work
process. order needed and the issue is currently being worked on.
The original Cherwell service request #160954 was closed
effective 7/15/16.
Person Responsible: Tessy Rappé, Assistant Vice
President for Finance and Operations
Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016
Management should determine whether the existing Property would agree that an interface enhancement would | In Progress
interface between CMDB and Banner Fixed Assets can be | be beneficial.
enhanced to update new assets in Banner Fixed Assets
with the asset information in CMDB. As of 10/3/16, IT is working on this issue via Cherwell
service request #160957. The interface between CMDB &
Banner Fixed Assets will update new assets in Banner
from information in CMDB, reducing manual work.
Person Responsible: Tessy Rappé, Assistant Vice
President for Finance and Operations
Timetable for Completion: October 30, 2016
Management should ensure that the IT assets reported as | We agree that the IT assets listed above were not entered Implemented

missing are updated in Banner Fixed Assets timely.
Property management should consider utilizing an
automated process to update missing property reported by
the asset custodians during annual inventory.

in a timely manner by Property. When the FY15 annual
inventory was submitted by IT, we noticed that the increase
in missing assets reported was not common and warranted
further investigation as we believed at that time the items
were not really missing. A decision was made by Property,
Procurement and Controller’s office to not report the
missing items until further investigation and additional staff
could be added to this task allowing IT the time they
needed to look at staff in charge of this process and the
procedures by which they were conducting their annual
inventory. Once IT submitted their FY16 annual inventory
to Property on 7/29/2016, all IT assets reported as missing
were updated in Banner Fixed Assets as of 8/15/16 by
Property. Total amount missing was $228,676.97 for FY16.
Of this, $60,076.92 in IT assets were already reported as
missing in Banner Fixed Assets from the FY15 annual
inventory, leaving $168,600.05 reported missing for FY16
to be updated in Banner Fixed Assets.

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

278




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

| Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

Person Responsible: Tessy Rappé, Assistant Vice
President for Finance and Operations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

Benefits
Proportionality,
August 2016

No recommendations resulted from this audit.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

SUL ROSS STATE UNIVERSITY

Clery Act
Compliance
Audit,
February 2015

A list of CSAs for each campus should be compiled and
maintained. CSAs should be notified as to their status as
CSAs. Additionally, CSAs should receive training on how
and when to report crimes. Periodic confirmation from
CSAs should be obtained to verify that there were no
crimes to report for a specific date range.

Corrective Action Plan -- Will complete and maintain a list
of Campus Security Authorities (CSAs) for each campus.
CSAs will be notified as to their status and will provide
training on how and when to report crimes. Periodic
confirmation from CSAs will be obtained to verify there
were no crimes to report for a specific date ranges.

UDPS will identify and provide training to SRSU
Campus Security Authorities. UDPS will also identify
and provide training on how and when to report crimes.
Periodic confirmation from CSAs will be obtained to
verify there were no crimes to report for a specific date
ranges.

A proposal for Clery was submitted to the SRSU
Executive Cabinet on November 17, 2015 in order to
establish

e a Clery Compliance Committee,

e a Clery Compliance Person, Clery Training,

e  Clery membership, and

e training of Campus Security Authorities (CSA’s).

UDPS recently obtained CSA training material
(Video/handout) from the CLERY CENTER For Security
on Campus.

On 6/29/16; UDPS Director provided email with the
training material and drafted policy for CSA training to
Director of Administration of the President and the

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress

In Progress

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

279




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

Associate Vice President for University Services & Dean
of Student Life for review. UDPS plans to place the
video and Clery information handout on the UDPS
website with the assistance of the OIT department.

UDPS plans to have both on-line training and to provide
departmental training in person.

Office of Information Technologies has set up a training
site on Banner for Campus Security Authorities

UDPS Director recently purchased and viewed a
webinar (Changes to the Clery Act Handbook: How to
Stay Compliant with New Requirements and Avoid
Department of Education Fines-Magna) on recent
changes to Clery. Itis in the UDPS Director’s opinion
that other University departments should be more
involved in the Clery process.

UDPS Director obtained the following training material
for CSA’s
e CSA video, “The Jeanne Clery Act: Working
Together to Create Safer Campuses” handout,
° “Campus Security Authority Reporting Form”,
and
e  “Campus Security Authority Pre-Post-Test".

UDPS Director met with University Webmaster and had Implemented
the training material posted on UDPS website.

UDPS Director also will house hard copies of training In Progress
material and form to be housed at the UDPS office.

On-line training is currently available on the UDPS Implemented
website. UDPS has also initiated in-person training.
The training will be made available for CSA’s at the
main SRSU campus as well as the SRSU Rio Grande
campuses in Castroville, Del Rio, Eagle Pass, and
Uvalde.

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

280



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
UDPS will be notifying Human Resources that new
employees will also need to complete the training. In- In Progress
person training has been scheduled for Upward Bounds
staff and Physical Plant staff. The training will be an on-
going process. UDPS will be in the process of
compiling a list of CSA’s upon completion of training
with periodic checks to determine if they have any
crimes to report.
Person Responsible — Johnnie Holbrooks/Kent
Dunegan
Timetable for Completion — Revised completion date for
on-line training is 10/26/2016 with in-person training
being scheduled.
Benefits Since the Appropriation Control Officer has confirmed 1. The FY2014 APS 011 has been reviewed by the ACO Implemented
Proportionality, agreement with changes to the APS 011s for 2011, 2012, and has accepted the revisions. Sylvia Fields has
August 2016 and 2013, continue working with the ACO to documented the repayment with notes from the ACO. The
reimburse/recoup any amounts identified as a result of following check #S0217085 $32,872.21 has been sent to
those corrections. Submit the adjusted APS 011 for 2014 the Controller of Public Accounts-Treasury Operations
to the Comptroller’'s Office, and work with the ACO to remit | along with an amended APS 011 FY 2014
reimbursements/recoup amounts where necessary.
2.The necessary reimbursements / recoupments still In Progress
remaining for FY2011, 2012, and 2013 are currently
waiting for final adjustment strategy from the ACO and
should be complete in the near future
Cash Handling, The various funds should be restored to their assigned 1.Corrective Action Plan: Accounting management will In Progress
August 2016 values. confirm that cash is nonexistent, and then eliminate
custodian’s/department’s funds for these.
1. Funds not needed, such as those not confirmed, Person Responsible: The Director of Accounting Services;
should be eliminated. Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
2. Custodian forms should be prepared/updated both work on this item.
annually for all cash custodians. Timetable for Completion: October 30, 2016
3. The cash handling procedure should be reviewed and
reissued to all applicable parties. 2.Corrective Action Plan: Accounting management will In Progress
4. All funds should be counted and reconciled at least develop a new form for each fund immediately and then
annually, with spot checks performed on a periodic establish a date/timetable to communicate with all cash
basis. custodians on an annual basis for the updating of the form.
Person Responsible: The Director of Accounting Services;
Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
both work on this item.

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

281




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)

Timetable for Completion: This action will be completed on
October 30, 2016

In Progress
3.Corrective Action Plan: Management will review
procedures and update if necessary. Procedures will be
provided in writing to cash custodians.

Person Responsible: The Director of Accounting Services;
Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
both work on this item.

Timetable for Completion: This action will be completed on
October 30, 2016.

In Progress
4.Corrective Action Plan: Management will determine a
date range for all funds to be counted and reconciled on an
annual basis. Cash counts will be conducted on a random
basis.

Person Responsible: The Director of Accounting Services;
Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
both work on this item.

Timetable for Completion: This action will be completed on
November 15, 2016

Cash Handling, Petty cash funds should be replenished on a monthly Corrective Action Plan: Accounting Services Management In Progress.
August 2016 basis. Deposits should be in accordance with APM 3.07 will review policies and implement the policy correction with
A. Section I.1. a memo to custodians directing them to immediately
replenish and then establish a monthly schedule.

Person Responsible: The Director of Accounting Services;
Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
both work on this item.

Timetable for Completion: October 30, 2016

Cash Handling, Management should consider increasing the physical The counter at SRSU 2" floor cashier office was designed | In Progress
August 2016 security of the areas in which Cashiers and funds are by V.P. Cesario Valenzuela years ago. These counters
located. have provided adequate working space and protection. In
addition, security cameras are placed in strategic locations.
The One Stop Shops counter also provides adequate
working space and protection in addition to security
cameras.

Corrective Action Plan: Accounting Services Management
will review possible security and physical threats at the

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

282



TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report

| Recommendations

Management’s Most Current Response

| Status (*)

SRSU and One Stop location. Several items to consider
are the history and types of documented threats, determine
the cost benefit of added security in relation to daily cash
on hand. The addition of glass barriers at the Alpine
location will also be considered. Alterations for the RGC
locations will be considered.

Person Responsible: The V.P. of Operations and Finance
Cesario Valenzuela, Director of Accounting Services;
Santiago Castillo and Senior Manager Oscar Jimenez will
develop a plan and strategy.

Timetable for Completion: November 30, 2016

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

Export Controls
Audit,
October 2015

Research management should update UPPS No. 02.02.10
to ensure it is current with all export control compliance
requirements and procedures.

The completely revised UPPS 02.02.10 was submitted to
the Provost's Office to initiate the review and approval
process on 6/27/16. Substantive review comments were
received and addressed on 8/22/2016. On 9/28/16 two
non-substantive review comments were received and the
recommended changes were accepted. After the Cabinet
reviews, approves and concurs with all of the responses to
comments, Institutional Effectiveness will print a hard copy
of the “final” version and will route to all reviewers for
approval. The policy will then be posted in the roster of
University Policy and Procedure Statements.

Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations
Timetable for Completion: Revised completion date of
November 1, 2016

In Progress

The ORIC management should update the Export Control
web page to include specific instructions and guidance on
operational requirements related to export control such as,
but not limited to, foreign travel, shipments to foreign
countries, and hiring of foreign nationals.

The ORIC management updated the Export Control web
page to include specific instructions and guidance on
operational requirements related to export control such as,
but not limited to, foreign travel, shipments to foreign
countries, and hiring of foreign nationals.

Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations

Implemented

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

283




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
The ORIC management should collaborate with All recommended changes and modifications have been Implemented
management responsible for the Foreign Travel and made to the ORIC webpages including links and cross-
Materials Management web pages and develop and referencing to other key departments, such as
provide applicable instructions on those web pages for Procurement, Materials Management, Sponsored
handling export control issues. Programs, Faculty Records, International Office, and
Travel. All of the stakeholder offices mentioned were
encouraged to link their pages to the ORIC page. To date
reciprocal links between ORIC, the Travel Office and
Materials Management are active and present on the three
webpages.
Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
The ORIC and Faculty Records management should jointly | Faculty Records and ORIC have developed and Implemented
develop and implement written procedures for the implemented a collaborative process to conduct the
export/import assessment process to ensure the Restricted Party Screening (RPS) for international visiting
assessments are completed before appointed foreign scholars and post-doctoral researcher associates. Faculty
nationals are approved to work at the University and that Records has modified their process and has implemented
documentation is maintained to support the process. the "Export Control Screening Request” form. Links to the
form are on the ORIC and Faculty Records webpages.
ORIC is waiting for verification.
Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
The ORIC and Materials Management should jointly ORIC and Materials Management jointly established written | Implemented
establish written procedures to ensure the University is in procedures to ensure the University is in compliance with
compliance with export control regulations concerning export control regulations concerning shipments to a
shipments to a foreign country. foreign country.

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

284

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress




TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM — QUARTERLY STATUS REPORT — NOVEMBER 2016 BOARD MEETING
STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR REPORTS ISSUED THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

| Audit Report | Recommendations | Management’s Most Current Response | Status (*)
Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016
In addition, the ORIC management should coordinate with | ORIC worked with the Director of Procurement and Implemented

the Director of Procurement and Strategic Sourcing and
the Assistant Director of Accounting to develop instructions
to be included in the P-Card Manual and the e-NPO
procedures on shipping items to a foreign country and
related export control requirements.

Strategic Sourcing and the Director of Accounting to make
the necessary edits to the P-Card manual and the e-NPO
procedures to ensure compliance on shipping items to a
foreign country and the use of international vendors. Both
areas have made the necessary edits.

Person Responsible: Dr. Michael Blanda, Assistant Vice
President for Research and Federal Relations
Timetable for Completion: August 31, 2016

User Access
Controls for
Third Party
Applications
Audit,
September 2016

139).

» Four (4) recommendations: Planned

There were five (5) audit recommendations resulting from this audit. The status for these items are as follows:
» One (1) recommendation with six (6) action plans. Three (3) action plans: Implemented and three (3) action plans: In progress

Issues, recommendations and action plans for this audit are being addressed. The details are not presented here due to exemptions allowed for
information that relates to computer network security or to the design, operation, or defense of a computer network (Texas Government Code 552

SYSTEM ADMINISTRATION

Benefits
Proportionality
Audit,

August 2016

No recommendations made.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

(*) Status Categories: Implemented; Planned; In Progress; Factors Delay Implementation; Management Does Not Plan to Implement Recommendation; Verification of Implementation in Progress

ITEMS PRESENTED IN RED ARE FROM AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

285




Texas State University System Consolidated Institutions
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Beginning Market Value Ending Market Value Book Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
Agency/Description As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Investment Income _ Retum
Operating Short-Intermediat:
Lamar University $ 81,238,019.42 86,716,697.27 § 86,697,303.70 $ 75,111.77  0.10%
Sam Houston State University $ 111,033,613.99 113,722,911.47 § 113,964,093.35 $ 264,883.66 0.17%
Sul Ross State University $ 18,298,256.94 20,646,475.22 § 20,646,475.22 § 20,693.06 0.11%
Texas State University $ 234,987,880.92 323,686,408.83 § 323,701,287.94 § 260,762.07 0.12%
Lamar Institute of Technology 3 7,631,228.13 6,312,390.03 § 6,312,390.03 $ 4,773.63 0.08%
Lamar State College - Orange $ 21,253,540.38 21,409,309.52 § 21,409,309.52 § 20,718.36  0.10%
Lamar State College - Port Arthur $ 7,258,841.84 8,478,868.68 $ 8,478,868.68 § 11,31269 0.17%
Texas State University System Office $ 8,526,013.00 8,896,811.13 § 8,896,811.13 § 7,782.24  0.09%
Operating Short-Intermediate Total I 490,227,394.62 589,869,872.15 § 590,106,539.57 _§ 666,037.48 _ 0.13%
6 Month T-Bill 0.16%
Qperating Long

Lamar University $ - $ - $ - $ . .
Sam Houston State University $ 27,467,306.32 $ 28,211,650.63 § 27,981,405.90 $ 260,127.56 2.81%
Sul Ross State University $ 4,499,457.72 3 4,503,492.14 § 4,503,492.14 § 4,01561 0.09%
Texas State University $ 80,107,773.58 $ 80,429,497.00 § 78,915,368.91 § 500,202.40 0.45%

Lamar Institute of Technology $ - $ - $ - $ - -

Lamar State College - Orange $ - $ - 8 -8 - -

Lamar State College - Port Arthur $ - § - 8 - 8 - -

Texas State University System Office $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Operating Long Total B 112,074,537.63 _§ 113,144,639.77 _ § 111,400,266.95 764,345.57  1.02%
ML 1-3 Year Treasury 0.37%

286



Texas State University System Consolidated institutions
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Beginning Market Value Ending Market Value Book Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
Agency/Description As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Investment Income  Return
Bond Proceeds
Lamar University $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Sam Houston State University $ 42,417,806.73 $ 29,145,403.30 $ 29,145,403.30 § 32,441.71 0.09%
Sul Ross State University $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Texas State University $ 24,955,498.81 § 19,434,405.92 § 19,434,405.92 § 19,941.10 0.09%
Lamar Institute of Technology $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Lamar State College - Orange $ -8 -8 - 8 - -
Lamar State College - Port Arthur $ - $ - $ - $ - -
Texas State University System Office $ 2,012.17 $ 2,01401 $ 2,01401 § 1.84 0.09%
Bond Proceeds Total LS 67,375,317.71_ § 48,581,823.23 § 48,581,823.23 § 52,384.65  0.09%
6 Month T-Bill 0.16%
Grand Total B 669,677,249.96 | $ 751,506,335.15 [ § 750,088,629.75 | §  1,482,767.70  0.26%

287




Texas State University System Consolidated Institutions
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

100%

Total System Return $ 203,841,846 3.63% 5.98%
15.4% Lamar University 31,454,028 1.07% 1.08%
26.1% Russell 3000, 13.3% MSCI EAFE, 4.8% FTSE NAREIT, 9.6% BC 2.48% 5.69%
Int. Gov't, 11.1% ML All Invest ex Man V0A1, 35.1% at 0% Annual
Return.
47.3% Sam Houston State University 96,352,551 4.51% 7.75%
*Currently the policy benchmark is a blend of 27% S&P 500, 12% Russell 3.49% 8.06%
Mid, 12% Russell 2000, 9% MSCI EAFE, 5% S&P Developed ex-US SC,
26.33% BC Aggregate, 5.66% BC Muni Bond, and 3% ML 6 Month T-Bill.
8.5% Sul Ross State University 17,402,661 4.46% 6.19%
*Currently the policy benchmark is a blend of 27% S&P 500, 24% Russell 3.57% 8.25%
2500, 7% MSCI EAFE, 7% S&P Developed Ex-US SC, and 35% BC
Aggregate.
28.8% Texas State University 58,632,606 3.31% 5.64%
*Currently the Total Blended Index consists of 23 1% S&P 500, 22.2% 3.73% 8.10%
Russell 2500, 9.2% MSCI ACWI ex US, 5.5% S&P Developed SC Ex-US,
5% ML All Invest ex Man VOA1, 30% BC Aggregate, 1% 91-Day T-8ill,
and 4% ML 6 Month T-Bill.
Lamar Institute of Technology 0 - -
N/A N/A N/A
Lamar State College - Orange 0 - -
N/A N/A N/A
Lamar State College - Port Arthur 0 - -
A N/A N/A
Texas State University System Office 0 - -
N/A N/A N/A
Index Listing Quarter FYTD
Russell 3000 - Domestic Equity 4.45% 11.45%
S&P 500 - Domestic Equity 4.10% 12.57%
MSCI EAFE - internationa! Equity 1.68% 0.38%
FTSE NAREIT - Real Estate 7.47% 24.60%
BC Int. Gov't - Fixed Income Government / Agency 1.00% 3.03%
BC Credit - Fixed Income Corporates 3.82% 9.14%
BC 3 Yr Muni - Fixed Income Municipal Bonds 0.68% 1.96%
91-Day T-Bill - Fixed Income Money Market 0.08% 0.23%
ML All invest ex Man VOA1 - Convertibles 5.93% 10.66%
ML 1-3 Year Treasury - Fixed Income Money Market 0.37% 1.07%
6 Month T-Bill - Fixed income Money Market 0.16% 0.56%
Alerian MLP - Fixed Income MLP 4.33% -6.24%

288




Lamar University
OPERATING 8 NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

I Purchase I Maturity | Beginning Market Value| Ending Market Value Book Batance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
Agency/Description Cusip Number Date Date As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Investment Income _ Return
Operating Short-
Intermediat

Cash in Bank 3 8,525,258.27 § 12,799,685.47 $ 12,799,685.47 § 169565 003%
Cash in Treasury 8 16,677,717.25 § 6,204,795.28 S 6,204,795.28 § 27,697.27 0.28%
Cash in Bank Invest S 23,379,57668 $ 14,882,794.59 § 14,882,794.59 $ 3,181.22 0.02%
Cash at Trustmark $ 20,000,00000 $ 599.12 § 59912 § 56373 475%
DFA 1YR DFIHX 3 - 3 20,057,398.13 o8 20,038,004.56 S 2601644 022%
Vanguard VSGDX $ - S 10,000,000.00 $ 10,000,000.00 S - 0 00%
TexPool Series 0001 General Fund $ 10,644,496.30 S 20,658,481.25 S 20,658,49125 § 1399495 0.09%
TexPool Series 0002 3 2,110970.92_ % 211293343 § 211293343 § 196251  008%

Jotals Ls 81,236.019.42 § 86,716,697.27 § 86,697.303.70_ S 75.111.77 __ 0.10%

6 Month T-Bill 0 16%

Lamar Urwversity investment portfolios comply with investment strategy expressed in Texas State University System Investment Policies and with relevant provisions of tha Texas Public Funds Investment Act

Slunrd (. Ass P Iy Bnance ¢ e O ——

;l_':re of Signee Q M"Q[B

J/w@& /DLJZEV RUP - Fonguce (//wv@ 4. b
(v ¢ Dowfbf D rechs Fapsres @/

289



Lamar University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Allocatio a e Quarte D
100.0 %| Total Plan Composite $ 31,454,028 1.07% 1.08%
Total Blended Index 2.48% 5.69%
39.4 %| Ali Equity Composite $ 12,383,646 3.28% 3.28%
Blended Equity Index 3.51% 7.71%
26.1 %| Domestic Equity $ 8,205,653 2.66% 2.66%
Russell 3000 4.45% 11.45%

Commonfund MS Equity Fund 0 - 6.83%
12.9 Parnassus Core Equity - PRILX 4,050,826 1.27% 1.27%
6.9 Driehaus MicroCG - DMCRX 2,154,827 7.74% 7.74%
6.4 DGHM Micro-V - DGMIX 2,000,000 0.00% 0.00%
13.3 %| International Equity $ 4,177,994 4.50% 4.50%
MSCI EAFE 1.68% 0.38%
6.8 Pear Tree Polaris Intl - QFVIX 2,137,508 6.88% 6.88%
6.5 Driehaus Objective Intl - DRIOX 2,040,486 2.02% 2.02%
4.8 %| Real Estate $ 1,513,636 1.22% 1.22%
FTSE NAREIT 7.17% 24.60%
4.8 REMS RE Income 50/50 - RREIX 1,513,636 1.22% 1.22%
20.7 %| Total Fixed Income $ 6,501,964 -1.36% -1.36%
Blended Fixed Index 3.656% 7.13%
9.6 %| Agency/Government $ 3,004,236 0.14% 0.14%
BC Int. Gov't 1.00% 3.03%

6.4 DFA Short Term Govt - DFFGX 1,997,679 -0.18%
3.2 Vanguard LTerm T-Fund- VUSUX 1,006,557 0.79% 0.79%
%| Corporates $ 0 0.00% 0.00%
BC Credit 3.82% 9.14%
Commonfund MS Bond Fund 0 - 4.85%

11.1 %| Hybrid Securities $ 3,497,727 -2.66%
ML All Invest ex Man VOA1 5.93% 10.66%
4.9 Tortoise MLP 1,536,224 2.41% 2.41%

6.2 ASG Managed Futures- ASFYX 1,961,503 -6.63%
35.1 %| Other $ 11,054,781 0.01% 0.02%
0.0 Cash Clearing - Trustmark 6,150 0.00% 0.00%
2.4 Texpool Series 0003 769,365 0.09% 0.27%

Blended Indexes are based on the current weights of each asset class and their respective benchmarks.
Currently the Total Blended Index is: 26.1% Russell 3000, 13.3% MSCI EAFE, 4.8% FTSE NAREIT, 9.6% BC Int. Gov't,
11.1% ML All Invest ex Man VOA1, 35.1% at 0% Annual Return.

290




Lamar University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Beginning Gains / Ending Market

Mutual Fund / Manager Market Value Deposits Withdrawals Income Losses Value

Total Plan Composite $30,717,753 $77,784,298 $59,678 $8,870 $669,320 $31,454,028
Total Blended Index

All Equity Composite $8,862,157 $12,000,000 $30,540 $8,074 $651,338 $12,383,646
Blended Equity Index

Domestic Equity $8,862,157  $8,000,000 $30,540 $8,074 $473,344 $8,205,653
Russell 3000

Commonfund MS Equity Fund $8,862,157 $30,540 $8,074 $267,691

Parnassus Core Equity - PRILX $4,000,000 $50,826 $4,050,826

Driehaus MicroCG - DMCRX $2,000,000 $154,827 $2,154,827

DGHM Micro-V - DGMIX $2,000,000 $2,000,000

International Equity $0 $4,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $177,994 $4,177,994
MSCI EAFE

Pear Tree Polaris Intl - QFVIX $2,000,000 $137,508 $2,137,508

Driehaus Objective Intl - DRIOX $2,000,000 $40,486 $2,040,486

Real Estate $0 $1,500,000 $4,657 $0 $13,636 $1,513,636
FTSE NAREIT

REMS RE Income 50/50 - RREIX $1,500,000 $4,657 $13,636 $1,513,636

Total Fixed Income $1,088,617 $12,000,000 $18,678 $838 $4,634 $6,501,964
Blended Fixed Index

Agency/Government $0 $8,500,000 $833 $0 $3,403 $3,004,236
BC Int. Gov't

DFA Short Term Govt - DFFGX $7,500,000 $1,997,679

Vanguard LTerm T-Fund- VUSUX $1,000,000 $833 $5,724 $1,006,557

Corporates $1,088,617 $0 $7,460 $838 $13,888 $0
BC Credit

Commonfund MS Bond Fund $1,088,617 $7,460 $838 $13,888

Hybrid Securities $0  $3,500,000 $0 $10,384 $0 $3,497,727
ML All Invest ex Man VOA1

Tortoise MLP $1,500,000 $10,384 $25,840 $1,536,224

ASG Managed Futures- ASFYX $2,000,000 $1,961,503

Other $20,766,979 $52,284,298 $5,803 $11,054,781

Cash Clearing - Trustmark $42,005,032 $417 $6,150

Texpool Series 0003 $20,766,979 $5,386 $0 $769,365




%, Trustmark

LAMAR UNIVERSITY SHORT/ STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 8
INTERMEDIATE TERM OPERATING/
MUTUAL FUNDS Statement Peried 08/01722016 through 08/3 172016

Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP # 60934N708
10,000,560.96 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 10,000,560 96 10,000,560.96 33 38.16
-85396-A
10,000,560 96 10,000,260 9o 33 I e
MUTUAL FUNDS FIXED INCOME
CUSIP 4 233203603
1,945,431.438 DFA ONE-YEAR FIXED INCOME 20,057,398 13 20,038,004.56 67 o 00
PORTFOLIO
LAST PRICED' 08/31 2016
CUSIP # 922031844
924,214.418 VANGUARD SHORT-TERM FEDERAL FUND 10,000,000 00 10,000,000.00 13 0.00
- ADM
LAST PRICED 0831 2016
30,057,39R 13 30,038,004 56 100 6 ne
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 40,057,959 09
CaSH 13,336 79
DUE FROM RROKER a ao
DUE 10 BROKER 18,013,336 79
NET ASSETS 30,057,959 09
ACCRUED INCOME 38 16
TUTALMARKE) VALUE 30,057,997 25

292



Sam Houston State University
OPERAYING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

| | | Purchase | Maturity | Beginning Markei Value | Ending Market Value Book Balance | Quarter Ending 08/31/16
A [Description Cusip Number Date Date As of 05731116 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Investment Income _ Retum
Qoarating Short-
Intermediatg
Cash in Bank - FNB H 6,800,70387 § 3322234584 § 332223484 8 6,193.91 0.11%
Cash in Bank - Treasury $ 18,7115407.56 § 11,255460.4 § 11,25546034 § 28,621.21  0.22%
Cash in Trustmark S 85350 $ 222935 § 222920 § 3539 1519%
Cash in Bank - WFB $ 20,637.87646 § 46,360,408.55 $ 45,360,40855 § 388541 0.03%
Balrd Advisors FI s 1534942595 § 1541469823 § 15,706,773.21 § 10775748  038%
Agincourt Capital Mgmit 5 5,869,20546 § 5,807,96309 S 587200642 § 68,647 74 0.72%
Thornburg Inlermed - THMIX - OPS s . 3 753521377 § 752127749 § 21,27749  037%
TexPool Series 0004 Non Educalional S 22,697,854.04 S 15,212,866.31 § 15,212,866.31 § 1501227 009%
TexPool Series 0005 Educational & General $ 70896544 § 71062548 $ 71062548 $ 660.04 0.08%
TexPool Sedies 0023 Non-Ed Plant S 368,031.62 § 368,373.75 § 368,37375 § 34213 009%
TexPooi Serias 0036 Short Term Non-Ed S 19,884,29009 § 7.632.037.66§ 7.632.83786 $ 12,450.58  0.10%
Totals LS 111,033.613.98 § 113.722.911.47 § 113,964.083.35 § 26488366 0.17% ]
6Month T-BIll  0.16%
Ongrating Long
Agincourt Capital Mgmi- OPL $ 2,041,08359 § 393241656 S 382349179 $ 1961140 2.24%
Batanced Growth Adwisors- OPL s 1,349,787.38 § 1,37803051 § 1317787 § 19,081.03  2.34%
Atlanta Capital Floating - OPL H 623066837 § 6.243,83408 § 641852911 § 4458598 024%
Palmer Square - OPL $ 7,78217439 § 438880280 S 4,331.80267 $ 6627148 561%
Thomburg intermed Muni - OFL s 250746121 $ 4370,20863 S 431206935 § 19,021,886 1.13%
REMS RE - RREIX- OPL S 149439391 § 160185925 § 1,587,14258 S 2004732 7.19%
Thomburg Incame - TIBIX- OPL - 462459071 § 477864756 § 4,749,08255 § 47,4450t  338%
Torioise MLP - OPL s 1,437,093.75 § 151783952 § 1,288,098.280 $ 2405462 564%
Cash in Trustmark $ 4301 § 172§ 11.70_§ 885 -2.16%
Totals s 27.467.30532 § 28,211,65063 $ 27.981.40590 S 260,127.56  2.81%
Custom Long-term Blended Index 2.02%
Cash in Bank - FNB s 103038 § 103177 § 103177 $ 139 013%
TexPool Serles 0028 Series 2010 $ 908,76456 $ 909,609.34 S 809,609.34 § 84478 009%
TexPool Series 0034 Series 2015 Non-Taxable S 41,506,12320 § 27,801,55083 § 27.801,55089 § 31.52467 0.09%
Cashin Bank - WFB $ 1.888.59 § 433.211.30 § 43321130 S 7087 009%
Totals [H 42,417.808.73_§ 29,145,403.30_ § 29,145.403.30_ S 3244171 0.09% |
€ Month T-Bill 0.16%

Sam Houston State Universay sivesiment partfchos camply with invesument straleqy expressed in Texas Slate Unversily System lnvestment Policies and wath relevam prowsions cf the Texas Pubkic Funds Investment Act

m J. Carlos Hernandez

\ﬁ9ﬁ’resident for Finance (a@p,e}ations

sk

293

/o -7-/€

Date



Sam Houston State University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)
Beginning Gains / Ending Market

Mutual Fund / Manager Market Value Deposits  Withdrawals  Income Losses VEIN

Total Plan Composite $02,464,421  $4,919,402 492,345 3,552,695 $96,352,551
All Equity Composite $60,945,298 $29,240 140,503 2,305,052 $61,856,233
Domestic Equity $49,123,719 29,240 140,503 $2,194,922 $49,925,677
Vanguard Prime Cap Fund - VPMAX $643,194 15,000 $35,409 $693,603
Vanguard Instl Index - VINIX $9,155,626 $44,154 $334,694 $9,033,897
Laudus LCG Fund - LGILX $9,104,830 $385,456 $9,039,710
Parnassus LCV Fund - PRILX $9,334,753 $24,592 $379,743 $9,288,511
Columbus Circle SMID G $10,185,832 $14,240 $10,738 $736,343 $10,902,072
Baird Investment Mgmt SMID V $10,699,484 $61,019 $323,276 $10,967,884
International Equity $11,821,580 $0 $0 $0 $110,130 $11,930,556
Driehaus Intl SCG - DRIOX $4,491,423 $50,131 $4,540,978
Pear Tree Polaris (QFVIX) $7,330,156 $59,999 $7,389,578
Real Estate 16,380,703 $0 $217,840 $956,766 16,594,733
Rems RE Income - RREIX 16,380,703 217,840 $956,766 16,594,733
Total Fixed Income 13,262,402 $2,509,781 132,319 $290,571 16,150,730
Corporates $3,237,966 $0 $27,274 53,080 3,313,789
Agincourt Capital Mgmt $3,237,966 27,274 53,080 3,313,789
Municipal Bonds 3,264,019 $0 17,990 37,774 3,301,216
iShares S&P Natl Muni - MUB 3,264,019 17,990 37,774 $3,301,216
Money Markets 1,737,658  $2,500,000 $0 $4,057 4,238,040
Ridgeworth Ultra Short- SIGVX 1,737,658 $2,500,000 $4,057 4,238,040
Hybrid Securities $5,022,759 $9,781 $82,998 $202,816 5,297,686
Invesco Convertibles - Class A $61,039 $462 $2,081 $63,120
Tortoise Capital - MLP $4,961,720 $9,781 $82,536 $200,736 $5,234,566
Other $1,876,018  $2,380,382 $1,682 $304 $1,750,855
Money Market Sweep $129,785 $2,380,382 $59 $304 $2,998
TexPool Series 0010 $251,658 $234 $251,892
TexPool Series 0011 $1,494,575 $1,389 $1,495,965

11

294




Sam Houston State University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Allocatio arke Quarte D

100.0 %| Total Plan Composite $ 96,352,551 4.51% 7.75%
Total Blended Index 3.49% 8.06%
64.2 %| All Equity Composite $ 61,856,233 4.03% 5.34%
Blended Equity Index 3.91% 9.31%
51.8 %| Domestic Equity $ 49,925,677 4.64% 6.13%

Russell 3000 4.45% 11.45%

0.7 Vanguard Prime Cap Fund - VPMAX 693,603 5.40% 13.11%
9.4 Vanguard Instl Index - VINIX 9,033,897 4.14% 13.06%
9.4 Laudus LCG Fund - LGILX 9,039,710 4.24% 5.28%
9.6 Parnassus LCV Fund - PRILX 9,288,511 4.37% 11.40%

113 Columbus Circle SMID G 10,902,072 711%

114 Baird Investment Mgmt SMID V 10,967,884 3.04% 3.51%
12.4 %| International Equity $ 11,930,556 1.12% 1.57%
MSCI EAFE 1.68% 0.38%

4.7 Driehaus Inti SCG - DRIOX 4,540,978 1.10% 2.55%
7.7 Pear Tree Polaris (QFVIX) 7,389,578 0.81% 1.08%
17.2 %] Real Estate $ 16,594,733 7.16% 21.95%
FTSE NAREIT 7.17% 24.60%

17.2 Rems RE Income - RREIX 16,594,733 7.16% 21.95%
16.8 %| Total Fixed Income $ 16,150,730 5.42% 12.66%
Blended Fixed Index 2.89% 5.83%
3.4 %| Corporates $ 3,313,789 2.41% 6.46%
BC Credit 3.82% 9.14%

3.4 Agincourt Capital Mgmt 3,313,789 241% 6.46%
3.4 %| Municipal Bonds $ 3,301,216 1.69% 6.57%
BC 3 Yr Muni 0.68% 1.96%

3.4 iShares S&P Natl Muni - MUB 3,301,216 1.69% 6.57%
4.4 %| Money Markets $ 4,238,040 0.13% 0.08%
91-Day T-Bill 0.08% 0.23%

4.4 Ridgeworth Ultra Short- SIGVX 4,238,040 0.13% 0.08%
5.5 %| Hybrid Securities $ 5,297,686 5.49% -7.10%
ML All invest ex Man VOA1 5.93% 10.66%

0.1 invesco Convertibles - Class A 63,120 4.20% 2.08%
5.4 Tortoise Capital - MLP 5,234,566 5.50% -7.21%
1.8 %| Other $ 1,750,855 0.09% 0.26%
0.0 Money Market Sweep 2,998 0.03% 0.04%
0.3 TexPool Series 0010 251,892 0.09% 0.26%
1.6 TexPool Series 0011 1,495,965 0.09% 0.26%

Blended Indexes are based on the current weights of each asset class and their respective benchmarks.
*Currently the policy benchmark is a blend of 27% S&P 500, 12% Russell Mid, 12% Russell 2000, 9% MSCI EAFE, 5% S&P
Developed ex-US SC, 26.33% BC Aggregate, 5.66% BC Muni Bond, and 3% ML 6 Month T-Bill.

295




.
€& Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page s
OPERATING SHORT/ CLEARING

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Perlod 08/0112016 through 083172016

CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset_Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNTTS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP # 60934N708
2,229.2 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 2,229 20 2,229.120 0 0.15
-S8396-A
2.219 20 2.229 20 [ 9 18
MUTUAL FUNDS -TAX EXEMPT
CUSIP 4 885215673
517,634.766 THORNBURG INTERMEDIATE MUNICIPAL 7.521.233 15 7.521,277.49 100 13,980.62
FUND.I
LAST PRICED. 08:31,2016
7 821,233 15 7,821,277 49 100 13.980 62
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 7,513,462 38
CASH 0 00
DUE FROM BROKFR o 00
NUE10 BROKER o 0o
NET ASSETS 7.823.462 35
ACCRUED INCOME 13.9%0 77
TOTAl MARKET VALUE 7,837,448 12

296



s

4&* Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEM ENT OF ACCOUNT Page 5
OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Perlod 08/01/2016through08.31°2016

CUSTODIAN Acceunt Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP # 60934N708
574,520, 42 FEDERATEDPRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 574,520 42 5$74,520 42 4 9] %0
-§8 396-A
574.520 42 £74,820 42 4 21 99

US GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP #912828L32

425,000 U S TREASURY NOTEDTD 08312015 429,398 75 429,633 26 k| 0 oo
1.375% 08/31/2020
LAST PRICED 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 91 2828NR?

1,100,000 US TREASURY NOTE DTD 077312010
2.375%07/31/2017
LASTPRICED 0831/2016

CUSIP #912828NT3

700,000 US TREASURY NOTE DTD 081672010 741,041.00 738,840
2.625% 08152020
LAST PRICED 083112016

.116,885.00 1,117,477 67 7 2,271.74

9 5 848.85

CUSIP # 912828QY9
3,800,000 USTREASURY NOTE DTD 073172011 3,904,652 00 3,863,268 94 125 7,434.78
2.25%07/31/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #912828ST8

4,475,000 U 'S TREASURY NOTE DTD 0473072012 4,519,571.00 4,483,457 .16 9 18,848.51
1.25% 04/30/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

10,710 ,547.78 10.632,677.22 a9 29,443 .88
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP # 31358PQU4
35,669.45825 FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 37,997 58 38,795.82 0 172.40
1992-136 CLASS PK DTD 08/01/1992
6% 08/25/2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

297



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEM ENT OF ACCOUNT Page 6
OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Period 080172016 Urough 083112016

CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OP ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 3136AGLY6
31,289.57 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 31,345.21 31,289.57 4] 4.46
2013-M12 CLASS FA DTD 09/25/2013
.85439% 10/25/2017
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3136AMKWS
92,494 05 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2015-M1 92,804 08 93,042 54 3 120.15
CLASS ASQ2 DTD 01/01/2015 1.626%
02/25/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3137ABFV8
140,451.93 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 143,568 . 08 144,188 94 1 356.85
K702 CLASS A2 DTD 06/01/201 1
3.154% 022512018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #31392EPT 1
4,447.869 FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2002-56 4,473 .45 4,566 00 0 19.71
CLASS MC DTD 08/0172002 5.5%
0972572017
LAST PRICED: 0873172016

310.188.40 311,882 87 2 a47a £7
MUNICIPAL OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP #0524 14PW3
200,000 AUSTIN TX ELEC UTILITY SYSTEM 201,730 00 200,875.52 1 1,003 47
REF-TXBL-SER B REVENUE BONDS FED
TAXABLE DTD 05/01/2015 § 704%
§1/152018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 087347V31
100,000 BETHLEHEM PA TXBL-SER B G/O 100,067 00 100,067 .92 1 897 50
UNLTD NON-CALLABLE FED
TAXABLE/ST TAX-EXEMPT DTD
04/09/2013 2.154% 10/01/2016
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

298



4% Trustmark

SAM HOQUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

200, 000

155,000

125,000

175,000

125,000

125,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP# 172311]Y9

CINCINNATIOH WTR SYS
TXBL-REF-SER C REVENUE BONDS
NON-CALLABLE FED TAXABLEST
TAX-EXEMPT DTD 08/1272015 1.497%
12012018

LAST PRICED' 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 19661 7FE9

COLORADO SPRINGS CO HOSP REV
CONV 071208 REVBDSFED & ST
TAX-EXEMPT OID DTD 07102002 5%
12/15/2032-2018

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 29137RAT2

EMMAUS PAGEN AUTH SCH LEASE
REVENUE TXBL-CAREER INSTITCE
TECHNOLOGY-SER B REV BDS
NON-CALLABLE DTD 05/29/2014
1.356% 11'15/2016

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 37855PHS4

GLENDALE WICMNTY DEV AUTH
REF-TXBL-SER BREV BDS
NON-CALLABLE FED TAXABLE'ST
TAX-EXEMPT DTD 080372015 2.1%
10/01/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 45200FYR4

ILLINOIS ST FIN AUTH REVENUE IL.
RUSH UNIV MED CTR SER C REV BDS
FED TAX-EXEMPT/ST TAXABLE OID
DTD 077292009 6 62 5%
11/01/2039-2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 474682EUL

JEFFERSON PARISH LA HOSP SVC
DIST #1 HOSP REV REF-W JEFFERSON
MEDCTR-SERAREV BODS FED & ST
TAX-EXEMPT DTD 10/13/2011 6%
01/01/2039-2021

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 7

Statement Period
Acceunt Number

MARKET VALUE

203,038

169.830

125,083

178,353

144,466

151.473

00

40

5

00

15

5

299

08/01/201 6 throughO 8/31/2016

CosT

200,000 .00

169,189 33

125,000 00

175,280.17

142,737 91

151,031.36

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

748.50

1.636.11

499.08

1.531.25

2,760 .42

1,250 00



4. Trustmark
SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Payj

OPERATING SHORT/BATRD ADVISORS/

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Perfod 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 478898ES4
125,000 JOHNSON CNTY TX TXBL-CTFS OBLIG 125.890 00 125,000.00 1 94.67
G/0 LTD NON-CALLABLE FED
TAXABLE DTD 11012015 1 704%
01512018
LASTPRICED:08/31 2016

CUSIP ¥ 483 686 BF7
255,000 KANAWHA PUTNAM CNTY HUNTINGTON 254,676 15 247,262 90 2 0 00
CHARLESTON W VA SF MTGE COMPOUND
INT-1984 SER A REV BDS
NON-CALLABLE FED & ST TAX-EXEMPT
ZERO CPX OID DTD 09/19,/1984 0%
1210112016
LAST PRICED: 08/3172016

CUSIP # 546 593AE4
195,000 LOUISVILLE & JEFFERSON CNTY KY 210,054.00 209,324, 57 1 995 3
MET GOVT HLTH FACS REVENUE
JEWISHHOSP ST MARYS HLTHCARE
REV BDS FED & ST TAX-EXEMPT OID
DTD 07/10/2008 6 125%
02/01/2037-2018
LAST PRICED: 087312016

CUSIP# 575577KT7
225,000 MASSACHUSETTS BAY MA TRANSPRTN 233,230 50 241,843.39 2 1,875 00
AUTH REV ASSMT-SER A REV BDS
NON-CALLABLE FED & ST TAX-EXEMPT
DTD 11/13:2008 5% 07/01,2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31.20t6

CUSIP # 575579XJ1
145,000 MASTBAY TRANSPRTN AUTH SALES 150,895 70 156,912 .62 1 1,329.17
TAX REVENUE PREREFUNDED-SR-SER C
REV BDS NON-CALLABLE FED & ST
TAX-EXEMPT DTD 127222004 5.5%
07/01/2017
LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP # 64990 7XP2
150,000 NEW YORK ST DORM AUTH REVS NON 150,021 00 150,038 19 1 127.75
ST SUPPORTED DEBT TXBL- EMPLOYER
ASSMNT-SER A REV BDS FED
TAXABLEST TAX-EXEMPT DTD
12/19/2013 874% 12/01/2016
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

300



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/ Page 9
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
CUSTODIAN Acceunt Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

75,000

95,000

450,000

145,000

100,000

130,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP 4 677581DS6

OHIO ST MAJOR NEW STATE
INFRASTRUCTURE PROJ REV BUILD
AMER BDS-TAXABLE-SER 2-DIRECT
REVENUE BONDS FED TAXABLEST
TAX-EXEMPT DTD 05/25/2010 3.893%
06:15/2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP ¥ 6824543R2

ONEIDA CNTY NY TAXABLE-PUB
IMPT-SERB G/O UNLTD FED
TAXABLE/ST TAX-EXEMPT OID DTD
0471572009 6 25% 04/15/2019

LAST PRICED:- 083112016

CUSIP 4 759136LN2

REGIONAL TRANSPRTN DIST CO SALES
TAX REV FASTRACKS PROJ-SER A REV
BDS FED & ST TAX-EXEMPT

10:19/2006 5% 11/01/2036-2016

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP ¥ 759136917

REGIONAL TRANSPRTN DIST CO SALES
TAX PREREFUNDED-FASTRACKS PJ-A
REVBDS FED & ST TAX-EXEMPT DTD
1011972006 5% 11/01/2031-2016

LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 773182VK3

ROCKFORD IL PARK DISTRICT
TXBLE-REF-SER C G/O LTD NOTES
NON-CALLABLE FEDTAXABLEST
TAXABLEDTD 06/23/2015 3%
1211512017

LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP #940093Y68

WASHINGTON ST UNIV BUILD AMERICA
BONDS REV BDS NON-CALLABLE FED
TAXABLE DTD 1201/2009 4.347%
1070172016

LAST PRICED; 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

76,751 25

102,139.25

453,105 00

146,000.50

101,061.00

130,336.70

301

COosT

77.078

101,457

459,030

147,902

101,241,

130,367

82

9

06

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

616 39

2,243.06

7,500.00

2,416 67

566 67

2,354 .63



fzf Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 10
OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Statement Perlod 0870172016 through 08/31/2016

CUSTODIAN

Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE
CUSIP #973175BY7
100, 000 WINDER-BARROW GA INDL BLDG AUTH 100.005.00
TXBL-REF-BARROW CO ECON DEV PROJ
REV BDS NON-CALLABLE FED

150,000

75,000

100,000

100,000

150,000

TAXABLE ST TAX-EXEMPT OID DTD
06/23/2015 1% 10/01/2016
LAST PRICED: 0873172016

3.505.208 20

CORPORATE BONDS

CUSIP # 037833AGS

APPLE INC DTD 05/03/2013 . 5841% 150,421.50
05/0372018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 89114QB64

TORONTO-DOMINION BANK DTD 75,550.50
0712312015 175%07/23/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 89236TCB9

TOYOTAMOTOR CREDIT CORP DTD 100.202.00
0111272015 9411% 0111222018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

326,174 00
FOREIGN BONDS-NOTES & DEBENTURES

CUSIP # 06366RU78

BANK OF MONTREAL DTD 07:31/2015 100,818.00
1.8% 07/31:2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 064159DB9

BANK OF NOVA SCOTIADTD 150,142.50
12/13/2013 .922% 121372016

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

302

COST

100,008

3.511.06%50.

150,175.

74,925

100,000.

325,100

99.863

150,062,

.19

23

.75

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

416 67

31 .0682 312

70 58

138,54

15000

107 .33



:/ﬁ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING SHORT/BAIRD ADVISORS/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK
CUSTODIAN

Asset Betail As Of 08/31/2016

UNTTS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION
CUSIP # 78010UBY2
100.000 ROYAL BANK OF CANADA DTD

09/1172013 1.45% 09/09/2016
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
castt

DUR FROM SIROKER
DUE T0 PROKER

NET ASSETS

ACCRUED INCOME
TOTAL MARKET VALUE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Pagell

Stolement Perfod
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

100,007.00

380 . 967,50

15,781,606 27
[ 1]

[ 1]

429,633 26
15,351,973 01
62,725 12
15,414,698 23

303

08.01 2016 through 08/31/2016

% OF

COST PORT
100,015 23 i
349,940 84 2

ACCRUED
INCOME

692.78

150 .11



7>
i% Trustmark

Page 5

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
OPERATING SHORT/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (SHORT)/ Statement Period

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/DOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

CUSIP # 609349708
148,256.22 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND
-88 396-A

US GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP 4 912828NT3

1,895,000 US TREASURY NOTE DTD 08/16:2010
1625% 08/15:2020
LAST PRICED: 08:31 2016

~

"

MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES

CUSIP # 31254UATO

484,958 8 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP POOL
E09018 DTD 12/01/2012 2.5%
01/01/2028
LAST PRICED: 08/31'2016

CUSIP # 3138A4Y 58

504,721.90345 FED NATL MTG ASSN POOL AH3431
DTD 01/01:2011 3.5% 01/01/2026
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CORPORATE BONDS

CUSIP # 06406HBMO

230,000 BK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORP DTD
05/12/2009 5 45% 05/15/2019
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

148,256.

148,286,

.006,103,

1006.103.

502,014,

533,253,

035,268

254,278,

MARKET VALUE

63

304

08/01:2016 through 08/31/2016

COST

148,256.

148,256

1,993,954,

1.993,95%4.

500.805.

532.476.

1,033,161

249,870

91

“

L]

54

% OF
PORT

34

34

ACCRUED
INCOME

2,297 94

2,297 924

1,010.33

1.472.11

1,487 43

3.690.86



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 6
OPERATING SHORT/AGINCOURT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (SHORTYV Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 083172016

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Ascount Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
CUSIP # 166764AY6
115,000 CHEVRON CORP DTD 11/17/2015 118,796.15 115,197.76 2 803.65

2.419% 11/17/2020-2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 166764BA7

45,000 CHEVRON CORP DTD 11/17/2015 45,560.70 45,000.00 1 239 41
1.79% 1 1/16/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 17275RAE2

50,000 CISCOSYSTEMS INC DTD 02/172009 54,461.50 5$3.585.68 1 110 00
495%02/1512019
LAST PRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP # 191216BRO

50,000 COCA-COLA CO/THE DTD 102772015 49,966 .00 49.,978.00 1 150 69
.875% 100272017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 36962G4 D3

155,000 GENERAL ELEC CAP CORP DTD 176,527 95 176,836.80 3 620 00
08/07/2009 6% 08/07/2019
LAST PRICED: 0873172016

CUSIP # 40428 HPVS

115,000 HSBC USA INC DTD 08/07/2015 117.530.00 116,344.37 2 210 83
2.75% 08:07/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
CUSIP # 459200GM7

155,000 INTL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP DTD 175,306.55 175,750.36 3 4,464 86

10/15/08 7625% 10/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 594918AC8
200,000 MICROSOFT CORP DTD 05/1872009 216,250 00 212,724.61 4 2.100 00
4.2% 06/01/2019
LAST PRICED: 08 /312016

CUSIP # 656531AF7

178, 000 NORSKHYDRO A § DTD01/15/1998 190,331.84 197,304
6.7°%%01/15,2018
LAST PRICED: 0873172016

8 3 1,523 88

305



’«éﬁ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING SHORT/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (SHORT)/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

105,000

100, 000

115,000

175,000

100,000

200,000

180,000

175,000

95.000

DESCRIFTION

CUSIP 4 68389XAGO

ORACLE CORPORATION DTD
07/08/2009 5% 07.08/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP 4 74456QBM
PUBLICSERVICEELEC& GASDTD
081272014 2% 0811 5/2019-2019
LAST PRICED: 08 31 2016

CUSIP 4 78012K1Z1

ROYAL BANK OF CANADA DTD
12/10/20152% 12/10/2018

LAST PRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP 4 822582BM3

SHELL INTERNATIONAL FIN DTD
1171072015 1.625% 11/10:2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 842434CD2

SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CO SERIES HH
DTD 10/17:2003 5 45% 04/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 89233P6S0

TOYOTA MOTORCREDIT CORPDTD
10/0572012 1.25% 10:052017

LAST PRICED- 083172016

CUSIP#911312AH9

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INCDTD
01/15/2008 5 5% 01/15/2018

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP #931142CJ0
WAL-MART STORES INC DTD
0872412007 5 8% 02/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 94974BGRS

WELLS FARGO ANDCODTD
12/07/20152.55% 120772020
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page?
Statement Perlod 08/01/2016 twough
Actount Number 08/31/2016
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALLE COST PORT INCOME
115,748.85 113,997.33 2 772 92
101,869 00 100.759 95 2 88 89
116,311.00 114,973.55 2 517 50
176,041.25 176.432.27 3 876 82
106.581.00 111.822.79 2 2,058 89
200,530 00 200,137 .91 3 1,013 89
191.057.40 194,734.11 3 1,265 00
187,146 75 196,165 33 3 451 11
97.715.10 94,898.35 2 565.25
2,692.009 84 2.696.513 89 46 224 45

306



/d'% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING SHORT/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (SHORT)
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION
TOTAL INVESTMENTS
CASH

DUE FROM BROKFR
DUE 70 BROKFR

NET ASSETS

ACCRUFD INCOME
TOTAT MARKET VALLE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 8

Statement Perfod
Account Numbar

016

MARKETVALUE

5. 881,638
0

[

0
£.881.638
26,324
4,907,963

54
09
ag
00
&4
&8

(14

307

08/0172046 through
08/3112016

% OF ACCRUED
COST PORT INCOME



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page s
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG), Statement Perlod 08:01/2016 through 08/31/2016

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET YALUE COST  PORT INCOME

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

CUSIP # 60934N708
12,379.56 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 12,379 56 12,379 56 0 3 57
-88396A

12.379 %8 12,379 58 o 3 57
US GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP # 912828A91

170,000 USTREASURY NOTEDTD 01/15/2014 170,219.30 170.193 48 4 166.30
75%01/15:2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

170,219 30 170,193 48 4 1es 3@
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP # 20047RAE3
40,835.12803 COMMERCIAL MTG PASS-TIIRU CERT 41,889.14 42,469 .47 I 197 60
SER 2007-CP CL A4 COLLATERAL
STRIP INTEREST DTD 08/06/2007
6.00692% 12/10/2049
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 46630)AC)
7,351 26 JP MORGAN CHASE COMM MTG SEC 7.425 18 7,497 91 ] 12.10
SERIES 2007-LDPX CLASS A3 DTD
0310172007 5.42% 01/15/2049
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 46630VAD4

19,397 88 1P MORGAN CHASE COMMMTG CORP 19,706 85 19,972 14 1 91.91
SERIES 2007-CB19 CLASS A4 DTD
06/01/2007 5.88183%02/12/2049
LAST PRICED 0813112016

CUSIP ¥ 46632HAD3
15,000 1P MORGAN CHASE COMM MTG SECTR 15,381 12 15,559.35 0 71.07
SERIES2007-LD12 CLASS A4 DTD
08/01/2007 5.882%02/15/2051
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

308



.
" . Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page6
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG), Statement Perlod 08:01/2016 Ihfnugh

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN Account Number 0873172016

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED

UNITS/BOOK YALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 84474YAA4

9,965.7586 SOUTHWEST AIRLINES SER{ES 2007-1 11.438.70 11,232.08 [ 51.07

20,000

45,000

25,000

30,000

20,000

5.000

5.000

DTD 10/03;2007 6 15% 02/01/2024
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

95 .840.99 96,730 9% 2 4343 715
CORPORATE BONDS

CUSIP # 00206RCY6

AT&T INCDTD 03/15/2016 5.2% 22.289 20 21,573.22 } 479,56
03/152020

LAST PRICED 08/3 112016

CUSIP # 00206RDA7

AT&T INC DTD 03/0112016 5% 50,597.55 49,863 44 | 1.125.00
03/01/2021

LAST PRICED: 081312016

CUSIP # 00209TABI

COMCAST CABLECOMMHLDGSAT& T 35,156.00 34,786.90 1 695.99
BROADBAND DTD 11/18/2002 9.455%

117152022

LAST PRICED: 0873 172016

CUSIP # 00287 YAL3

ABBVIE INC DTD 05/06/2013 2.9% 30.840.60 29.830.20 | 277.92
11/06/2022

LAST PRICED: 08/3112016

CUSIP 4 00440EAS6

ACE INA HOLDINGS INC DTD 21,115 20 20,370 11§ 290 50
03/1672015 3.15%403/15/2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 009158AT3

AIR PRODUCTS AND CHEMICALS DTD 5,199 75 4,981.05 [} 10.69
02/04/2013 2.75% 02/0372023

LAST PRICED: 083112016

CUSIP # 020002AZ4

ALLSTATE CORP DTD 06/07/2013 5,319 .95 5.068 60 0 33.25
3 15% 06/15/2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

309



/éz/f Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

20,000

40,000

10,000

45,000

15.000

DESCRIFTION

CUSIP # 02364\WANS

AMERICA MOVIL SABDECV DTD
107302007 5.625% 117152017
LAST PRICED. 0811/2016

CUSIP # 025816BD0
AMERICAN EXPRESS CO DTD
12/03/20122.6 5% 12022022
LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 03076CAF)

AMERIPRISE FINANCIAL INC DTD
09/06/2013 4% 10/152023
LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP#031162BYS

AMGEN INC DTD 05/01/2015 3.125%
05/01/2025-2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0326 54AJ4

ANALOG DEVICES INCDTD
127141201 5 3.9% 12/15/2025-2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #035242AL0
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV FIN DTD
01/25/2016 33% 02/01/2023-2022
LAST PRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP # 039483BB7

ARCHER DANIELS MIDLAND DTD
041047201 1 4479%603/01/2021

LAST PRICED: 0873172016

CUSIP # 049360AJ4

ATMOS ENERGY CORP DTD 03/26/2009
8.5%603/15/2019

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 05531FAU7

BB&T CORPORATION DTD 06/29/2015
2.625% 06,29/2020-2020

LASTPRICED 0873172016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page?

Statement Period
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

31,467,

25,658.

21,915,

15,755,

21,352,

42,004.

11,227

52,505

15,476.

00

75

.30

310

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

COST

31,349

24,740

21,632

14.8114.

21,840

40.811

11,320

52,474

15,253

47

80

36

1]

05

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

496 .88

163.78

302.22

156.25

164.67

110.00

223 95

1,763.75

67 81



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 8

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

35,000

140,000

5,000

5,000

15,000

35.000

15,000

10,000

10,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP 4 055451A02

BHP BILLITON FIN USA LTD DTD
09,/30/2013 3.85%09:30,2023

LAST PRICED. 08731/2016

CUSIP # 06051GECS

BANK OF AMERICA CORP DTD
06/22/2010 5.625% 07,01:2020
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP & 06406HDA4

BK OF NEW YORK MELLON CORPDTD
0212412015 3% 02/24:2025-2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 084664BT7

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY FINDTD
05/15/2012 3% 05/15/2022

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP & 111021 AE1

BRITISH TELECOM PLC BRITISH
TELECOMMUNICATIONS P NOTE 9.625%
12/1572030

LAST PRICED: 08731/2016

CUSIP # 120568AT7

BUNGE LTD FINANCE CORPDTD
0610972009 8.5% 06/15/2019
LASTPRICED. 087312016

CUSIP # 12189LAH4

BURLINGTON NORTH SANTAFE DTD
03/02/2012 3.05% 03/15/2022-2021

LAST PRICED 0873172016

CUSIP # 12189 TAA2

BURLINGTON NORTH SANTA FEDTD
12/1141995 7% 12/1512025

LAST PRICED: 0873172016

CUSIP # 126408HB2

CSXCORP DTD 0721/20143.4%
08/01/2024-2024

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

Statement Perlod
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

38,234

158,135

5,262

5,292

24,419

40.949

15,896

13.566

10,712,

70

00

311

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

COST

37.676

155, 464

5.261

5,188

23,310

40,354

15,934

12,683

10,554

09

71

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME
1 565 .20
4 £.312 50
0 2.92
0 4417
1 304 79
i 628.06
0 210 96
0 147.78
0 28.33



’% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

35,000

25,000

30.000

5,000

50,000

90,000

15,000

85,000

35,000

DESCRIFTION

CUSIP # 126650CK4

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION DTD
0772072015 1.5% 07:20/2022-2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 136385AR2

CANADIAN NATURAL RESOURCES LTD
DTD (11672011 3.45%

11/15/2021-2021

LAST PRICED 08:31/2016

CUSIP 5 14040HBD6

CAPITAL ONE FINANCIAL CORP DTD
06/06/2013 3.5% 06/152023

LAST PRICED. 08.31/2016

CUSIP # 14912L5F4

CATERPILLAR FINL SERVICES DTD
05/30/2012 2.85% 06:01/2022

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 16676 4AY6

CHEVRON CORP DTD 11/17/2015
2 419% 11/17/2020-2020

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 172967KB6

CITIGROUP INC DTD 10/26/2015
2.65% 1072612020

LLAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP #20030NBF7

COMCAST CORPORATION DTD
0171472013 2.85% 01/15/2023
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 20825CAR S
CONOCOPHILLIPS DTD 027032009
5.75%02/01/2019

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 247126AHS8

DELPH] CORP DTD02/14/2013 5%
02/15/2023-2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 9

Statement Period
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

37,620,

25,559

31,361

5,229

51,650

92,250

15.715

92,982

37,143,

45

00

90

75

312

cost

36,463

24,268

30,388

5,030

51,057

90,329

14,601,

89.963.

37.367

92

87

68

08/01/2016 through 0873172016

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

139 5t

253.96

221 67

35.63

349 41

828 13

54 63

407 29

77.78



i‘%‘ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

I5,000

50.000

25,000

75,000

15,000

55,000

10,000

15,000

15,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP #25156PAC7

DEUTSCHE TELEKOM INTL FIN
DEUTSCHE TELEKOM INTL FIN B DTD
07/0600 8.25% DUE 06/15:2030
8.75%06/15.2030

LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP # 25179MAK9

DEVONENERGY CORPORATIONDTD
07/12°2011 4% 07/15/2021-2021

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #25243Y AP4

DIAGEO CAPITAL PLC DTD
05/14:2010 4.828% 07/15/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 25746UBES

DOMINION RESOURCE INC DTD
06/17:2008 6.4% 06/15/2018

LAST PRICED- 08731/2016

CUSIP 4 25746UBH1

DOMINION RESOURCE INC DTD
08/14:2009 5.2% 08/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 0873172016

CUSIP # 260543 BX0

DOW CHEMICAL CO DTD 05/13/2009
8.55% 051512019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 26441CAD7

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION DTD
08/2872009 5.05% 09/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08731/2016

CUSIP 4 26441CANS

DUKE ENERGY CORPORATION DTD
04/0472014 3.75% 04/15/2024-2024
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 278062AC8

EATON CORPORATION DTD 11/022013
2.75% 11/0272022

LAST PRICED: 0873112016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 10
Statement Perlod 08/0172016 through
Acceunt Number 08312016
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
23,429 .10 22,621 06 1 277.08
52,272 .00 47,719.25 1 255 56
27,992 00 27,850 43 1 154 23
81.288 75 81.261 8t 2 1,013.33
16,432 95 16,102 06 0 34.67
64,911.55 64,358.61 2 1,384 .63
11,006 .70 10,771.29 1] 232 86
16,315.65 15,991 46 [ 212.50
15,495.60 15,167 88 4 136.35

313



fff? Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 11
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT - -
CAPITALMANA GEMENT (LONG), Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN Acsount Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIFTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 278865ALA

25,000 ECOLABINC DTD 12/08/20i1 435% 28,096 00 27.501.82 1 250.73
12/08:2021
LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 29379VAF0

40,000 ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS OPER LLC DTD 44,184 80 43,954.80 ! 175.00
10/05/2009 5.25% 01/31/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 337738AP3

25,000 FISERV INC DTD 05,22:2015 3.85% 27,028.75 25,921.05 1 240.63
06/0172025-2025
LAST PRICED: 083112016

CUSIP # 36962G6S8

10,000 GENERALELECCAP CORP DTD 10,688, 60 10,472.59 0 44.78
01/08/2013 3.1% 01/09/2023
LAST PRICED: 083172016

CUSIP # 37045VAD2

45,000 GENERAL MOTORS CO DTD 04:022014 46,359.90 46,113.74 1 651.88
3 5% 10/02/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 375558AW)

20,000 GILEAD SCIENCES INC DTD 21,673.00 21,403.39 1 308.33
03/07/2014 3.7%% 04/01/2024-2024
LAST PRICED: 083112016

CUSIP 4 18141GVM3

55,000 GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC DTD 59,277.90 58,317 88 2 1,087 78
03/03/2014 4% 0370372024
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 404280AL3

30,000 HSBC HLDGS PLC DTD 1171772011 33,378.60 32,920 32 1 190 94
4875%01/14202
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 437076BG6

35,000 HOME DEPOT INC DTD 06/02/201 5 36,434.30 36,384 67 ) 229 69
2625% 06/01/2022-2022
LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

314




{//f%’ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 12
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT N

CAPITALMANAGEMENT (LONG), Statement Perlod 08/0172016 through 08/31/2016

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKFET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 459200AM3
25,000 INTL BUSINESS MACHINES CORP 34.035.25 33.121.37 i} 0. 00
INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHS DEB
7% 10/30/2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 460146CEl

10, 000 INTERNATIONAL PAPER CO DTD 12.271.10 11,740,510 13 3
08/10/2009 7.5% 08/15/2021
LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP # 460146CG6

20,000 INTERNATIONAL PAPERCODTD 22,197 .00 21,928.30 I 41 12
1171672011 4,75% 02/15/2022-2021
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 460690BJ8

20,000 INTERPUBLIC GROUPCOS DTD 20,086 80 20,021 78 1 132.50
11/08/2012 2.25% 11/15/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 46625HHS2

95,000 JPMORGANCHASE & CO DTD 103,569 00 102,599 56 3 452 .81
07/2212010 4.4% 07/22/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/3172016

CUSIP # 46625HHU7

40,000 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 10/21/2010 43,559 .20 42,820 95 1 642 22
4.25% 10/1572020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 501044C22

30,000 KROGER CO/THE DTD 10/28/2014 31,359 .90 31,315 12 1 295 .00
2.95% 11/01/2021-2021
LAST PRICED: 08/3112016

CUSIP # 50247VAA?

20,000 LYB INTL FINANCE BV DTD 21,786 40 21,266 97 1 102.122
07/1672013 4%07/15/2023
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP » 539830BG3

5,000 LOCKJIEED MARTIN CORPORATION DTD 5,278 60 5,061 92 0 19 81
11/23/2015 3 1% 01/15/2023-2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

315



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),
TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION
CUSIP# 581557BE4
5.000 MCKESSON CORP DTD 03/10:2014

3.796% 03/15/2024-2023
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 585055BS4

20,000 MEDTRONICINC DTD 09,01:2015
3.5%903/15:2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 591 56RBQO

25,000 METLIFE INC DTD 117137201 5 3.6%
11/13/2025-2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 594918BS2

20,000 MICROSOFT CORP DTD 11,03,201 5
3.125% 11.03/2025-2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 59 5620AM7

15,000 MIDAMERICANENERGY CO DTD
04/03/20143.5% 10/15/2024-2024
LLAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 61746BDR2

55,000 MORGANSTANLEY DTD 02/25/2013
3.75% 0225/2023
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP & 637432MV4

10,000 NATIONAL RURAL UTIL COOP DTD
1170513 3.4% 11/1 5/2023-2023
LASTPRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 637432NF8

10,000 NATIONAL RURAL UTILCOOP DTD
10/27/2015 2.3% 11/01/2020-2020
LAST PRICED 087312016

CUSIP & 66989HAJ7

10,000 NOVARTIS CAPITAL CORP DTD
11207204 5 3% 11/20/2025-2025
LAST PRICED: 08731/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 13
Statement Period 08/01/2016 trough
Account Number 0873172016
4% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
5.425.40 5,038 42 0 87.52
21.692.40 21,037 .76 1 322 78
26,492.50 25,432 91 1 270 00
21,356.60 20,822 26 1 204 .86
16,386.00 16,397 .15 0 198 33
58,859.35 57,444 60 i 34.38
10.755.70 10,310 44 0 10011
10,254 50 10,302 22 0 76 .67
10,682 90 10,326 29 0 84.17

316



% Trustmark

SAM HHOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

40,000

30,000

20.000

40,000

55.000

5,000

15,000

75,000

60.000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 670346AM7

NUCOR CORP DTD 07/29:2013 4%
08/01,2023-2023

LAST PRICED 081312016

CUSIP # 68 389XBC8

ORACLE CORPORATIONDTD
05/05/2015 2.95% 05/1 5/2025-2025
LAST PRICED 08/312016

CUSIP # 693476BJ1

PNC FUNDING CORP DTD 0%7/08/2010
5.125%02 082020

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 695114CM8

PACIFICORP DTD 05/1272011 3.85%
06/1512021-2021

LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 7064 51BS9

PEMEX PROJ FOG MASTER TR DTD
09/0122008 575% 0301/2018

LAST PRICED' 081312016

CUSIP # 713448BR8

PEPSICO INC DTD 10/2672010
3125% 11.01/2020

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 74326 3AR6

PROGRESS ENERGY INC DTD
0172172011 4.4% 01/15/2021-2020
LAST PRICED 08/3172016

CUSIP # 74432QBGS

PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC SERIES
MTND 06:08:2009 7.375%

06/1512019

LAST PRICED 08/3112016

CUSIP # 748148PD9

QUEBEC PROVINCE CANADA DEB DTD
02/0911994 7.125% 02/09/2024

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 14
Statemnent Peried 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
Account Number
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
43,225 20 42,300 03 1 133.33
31,102, 50 30,280 49 1 260 S8
22,233 20 22,037.04 1 65.49
43,688 80 43,411 08 1 32511
57,805 .00 57,565.57 1 1,581.25
5.343 .25 5,227.97 0 52 08
16,460 70 16,368 .23 0 B4 13
86,331 75 85,959.54 2 1,167 71
79,266 00 78,810 55 2 261 23

317



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

65,000

20,000

20,000

55,000

10,000

20,000

10,000

35,000

5.000

DESCRIFTION

CUSIP # 758202AG0

REED ELSEVIER CAPITAL DTD
01/16/2009 8.625%601/1 572019
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP #772739A17

ROCK-TENN CO DTD 03:012013
4.45%03/0112019

LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 772739 AL2

ROCK-TENN CO DTD 03/01:2013 4.9%
03.01/2022

LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 776696 ACO

ROPER TECHNOLOGIES INC ROPER
INDUSTRIES INC 6.25% 09/01/2019
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 822582BD3

SHELL INTERNATIONAL FIN DTD
05/11/201 5 3.25% 05/11/2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/72016

CUSIP # 822582BP6

SHELL INTERNATIONAL FIN DTD
1171072015 2.25% 11,10/2020

LAST PRICED- 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 842434CM2

SOUTHERN CALIF GAS CODTD
09/11/2014 3,1 5% 09/1 5/2024-2024
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 844741BB3
SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO DTD
11/05/201 5 2.65% 11:05/2020-2020
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP 4 857477ATO

STATE STREET CORP DTD 08/18/2015
3.55% 08/18/2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 15
Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
Account Number
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
74,983 35 74,436.91 2 716 35
21,179 .00 20,912.55 i 445 00
22,229 20 21,998.75 i 490 00
61,839 25 61,358.98 2 1,718 75
10,655 70 10,629.80 0 99 .31
20,459 00 19,890.20 1 138.75
10,735 40 10,758 41 ¢ 145.25
35,984 20 35,514.50 i 298 .86
5.467 55 5,273,719 0 6.41

318



é/% Trustmark

SAM BOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOU NT Page 16
OPRERATING LONG/AGINCOURT

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG), Statement Perlod 08/0172016 through 08/31/2016

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN Account Numbher

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP 4 85771PAGT

40,000 STATOIL ASA DTD 11/21722012 245% 40.755.20 38,694 92 1 119.78
01147208
LAST PRICED. 08/3172016

CUSIP 4 86765BAL

50,000 SUNOCO LOGISTICS PARTNER DTD 49,892 50 49,069 76 1 220 42
01710120133 45%01/152028-2022
LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP b 8679 14BF9

30,000 SUNTRUST BANKS INC DTD 30,501.00 30,328.43 1 235.00
1042572013 2 35% 11/01/2018-2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 867914BG?

15,000 SUNTRUST BANKS INC DTD 15,317.55 15,288 84 0 125 .00
05012014 2. 5% 05/01/2019-2019
LAST PRICED 0813112016

CUSIP # 87233QAAS

35,000 TC PIPELINES LP DTD 06/17/2011 36.614 20 34,472 43 1 343 .58
4 65%06/15:2021-2021
LAST PRICED 083172016

CUSIP 4 87938WAGS

5,000 TELEFONICA EMISIONES SAU DTD 5,196 .05 5,187.64 0 5011
07/0212007 6 221%607/03/2017
LASTPRICED 0873172016

CUSIP 4 883556AX0

10,000 THERMO FISHER SCIENTIFIC INC DTD 11,051 .30 10,644 81 0 225 00
0212272011 4.5%03/01/2021
LAST PRICED 087312016

CUSIP 4 8873 17AV7

15,000 TIME WARNER INC DTD 051282014 15.971 10 15,603 .03 [ 133. 13
1.55%06/01/2024-2024
LASTPRICED 0873112016

CUSIP 4 89233P7F7

15,000 TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP DTD 15,529 20 15,365.22 0 55 78
0171012013 2 625% 01/10/203
LAST PRICED: 083172016

319



i//cé Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),

TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

25.000

10,000

a¢, 000

5,000

20,000

45,000

30,4000

50,000

10,000

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 17

Statement Perlod
Account Number

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 893526DK6
TRANS-CANADA PIPELINES DTD
09:23,/2010 3.8% 10/01/2020

LAST PRICED: 08/31 2016

CLUSIP 4 89417EAC3

THE TRAVELERS COMPANIES INC DTD
05/292007 5.75% 12:15:2017

LAST PRICED: 08:31'2016

CLSIP 4 90131HBW4

21ST CENTY FOX AMER INC DTD
10:21:2015 3.7% 10/15/2025-2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31.2016

CUSIP # 91159HHGS

U S BANCORP DTD 01.30/2014 3.7%
01/30:2024-2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 91324PCPS
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC DTD
07/23/12015 3.75% 07/15/2025
LASTPRICED: 08/312016

CUSIP # 91913YAR]

VALERO ENERGY CORP DTD
02/08/2010 6.125% 02/01/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 92276 MAZ8

VENTAS REALTY LP/CAP CRPDTD
08/03/2012 3.25% 08/15/2022-2072
LASTPRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP #92343VBR4

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS DTD
09/18/2013 5.1 5% 09/15/2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #9278 04FKS

VIRGINIA ELECTRIC & POWER CO DTD
017122012 2.95% 01/15/2022-2021

LAST PRICED: 08/312016

MARKET VALUE

26,765 .

10,564,

32,752,

5,504,

22,169.

51,416.

30,849,

58,513.

10,515.

75

00

320

COsT

25,843

10.569

31,056

5,284

21,21

49,654

30,397,

$6,116.

10,287

53

07

.41

07

49

% Of
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

395 .83

121.39

419 .33

95.83

229.69

43.33

1,187.36

37.69



y
@z Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),
TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Statement Peclod
Account Number

08/01/2016 through 08/3172016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION
CUSIP 4 92857WBC3
20,000 VODAFONE GROUP PLC DTD

021972013 2.95% 02/19/2023-2013
LAST PRICED 08/3172016

CUSIP 4931142DH3

40,000 WAL-MART STORESINCDTD
04/11/2013 2.55% 04/11/2023-2023
LAST PRICED' 08/31/2016

CUSIP #94106 LAWY

20,000 WASTE MANAGEMENT INCDTD
06/0872010 4 75% 06/30/2020
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP % 94973VBA4

50,000 WELLPOINT INC DTD 09/10/2012
3.3% 01/15/2023
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 94974BGH7

50,000 WELLSFARGO AND CODTD
02/19/2015 3% 02/19/2025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

FOREIGN BONDS-NOTES & DEBENTURES

CUSIP # 13645RAK0

25,000 CANADIAN PACIFIC RRCO DTD
0972372010 4.45% 03/15/2023-2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 35177PAW?

15,000 FRANCE TELECOM DTD 09/14/2011
4 125% 09/14/2021
LASTPRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 377373AD7

25,000 GLAXOSMITHKLINE CAPITAL DTD
05/092012 2.85% 05/08/2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

20.726.80

41,649.60

22.224.60

52.372.50

51,433.00

3,509,487 8%

27.862.75

16,547 85

26,353 .25

321

CosT

19.497.

40,737,

21,903

50,329.

49,924,

3,438,634,

27,065.

16,371.

25,742

08

.99

97

03

49

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED

INCOME

19.

160

110

50.

.836.

512

187

113

67

67

.97

B3

o0

99

03

65



/% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/AGINCOURT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (LONG),
TRUSTMARK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 68323ABK9

25,000 PROVINCE OF ONTARIO DTD
062912012 2.45% 06'29/2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 87938WAMS

10,000 TELEFONICA EMISIONES SAU DTD
04/26/2010 5.134% 04/27/2020
LAST PRICED- 08/31/2016

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
CASIY

DUE FROM BROKER
DUE TO BROKER

NET ASSETS

ACCRUED INCOME
TOTALMARKET VALUE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page19
Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
Account Number
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
25,902.00 25,579.22 i 105.49
11,096.70 10,795.26 0 176 8B4
107,762 8% 105,583 37 3 Jos .80
3,895,658 95
0 00
0 00
0.00
3. N95,659 9%
36,756 6)
3.932.416 86

322



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/BALANCED GROWTH
ADVISORS, LLOUTRUSTMARK NATIONAL
BANK,CUSTODIAN

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 5

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

268,075 06

18.000

51,000

60,000

50.000

40,000

30,000

DESCRIFTION

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

CUSIP # 60934N708
FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND
-§8396-A

CONVERTIBLE CORPORATE BONDS

CUSIP #04010LAGS

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL03/14/2017 DTD
09/15/2012 4 875% 03/15/2017

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 092533AB4

BLACKROCK CAPITAL INVESTMENT
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 02/14/2018 DTD
08/1572013 5.5% 0215/2018

LAST PRICED 08731/2016

CUSIP # 111621AQ1

BROCADE COMMUNICATIONS SYS INC
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 12/30/2019 DTD
01/01/2016 1.375% 01/01/2020

LAST PRICED 083172016

CUSIP # 16115QAC4

CHART INDUSTRIES INC CONVERTIBLE
UNTIL 7/30/2018 DTD 08/03/2011

2% 08/01/2018

LAST PRICED 083172016

CUSIP # 177376 AD2

CITRIX SYSTEMS INC CONVERTIBLE
UNTIL 04/11/2019 DTD 04/15/2015

.5% 04/15/2019

LAST PRICED. 0873112016

CUSIP # 42330PAG2

HELEX ENERGY SOLUTIONS GROUP
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 03/12/2032 DTD
03/12/2012 3.25% 03/15/2032-2018
LAST PRICED. 0813112016

Statement Perled
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

268,075.

168.07%

18,281

52.625.

58.312.

48,531

46,025

27,825

.34

00

323

08/01/2016 dwough 08312016

CosT

268,075

168,075

18,249,

52.499.

58,814,

48,162

42,077

30,918

04

64

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

9

404 .

134

137.

83 .

75

449

63

.67

50

33

i6

58



& Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING LONG/BALANCED GROWTH

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 6

ADVISORS, LLUTRUSTMARK NATIONAL

BANK, CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

30,000

12,000

30,000

50,000

55,000

57.000

67,000

50,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 452327AF6

ILLUMINA INC CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
06/13/2019 DTD 0&/11/2015 0%
06/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 452327AH2

ILLUMINA INC CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
06/15/2021 DTD 121572014 5%
06/15:2021

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 458140AD2

INTEL CORP CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
12/15/2035 DTD 121672005 2 95%
1271572035

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 472019AG7?

JEFFERIES GROUP INC CONVERTIBLE
UNTIL 11/1/29 3.875%

11/01/209-2017

LAST PRICED: 08731/2016

CUSIP# 53578 AAB4

LINKEDIN CORP CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
10/30/2019 DTD 117122015 5%
114012019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 55608BAA3

MACQUARIE INFRASTRUCTURE CORP
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 071122019 DTD
07/15/2014 2.875% 07/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 651639AJ5

NEWMONT MININGCORP CONVERTIBLE
UNTIL 07/15/2017 DTD 07/17/2007
1.625%07/1512017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 741503AX4

PRICELINE GROUP INC/THE
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 09/142021 DTD
03/15/2015 9% 09/15/2021

LAST PRICED: 0873172016

Statement Period 08/01/2016 through
Account Number 08/31/2016

% OF
MARKET VALUE COST PORT

30,487 50 34,050.00 2

12,675 00 12.364 50 1

39,956 40 38,303 .99 3

50,719 00 51,569 28 4

54,587 50 50,073 .42 4

66,120 00 64,138 89 5

73,030 00 66,875.69 5

53,156 50 51,246 01 4

324

ACCRUED
INCOME

186.

645 .

91

209.

119

207.

67

83

.67

40

12



{//ﬁ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/BALANCED GROWTH
ADVISORS, LLC/TRUSTMARK NATIONAL

BANK, CUSTODIAN

_Asset_Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

50,000

50,000

55,000

30.000

40,000

54,000

40,000

20,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 749685AT0

RPM INTERNATIONAL INC
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 12/1472020 DTD
12/09:2013 2.25% 12/15,2020

LAST PRICED: 083172016

CUSIP # 74973WAB3

RTI INTERNATIONAL METALS INC
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 10/10:2019 DTD
04/17,2013 1.625% 10/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 0813112016

CUSIP ¥ 7B0287AA6

ROYALGOLD INC DTD 06/20:2012
2.875% 06/15:2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 84860WAAD

SPIRIT REALTY CAPITAL INC
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 05/13/2019
2.875% 05152019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 87238QAB9

TCP CAPITAL CORPORATION
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 12/15:22019 DTD
06/15/2015 5.25% 12/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/01/2016

CUSIP # 88947EAM2

TOLL BROS FINANCE CORP DTD
09/11/2012 CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
09/1512032 .5% 09/15/2032-2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #92343XAA8

VERINT §YS INC CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
05/27/2021 DTD 061872014 1.5%
06/012021

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 984332AF3

YAHOO INC CONVERTIBLE UNTIL
1172972018 DTD 12/16/2014 0%
120112018

LAST PRICED: 0813172016

Statement Period 0870172016 twough
Account Number 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
60,125.00 56,121 .09 4 237 50
53.187.50 51,293.08 4 306 94
61.428.40 54,187.96 4 333 .82
33,112.50 29,480 96 2 153 96
41.600.00 41,604 71 3 443 313
52,987 50 56,123 68 4 124 50
37,100 00 40,298 35 3 150 00
20,500.00 21,750 00 1 0.00

325

Page 7



i/%é Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page8
OPERATING LONG/BALANCED GROWTH

ADVISORS, LLC/TRUSTMARK NATIONAL Statement Period 08/012016 through

BANK, CUSTODIAN Account Number 08/312016

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
991,374 %2 970,203,755 72 4.618 34
COMMON STOCK
CUSIP # 958102105
2 \WESTERN DIGITAL CORPORATION 9314 11,399 06 o 0. .00
LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016
93 M 11,399.06 [ n oo
PREFERRED STOCK
CUSIP & 64944P307
1.200 NEW YORK CMNTY CAP TRUST V 60.180.00 60,150.00 4 0 00
BONUSES UNITS CONVERTIBLE
LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016
60, 180.00 60,150. 00 i 0 08
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
CUSIP # M8769Q136
60 TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES 51.600.00 61,350.00 1 1,050.00
CONVERTIBLE UNTIL 12/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 0813112016
§1,600 00 61,350 00 i 1,058 08
TOTALINVESTMENTS 1,372,322 92
CASI 0 00
DUE FROM BROKER o o0
DUE TO BROKRER 0 oo
NETASSETS 1,372,322 92
ACCRUED INCOME §,707 59
TOTAL MARKET VALUE 1,378,030 &1

326



’/% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 5
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK, Statement Period 08.01 2016 through 08/31/2016

CUSTODWWN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIFTION MARKET VALUE COST  PORT INCOME

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

CUSIP # 60934N708
286,758 42 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 286,758.42 286.758.42 5 34.39
-+ §§1396-A

286 ,758.42 286,758.42 s 34 39
COLLATERALWED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP # 02005ADU9
155,000 ALLY MASTER OWNER TRUST SERIES 155,036.
2014-1 CLASS A1 DTD 02052014
.97765% 01/15/2019
LAST PRICED: 08731.2016

CUSIP # 02006XACI
17,527 14 ALLY AUTO RECV TR SERIES 17.528.55 17,524.44 0 5.21
2015-8N1 CLASS A2BDTD
03/31/2015.89244% 06:20,2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

6 154,883.20 2 71.56

CUSIP # 03065JACE
7.395.65 AMERICREDIT AUTOMOBILE REC TRUST 7,395.49 7,392.50 4] 4.43
SERIES 2014-4 CLASS A2BDTD
1172072014 .8984% 04/05/2018
LAST PRICED: 083112016

CUSIP # 03065LAC3
58,473.08 AMERICREDIT AUTOMOBILEREC TR 58.473.07 58.385.37 1 35.02
SERIES 15.2 CLASS A2B DTD
04715/2015 ,8984% 09/10/2018
LASTPRICED: 08/3 172016

CUSIP # 03065 MACI

AMERICREDIT AUTO RECV TRUST 135.665.33 135,443. 114 2 112.77
SERIES 15-4 CLASS A2B DTD

11/12/2015 1.26656% 04/08/2019

LAST PRICED. 0873 /2016

135,499.6

CUSIP K 03065NACY
21,454.52 AMERICREDIT AUTOMOBILE REC TR 21,458.34 21.406.75 0 14.42
SERIES 15-3 CLASS A2B DTD
08/13/2015 1.0084%6 01/08/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/3 112016

327



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page6
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK, Statement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

CUSTODIAN Accaunt Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNTTS/BOOK VALUR DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 03065VACL
187.825.3 AMERICREDIT AUTOMOBILE REC 188,236.02 188,201.33 3 156 32
SERIES 16-1 CLASS A2B DTD
0172172016 1 26656% 06/1072019
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 05522RCR?
100,000 BANK OF AMERICACDT CARD TRUST 100,069 .41 100,052.57 2 36 72
SERIES 2014-A2 CLASS A DTD
05/14114.77765% 09/16/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/312016

CUSIP #06742L.AC7
174,000 BARCLAYS DRYROCK ISSUANCE TRUST 174,136 96 173,911.64 3 192. 56
SERIES 2014-2 CLASS ADTD
05/28/2014 .84765% 03/16/2020
LAST PRICED: 083172016

CUSIP # 139738AB4
55,.848.57 CAPITALAUTORECIEVABLES ASSET 5§5,867.08 55,839.85 1 16 50
SERIES 15-2 CLASS A1B DTD
0572012015 .88655% 10/2012017
LAST PRICED: 08:312016

CUSIP # 13975KAJ8
7.089.36 CAPITAL AUTO REC ASSET TRUST 7.090.08 7.090.60 1] 114
SERIES 2015-1 CLASS A1B DTD
01/28/2015.90655% 07/20/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP & 13975NAH6
150,000 CAPITAL AUTO RECEIVABLES ASSET T 150,241.79 150,253 18 2 60 62
SERIES 16-1 CLASS A2BDTD
03/16/2016 1.2§ 244% 11/20/2018
LAST PRICED: 083 112016

CUSIP # 143127A17
102,167.28 CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST SERIES 102,160 53 102,115 40 2 118 77
15-2 CLASS A2B DTD 05/13/2015
.78765% 06/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 083122016

CUSIP # 14313VAH7
89,594 83 CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST SERIES 89.673 .48 89,584 .33 1 40 52
15-3 CLASS A2B DTD 08/ 272015
95765% 11/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

328



;/% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY -
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL
FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK,

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

127,176 .58

140, 000

60,000

115,000

100,000

100.000

22,011.4

57,643 95

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 7

Statement Perlod
Account Number

08/01/2016 through
083172016

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 14313XAH3

CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST SERIES
154 CLASS A2B DTD 08728:2015
1.10765% 04/1 52019

LAST PRICED: 08731/2016

CUSIP # 14314MAH6

CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST SERIES
16-2 CLASS A2B DTD 04/20.2016
.97765% 06172019

LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP 4 161571GA6

CHASE ISSUANCE TRUST SERIES
2013-A6 CLASS A6 DTD 07252013
.92765% 07/ 52020

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 1615710W8

CHASE ISSUANCE TRUST SERIES
2015-A3 CLASS A3 DTD 04/29/2015
75765% 04/15:2019

LAST PRICED 083172016

CUSIP # 254683 AS4

DISCOVER CARD EXECUTION NOTE TR
SERIES 2011-A4 CLASS A4 DTD
112222011 .85765% 05/15/2019

LAST PRICED. 08731/2016

CUSIP 4 254683 AWS

DISCOVER CARD EXECUTION NOTETR
SERIES 2012-A4 CLASS A4 DTD
06/1312012 87765% 11/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 087312016

CUSIP # 31339D4ANS

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2411 CLASS FT DTD 02152002
.75765% 06/152021

LAST PRICED: 0873172016

CUSIP 431359 VLM3

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 1999-7
CLASS F DTD 02/25/1999 .87439%
031252025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

127,391.

140,232

60,184

115,108

100,033

100,180

22,054

57,901,

89

3

29

30

329

COST

127,392

140,211

60,089 .

114,842

100,132

100,123

21,970

57.562

93

7

27

69

44

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

66 52

64 63

16.18

41 14

40 50

41 44



&> Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 8
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK, Statement Perlod 08/01:2016 through 08.31/2016

CUSTODIAN Actount Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 31359WVC2
34,356.6 FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 1999-38 34,538.3 34,421.35 1 5.58
CLASS FK DTD 07/25/1999 .97439%
08/25/2023
LAST PRICED: 08:31,2016

CUSIP # 3§36AE7E|
109.704.458 FEDNATLMTG ASSN SERIES 109,842.64 109,704 46 2 15.62
2013-M11 CLASS FADTD 07:252013
.85439%01/2512018
LAST PRICED: 0&/31:2016

CUSIP # 3137AIMD8
127,471.73 FEDHOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 127,686 37 127,705.92 2 51 42
3753CLASS PF DTD 11/15/2010
.90763% 06/15/2040
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP # 3137A6323
46,524.09 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 46,478 . 49 46.710.02 i 18.77
3792 CLASS DF DTD 011572011
.90765% 11/15/2040
LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3137A75R2
120,330.1795 FEDERALHOMELOANMTG CORP 120,043 04 126,255 47 2 35 17
SERIES 3824 CLASS FADTD
0Y15/2011 .65765% 03/15/2026
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31392172
53,240.58 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2003-17 53,345.03 53,278.86 1 7.76
CLASS F DTD 02/25/2003 .87439%
0¥25/2018
LAST PRICED. 0873172016

CUSIP 4 31393A2A4
43,681.95 FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2003-38 43,670.27 43,707.79 1 6. 51
CLASS FA DTD 0472572003 .89439%
03252023
LAST PRICED 0831/2016

CUSIP # 31393ARBS
120,673.03 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2003-25 120,917 .96 120,727.96 2 19 .60
CLASS FN DTD 0¥25/2003 .9743%%
0425/2018
LAST PRICED: 083172016

330



¢ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY -
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL
FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK.

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

20,583,

20,859

20,264,

74,871

26.978.

48 ,1220.

47.088

110,775,

1

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP 4 31393 ASR9

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2003-27
CLASS XF DTD 03/25/2003 .92439%
04/25/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 31393MD40

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2591 CLASS EF DTD 03/15/2003
1.00765% 03152032

LAST PRICED 08/31°2016

CUSIP #31393RN48

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2637 CLASS F DTD 06/15/2003
90765% 06/15:2018

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 31393YAY]

FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2004-31
CLASSFG DTD0425/2004 .92439%
08/25/2033

LASTPRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31394DKKS

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2005-37
CLASS AF DTD 04/25/2005.72439%
03/252035

LAST PRICED 08/3112016

CUSIP # 31394UY97
FEDNATLMTG ASSN SERIES
2005-104 CLASS NF DTD 11/25/2005
.82439% 0372572035

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #31395)2T2

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2885 CLASS DF DTD 11/15/2004
.85765% 04/1572034

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31395NTCL

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2006-60
CLASS FD DTD 06/25/2006 .95439%
0472512035

LAST PRICED: 083172016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 9

Statement Period
Arcount Number

MARKET VALUE

20,607

20,882,

20,1281

75,033,

26,982,

48,229

47,017

111,350

.93

20

.13

01

.23

331

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED

COST PORT INCOME
20,607.86 ¢ 317
20.871.95 0 9.34
20,282.51 0 8.17
74,871 80 1 11.54
26,978 38 0 116
48,337 92 1 6.63
47,182 05 1 17 95
110,809 64 1 17 62



y
&> Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNTVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK, Statement Perlod 08/0172016 through 08/31/2016
CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

CUSIP # 31395NXT1
123,568.27 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2006-56 123,356 75 123,605 45 2 15 95
CLASS FD DTD 06/25:2006 7743%%
0712512036
LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 31395P)P8
47.446.78 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 47.410 96 47.439 36 1 14 29
2945 CLASS FA DTD 03/15/2005
67765% 03/15/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31396T5P4
5$0,362.17 FED HOME LOAN MTGCORPSERIES 50.450.83 50,414 67 1 19 .20
3166 CLASS FC DTD 06/15/2006
85765% 06/15/2036
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 31397JABD

176.183.8096% FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP DTD 175,756 .65 175,863
06/15/2007 .65765% 10!15:2020
LAST PRICED: 08/3112016

CUSIP # 31397JQN7

47,678.03 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 47,711.88 47,618 42 1 is 00
3351 CLASSFA 70765% 07/15/2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

9 k] 62.40

CUSIP # 31397MRZ2
113,622.66 FEDNATLMGT ASSN SERIES 2008-76 113,739.43 113,821
CLASS GF DTD08/25:2008 1.17439%
09/25/2023
LAST PRICED: 0871/2016

7 2 22 24

CUSIP 4 31397P4Q0
14,342 03 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES 14,346.95 14,337 55 0 451
3390 CLASS FB DTD 11/152007
.70765% 101572017
LAST PRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP # 313975 AFI
96,555 56 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2011-16 96,475.90 96,449 .94 2 10 .85
CLASS FBDTDO02/25/2011 6743%%
01/25/2031
LAST PRICED: 08/312016

332



% Trustimark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY -
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE. TRUSTMARK,

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

35,618.055

234,914.78

175,000

175,000

180,000

104,319 11

67.110.21

159,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 31398T8Q5

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2010-86
CLASS FVDTD 07:25/2010 1.02439%
05/25/2028

LAST PRICED- 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31398WRR7

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
3632 CLASS FD DTD 021152010
1.00765% 06/15/2038

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 32113CBDI

FIRSTNATIONAL MASTER NOTE TRUST
SERIES 2013-2CLASSADTD

10/24/2013 1.03765% 10:15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 34528QCW2

FORD CDT FLOORPLAN MTROWNERTR
SERIES 2013-5CLASS A2DTD

09/17/2013 .97765% 09/15/2018

LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 34530LAE]

FORD CREDIT AUTO LEASE TRUST
SERIES 14-B CLASS A4 DTD
07/292014 1.1% 11152017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 34530QACA

FORD CREDIT AUTO OWNER TRUST
SERIES 15-A CLASS A2B DTD
03/24/2015 75765% 01/15/2018

LAST PRICED 0873112016

CUSIP # 34530TAC8

FORD CREDIT AUTO LEASE TRUST
SERIES 15-A CLASS A2B DTD
0472872015 78765% 12/15/2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 36159LCN4

GE DEALER FLOORPLAN MTRNT TR
SERIES 2014-2 CLASS ADTD
10/21/72014 .96244% 10/21/2019

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 11

Statement Period
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

35,647 12

235,660 .73

175,041.72

175,019 65

180,014.40

104,328 22

67,100.50

159,091 B84

333

COST

35,618

235,426,

175,112

175.134

180,035

104,307,

67,055.

158,838

06

43

08:01/2016 through 08/31/2016

*% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

6.08

105,21

237.08

B0.79

i7.32

14 .96

51.01



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 12

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK,

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

122,250.52

117.335.01

138,419.69

54,320.65

108,814.56

63,894 .4

14¢, 000

19,343 .56

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 38374GCNO

GOVT NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2004.28 CLASS FV DTD 04/20/2004
93244% 04/2012034

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 38374HFH8

GOVT NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2004-53 CLASS FBDTD 0716/2004
.90665% 02/16/2033

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 41284BACO

HARLEY-DAVIDSON MOTORCYCLE TRUST
SERIES 15-1 CLASS A2B DTD
01/28/2015.78135% 01/15/2019

LAST PRICED 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 44890YACO

HYUNDAI AUTO RECEIVABLES TRUST
SERIES 2015-B CLASS A2B DTD
0412212015 .72765% 04/16/201 8

LAST PRICED 0873172016

CUSIP # 4778 TUACT

JOHN DEERE OWNER TRUST SERIES
2015-A CLASS A2B DTD 03/11/2015
.77765% 02/15/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 65477UAB6

NISSAN AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TR
SERIES 15-A CLASS A2DTD

04/142015 .67% 0971572017

LAST PRICED- 083172016

CUSIP 4 65478UACI

NISSAN AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TR
SERIES 16-A CLASS A2BDTD

07102016 .85765% 02/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 80284BACS

SANTANDER DRIVE AUTOREC TRUST
SERIES 15-2 CLASS A-2B DTD
0472212015 95765% 09/17/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

Statement Perlod
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

122,325,

117,505

138,443,

54,329,

108,812

63,880

140, 141

19,345

86

74

334

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

COST

122,363.

117,387,

138,419

54,305

108,799

63,876 .

140,110

19,330

02

.40

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME

2 34

83

33

.07

96

a3

70

75



///ﬁ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY - STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

OPERATING LONG/ATLANTA CAPITAL

FLOATING RATE, TRUSTMARK, Ststement Period 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016
CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNTTS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
CUSIP # 80284QACS
65,885.44 SANTANDER DRIVE AUTO RECEIVABLE 65,949.55 65.872 51 1 29 43
SERIES 15-5 CLASS A2B DTD
10/21/201 5.946% 12/17/2018
LAST PRICED: 087312016
CUSIP # 89231TAC4
116,124 9 TOYOTA AUTO RECEIVABLES SERIES 116,171 .01 116,176 48 2 45.93
15-C CLASS A2B DTD 08/26/2015
.83765% 02/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/312016
CUSIP # 89237CACS
131,834.07 TOYOTA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TR 131,856.46 131,797.10 2 44 68
SERIES 15-BCLASS A2BDTD
06/17/2015 71765% 11/15/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
CUSIP # 92867VAC4
100,665.69 VOLKSWAGEN AUTQ LEASE TRUST 100.659.90 100,515.73 2 27 .93
SERIES 2015-A CLASS A2B DTD
03/05/201 5 .83244% 06/20/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
CUSIP # 98160YACY
140,876 WORLD OMNI AUTO RECEIVABLES TR 140,885.22 140,876 00 2 60 38
SERIES 15-B CLASS A2BDTD
10/14/2015 90765% 07/15/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
6,134,485 85 6,131,770 69 L] 1.890 %7
TOTALINVESTMENTS 6,421.244.27
CASH D.u1
DUE FROM BROKER .00
DUE TO BROKER 180,035,176
NET ASSETS 6,241,209, 12
ACCRUED INCOME 2,624.96
TOTAL MARKET VALUE 6,243 ,833.08

335



/4% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 5
OPERATING LONG/PALMER SQUARE

CAPITALMANAGEMENT, LLC/ Statement Perlod 08/01/2016 theough 08731/2016

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Accaunt Number

CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

CUSIP % 60934N708
71,597.73 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 71,597.73 71,597.73 2 9 BO
-881396-A

COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP 4 08180RAGO
250.000 BENEFIT STREET PARTNERS CLO LTD 243,125.00 234,830.07 & 1,174.59
SERIES 15-VHA CLASS C DTD
0712972015 3.844 1% 07/1872077
LAST PRICED: 08/3172016

CUSIP # 09626UAG3
250,000 BLUEMOUNTAIN CLO LTD SERIES 244,475.00 236,013.17 6 497.28
13-1A CLASS CDTD 05/1672016
4.0182% 051572025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP § 09626YAGS
350,000 BLUEMOUNTAIN CLO LTD SERIES 344,785.00 331,319.80 8 1,532.66
13-24 CLASS D DTD 071872013
3845% 01/222025
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 12507GAET
50,000 CCRESG COMMERCIAL MORTGAGE TRUST 51,595.00 51,460 44 1 165 70
SERIES 2016-HEAT CLASS B DTD
04/0172016 4.114% 04/ %2029
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 12514AAE1
192,375.38 CD COMMERICAL MORTGAGE TRUST 197,877.32 199,068 88§ 912 15
SERIES 2007-CD5 CLASS A4 DTD
11/01/2007 5.886% 11/17/2044
LAST PRICED: 0813112016

CUSIP # 14308LAAL
325.000 CARLYLE GLOBAL MARKET STRATEGIES 325,032.50 325,193, 51 7 T11.89
SERIES 14-3A CLASS Al ADTD
08/26/2014 2.1935% 07/27/2026
LAST PRICED 08/31/2016

336



/{/@ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/PALMER SQUARE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK

CUSTODIAN

_Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

250,000

212,467 83

400, 000

450,000

450,000

250,000

366,095

450,000

w

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 14309JAUI

CARLYLE GLOBAL MARKET STRATEGIES

SERIES 2012-1AR CLASS DR DTD
04:20:201 5 4.0207 5% 04:20/2022
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 26250AAL3

DRYDEN X1l SENIOR LOAN FUND
SERIES 11-22A CLASS AIR DTD
01/15:2014 1.792% 01/15/2022

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 26250DAYS

DRYDEN SENIOR LOAN FUND SERIES
2012-24RACLASSERDTD

05/1502015 6.229% 11/1 52023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 398079AG8

GREYWOLF CLO LTD SERIES 2013-1A
CLASS C DTD 03/28/2013 4.1053%
04.15/2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 44986 WAGO

ING INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CLO
SERIES 2013-2A CLASS CDTD
04/2572013 3.777%04/25/2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 56841 TAG6

MARINE PARK CLOSERIES 12-1A
CLASS DRDTD 07/07/2015
6.596146% 05182023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 67102VAQD

OAK HILL CREDIT PARTNERS SERIES
12-6A CLASS ARDTD 08/17/2015
1.5816% 05/15/2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 67108KAGO

OZLM FUNDING LTD SERIES 2013.5A
CLASSC DTD 12/17/2013 3.77435%
01/17/2026

LAST PRICED: 08/312016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page6
Statement Period 08/01/2016 through
Account Number 0873112016
% OF ACCRUED
MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
251,950.00 250,103 . 5 6 1,200 64
212.425.34 210,608.74 5 507 66
388,800.00 400.000 00 9 7.405.59
448,515.00 445,590 00 10 2,463 18
442,710.00 439,242 719 10 1,794.08
239,675 00 236,066 59 5 973.54
366,351 .77 363,603 .43 8 273.42
437,715.00 437,104, 01 10 2,170 .25

337



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page?

OPERATING LONG/PALMER SQUARE
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC/ Statement Perfod
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK Account Number
CUSTODIAN
Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE
CUSIP #931266AGS
100, 000 WALDORF ASTORIA BOCA RATON TRUST 100,060 00
SERIES 2016-BOCA CLASS B DTD
07/18/2016 2 55765% 06/15/2029
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016
4,295,091 .93
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 4,366,689 66
CASH 0 00
DUE FROM HROKFR 0 00
DUE TO BROKER o 00
NET ASSETS 41,366,689 66
ACCRUED INCOMFE 22,113 14
TOTALMARKET VALUE 4,388,802 #0O

338

08/01/2016 Uwrouph 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED

COST PORT INCOME
100,000.00 2 319.71
4.260.204.94 1] 11,103 34



/
44 Trustmark
SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page S

OPERATING LONG/TORTOISE MLP

Statement Perlod 0870172016 through 08/31/2016
Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP # 60934N 203
33,702 B6 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 33,702 86 33.702.86 2 10 01
-18410
33,702 N6 33,702 Ha 1 ke 01
COMMON STOCK
CUSIP # 036731103
1,066 ANTERO MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP 29,378 96 23,392 09 1 0.00
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
CUSIP 4 118230101
1,284 BUCKEYE PARTNERS LP LTD PARTNSHP 90,213 84 87,861.42 6 o0

INTS
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 198 281107
503 COLUMBIA PIPELINE PARTNERS LP 6,825 71 7.043.26 a 0.00
LAST PRICED: 0873112016

CUSIP # 257454108
414 DOMINION MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP 10,540 44 13,324 .84 1 0.00
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 268858100
1,169 EQT MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP COM 91,895.09 86,489 .56 [ .00
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 268851103
268 EQT GP HOLDINGS LP 6,724.12 6,649 08 4] 0.00
LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP # 29273R109
1,768 ENERGY TRANSFER PARTNERS LP COM 70,613.92 59.620 61 5 000
LAST PRICED: 083172016

CUSIP 4 29273V100

3.887 ENERGY TRANSFER EQUITY LP COM 69,577.30 34,715 59 5 a.00
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

339



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/TORTOISE MLP

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

4,902

.10

2,67

1,905

1,981

1,099

4,149

1,217

1,442

1,910

632

DESCRIFTION

CUSIP 4293792107

ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS PARTNERS LP
coM

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #371927104
GENESIS ENERGY L.P. COM
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP 4 55336V100
MPLX LP
LAST PRICED: 08131/2016

CUSIP 4 559080106

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 6

Statement Perlod
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

129,412,

39,726

88,490

MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS COM 133.978

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 68268N103
ONEOK PARTNERS LP COM
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 718549207
PHILLIPS 66 PARTNERS LP COM
LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 726503105
PLAINS ALL AMERN PIPELINE LP COM
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 822634101
SHELL MIDSTREAM PARTNERS LP
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 84756N109
SPECTRA ENERGY PARTNERS LP COM
LAST PRICED: 08/21/2016

CUSEP 4 867641.108
SUNOCO L.OGISTICS PARTNERS L.P

CcoM
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016
CUSIP # 874697105

TALLGRASS ENERGY PARTNERS LP
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

76,763

54,367,

116,420

37.081.

65,798

86,432,

29,122,

80

00

340

08/01/2016 through 08731/2016

cosT

122,951,

36.763

82.061.

130.209.

67.160.

63,864,

95,757.

43.093.

69,772.

77,306,

27,486,

47

.81

67

87

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME
9 0 00
3 0.00
6 0 00
9 0.00
5 0.00
4 0.00
8 0.00
2 0.00
4 0.00
6 0.00
2 0.00



4%/@ Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONGTORTOISE MLP

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 88160T107
1,202 TESORO LOGISTICS LP COM
LAST PRICED: 08/312016

CUSIP % 91914J102
562 VALERO ENERGY PARTNERS LP COM
LAST PRICED: 08/312016

CUSIP ¥ 958254104
1.2558 WESTERNGAS PARTNERS LP COM
LAST PRICED. 0873172016

CUSIP 4 95825R103
210 WESTERN GAS EQUITY PARTNERS LP

COM
LAST PRICED 087312016

CUSIP # 969457100
2,448 WILLIAMS COMPANIES INC COM
LASTPRICED 087312016
CUSIP # 96949L105
621 WILLIAMS PARTNERS LP NEW

LAST PRICED 087312016

TOTAl INVESTMENTS
CASH

DUE FROM BKOKER
DUE TO BROKER

NET ASSETS

ACCRUED INCOME
TOTAL MARKET VALUE

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page7

Statement Perlod 08,01/2016 through 087312016
Account Number

% OF ACCRUED

MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
57,647.92 54.771.41 4 0 00
23,542.18 26,635.43 2 0. .00
63,151 60 56,224.88 4 0.00
7,742.70 7,576.33 1 0.00
68,397.12 51,698.50 H 0.00
23,660.10 21,964.62 2 0.00
1,477 ,506.R) 1,354,395 42 97 g.8o

1,511,109.67
0 900

11,960 41
5,340, 87
1,817,829 §1
10 01
1,817,839 §2

341



% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING LONG/MUTUAL FUNDS/
TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK,
CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VAIUE DESCRIPTION
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP £ 60934N708
11.7 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND
- 58 396-A

MUTUAL FUNDS -TAX EXEMPT

CUSIP ¥ 885215673
300,213 .37

FUND-1

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

MUTUAL FUNDS-EQUITY

CUSIP # 885215467

237,616 23 THORNBURG INV INCOME BUILD-!
LAST PRICED. 087312016
CUSIP # 98147A428

111,008.957 WORLDS FUNDS TRUST REMS REAL

ESTATE INCOME 50/50 FUND - INS
LAST PRICED: 083172016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 5

THORNBURG INTERMEDIATE MUNICIPAL

Statement Period
Account Number

MARKET VALUE

4,362.100.

4,362,100

4,761,829,

1,601,859,

6.363 ,688 &

.70

27

342

080172016 tyough 08/3172016
% OF
COST PORT
11.7¢ 0
I o
4,312,069 35 41
4.312,069. 35 41
4,749,082 55 44
1.587,142.58 15
6.336,226 13 &9

ACCRUED
INCOME

§,108 36

H. 108 36

16.818.31

16 A18 3¢



¢//% Trustmark

SAM HOUSTON STATE UNIVERS(TY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page6
OPERATING LONG/MUTUAL FUNDS/

TRUSTMARK NATIONAL BANK, Statement Perlod 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

CUSTODIAN Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
TOTALINVESTMENTS 16 725 800 47
CASH [ T]
DUE FROM BROKER 9 00
DUE TO BROKER o a0
NET ASSETS 10,725 .800 47
ACCRUFD INCOME 24.926.69
TOTAL MARKET VALUE 10 750,727 16

343



Sul Ross State University
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2018 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS}

l Purchase Maturity | Beginning Market Value | Ending Markel Value Baok Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
ency/Description Cusip Number Date Date As of 05/31/18 As of 08/31/18 As of 08/31/116 Investment Income _Retum

14l hort-

Intermediate
Cash in Bank - WTNB

$ 3,317,457.36 § 2,095461.49 § 299546149 § 4,947.28 0 14%

Cash in Treasury $ 1,084,211.82 § 1,122,20784 § 1,122,207.94 $ 3,848.54 0.20%

TexPool Series 0001 General Fund $ 12,022,337.06 $ 16,474,260.68 $§ 16,474,260.68 $ 11,586.00 0.08%

WTNB - Payroll $ 48,198.11 § 4808648 $ 4808648 S 1086689 0.18%

WTNB Clearing $ 24740 § 247.78 § 24778 § 038 0.15%

1BC Bank $ 871051 $ 170131 § 170131 § 441 0.04%

Clearing Fund- US Bank $ 54246 § 54245 § 54245 § 006 0.01%

Clearing Fund- FSB Bank $ 6,848.80 § 175128 § 1,751.28 § - 0.00%

Clearing Fund- TB&T Bank $ 10,70262_ $ 221581 § 221581 § - -0.23%
Totals [s 18,298,256.84 § 20,646.475.22 § 20,646,475.22 § 20493.08  0.11% |

6 Month T-Bill 0.18%

Operating Long

TexPool Series 001 - A 3 4,499457.72 § 4503492.14 § 4,503,492.14 4,015.61 09%
JTotals s 4,499.457.72_$ 4,503.402.14 § 4,503482.14 4.015.681 .08%. I

ML 1-3 Year Treasury 0.37%

Sul Ross State University i comply with strategy in Texas State University System Invesument Policias and with relavant provisions of the Texas Pubbe Funds investment Act.

(¢s5ce70 Ug leazuoba VPFD lllwbwdf g’m"" /’M /9/v¢ |1

Name of Signee
Titte

344



Sul Ross State University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)
Allocation Market Quarter FYTD
Current Mutual Fund / Manager Value Return Return
100.0 %| Total Plan Composite $ 17,402,661 4.46% 6.19%
Total Blended Index 3.57% 8.25%
54.9 %| Domestic Equity $ 9,555,171 4.50% 7.05%
Russell 3000 4.45% 11.45%
10.3 Parnassus Equity Income - PRILX 1,799,646 4.32% 11.36%
10.2 Vanguard Institl Index - VINIX 1,782,605 4.10% 12.53%
10.5 Laudus Growth Investors -LGILX 1,833,856 4.19% 5.23%
12.3 Quantum Capital Management 2,140,098 6.40% 2.90%
11.5 Baird SMID V 1,998,965 3.05% 3.91%
10.1 %| International Equity $ 1,764,105
MSCI EAFE 1.68% 0.38%
50 Franklin Intl SCG - FKSCX 873,082
5.1 Nationwide Bailard - NWHNX 891,023 0.66% 2.02%
14.7 %| Real Estate $ 2,560,958 7.19% 21.99%
FTSE NAREIT 7.17% 24.60%
14.7 REMS RE 50/50 Income - RREIX 2,560,958 7.19% 21.99%
15.9 %| Total Fixed Income $ 2,768,336 6.36% 6.69%
Blended Fixed Index 5.91% 10.63%
0.1 %| Municipal Bonds $ 10,022 2.53% 4.81%
BC 3 Yr Muni 0.68% 1.96%
0.1 Tampa Fl, Alleghany Health 10,022 2.53% 4.81%
15.8 %| Hybrid Securities $ 2,758,313 5.53%
ML All Invest ex Man VOA1 5.93% 10.66%
15.8 Tortoise MLP 2,758,313 5.53%
4.3 %| Other $ 754,091 0.08% 0.24%
42 TexPool Series 0001 736,413 0.09% 0.25%
0.1 Cash in Bank- Trustmark 17,679 0.00% 0.00%
Blended Indexes are based on the current weights of each asset class and their respective benchmarks.
*Currently the policy benchmark is a blend of 27% S&P 500, 24% Russell 2500, 7% MSC| EAFE, 7% S&P Developed Ex-US
SC, and 35% BC Aggregate.

16

345



Sul Ross State University

ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

346

d d e d e d d 0 e ee O e d e

Total Plan Composite $17,247,171 $7,716 -$538,764  $105,842 -$6,861 $587,558 $17,402,661
Domestic Equity $9,149,194 $12 -$500 $28,642 -$855 $378,678 $9,555,171
Parnassus Equity Income - PRILX $1,725,073 $4,545 -$118 $70,147 $1,799,646
Vanguard Instit! Index - VINIX $1,712,469 $8,259 $118 $61,996 $1,782,605
Laudus Growth Investors -LGILX $1,760,068 -$118 $73,907 $1,833,856
Quantum Capital Management $2,011,604 $4,757 -$250 $124,237 $2,140,098
Baird SMID V $1,939,980 $12 $11,081 -$250 $48,392 $1,998,965
International Equity $1,801,768 $0 $0 $0 -$237 -$37.426 $1,764,105
Franklin Intl SCG - FKSCX $916,591 -$118 -$43,391 $873,082
Nationwide Bailard - NWHNX $885,176 -$118 $5,965 $891,023
|Real Estate $2,389,154 $0 $0 $32,050 5118 139,872 $2,560,958
REMS RE 50/50 Income - RREIX $2,389,154 32,050 $118 139,872 2,560,958
Total Fixed Income $2,623,986 $5,152 -$5,658 44,066 402 $106,192 2,768,336
Municipal Bonds $10,025 $0 -$256 $256 $0 -$3 $10,022
Tampa Fl, Alleghany Health 10,025 -$256 $256 -$3 $10,022
Hybrid Securities 2,613,961 $5,152 -$5,402 $43,810 402 $106,194 $2,758,313
Tortoise MLP 2,613,961 $5,152 -$5,402 $43,810 ,402 $106,194 $2,758,313
Other 1,283,070 $2,552 -$532,605 $1,083 $250 $242 $754,091
TexPool Series 0001 1,264,440 $1,169 -$530,271 $1,075 $0 $736,413
Cash in Bank- Trustmark $18,630 $1,383 -$2.334 $8 -$250 $242 $17,679

17




Texas State University
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

ncy/Description I Cusip Number

Purchase | Maturity [Beginning Market Value| Ending Market Value

Book Balance

Quarer Ending 08/31/16

Date Date As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Investment income  Retum
ting $hort-
Intermediate

Cash In Bank $ 7.245618.79 § 25,319,024.52 $ 25,319,024.52 $ 15762 000%

Cash In State Treasury $ 11,443,745.93 § 24,489,262.92 § 24,489,262.92 § 18,783.62 019%

TexPool Series 0009 General Account $ 165,957,831.50 $ 223,392,34249 $ 22339234249 § 146,382.11  009%

TexPool Series 0011 $ 142,765.42 $ 142,898.17 S 14289847 S 13275 008%

DFA 1 Yr Fi - DFIHX $ 50.197.919.28 § §0,342,880.73_§ 50.357.769.84 S 95,305.97 029%

Totals s 234.987,880.92_$ 323,686,408.83 S 323,701.287.94 § 260,762.07 _ 0.12%

6 Month T-Bill  0.16%

Ooerating Long

Sage Non-Operating “Holdings Report Attached S 80,107.773.59 $ 80.429.497.00 S 78,915.368.91 $ 500,20240 045%
Totals 5 80,107.773.59 § 80,429.497.00_S 78,915,368.91 _§ 500.202.40__ 0.45% |

ML 1-3 Year Treasury 037%

nd Pre

TexPoo! Series 0028 North Housing S 3,27236289 S 3,27540500 5 3,275,405.00 $ 3,04211  009%

TexPool Series 0070 TSUS-13 $ 201623.16 § 19735784 § 197,35784 § 18512 009%

TexPool Series 0073 TSUS-12 $ 162,185.47 S 2391807 5 23981807 § 6796 0.07%

TexPool Series 0074 & Bk 2015 TSUS Bond S 494485625 S 2,908,68881 § 2,908,688.81 $ 316467 008%

TexPool Series 0076 & Bk 2014 TSUS Bond S 16.374.471.04 5 13,029.036 20§ 13.029,036.20 % 13.48124 009%

Totals [s_ 24,955.498.81 S 19.434.40592 $ 19,434,405.92_ % 19,941.10  0.08%

6 Month T-Bill 0 16%

Texas State University investment portfolios comply with Investment sirategy expressed in Texas State Unwersity System investment Policies and with refevant prowisions of the Texas Public Funds lnvestment Act.

Nameoﬁ{

Title

E

goe
Vice ident for

Finance & Support Services

Mtagre K Vinltrs

Treasuver

347

/



Texas State University

ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

100.0 %

Total Plan Composite

58,632,606

3.31%

5.64%

$
Total Blended Index 3.73% 8.10%
63.7 %| All Equity Composite $ 37,322,944 3.49% 6.58%
Blended Equity Index 3.96% 9.48%
52.4 %| Domestic Equity $ 30,694,190 3.54% 6.45%
Russell 3000 4.45% 11.45%
9.3 Seizert LCV - SA 5,480,503 4.89% 12.45%
115 Vanguard Instl Index - VINIX 6,713,554 4.10% 12.52%
10.7 APEX SMIDG - SA 6,302,113 4.40%
11.6 Systematic SMIDV - SA 6,817,388 4.63% 8.83%
9.2 Silvant Capital 5,380,632 1.69% 2.71%
11.3 %| International Equity $ 6,628,754 -1.65%
MSCI EAFE 1.68% 0.38%
49 Franklin Intl SCG - FKSCX 2,873,259 -4.75%
6.4 Pear Tree Polaris For Value - QFVIX 3,755,495 0.81% 0.45%
7.0 %| Real Estate $ 4,410,270 7.19% 21.99%
FTSE NAREIT 7.17% 24.60%
7.0 REMS RE Income - RREIX 4,110,270 7.19% 21.99%
26.1 %| Total Fixed Income $ 15,332,116 2.88% 2.08%
Blended Fixed Index 4.16% 8.40%
10.5 %| Corporates $ 6,154,400 2.26% 5.42%
BC Credit 3.82% 9.14%
10.5 Sage FI 6,154,400 2.26% 5.42%
4.1 %} Money Markets $ 2,421,624 0.13% 0.07%
91-Day T-Bill 0.08% 0.23%
Endowment Cash Account -2,352 -0.02%
4.1 RidgeWorth UltraShort - SIGVX 2,423,976 0.13% 0.07%
11.5 %| Hybrid Securities $ 6,756,092 4.80%
ML All Invest ex Man VOA1 5.93% 10.66%
3.8 Balanced Growth- SA 2,228,134 3.38% 2.58%
7.7 Tortoise MLP 4,527,957 5.50%
3.2 %| Other $ 1,867,276 0.09% 0.27%
0.0 Cash - Wells Fargo 4,834 0.00% 0.00%
3.2 TexPool Series 0023 1,859,297 0.09% 0.27%
0.0 Money Market Sweep 3,145 0.00% 0.00%

Blended Indexes are based on the current weights of each asset class and their respective benchmarks.

*Currently the Total Blended Index consists of 23.1% S&P 500, 22.2% Russell 2500, 9.2% MSCI ACW! ex US, 5.5% S&P
Developed SC Ex-US, 5% ML All Invest ex Man VOA1, 30% BC Aggregate, 1% 91-Day T-Bill, and 4% ML 6 Month T-Bill.

22
348




Texas State University
ENDOWMENT QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

349

% - d e ard % O e ee O e d e
Total Plan Composite $55,614,268 $1,323,803 -$95,358  $293,864 -563,345  $1,559,375 $58,632,606
All Equity Composite $36,270,881 $31,718 -544,420  $131,949 -$45,424 $978,240 $37,322,944
Domestic Equity $29,529,140 $31,718 -$44,420  $131,949 -$44,843  $1,090,646 $30,694,190
Seizert LCV - SA $5,225,102 $6,912 -$7,465 $28,670 -$7,465 $234,749 $5,480,503
Vanguard Instl Index - VINIX $6,449,411 $31,103 -$291 $233,330 $6,713,554
APEX SMIDG - SA $6,036,838 $12,531 -$13,033 $7,645 -$13,033 $271,164 $6,302,113
Systematic SMIDV - SA $6,520,435 $8,991 -$14,036 $55,219 -$14,036 $260,816 $6,817,388
Silvant Capital $5,297,355 $3,285 -$9,886 $9,311 -$10,018 $90,586 $5,380,632
International Equity $6,741,741 $0 $0 $0 -$581 -$112,405 56,628,754
Franklin Intl SCG - FKSCX $3,016,445 -$291 -$142,895 52,873,259
Pear Tree Polaris For Value - QFVIX $3,725,295 -$291 $30,490 $3,755,495
Real Estate $3,834,528 $0 $0 $40,484 -$291 $235,548 $4,110,270
REMS RE Income - RREIX $3,834,528 $40,484 -$291 $235,548 $4,110,270
Total Fixed Income $14,892,967 $15,207 -$24,141 120,127 -$17,630 $345,586 $15,332,116
Corporates $6,018,645 $3,278 -$3,342 $32,888 -$3,189 $106,120 $6,154,400
Sage FI $6,018,645 $3,278 -$3,342 $32,888 -$3,189 $106,120 $6,154,400
Money Markets $2,421,910 $3,469 -$6,898 $5,562 -$541 -$1,878 $2,421,624
Endowment Cash Account $1,078 $3,469 -$6,898 $1 -$250 $249 -$2,352
[RidgeWorth UltraShort - SIGVX $2,420,832 $5,561 -$201 -$2,127 $2,423,976
Hybrid Securities $6,452,412 $8,461 -$13,901 $81,677 -$13,901 $241,344 $6,756,092
Balanced Growth- SA $2,160,215 -$5,107 $10,417 -$5,107 $67,717 $2,228,134
Tortoise MLP $4,292,196 $8,461 -$8,793 $71,260 -$8,793 $173,627 $4,527,957
Other $615,892 $1,276,878 -$26,797 $1,304 $0 $0 $1,867,276
Cash - Wells Fargo $5,007 $20,827 -$21,000 $0 $4,834
TexPool Series 0023 $609,788 $1,252,905 -$4,700 $1,304 $0 $1,859,297
Money Market Sweep $1,097 $3,145 -$1,097 $0 $0 $3,145
23




% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY
OPERATING/SAGE TNB CLSTODIAN

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 4

Statement Period
Account Number

Statement Of Investment Position

DESCRIPTION

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

US TREASURY BILLS

LS GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

MORTGAGE BACKED SECLRITIES
COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS
CORPORATE BONDS

FOREIGN BONDS-NOTES & DEBENTURES

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
CASH

DUE FROM BROKFR
DUE TO BROKER
ACCRUED INCOME
TOTAL MARKET VALUE

Ending Asset Allocation

08:01,2016 through08/31:2016

MARKETVALUE

3,116,552
3,525,350
26.570.,490
6,384,782
16,431 .80l
20,982,449

4,286,117

B1,297,544.
2,401,316,

2,395,937

1,186,431,
293,762,
80 ,429,497.

40

87
39
29
50
73
00

COsT

3,116,552
3,532,461
26,547,094
6,386.756
16.473.966
20,973,711
4,286,141

81,316,685

40
94
31

55

% OF
PORT

LX)

20

26

ACCRUED
INCOME

347
7.742

103,936

14,789,
28,600.
119,157,
19.188.

293,762,

55
08
06
82
94
65
63

73

20 2% [} COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGAR1 431, 801 38

25 8% gcom‘omrﬁuoms 20,982,449 64

s 3% FOREIGN BONDS-NOTES & DEBENTURESH, 286, 117 85

s 7 9% |8 MORTGAGE BACKED SECLRITIES 6,384,782 68
——— 3 8% SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 3,116,552 40

v 32.7%  [[] USGOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS 26, 570, 490. 52
4 3% [ ] USTREASURY BILLS 3,525,350 40

100 0% Total 81.297, 544 87

350



y
% Trustmark
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 5

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Statement Peried 08:01/2016 throu 08/31/2016
Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST  PORT INCOME
SHORTTERM INVESTMENTS
CUSIP # 60934N708
3,116,552.4 FEDERATED PRIME OBLIGATIONS FUND 3,116,552 40 3,116,552 40 4 347 55
- S8 396-A
3,116,882.490 3,116,552.40 4 347.58

US TREASURY BILLS

CUSIP # 912828R 51

3,520,000 US TREASURY NOTE DTD 05:31/2016 3,525,350 40 3,532,461.94 4 7,742 08
875% 05/31/2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

3,525,350 40 3,5832,461.94 4 7,742 .08
US GOVERNMENT OBLIGATIONS

CUSIP # 3133EC7A6

1,550,000 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK DTD 1,549,209 50 1,543,335.00 2 2,789 14
12/12/2012 82% 1212/2017-2013
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CLUSIP # 3133EFKDR

2,950,000 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK DTD 2,948,200 50 2,948,967 50 4 2,340 33
10/19:2015 .68% 07/19/2017-2016
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3133EFKLO

800, 0600 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK DTD 799.432 00 795,360 00 1 728.00
10i22:2015 .84% 01/22/2018-2016
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 3133EFKM8

1,600,000 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK DTD 1,592,896 00 1,593,280 00 2 4,133 78
10202015 .71% 10:20,2017-2016
LAST PRICED- 0&31/2016

CLUSIP # 3134G4S90

495,000 FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP DTD 495,460 35 495,180 00 1 671 00
12i30,2013 .8% §2/30/2016-201 5
LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

351



@\

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

Trustmark

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 6

Statement Period
Account Number

08:01/2016 through08/31/2016

UNITS'BOOK VALUE

1,000,000

2,360,000

1,255,000

500,000

1,450,000

1,000,000

388,000

9,395,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 3134G7X55

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORPDTD
10:,29:2015.9%01/29/2018-2016
LAST PRICED- 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 3135G0G72

FED NATL MTG ASSN DTD 11:03:2015
1 125% 12/14/2018

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

CUSIP # 3135GOH97

FED NATL MTG ASSN DTD 10/15:2015
1.625% 02:22/2019-2017

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 313 5GOXDO

FED NATL MTG ASSN DTD 05/21/2013
1%05:21/2018-2013

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3136G0VQ1

FED NATL MTG ASSN DTD 07:30,20(2
1.4% 07:30/2019-2013

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3137EADCO

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP DTD
01:30/2012 1% 03/08/2017

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

CUSIP # 912828C65

USTREASURY NOTE DTD03/31/2014
1.625% 03/31:2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 912828F39

US TREASURY NOTE DTD 0930/2014
1.75% 09/30,2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 912828LA6

U S TREASURY NOTE INFL INDEX DTD
07/15:2009 1.875%07/15:2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

MARKET VALUE

998,350.

2,369,180.

1,260,032,

498 .815.

1,450,261.

1,002,150.

395,395

9,623,298

00

w

5

28

00

352

COST

995,250 00

2,344,542 00

1,263,303 56

499,400 00

1,451,324 77

1,001,490.32

393,343 59

9,635.917 3t

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

800.00

5,678 75

509 84

1,388 89

1,748 06

4,805 56

2,652 92

69,179 .03

5,475 11



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 7

Statement Period
Account Number

08/0152016 through 08:31/2016

UNITYBOOK VALUE

1,588,000

237,249,

197,422

98,1384,

1,472,869,

2,185,475,

1,932,607.

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 912828P20

US TREASURY NOTE DTD01/31:2016
.75%01/31/2018

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

MORTGAGE BACKED SECURITIES

~

9978

7813

CUSIP # 31283KZWi

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP POOL
G11657 DTD 01:01/2005 4 5%
12:01/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31,2016

CUSIP # 31398TJ85

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2010-105 CLASS APDTD0801:2010
2% 08/25/2020

LAST PRICED: 0&:31/2016

CUSIP # 31416BQM3

FED NATL MTG ASSN POOL 995160
DTD 11:01/2008 5% 09/01/2022
LAST PRICED- 08/31/2016

CLSIP # 31418B2X3

FED NATL MTG ASSN POOL MA2589
DTD03/01/2016 3% 04:01/2026

LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP #31418B4P8

FED NATLMTG ASSN POOL MA2629
DTD04/01/2016 3% 05:01/2026
LASTPRICED: 08:31i20t6

CUSIP# 31418CALB

FED NATL MTG ASSN POOL MA2710
DTD07:/01/2016 2.5% 08/01/2026
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

COLLATERALIZED MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS

MARKET VALUE

1,587,809

16,570,490

243,038

199,429

101,028

1,545,629

2,293.919.

2,001,737,

6,384,782,

44

s
”

72

353

COST

1,586,400.

6,537,094,

243,586.

199,596,

102,292,

1,543,857

2,287,510

2,009,912

6,386,756 &

26

w

7

82

70

% OF
PORT

33

ACCRUED
INCOME

1,035

103,936

889 .

318

409

3,682

5,463

4,026

14,789

65

68

a7

94



@
rustmark
TENAS STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 8

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Statement Period 08/01/2016 through08:31/2016
Account Numher

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
CUSIP # 02005AEKQ
480,000 ALLY MASTER OWNER TRUST SERIES 480,756 .82 481,226.46 i 305 07
20(4-4 CLASS A2 DTD 07/16/2014
1.43%06/17/2019
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016
CUSIP # 05522RCQ9
675,000 BANK OF AMERICA CDT CARD TRUST 676,667 39 675,338.74 1 282 .94

SERIES 2014-A1 CLASS A DTD
02/13/2014 .88765% 06/15/2021
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 12624XAB4
400,000 COMM MORTGAGE TRUST SERIES 402,140 .64 404,984.31 0 683 76
2013-CR6 CLASS A2 DTD 03/01/2013
2.122% 03/12/2046
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 14041NET4
560,000 CAPITAL ONE MULTI ASSET EXEC TR 562,285
SERIES 2014-A5 CLASS AS DTD
10/14/2014 1.48% 07/15/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

4 563,470.97 1 368 36

CUSIP # 14041 NFE6
805,000 CAPITAL ONE MULTH ASSET EXEC TR 805,707 51 804,994.37 1 509 39
SERIES 2016-A3 CLASS A3 DTD
07/26/2016 1.34% 04/15/2022
LASTPRICED: 08:31/20i6

CUSIP # 14313MAE4
655,000 CARMANXN ALTO OWNER TRUST SERIES 653.479 02 654,667 38 ] 352.24
13-2 CLASS B DTD 05/16/2013
121%01/15/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # [4314EACS
625,000 CARMAX AUTO OWNER TRUST SERIES 623,799 13 624,906 63 | 386 11
16-3 CLASS A3 DTD 07/20/2016
1.39% 05/17/2021
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP 4 161571 HC!
900,000 CHASE ISSUANCE TRUST SERIES 900,720 36 901,523 .57 1 548 00
2016-A2 CLASS A DTD 06/17/2016
1.37% 06/15/2021
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

354



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

177.490.

324,810.

593,945

416,003,

373,011,

56,552,

245,134,

581,253,

52

!

.66

714

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Pape 9

Statement Period
Account Number

08/01/2016 through 0%/31/2016

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 3134G3KS8

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2012-1 CLASS AIODTDOW17:2012
2.06%01/15/2022

LAST PRICED 08/31:2016

CUSIP #3136A3LV1

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 20121
CLASS GB DTD 01:01/2012 2%
02/25/2022

LAST PRICED: 083172016

CLUSIP # J136A8NKI

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2012-94
CLASS EDTD 08/01/20123%
06/25/2022

LAST PRICED: 0&31/2016

CUSIP # 3137A42F3

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
3777CLASS DA DTD 12/01,2010

3.5% 10/15/2024

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 3137A7Z52

FEDERAL HOME 1.OAN MTG CORP
SERIES 3825CLASS AB DTD
03/01/2011 3% 08/15/2020

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 3137A9BB1

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
3846 CLASS CK DTD 04/0142011
1.5%09/15/2020

LAST PRICED 0&31/2016

CUSIP # 3137ACR92

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
3901 CLASSCD DTD07:01/2011 2%
10/15:2018

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CLUSIP# 3137AJAKO

FED HOME [.OAN MTG CORP SERIES
3955 CLASS WA DTD 11:01,2011

2.5% 1141512025

LAST PRICED- 08:31/2016

MARKET VALUE

179,684,

326,630.

607.309.

426,252,

379,042,

56,599

246,796

593,114

55

0

w

355

cosT

178,418.35

328,650.19

609,665.63

428,327.27

381,138.67

§7.008.42

247,370.76

594,633.63

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

162.50

523 31

1,435 37

1,172 90

901 44

68.33

394.94

1,170.58



% Trustmark

TENAS STATE UNTVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

52,059

277,503

355,497,

117,382

250,484,

180,541,

1,031,718

492,844,

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 10

Statement Period
Account Number

08i01/2016 through 08/31,2016

3

3

DESCRIPTION

CLSIP# 31392EPW4

FEDNATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2002-56
CLASS UC DTD 08/01/2002 5.5%
09252017

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP #31393TJ49

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2003-112 CLASS AN DTD 10/01:2003
4% 11/25/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/20i6

CUS!IP # 31393TMB9

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2003-97 CLASS CA DTD 09:01:2003
5%10i25/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP#31393L1.43

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2003-129 CLASS ME DTD 12/01,2003
59508/25/2023

LLAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP# 31394 W3PI

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
2770 CLASS TW DTD 03/01/2004

4.5% 03/15:2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

CUSIP # 31396QJs9

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2009-47
CLASS EG DTD 06/01:2009 4.5%
08252019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CLSIP# 31396QZ\V2

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2009-70
CLASS NT DTD 08/01:2009 4%
08:25/2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

CUSIP#31396YB68

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 200815
CLASS N DTD 02/01,2008 4 5%
02:25/2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

52,857

282,728

364,976

119,712

257,963

185,185,

1,053,061

508,930

85

70

35

08

67

356

COSsT

52,867.72

283,888.

366,698,

121,506.

259,976.

185,907,

1,055,539,

516,988.

a0

03

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

230 65

894.18

1,431.86

472 79

654 46

3,324 43

1,78 56



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page It

Statement Period
Account Number

080142016 through 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

151,938

456,903

30,157

455,072

535,591

228.1290

379,715

365,556

06

04185

92

=

9

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 31397TMHGS

FED NATL MGT ASSN SERIES 2008-70
CLASS BY DTD 07/01,2008 4%
08/25:2023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31397TV33

FED HOME LOAN MTG CORP SERIES
3458 CLASS BA DTD 06/01/2008 4%
06/152023

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31398F3T6

FED NATL MTG ASSN SER 2009-88 CL.
DB DTD 10:01,2009 3% 10/25/2020
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 31398GZP7

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2010-12
CLASS DY DTD 01/01:2010 4%
02:25:2025

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 31398NF74
FEDHOMELOAN ASSNDTD
09:01/2010 4% 10/25/2025
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 31398PMK2

FEDNATLMTG ASSN SERIES 2010-45
CLASS AH 2.25%02/25:2021

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CLSIP # 313988M75

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES
2010-135 CLASS HJ DTD 11,04,2010
3.5%01/25:2021

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 31398T3R0

FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2010-99
CASS YADTD 0%01/2010 2%
09i25/2020

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

MARKET VALUE

155,984,

469,062.

30,718

480,080.

$70,510.

230,818

389,792

369,464

70

0

76

08

357

COST

158,195

470,905

30,773

480,091]

570,892

231,701

390,982

368,876

.82

76

2

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

489 .58

1.523 01

75.39

1,466 34

1,725.80

413.78

1,070 59

588 95



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 12

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

Statement Period
Account Number

08/01,2016 through0831/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION

175,950,

621,000

985,000

800,000

400,000

625,000

785,000

CUSIP # 31398TUDI

15 FED NATL MTG ASSN SERIES 2010-83
CLASS AH DTD 07/01/2010 2.5%
1172512018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 34532EAD?

FORD CREDIT AUTO OWNER TRUST
SERIES 16-B CLASS A3 DTD
04i26/2016 1.33% 10/15,2020

LAST PRICED: 0&31/2016

CUSIP # 6547TUACY

NISSAN AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER TR
SERIES 2015-A CLASS A3 DTD

04/1412015 1.05% 10/15/2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 89237KADS

TOYOTA AUTO RECEIVABLES OWNER
SERIES 16-A CLASS A3 DTD

03:02:2016 1.25% 03/16/2020

LAST PRICED: 0&31/2016

CUSIP # 92937EABO

WEF-RBS COMMERCIAL MTG TRUST
SERIES 2013-C11 CLASS A2 DTD
02i01/2013 2.029% 03/17/2045

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CORPORATE BONDS

CUSIP # 001055AHS

AFLAC INC DTD 02/10:2012 2.65%
02/152017

LLAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 00206RCAB

AT&T INC DTD 11427/2013 2.375%
11,27/2018

LAST PRICED 08:31/2016

MARKET VALUE

177.597.

622,547

984,925,

801,115,

402,782,

16,431,801

629,462

801,257,

10

76

38

358

COST

178,113.30

622.406.

985,818.

801,478,

404.031.

16,473,966

629,450

801,603

85

82

24

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME

0 354 .34

20 29,600 93

t 4,868 09



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 13

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

Statement Period
Account Number

08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

400,000

395,000

400,000

5,000

390,000

395.000

400,000

390,000

500,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 00287Y AJ8

ABBVIE INC DTD 05/06:2013 1 75%
11/06:2017-2013

LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 00507UAM3
ACTAVIS FUNDING SCS DTD
03/1272015 2 35%03/12/2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 025537AF8

AMERICAN ELECTRIC POWER DTD
12/03/2012 1.65% 12/15/2017-2017
LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 0258M0DD8
AMERICANEXPRESS CREDIT MED TERM
NT DTD 03/26/2012 2.375%

03242017

LASTPRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0258MODK2

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT DTD
03/18/2014 2.125% 03/18/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0258M0DM8

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT DTD
06:0512014 1 125% 06/05/2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0258M0ODY?2

AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT DTD
09/14i2015 1 7056%
09/14/2020-2020

LAST PRICED: 08:31:2016

CUSIP #035242AG)
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV FIN DTD
01/25/2016 1.9% 02:01/2019

LAST PRICED: 08312016

CUSIP # 03524BADS
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV FIN DTD
01/2772014 .4286% 01/27,2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

401,832

399,613

400,848

5.038

397,811

394 .913

407,548

394,024

500,145,

00

00

70

0

00

359

COST

401,871

400,713

401,270

5,029

397,401

393,834

404,000

393,198

500,028

39

75

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

2,236 11

4,357 62

1,393 33

51.79

3,752 40

1.061 56

1,497 14

617 50

214 30



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

395,000

305,000

450,000

390.000

1,180,000

470,000

380,000

390,000

512,000

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 14

Statement Period
Account Number

087012016 throu 08/31/2016

DESCRIPTION

CLSIP # 037833BQ2

APPLE INC DTD 022312016 1.7%
02:22i2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 05348EANY
AVALONBAY CMNTYSINC DTD
09/11/2009 6 1% 03/15:2020

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 05531FAN3

BB&T CORPORATION DTD 06/19/2013
2.05%06/19/2018-2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 055451AK4

BHP BILLITON FIN USA LTD DTD
1172172011 1 875% 11/21/2016
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0605 1GEX3

BANK OF AMERICA CORP DTD
10/22/2013 2.6% 01/15/2019
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 0B4670BL1Y

BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY INC DTD
08/14/2014 2.1% 08/14/2019

LAST PRICED: 0831/2016

CUSIP # 126650CJ7

CVS HEALTH CORPORATION DTD
07:20,2015 2 8% 07/20,2020-2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CLSIP # 14040HBE4

CAPITAL ONE FINANCIAL CORPDTD
04/24/2014 2 45% 04/24/2019-2019
LAST PRICED: 08:31,2016

CUSIP # 149120520

CATERPILLAR FINL SERVICES DTD
03/03/2014 1% 03/03,2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

400,462

348,136.

455,647,

390,670.

1,206,443,

480,805.

395,990

398,104

512,445

83

5

10

360

COsT

397,410

349,284

451,668

390,878

.204,399

481.848

397,652

397.746

511,636

79

3

3t

73

66

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME
0 149 22
0 8,578 97
| 1,845 00
0 2,031 25
2 3,920 22
I 0 00
0 1,211 78
0 3.370 79
1 2,531 56



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 15

Statement Period
Account Number

08:01/2016 through08:31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

390,000

475,000

435,000

335,000

980,000

595,000

780,000

395,000

475,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 172967HC8

CITIGROUP INC DTD 09:26:2013
2.5% 09262018

LASTPRICED: 0%31:2016

CUSIP # 20030NAW!

COMCAST CORPORATION DTD
05072008 5,7% 05/15/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 24422ESD2

JOHN DEERE CAPITAL CORP DTD
10/11/2013 1.05% 10/11/2016

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 373334GE3

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY DTD
06/12/2007 5.7% 06/01/2017

LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP # 38141GFG4

GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC DTD
01/182008 5.95% 01/18/2018

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP #458140AL4

INTELCORP DTD 12/11/2012 1 35%
12/1512017

LAST PRICED. 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 46625HLWS

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO DTD
06/23/2015 2.75% 06/23/2020-2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP # S8013MET7

MCDONALD'S CORP DTD 05/26/201 5
2.2%05/26/2020-2020

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 68389XANS

ORACLE CORPORATION DTD
10/25/2012 1.2% 10/15/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

MARKET VALUE

396,938,

511,665.

435,200.

346,493,

1,038,692.

597,665,

803,298

404,412

476,401

io

0

60

361

CosT

397,273

513,664,

434,447

346,735.

1,040,466.

594,262,

801.331.

405.675.

474,539,

28

% OF ACCRUED
PORT INCOME
0 4,197 92
1 7,972.08
i 1,776 25
4] 4,773 .75
1 6,964 81
1 1,695 75
1 4,051 67
1 2,293.19
1 2,153 33



% Trustmark

TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

Page 16

Statement Period
Account Number

080112016 through08:31/2016

UNITS/BOOK VALUE

385,000

395,000

395,000

3%0.000

580,000

630,000

590,000

670,000

760,000

DESCRIPTION

CUSIP # 693476BF9

PNC FUNDING CORP DTD 06/09/2009
6.7% 06/1012019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 78355HIS9

RYDER SYSTEM INC DTD 02:28:2012
2.5%0301:2017-2017

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 822582AR3

SHELL INTERNATIONAL FIN DTD
082112012 1 125% 08/21/2017
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CLUSIP # 842587CL9

SOUTHERN CO DTD 08:22:2014 2 15%
09/01i2019-2019

LAST PRICED: 08:31,2016

CUSIP # 89153VAC]

TOTAL CAPITALINTL SADTD
06/28:2012 1.55% 06/28:2017-2012
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 8936TBP9

TOYOTA MOTOR CREDIT CORP DTD
07/18i2014 2.125%07/18/2019

LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 91324PC14
UNITEDHEALTH GROUP INC DTD
07i23:2015 1.9%07/16/2018

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 92276 MBA2

VENTAS REALTY LP/CAPCRP DTD
12/13/2012 2% 02/15i2018-2018
LAST PRICED: 083172016

CUSIP#92343VBPE

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS DTD
09/18/2013 3.65% 09/14:2018

LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

MARKET VALUE

439,381

396.402

395,150

395,725

582,244

644,023

597,428

674,281

795,058

25

25

20

60

80

o

80

362

COST

440,532

398,083

394,348

398,120

582,095

644,983

596,373

674,582

797,911

86

25

w

3

67

80

% OF
PORT

ACCRUED
INCOME

5,803

4,937

123

4,192

1,573

1,599

1,401

12,868

00

28



% Trustmark
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page 17

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

Statement Period 08/01/2016 through08:31/2016
Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST  PORT INCOME
CUSIP# 94974BFGO
930, 000 WELLS FARGO AND CO DTD 933,636 30 926,949.03 ! 1,743 .75

12:26:2012 1.5% 01/16/2018
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 94974BGRS

775,000 WELLS FARGO AND CO DTD 797,149 50 800,404 50 1 4,611 25
12/07:2015 2.55% §2/07/2020
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

28,982,449 64 20,973,711.99 16 119,187 65
FOREIGN BONDS NOTES & DEBENTURES

CUSIP #0556 7L7E!

540,000 BNP PARIBAS SA DTD 09/14i2012 545,346 00 545,152 00 1 5,949 38
2375%09/14:2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31:2016

CUSIP # 0641 59EK8

750,000 BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA DTD 751,410.00 749,407 50 i 3.645 83
04/11/2014 1.25%04/11/2017
LAST PRICED: 08/31/2016

CUSIP # 298785GH3

785,000 EUROPEAN INVESTMENT BANK DTD 799,655 95 801,473
01/14/2014 1.875% 03/15:2019
LAST PRICED- 08312016

9 1 6.786 98

CUSIP# 459058FE8

805, 000 INTL BK RECON & DEVELOP DTD 804,468.70 804,863 15 i 821.77
04/19/2016 .875% 07/19i2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31,2016

CUSIP # 45950KCC2

800, 000 INTL FINANCE CORP DTD 06/1012014 804,576.00 805.773 28 1 1.250 00
1.25% 07/16/2018
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

CUSIP # 78010UNX1
580,000 ROYAL BANK OF CANADA DTD 580,661.20 579,472 20 1 734 67

01,23:2014 1.2%01/23,2017
LAST PRICED: 08:31/2016

4,286,117.88 4,286.141.32 s 19,188 63

363



Trustmark
TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT Page I8

OPERATING/SAGE TNB CUSTODIAN

¢

Statement Period 08i01/2016 through 08:31/2016
Account Number

Asset Detail As Of 08/31/2016

% OF ACCRUED
UNITS/BOOK VALUE DESCRIPTION MARKET VALUE COST PORT INCOME
TOTALINVESTMENTS 81,297,544 87
CASH 2,401,316 39
DUE FROM BROKER 2,395,937.29
DUE TO BROKER 1,156,431.50
NET ASSETS 80,135,734 27
ACCRUED INCOME 293,762 73
TOTAL MARKET VALUE 80,429,497 00

364



Lamar Instituts of Technology
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2018 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

| | Purchase | Maturity | Beginning Market Value| Ending Market Value Book Balance l Quartsr Ending 08/31116
Agency/Description Cusip Number Date Date As of 05/31/16 investment Income _ Retum

As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16
Operating Short:

Intermediaty
Cash in Bank- Operating

$ 2,509,209.91 $ 2,484,337.30 § 2,484,337.30 § 21451 0.01%
Cash in Treasury s 1,181,334.48 § 974,145.70 § 974,145.70 § 1,335.83  0.19%
TexPool Series 0001 General Fund s 3,850,683.74 § 2,853807.63 § 2,853,907.03 $ 322329 0.08%
Cash in Bank- Payroll H -3 - s -3 - -

Totals LS 7,631,228.13_§ 6.312,390.03_$ 6312.380.03_§ 477363 __0.08% |

6 Month T-Blll  0.16%

Lamer insttute of Tachnology investmenl portfakos comply with investment strategy expressed in Texas Stata Uinivarsity Systsm Investment Palicies and wilh relevant provisions of the Taxas Public Funds Investment Act.

@3%‘2}4% aﬂll.eﬂe &cjl'ne—ﬂsf’lc;;muu %‘C%{Iﬁ_—fgj’y‘hﬂ) /D //9//4
me cof Signee
Title

365



{amar State Coliege - Orange
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

i I Purchase I Malurity | Beginning Market Value |  Ending Marke! Value Book Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
Agency/Description Cusip Number Dale Date As of 05/31116 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 [ it Income  Return
Operating Short-
Intermediato

Cash in Bank- Depository s 439,11384 § 54316953 S 54316953 § 42243 008%
Cash in Treasury $ 129176723 § 142742415 § 142742415 § 235861 022%
TexPool Series 0001 General Funds $ 18,101 71684 S 17 939587 81 § 17.939587 81 § 1665348 00%%
Cash in Bank- Payrolt S 3571696 § 3757921 § 3767921 § 2745 000%
Cash in Bank- Depositery Non-Operating S 3295647 S 109.24088 $ 10924088 § 0.00%
TexPool Series 0003 TexPool Series Non-Oper S 135226904 S 1.35230794 § 135230794 § 125639  009%
Totals B 21,253.54038_$ 21.40030952 § 2140930952 § 2071836 0.10%

6 Month T-Bill 0 16%

Lamar State Colge  Orange rwostment portfohos comply with swestmerd stialeqy exprossad n 1oaas State Unnvorsily Sysiermn investment Poicres 3nd with elevint provisons of the Texas Pubkc Furs Invesiment Acl

aiu A Reepr

Name of Signee

Vice President for Finance and Operations October 18, 2016
Title Date

366




Lamar State College - Port Arthur
OPERATING 8 NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

I Purchase | Maturity [Beginning Market Value| Ending Market Value Book Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/18
ency/Descrption Cusip Number Date Date As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 investment Income  Retum
Qperating Shod-
Intermediate

Cash in Bank**5508 PayRoll Account $ 926,576 60 $ 949,956 63 $ 849,956 63 § 45422 005%
Cash in Bank**7246 Clearing Account $ 111,80728 § 20496290 $ 204,96290 $ 17635 014%
Cash in Bank™*7253 Clearing Account $ €601,29781 § 1,27520860 $ 1,27520860 $ 1,50917  029%
Cash in Bank**7287 Fin Aid Refd Disb $ 5856388 § 127,02065 § 127,02065 § 7978 013%
Cash in Bank**7295 E&G State Sweep $ 36032 § 36924 § 36924 § 892 248%
Cashin Treasury $ 168985536 § 204548339 § 2,04548339 § 349757 019%
TexPool Series 0001 Cash Mgmt Acct $ 12545499 § 12557165 § 12557165 § 11666 009%
TexPool Prime 0001 TexPool Prime $ 3.744,82560 S 3,750.29562_§ 3,750,29562 § 6547002 0.15%

Totals s 725884184 § 8.478.86868 § 847886868 § 1131269 0 17%

6 Month T-Bill 0 16%

tamar State Coflege - Port Artus investment portfolios Comply with investment tisategy expressed in Tenas State Uneversity System investment Policies and with relevant provisions of ihe Texas Public Funds investment Act

%W/ VP s Feree Bgonihons Cetrtio; /%, 50/ o

Title

367



Texas State University System Office
OPERATING & NON OPERATING QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
PERIODS ENDING 08/31/2016 (TRADE DATE FULL ACCRUAL BASIS)

Purchase Maturity | Beginning Market Value | Ending Market Value Book Balance Quarter Ending 08/31/16
Agency/Description Cusip Number Date Date As of 05/31/16 As of 08/31/16 As of 08/31/16 Ir 1t Income _ Return
Operating Short-
Intermediate
Cash in Bank Wells Farge Designated Fund S 18,288.80 § 152,138.77 § 152,438.77 § - 0.00%
Cash in Bank Wells Fargo  Interest & Sinking H 122,133.53 § 99,133.53 § 99,133.53 § - 0.00%
Cash in Treasury H 392,337.25 § 387.885.22 § 387,885.22 § - 0.00%
TexPool Series 0001 Interest & Sinking S 2,589,361.71 § 2,591,768.86 $ 2,591,76886 $ 2,40715 0.08%
TexPool Series 0002 Designated Fund $ 3,876,693.01 § 4,189,537.31 § 4,189,537.31 § 3,981.41  0.10%
TexPool Series 0007 Capitalized Interest 5 1,347,183.34 § 1,348,435.73 § 1,348,43573 § 125239 0.09%
TexPool Series 0009 Unexpended Plant s 201217 § 2,01401 § 2,014.01 § 184 0.09%
TexPool Series 0010 CP Tax Exempt S 178.003.18 § 125,887.70 S 125,897.70 § 13945 0.09%
Totals s 8,526,013.00 $ 8.896,811.13 § 8,896,811.13_§ 778224 0.09% |
6 Month T-Bill 0.16%
Texas Slate University System Office i oy comply with strategy in Texas Stale University System tmvestment Poticies and with relevant provisions of the Texas Pubfic Funds Invesiment Act

Wang St Ofoae. foebes—

(625 2ot d

Vice Chancellor for Finance

Associate Vice Olancellot for Finance Date

368



Texas State University System
Planning and Construction

Bill Scott, Chair
David Montagne
Donna Williams

Action ltems

1.
2.

~N O O ~W

LU: Design Development Documents for Science and Technology Building

SHSU: Design Development Documents for Lowman Student Center
Addition

. SHSU: Design Development Documents for Thomason Building Repurpose
. TXST: Change in Funding Sources for the Library Repository

. TXST: Change in Funding Sources for the University Events Center

. TSUS: Additions to 2017-2022 Capital Improvements Program

. TSUS Campus Condition Report

Consent Item

8.

TSUS: CONSENT: Executive Summary - Planning and Construction Report
Nov 2016

369



LU: Design Development Documents for Science and Technology Building

Upon motion of Regent , seconded by Regent

it was ordered that:

The design development documents prepared by Gensler of Houston, Texas, for
the Science and Technology Building project at Lamar University and the projected
total project cost of $60,000,000 be approved, to be funded by TSUS Revenue
Financing Bonds.

Explanation

Campus Master Plan/CIP. This project is in the campus master plan adopted by the Board of
Regents in August 2014. The Science and Technology Building project is on the TSUS CIP.

Background Information. In the spring of 2015, the Texas Legislature approved Tuition
Revenue Bonds in the amount of $60,000,000 to finance Lamar University’s new Science and
Technology Building. With input from a select academic programming committee, the program
was completed by Facility Programming and Consulting in February 2016. Construction will
begin in spring 2017 and is expected to be complete in early fall 2018.

Project Site. The new Science and Technology Building is sited to take advantage of a future
pedestrian corridor planned for Cunningham Street and the new campus entry off Rolfe
Christopher Drive. The site is immediately to the west of the Speech and Hearing Building and
is currently an all-permit parking lot bounded by Georgia, lowa and Cunningham Streets. The
site is a prominent location and will be highly visible as Lamar continues to grow.

Scope of the Project. The scope of work consists of construction of a two-story concrete &
steel building with a rooftop mechanical penthouse. The project scope also includes physical
plant expansion, code upgrades and a new 800 ton chiller and cooling tower at the South
Central Plant to serve the new Science and Technology Building, as well as to provide spare
capacity for future development. Over three-fourths of assignable square footage is allotted to
instructional laboratories for upper-level biology, interdisciplinary flex research laboratories, and
an innovation space. Flexible research labs will serve organic/wet chemistry, cell/molecular
biology, biochemistry, computation, and engineering. The innovation space will provide
necessary capabilities to build and prototype special design and interdisciplinary research
projects focused on energy, sustainability, medical devices, and global health at the
undergraduate and graduate level. An exterior, prefabricated greenhouse is included in the
project for additional instructional purposes, and the building will also include a multipurpose
space, faculty offices, a senior leadership suite, and required building support spaces. The
building is approximately 83,000 sqg. ft., including the mechanical penthouse.

Construction Manager-at-Risk. The construction manager-at-risk for the Project is Vaughn
Construction of Houston, Texas.

Project Justification. Lamar has a long standing and well-deserved reputation for excellence
in the STEM disciplines, but the campus lacks contemporary facilities for further growth in
enrollment, research and educational programs in the sciences and engineering. Currently,
Lamar's classrooms, laboratories, research facilities, offices and storage areas in the sciences
(biology, chemistry, physics and earth science) are inadequately sized, woefully outdated and
underperforming in the realm of modern learning environments, and grossly inefficient. Indeed,

370



the last academic building constructed at Lamar opened almost 40 years ago and the newest
science building is 46 years old. Construction of a new science and technology building at
Lamar will dramatically improve the quality of life science education (biology, pre-professional,
bio-chemistry, and environmental sciences) and foster a contemporary learning experience for
our students. As a platform for research creativity, this new facility will embody a new paradigm
for interaction, instruction, and research at the University. Finally, students will benefit greatly
from the new building’s modern learning environments which will improve their ability to
successfully enter the labor market or seek post graduate training or enter professional schools.

Funding Source(s). The total project cost of $60,000,000 will be funded by TSUS Revenue
Financing Bonds approved by the 84" Legislature in 2015.

Coordinating Board Standards. Lamar has submitted to the System Office a Board of
Regents Certification form stating that the proposed project meets all applicable Texas Higher
Education Coordinating Board standards.

Design Development Submittal Documents. The Design Development Submittal documents
follow this Motion in the Board materials.

Operating and Maintenance Cost

Based on Lamar’s current electrical rate, the average yearly operating cost is estimated to be
$195,403 for the Science and Technology Building and $129,064 for the upgraded South
Central Plant. Yearly maintenance costs are estimated to be $415,000 and $46,952
respectively.

Environmental Impact

The original site is an existing parking lot. The new civil and landscape design maximizes the
usable greenspace, replaces paved area with grass and trees, and improves the site drainage
capabilities in a storm event. The Landscape design also incorporates two key features into the
design:

1. A bio-swale area to additionally reduce and clean storm water runoff.
2. A pollinator garden, both for demonstration, and to contribute to the health of
pollinator insects such as bees.

The Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing systems are designed to comply with the 2015
International Energy Conservation Code or ASHRAE 90.1-2013. Equipment selections will be
made at or above efficiencies required by the State Energy Conservation Office (SECO)
standard.

Certification

The design documents submitted by the Architect/Engineer have been reviewed and found to
be a complete and satisfactory Design Development (35% or more) design submittal. This
certification is based on a review by the Component, and upon receipt by the System Office
and/or the Component of a satisfactory statement from the Architect/Engineer of record for
every discipline that to the best of their knowledge the design is complete, and all that remains
to be provided are details required for the creation of construction documents and the
preparation of such documents.

371



Total Project Budget

Construction Cost Limitation (CCL): $48,700,000.00

Replacement Parking Lot: 1,000,000.00

Total Estimated Construction Cost: $49,700,000.00
CM Pre-Construction Services 175,000.00
Owner’s Construction Contingency: (included in project contingency)

Architect /Engineer Fees: $4,236,478.00
Furnishings and Equipment: $1,300,000.00
Owner Contracted Services / Other Work: $944,550.00
Owner Provided Services / Miscellaneous: (included above)
Project Contingency: $2,259,972.00
Project Management Administrative Fees: $900,000.00
Landscape Enhancement ($576,635; included in CCL)
Public Art: $484,000.00
Estimated Total Project Cost (TPC): $60,000,000.00

This budget represents the University’s best estimate of project costs at this stage of design,
based upon third-party construction estimates [reconciled between the Architect’'s Cost
Estimating Consultant and the Construction Manager at Risk.

Information Regarding Soft Costs in Total Project Budget

Construction Cost Limitation (CCL) is the sum of all the amounts related to construction cost
which include the cost of the construction work itself, the profit and overhead for the
construction professional, the construction professional’s administrative cost to support the
project during the construction duration and the construction contingency which is the mutually
agreed upon amount between the System and the construction professional for the risk to
complete the project based on the completion and refinement of the construction drawings.

CM Pre-Construction Services is the amount contractually agreed upon to compensate the
Construction Manager-at-Risk for services rendered during the pre-construction phase of the
Project.

Owner’s Construction Contingency is the budgeted amount available to the Owner to assist
in any monetary issues that may arise after the project is bid. This amount represents 4.05% of
the CCL.

Architect/Engineer Fees are the contracted amounts due the Project Architect/Engineer for its
services on the Project.

Furnishings and Equipment represents the projected cost of furniture, fixtures and equipment
to be incorporated into the Project. Included in this budget line item are all loose furnishings
and voice/data network equipment. All fixed seating, laboratory benches and lab equipment are
part of construction costs.

Owner Contracted Services / Other Work includes site topographic survey, Phase |

environmental survey, geotechnical services, building systems commissioning, construction
materials testing and HVAC testing and balancing.

372



Project Contingency is for the operational aspects of the project, including professional
services amendments, project expenses incurred by users and others, additional fees and other
miscellaneous costs.

Project Management Administrative Fees is the projected cost for project management by
Freese & Nichols.

Landscape Enhancement is the 1% amount of the construction cost, when required by TSUS
Rules and Regulations, for the enhancement of exterior landscape, hardscape, and waterscape
features.

Public Art is the 1% of the construction cost when required by TSUS Rules and Regulations,
for acquisition of works of public art.

373



g*\\\ LAMAR UNIVERSITY

MEMBER THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM™

NEW SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY BUILDING
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT SUBMISSION

LA\
THE TEXAS %' STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM

Gensler 11.17.2016

374



PROJECTTEAM

The Texas State University System

Dr. Jamie R. Garza - San Antonio
Rossanna Salazar - Austin

Charlie Amato - San Antonio

Veronica Muzquiz Edwards - San Antonio
David Montagne - Beaumont

Vernon Reaser Il - Houston

William F. Scott - Nederland

Alan L. Tinsley - Madisonville

Donna N. Williams - Arlington

Dylan J. McFarland - Huntsville

Board of Regents

Chairman

Vice Chairman
Regent

Regent

Regent

Regent

Regent

Regent

Regent

Student Regent

The Texas State University System Contract Administration

Peter Graves, J.D., LL.M.
Rob Roy Parnell, AIA, RAS

Vice Chancellor for Contract Administration
Associate Vice Chancellor for Facilities

Donna Givens

Senior Contract Administrator

Lamar University

Dr. Kenneth Evans
Dr. James Marquart
Craig Ness
Katherine Miller
Michael Ruland

Administration

President

Provost and Vice President

Vice President for Finance and Operations

Assistant Vice President of Planning and Construction
Facilities Management

Gensler

Lamar University

Dr. Srinivas Palanki
Dr. Jerry Lin

Dr. Paul Bernazzani
Dr. Paul F. Nicoletto
Dr. Ashwini Kucknoor
Dr. lan Lian

Steering Committee

Dean, College of Engineering

Sr. Academic Director of Graduate Programs
Professor of Chemistry, Interim Associate Dean
Professor of Biology

Associate Professor of Biology

Assistant Professor of Biology

s,*\\\ LAMAR UNIVERSITY

MEMBER THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM™

375



PROJECTTEAM

Construction Manager At Risk Vaughn Construction
Neil Skinner Construction Director
Steve Skabla Preconstruction Director
Megan Polis Lead Estimator

Program Manager Freese & Nichols
Nancy Rosenberg Project Manager
David Payne Project Manager

Architecture Gensler
Kimberly Hickson, FAIA Principal
Randy Guillot, AIA Design Director
Juli Schroeder, [IDA Interior Design Director
Daniel Crank, AIA Project MAnager
George Ristow, AIA Project Architect
Brian Watson Designer
Maria Nguyen Interior Designer

Cost Consultant PCR
Belinda Williams President
Bob Sherman Provost and Vice President

Civil WG Anderson
Stephanie Anderson, PE President
Sarah LaFleur Project Manager

Gensler @*“\ LAMAR UNIVERSITY

MEMBER THE TEXAS STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM™

376



PROJECTTEAM

Landscape LGA
Lauren Griffith Principal
MEP CEG
Lisa Osborne, PE President
Brad Boyer, PE Executive Vice President
Tim Rocha Senior Project Manager
Andy Solberg, PE Vice President of Engineering
Structural Ensight / Haynes Whaley
Mark Lilie, PE Founder
John Rohrer, PE Executive Vice President Cardno Haynes Whaley
IT/AV/Security 4B Technology
Terry Basford, RCDD Managing Principal
Mark Basford, RCDD/ESS Senior Design Consultant
Danielle Tabachnick, LEED AP Senior Design Consultant
Equipment Mazzetti
JD Thompson Associate Principal
Craig Haynie, RCDD/ESS Project Manager
Ge<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>